The Facebook page for the Economic Development Commission

(https://www.facebook.com/forwardfranklin/) will be live streaming the Common Council meeting so

1.
2.

that the public will be able to watch and listen to the meeting.

CITY OF FRANKLIN
COMMON COUNCIL MEETING
FRANKLIN CITY HALL - COMMON COUNCIL CHAMBERS
9229 WEST LOOMIS ROAD, FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
AGENDA*
TUESDAY, AUGUST 4, 2020 AT 6:30 P.M.

Call to Order and Roll Call.

Citizen Comment Period.
Mayoral Announcements:
(a) COVID-19 Update-Director Day.
(1) Current Infection Statistics.
(i) City Hall Mask Policy.
(b) City Hall Landscaping-Mayor Olson.
() Election Status-Director Wesolowski.

Approval of Minutes - Regular Common Council Meeting of July 21, 2020.

Hearings.

Organizational Business.

Letters and Petitions.

Reports and Recommendations:
1.
2.

Project Updates for Ballpark Commons.
Intergovernmental Agreement for Law Enforcement Services for the 2020 Democratic
National Convention in Milwaukee, Wisconsin; Letter Regarding Termination of
Agreement.
Police Department Request for Approval to Purchase 911 Nextgen Call Recording and
Logging System.
An Ordinance to Amend the Municipal Code to Provide for Common Council, Boards’,
Commissions’ and Committees’ Members, Applicants’, and the Public Remote
Government Meetings Attendance.
A Resolution to Amend a Resolution in Ratification of a Proclamation Declaring a Public
Health Emergency in Response to the Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID-19), as
Amended, to Extend the Time Period of the Public Health Emergency Until January 5,
2021 and to Allow for Citizen Comment Submitted in Writing to be Read into the
Record.



Common Council Meeting Agenda

August 4, 2020

Page 2

10.

11.

12.
13.
14.

15.
16.

17.

18.

19.
20.

21.

An Ordinance to Amend §15-3.0423 of the Unified Development Ordinance Planned
Development District No. 18 (Franklin Business Park) to Amend Section 13.(10) of
Ordinance No. 93-1279, LE., §15-3.0423(10), to Allow the Community Development
Authority to Waive Driveway Setbacks from Interior Lot Lines of a Property Zoned
Planned Development District No. 18 when Abutting a Newly Created by Certified Survey
Map Property Zoned Planned Development District No. 18 and the Properties Share an
Existing Driveway (John J. Malloy, Managing Member of Wisconsin Commercial 2015,
LLC) (at 9750 S. Oakwood Park Drive).

A Resolution Conditionally Approving a 2 Lot Certified Survey Map, Being Parcel 3 of
Certified Survey Map No. 6566, Recorded September 29, 1998, as Document
No. 7607434, in the NE 1/4 and SE 1/4 of the NE 1/4 of Section 26, Town 5 North, Range
21 East, City of Franklin, County of Milwaukee, State of Wisconsin (Wisconsin
Commercial 2015, LLC) (9750 S. Oakwood Park Drive).

Status of W. Marquette Avenue Road Extension Between S. 49th Street and S. 51st
Street.

A Resolution to Issue a Change Order 03 for Pleasant View Park Pavilion (4901 W.
Evergreen Street) in the Amount of $8,186.06.

A Resolution Imposing Conditions and Restrictions for the Approval of a Special Use to
Operate a Mega Media Xchange Store, with the Addition of a Gaming Lounge, Located at
6544 S. Lovers Lane Road (Garden Plaza Shopping Center) (Robert A. Settecase, Owner
of MMX3 LLC (Mega Media Xchange, Applicant).

A Resolution Authorizing Certain Officials to Accept a Conservation Easement for and as
Part of the Approval of a Certified Survey Map for Scott A. Mayer and Susanne Mayer at
9533 W. Ryan Road.

A Resolution for GRAEF-USA, Inc. to Design the S. 116th Street Trail for $150,000.
Installation of Lights for Ryan Meadows Subdivision.

Agreement to Allow Sewage Grinder Pump at 10609 W. St. Martins Road (TKN 800
9999 002).

Direction Relating to W. Puetz Road and 2020 Road Program.

A Resolution to Award Design of Industrial Park Lift Station (10100 S. 60th Street)
Replacement to GRAEF-USA, Inc. for $202,100.

A Resolution to Issue Change Order No. 1 for 2020 City Hall Sign Project to Michael’s
Signs, Inc. in the Amount of $5,350.

Report on Expenditures Related to the COVID-19 Public Health Emergency Through
July 30, 2020.

June 2020 Monthly Financial Report.

Development of a Franklin Policy to Eliminate Private Property Inflow and Infiltration
(PPII) from the Sanitary Sewer.

Tax Incremental District No. 8 Development Agreement Between the City of Franklin, JHB
Properties, LLC and ZS Enterprises, LLC, Industrial Spec Buildings Mixed Use
Development at the south side of West Elm Road in the approximately South 3500 Street
block area to the west, to be bounded on the north by West Elm Road to be extended to the
west, and South Hickory Street on the east, and to straddle South Birch Street and West
Aspen Way, all to be developed; and Development Agreement for JHB Properties, LLC
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and ZS Enterprises, LLC, Industrial Spec Buildings Mixed Use Development (Public
Improvements). The Common Council may enter closed session pursuant to Wis. Stat. §
19.85(1)(e), for market competition and bargaining reasons, to deliberate and consider
terms relating to a Tax Incremental District No. 8 Development Agreement Between the
City of Franklin, JHB Properties, LLC and ZS Enterprises, LLC, Industrial Spec Buildings
Mixed Use Development and a Development Agreement for JHB Properties, LLC and ZS
Enterprises, LLC, Industrial Spec Buildings Mixed Use Development (Public
Improvements), and the investing of public funds and governmental actions in relation
thereto and to effect such development, including the terms and provisions of the
development agreements for the development of property located on the south side of West
Elm Road in the approximately 3500 block area were West Elm Road to be extended to the
west, consisting of approximately 79.79 acres, and to reenter open session at the same place
thereafter to act on such matters discussed therein as it deems appropriate.

H. Licenses and Permits.

L Bills.

Miscellaneous Licenses from License Committee Meeting of August 4, 2020.

Request for Approval of Vouchers and Payroll.

J. Adjournment.

*Supporting documentation and details of these agenda items are available in the Common Council Meeting Packet on the City of Franklin
website www franklinwi gov

[Note Upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate aids and

services For additiona

I information, contact the City Clerk’s office at (414) 425-7500 ]

REMINDERS:
August 6 Plan Commission Meeting 7:00 p.m.
August 11 Partisan Primary 7:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m.
August 18 Common Council Meeting 6:30 p.m.
August 20 Plan Commission Meeting 7:00 p.m.

September 7 Labor Day City Hall Closed



ROLL CALL

CITIZEN COMMENT

APPROVAL OF
MINUTES

CONSENT AGENDA

DONATIONS POLICE,
FIRE AND PARKS

FIRE DEPT. ALERTING
SYSTEM

CASCADE PARK TRAIL

ORD. 2020-2440
STOP SIGNS
CAMBRIDGE DR/
STONE HEDGE DR.

SENIOR CITIZENS
TRAVEL PROGRAM

CITY OF FRANKLIN &

COMMON COUNCIL MEETING

G.1.

G.1.(a)

G.1.(b)

G.1.(c)

G.1.(d)

G.2.

JULY 21, 2020
MINUTES

The regular meeting of the Common Council was held on July 21,
2020 and called to order at 6:30 p.m. by Mayor Steve Olson in the
Franklin City Hall Council Chambers, 9229 W. Loomis Road,
Franklin, Wisconsin. On roll call, the following were in attendance:
Alderman Mark Dandrea, Alderman Dan Mayer (by telephone),
Alderwoman Kristen Wilhelm (by telephone), Alderwoman Shari
Hanneman (by telephone), Alderman Mike Barber and Alderman
John R. Nelson. Also present were City Engineer Glen Morrow,
Director of Administration Peggy Steeno, City Attorney Jesse A.
Wesolowski and City Clerk Sandra Wesolowski.

Citizen comment period was opened at 6:35 p.m. and closed at
6:35 p.m.

Alderman Barber moved to approve the minutes of the regular
Common Council Meeting of July 7, 2020 as presented at this
meeting. Seconded by Alderman Dandrea. All voted Aye; motion
carried.

Alderman Barber moved to approve the following consent agenda
items:

Accept donations received during May and June 2020 to the Police,
Fire and Parks Departments.

Approve Fire Department authorization to solicit competitive bids for
installation of USDD station-specific alerting system in accordance
and compliance with all applicable state and local statues and
ordinances.

Approve Staff to submit application to Milwaukee County Parks for
Cascade Park Trail between 8300 S. 60th Street and 8248/8264
W. River Terrace Drive.

Adopt Ordinance No. 2020-2440, AN ORDINANCE TO
ESTABLISH PLACEMENT OF STOP SIGNS ON SOUTH
CAMBRIDGE DRIVE AT WEST STONE HEDGE DRIVE
INTERSECTION.

Approval of the Consent Agenda items was seconded by Alderman
Dandrea. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Dandrea moved to accept and place on file the Franklin
Senior Citizens Travel Program semi-annual update for 2020.
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SENIOR CITIZENS INC.

COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT BLOCK
GRANT

RES. 2020-7650

DEV. AGREEMENT
KNOLLWOOD LEGACY
APTS.

RES. 2020-7651
OFF-SITE PUBLIC
WATER SYSTEM

DRAINAGE TILE
S. 116TH ST.

RES. 2020-7652

RES. 2020-7653

WATER MAIN
EASEMENT
SOUTHBROOK CHURCH

G.3.

G.4.

G5S.

G.6.

G.7.

G.8.

Seconded by Alderman Mayer. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Mayer moved to accept and place on file the Franklin
Senior Citizens, Inc. semi-annual update for 2020. Seconded by
Alderman Dandrea. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Dandrea moved to authorize the Director of
Administration to submit Letters of Support for the Eras Senior
Network Faith in Action Milwaukee County Program for $5,000 and
Oak Creek Salvation Army-Homelessness Program for $3,000; to
submit a project application for Senior Health Related Educational
Programming for $5,000; and to submit a project application for a
Franklin Home Repair Grant Program, that would be administered
directly through Milwaukee County, the remaining portion of the
City’s annual allocation by the deadline date of August 26, 2020.
Seconded by Alderman Mayer. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Dandrea moved to adopt Resolution No. 2020-7650, A
RESOLUTION TO AUTORIZE CERTAIN OFFFICIALS TO
EXECUTE A CONSENT TO COLLATERAL ASSIGNMENT OF
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT FOR KNOLLWOOD LEGACY
APARTMENTS FROM WAB HOLDINGS KWL LLC TO OLD
NATIONAL BANK. Seconded by Alderman Mayer. All voted
Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Nelson moved to adopt Resolution No. 2020-7651, A
RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT OFF-SITE PUBLIC WATER
SYSTEM FOR TAX INCREMENT DISTRICT NO. 6 PUBLIC
IMPROVEMENTS AND RYAN MEADOWS SUBDIVISION.
Seconded by Alderman Dandrea. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Nelson moved to authorize execution of an agreement to
install underground drainage tile at 8930 South 116th Street (TKN
845-9996-000) and 8956 South 116th Street (TKN 845-9997-001),
pending legal assistance on finalizing the agreement. Seconded by
Alderwoman Wilhelm. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Nelson moved to adopt Resolution No. 2020-7652, A
RESOLUTION TO VACATE WATER MAIN EASEMENT FOR
SOUTHBROOK CHURCH, 11010 WEST ST. MARTINS ROAD
(TKN 789-9967-012), in such form and content as approved by the
City Attorney and City Engineer. Seconded by Alderman Barber.
All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Nelson moved to adopt Resolution No. 2020-7653, A
RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT WATER MAIN EASEMENT FOR
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ORD. 2020-2441
AMEND UDO

PDD 28, POLISH
COMMUNITY CENTER

REMOTE MEETING
ATTENDANCE

SIDEWALK W. LOOMIS
RD./W. ST. MARTINS
RD./W.RAWSON AVE.

S. LOVERS LANE RD.
DESIGN PREFERENCES

G.9.

G.10.

G.11.

G.12.

SOUTHBROOK CHURCH, 11010 W. ST. MARTINS ROAD (TKN
789-9967-012), subject to corrections and/or technical changes by the
City Attorney and City Engineer. Seconded by Alderwoman
Wilhelm. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Mayer moved to adopt Ordinance No. 2020-2441, AN
ORDINANCE TO AMEND SECTION 15-3.01433 OF THE
UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE, PLANNED
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO. 28 (POLISH FESTIVALS, INC,,
POLISH COMMUNITY CENTER) TO ALLOW FOR
ADDITIONAL PARKING AND TO EXTEND THE TIME FOR
DEVELOPMENT COMPLETION  (POLISH HERITAGE
ALLIANCE, INC., APPLICANT/PROPERTY OWNER) (6941
SOUTH 68TH STREET). Seconded by Alderman Barber. All voted
Aye; motion carried.

Alderwoman Wilhelm moved to table to the Common Council
meeting of August 4, 2020, An Ordinance to Amend the Municipal
Code to Provide for Common Council, Boards’, Commissions’ and
Committees” Members, Applicants’, and the Public Remote
Government Meetings Attendance. Seconded by Alderman Barber.
All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderwoman Wilhelm moved to authorize Staff to move forward
with the trail notification to the Wisconsin Department of
Transportation along West Loomis Road from West St. Martins Road
to West Rawson Avenue in the amount of $466,000 with staff
looking into the ability to use Impact Fees and/or Tax Increment
Financing funding. Seconded by Alderman Nelson. All voted Aye;
motion carried.

Following the City Engineer’s presentation on preference options to
inform the Wisconsin Department of Transportation for design of
South Lovers Lane (U.S. 45/STH 100) from West Rawson Avenue
(CTH BB) to West College Avenue, Alderman Nelson moved to
request that the Wisconsin Department of Transportation include a
full lighting package from W. College Avenue to W. Rawson
Avenue at a cost of approximately $150,000 ($75,000 estimate for
the local share). Seconded by Alderman Dandrea. All voted Aye;
motion carried.

Alderman Nelson moved to request that the Wisconsin Department
of Transportation include street lighting upgrade using Context-
Sensitive Solution (CSS) funds for decorative lighting to match
lighting in the Hales Corners project recently completed. Seconded
by Alderman Dandrea. All voted Aye; motion carried.
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COVID-19
EXP. UPDATE

TEMP. HELP
FINANCE DEPT.

ANNUAL MARKET
ADJUSTMENT TO PAY
RANGES

LICENSES AND
PERMITS

G.13.

G.14.

G.15.

Alderman Nelson moved to direct Staff to survey affected property
owners for input in a recommendation to Wisconsin Department of
Transportation on a preferred option for the east frontage road
between West Herda Place and South Phyllis Lane. Seconded by
Alderwoman Hanneman. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Nelson moved to adopt Option A as outlined on the
Council action sheet included in the packet for this meeting, with the
changes approved by motion and referenced by the City Engineer
without having a motion earlier at this meeting. Seconded by
Alderman Dandrea. All voted Aye; motion carried.

No action was taken on the update of COVID-19 expenditures.

Alderwoman Wilhelm motion to authorize the engagement of a
temporary contract service to fill the Accounting Supervisor position
while the current Accounting Supervisor is on an 8-week medical
leave. Seconded by Alderman Barber. All voted Aye; motion
carried.

Alderman Barber motion to approve a 2020 Annual Market
Adjustment to the Pay Ranges for the Compensation Plan and a
Market Adjustment to Wage and Salary Rates, both by 2%, along
with a Progress to Market Wage Adjustment, for non-represented
employees effective with the start of the pay period with a pay date
of July 17, 2020, and authorize Human Resources to incorporate the
new Salary Ranges into the Employee Handbook. Seconded by
Alderwoman Hanneman. On roll call, all voted Aye. Motion
carried.

Alderman Nelson moved to approve the following license
recommendations for the License Committee meeting of July 21,
2020:

Hold for appearance the Operators’ License applications of Heather
M Borger, 511 Montana Ave., South Milwaukee; Shannon P Miller,
W124S58236 North Cape Rd., Muskego; Allison M Planton, 14900 W
Wilbur Dr., Unit 1204, New Berlin; Daniel T Rodriquez, 8014 W
Hilltop Ln., Franklin; Joseph A Soltis, 4155 S Lake Dr., Apt #22, St.
Francis.

Grant 2020-2021 Operator licenses to: Charles H Raine, 6435 Lyra
Ln., Racine; Nicholas B Savarino, S69W15031 Cornell Cir.,
Muskego; Angela M Damask, 964 S 57th St., West Allis; Megan E
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VOUCHERS AND
PAYROLL

ADJOURNMENT

Dauenhauer (with a warning letter from the City Clerk), 411 W Swan
Circle #2914, Oak Creek; David F Goehring, 8017 S 57th St.; Colin
P Kosidowski, 14670 W Meadowshire Dr., New Berlin; Megan E
Lacina, 8067 S 43rd St.; Lee Ann Meier, 7499 S North Cape Rd.;
Sean P Moran, 2550 S Brookland Rd., New Berlin; Craig A
Pescheck, 7155 S 49th St.; Danielle M Sancinati, 4738 S 112th St,,
Greenfield; Mahakrpeet Singh, 7325 S 38th St., Franklin; Austin J
Weber, 3276 N Shepard Ave., Milwaukee.

Withdrawn at this time: Temporary Entertainment & Amusement to:
Root River Center, David Church, Volleyball Tournament and Band
on Saturday August 1, 2020; Root River Center, David Church, Band
for Fundraiser on Sunday August 16, 2020; Federation of Croatian
Societies-Croatian Park Croatian Festival, Thomas Krenz, for their
event on Saturday July 18,2020.

Hold until next meeting Temporary Class B Beer and Wine for
Change in Date to: St. Paul’s Evangelical Lutheran Church, 6881 S.
51st St., 2020 Fundraiser Silent/Live Auction, New Date of Event
September 26, 2020; Romey’s Place, Nate Fabry, for their event on
Saturday September 5, 2020.

Seconded by Alderman Barber. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Barber moved to approve the following:

City vouchers with an ending date of July 16, 2020 in the amount of
$1,060,087.41; and Payroll dated July 17, 2020 in the amount of
$417,636.10 and payments of the various payroll deductions in the
amount of $238, 688.36 plus City matching payments; and Estimated
payroll dated July 31, 2020 in the amount of $416,000 and payments
of the various payroll deductions in the amount of $455,000.00 plus
City matching payments. Seconded by Alderman Nelson. On roll
call, all voted Aye. Motion carried.

Alderman Nelson moved to adjourn the meeting at 7:50 p.m.
Seconded by Alderman Barber. All voted Aye; motion carried.



RECOMMENDATIONS

APPROVAL REQUEST FOR MEETING DATE
. COUNCIL ACTION August 4, 2020
REPORTS & Project Updates for Ballpark Commons ITEM NUMBER

o,

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Representatives from Ballpark Commons will present an update on the development.

No action requested. This report is only for providing updates on the Ballpark Commons project.

Economic Development Department - CB




APPROVAL REQUEST FOR MEETING
COUNCIL ACTION DATE
Ny August 4, 2020
REPORTS AND Intergovernmental Agreement for Law Enforcement ITEM NUMBER
RECOMMENDATIONS | Services for the 2020 Democratic National Convention in _—
Milwaukee, Wisconsin; Cj, .
letter regarding termination of agreement

An agreement regarding the above was approved by the Common Council at its meeting on February 17, 2020,
and a redraft thereof in lieu of and/or to replace the same was approved by the Common Council at its meeting
on June 2, 2020. Annexed hereto is a copy of an email and letter regarding termination of the agreement sent
by the Franklin Chief of Police on July 23, 2020. Also annexed hereto are a copy of the executed agreement
and documents referenced and incorporated therein. Finally annexed hereto is a copy of a Milwaukee Journal
Sentinel news article published July 27, 2020 and updated July 28, 2020 regarding the subject matter.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

A motion to approve the letter regarding termination of the Intergovernmental Agreement for Law Enforcement
Services for the 2020 Democratic National Convention in Milwaukee, Wisconsin, sent by the City of Franklin
Chief of Police on July 23, 2020, and the ratification thereof, with the authorization hereby granted to the Chief
of Police to reinstate such Agreement and its terms and provisions and the services to be provided thereunder in
the event the City of Milwaukee timely cures the compliance and performance subject matter of the letter
regarding termination, and to notify the City of Milwaukee of this Common Council action;

or

such other action as the Common Council may deem appropriate.

Legal Services Dept.: jw




DNC Convention: Termination of MOU

From: Rick Oliva <ROliva@franklinwi.gov>

Subject: RE: DNC Convention: Termination of MOU

Date: July 23, 2020 at 8:52:35 AM CDT

To: "Morales, Alfonso" <AMORAL@milwaukee.gov>, "mayor@milwaukee.gov"
<mayor@milwaukee.gov>, "fpc@milwaukee.gov" <fpc@milwaukee.gov>,
"ahamil@milwaukee.gov" <ahamil@milwaukee.gov>

Cc: Jesse Wesolowski <jweslaw@aol.com>, "Kline, Thomas" <tkline@milwaukee.gov>,
"Harris, Derrick - MPD" <DHARRI@milwaukee.gov>, "Steve Olson"
<Solson@franklinwi.gov>, "'Schanning, Mary™ <mschan@milwaukee.gov>

Please see attached letter regarding the termination of agreement to send Frankhin Police Officers to
assist at the DNC.

Rick Oliva

Chief of Police

Franklin Police Department
9455 W. Loomis Road
Franklin, WI 53132

(414) 425-2522

police.franklinwi.gov

This message originates from the City of Frankhin It contains information that may be confidential or privileged and is intended only for the
individual(s)l named above It is prohibited for anyone to disclose, copy, distribute, or use the contents of this message without permission,
except as allowed by the Wisconsin Public Record Law If this message is sent to a quorum of a governmental body, my intent is the same as
though it were sent by regular mail and further e-mail distribution is prohibited All personal messages express views solely of the sender, which
are not attributed to the municipality | represent and may not be copied or distributed with this disclaimer If you have received this message in
error please notify me immediately




Chief of Police Rick Oliva

July 23, 2020

Chaef Alfonso Morales;

This 1s to inform you due to recent decisions by Milwaukee elected and appointed officials, the City of Franklin
Police Department will not be supplying personnel to assist at the Democratic National Convention.

It 1s apparent there is a lack of commutment to provide the Milwaukee Police Department with the resources it needs
to ensure the safety of peaceful protesters, attendees, citizens and police personnel. I can not send personnel if they are
not properly equipped or will not be allowed to engage in appropnate actions which would ensure their safety.

In the agreement we entered into with the City of Milwaukee, under Section 14.2.3, Early Termination, we can
terminate the Agreement if the City “fails to comply with or perform any material term, condition or obligation
contained in the Agreement .”

As an attachment to the Agreement, the City of Milwaukee states MPD SOP 910, Civil Disturbance and Crowd
Control Management will be followed Section 910 15 C 1 GENERAL CROWD RESPONSE states.
Officers shall be deployed to monitor crowd activity “Sufficzent resources to handle multiple unruly persons shall be

available....”. Section 910 15 B 4. states in part.  “The primary objectives of the IC at a civil disturbance are to

accomplish the following
a Protect persons, regardless of their participation in the disturbance,

b. Disperse disorderly or threatening crowds in order to eliminate the immediate risks of continued escalation and
Sfurther violence

¢ Arrest law violators, including those responsible for property damage, and remove or isolate persons inciting violent
behavior.”

As reported statements from members of the Milwaukee Common Council and Milwaukee Fire and Police
Commission indicates an intent to restrict appropriate crowd control measures, we are terminating the agreement.

TU Do

Chief Rick Oliva

Franklin Police Department

CC- Mayor Tom Barrett
Milwaukee Common Council President Ashanti Hamlton

Milwaukee Fire and Police Commission

9455 W |oomis Road, Frankhin, Wisconsin 53132-9630 (414) 425-2522 Fax (414) 425-0391



Interpovernmental Agreement for Law Enforcement Services for the 2020
Democratic National Convention in Milwaukee, Wisconsin

City of Franklin

This Intergovernmental Agreement for Law Enforcement Services for the 2020
Democratic National Convention in Milwaukee, Wisconsin is made as of
JUINE _§ , 2020, (the “Effective Date) by and between the City of
Milwaukee, Wisconsin (“City") and the City of Franklin (the “Agency”) for the provision
of law enforcement services 10 facilitate the safe and secure completion of scheduled
Convention events and the protection of Convention delegates, dignitaries, media and the
general public.

1. Definitions.

“Agreemont” means this Intergovermmental Agreement for Law Enforcement
Services (or the 2020 Democratic National Convention in Milwaukee, Wisconsin, and all
of its exhibits, attachments, and schedules.

“Agency” is defined in the introductory paragraph of this Agrecment.

“Agency Commanding Officer” means the member of Agency Personnel
designated by Agency to receive assignments from the City MPD Commanding Officer,
to coordinale Agency Personnel in such a manner as to carry out those assignments, and
to receive and respond to such administrative requests as City MPD deem nccessary to
fulfill the requirements of the Security Plan and fulfill the requirements of the federal
sceurity grant under which Agency will serve as a subrecipient. Agency Commanding
Ofticer(s) shall be identified as such in Exhibit A,

“Agency Personnel™ means all of the employees of Agency that Agency agrees lo
supply to Cuity for the purposes of fulfilling Agency’s obligations under this Agreement,
“Agency Personnel” includes, but is bot limited to, Agency’s LEOs,

“Agency Emergency Event™ means a court order preventing Agency from
fulfilling its obligations under this Agrecment or a public emergency in Agency’s
jurisdiction of such magnitude that ¢ven after incurring reasonable overtime expenses,
Ageney cannot adequately provide for the safety of the public without the services of
some or all of the Agency Pessonnel.

“City” is defined in the introductory paragraph of this Agreement, “City" includes
City MPD.

“City MPD” means the Clty of Milwaukee Police Department, a department of
the City.




“City MPD Commanding Officer” means any of the following City MPD chain of
command: Chief of Police Alfonso Morales, Asst. Chief Michael Brunson, or their
designecs. The City may amend this list of individuals at any time by providing notice to
the Agency In Writing,

“City MPD Policies” means City MPD's Code of Conduct and standard operating
procedures, along with those state and local laws regulating police services in the State of
Wisconsin and the City of Milwaukec, as may be amended from time to time. City
MPD's Codc of Conduct and standard opcmtmg ptocedures are available online at

Comz’uc!l it XMhwordKiUk,

“Convention™ means the 2020 Democratic National Convention scheduled to take
place from August 17 to 20, 2020, for which the City has been selected as the host city.

“Convention Facilifies" means any venue, hotel, office, event space, public space
or any other location, indoors or outdoors, within the Metropolitan Area that is
designated in the Security Plan as a location where Convention events are occurring,
Convention attendees are staying or where Convention-related security services are
required during the Convention Sccurity Period pursuant to the Security Plan.

“Convention Sccurity Period” means the time periad set forth in the Security
Plan during which Agency’s law enfotcement services are required to supplement the
City’s law enforcement services. The cxact dates of the Convention Security Period will
be mutually agreed upon by the Parties after completion of the Security Plan. For
planning purposes al the time the Agrecment is executed, the Convention Security Period
may reasonably be expected lo extend from approximately August 14, 2020 through
August 21, 2020.

“DNC" means the DNC Services Corp., a District of Columbia nonprofit
corporation, or an entity affiliated with DNC Services Corp.

“Lffective Date” is defined in the introductory paragraph of this Agreement,

“Host Committee” means The Good Land Committee, Inc., a Wisconsin non-
stock, nonprofit corporation.

“In Writing” means a written document signed by the City MPD Commanding
Officer(s) utilizing forms attached hereto as Exhibit D. PDF signatures are acceptable.
E-mail authorizations are “In Writing” only {f the email originates from the official City
email account (@milwaukeo.gov) of one of the individuals specified in this paragraph,
Text messages, Faccbook messages, and similar social media messaging messages are
not “In Writing™ and should not be used for official purposes.




“LEO” means a law enforcement officer employed by the Agency who is licenscd
or cerlified as a law enforcement officer according 1o the state and local laws of the
Agency,

“Metropolitan Area” means the City of Milwaukee melropolitan area, which
encompasses those sucrounding municipalities containing Convention Facilities and
events and as may be further defined in the Security Plan. “Metropolitan Area™ may
include locations outside of what is traditionally thought of as metropolitan Milwaukee.

“Party” means either the City or Agency, individually,
“Parties” means the City and Agency, collectively.

“Security Plan” means the sccurity plan developed by the City in cooperation with
the UUSDHS and its subsidiary agencies and divisions, including, but not limited to, the
USSS, and in cooperation with other appropriate federal, state and local law enforcement
and emergency services agencies, and in consultation with the DNC and the Host
Committee for the provision of police, fire, security, bomb disposal and emergency and
rescue services in and avound the Convention Facilities and at all official Convention-
related meetings and activities in the Metropolitan Area,

“USDHS” means the United States Departinent of Homeland Security.
“UJSSS” means the United States Secret Service,
2, Authority.

2.1.  Statutory Authority. Wisconsin Stalutes § 66.0313 provides that any
Wisconsin law enforcement agency may assist a requesting Wisconsin law enforcement
agency with their taw enforcement efforts within the requesting agency's jurisdiction,
Such mutual assistance may include, but is not limiled to, the usc of specialized
equipment, facilities and trained personnel, Wisconsin Statutes § 66.0303 allows a
Wisconsin law enforcement agency (o enter into a mutual aid agreement with a law
enforcement agency of another state subject to certain statutory limitations, including the
approval of the Attorncy General of the State of Wisconsin. If Agency is located in a
state other than Wisconsin, Agency Personnel may not act with any arrest or other police
authority in Wisconsin, pursuant to Wis. Stal. § 175.46.

2.2.  Autbority to Execute. Fach Party represents that it, and the person(s)
signing on its behalf, possesses the legal authority, pursuant to appropriate statule,
ordinance, resolution, or other official action of the Party’s governing body or code, to
enter into this Agreement and to validly and legally bind the Party to all terms herein.

3 Baekground.



3.1, The City has been designated as the host city of the Convention by the
DNC, 10 be held August 17 to 20, 2020 at the Fiserv Forum and many surrounding
venues throughout the Metropolitan Area.

3.2.  The Convention has been classified by the federal government as a
National Special Security Event, for which the USSS is the authorized lead agency for
the design and implementation of the Security Plan.

3.3, The City, through its City MPD, is responsible for coordinating local law
enforcement efforts in compliance with the Security Plan. In (his role, the City seeks (o
prowmote the safety and welfare of all Convention participants and members of the public,
while enabling individuals to exercise their constitutional rights.

3.4.  The City seeks to procure the assistance of additional law enforcement
personne! to provide services required by the Security Plan during the Convention
Security Pertod.

3.5  Agency provides law enforcement services lo the Citly of Franklin,
Wisconsin under the police powers and law enforcement authority granted under
applicable state law.

3.6.  Atthe request of the Cily, Agency will provide the services of the Agency
Personnel identified in Exhibit A of this Agreement to assist the City in meeting the
requirements of the Security Plan for the duration of the Convention Security Period.
Exhibit A may be amended from time to time upon mutual written consent of the Agency
Commanding Officer and City MPD Commanding Officer,

4, Organizational Structure,

4.1.  Unified Law Enforcemeni Command. At all times during any joint
training session prior to the Convention, and af all times during the Convention Scourity
Period, Agency Personnel shall be subject to the structure of supervision, command and
control coordinated by the City MPD through a unified law enforcement command
strueture, irrespective of the rank or job title normally held by any member of Agency
Personnel within the Agency,

4.2.  City MPD is the Load Local Law Enforcement Agency. City MPD is the
lead local faw enforcemnent agency for purposes of Convention security and law
enforcement, City MPD Commanding Officer, ot his/her designee, will communicate the
specific assignments for Agency Personnel to the Agency Commanding Officer. Agency
shall be provided with briefings from City MPD as necessary, or upan request of Agency.

4.3.  City MPD Policies to Apply. Agency Personnel performing services under
the Agreement will abide by applicable City MPD Policies. City MPD will identify the




relevant City MPD Policies within the training materials City MPD will provide to
Agency on or before June 1, 2020. Agency shall disseminate those City MPD Policies to
Agency Personnel. City MFD shall train Agency Personnel on those City MPD Policies
at the start of the Convention Security Period. In the event of a conflict between relevant
Agency policies and City MPD Policies, Agency will instruct its Agency Personnc] to
follow City MPD Policies with respect to the services provided by Agency hereunder,

5. Agency Responsibilities,

5.1, Agency Personnel to Participate in Training. Upon reasonable advance
wtitten notification from City MPD, Agency Personnel shall participate in Convention

training activities (whether in person or online) that are coordinated by City MPD, and in
conformance with the deadlines specified by City MPD. City MPD shall make reasonable
efforts to coordinate the training schedule with Agency, recognizing that City MPD will
need to accommodate the schedules of many different agencies. At this time, it is
anticipated that all tiaining will occur during the Convention Security Periad when
Agency Personnel are in Mitwaukee, Any training that occurs prior to the Convention
Security Period shalf be at Agency’s cost uniess specifically identified as required
training by City MPD In Writing.

3.2, Services Limited. Services provided by Agency Personnel shall be limiled
to assignments in which Agency Personnel are already experienced or trained and for
which they are licensed or certified 10 do In accordance with state and local laws of
Agency. Assignment of duties to Agency Personnel shall be determined solcly by City
MPD and may comprise all aspects of law enforcement including, but not limited to
tralfic control, security detail and crowd control,

53.  Agency to Provide Services. Agency shall assign Agency Personnel (o
complete those assigninents provided to Agency by City MPD Coramanding Officer in

accordance with Section 4.2. Should Agency object to any specific assignment, Agency
shall make such objection known immediately after receipt of the assignment to the City
MPD Commanding Officer who shall reasonably atiempt {o accommodate Agency,
provided that the decision of City MPD Commanding Officer and the requirements of the
Sceurity Plan shall control. Any refusal to accept an assignment may result in Agency not
being rcimbursed for personnel costs under Section 7. of this Agreement.

5.4,  Agency Personnel “On Duty.” If required by the assignments provided to
Agency by the City MPD Commanding Officer, Agency Personnel shall be placed in an
“on duty” status in which Agency Personnel are physically near specified Convention
Facilitics or a Convention-rclated event Jocation within the Metropolitan Arca, so as (o be
able to physically report in a timely manner to his or her assigned duty post, and be
prepared to undertake the specific assignment. City MPD presently expects (o provide a




tactical operating and briefing manual to Agency Personnel as they arrive in the City,
which Agency Personnel shall comply with at all times while functioning under the letms
of this Agreement.

5.5.  Agency Personnel to Participate in After Action Activities. At the request
of the City (including but siot limited (o City MPD, the City Comptroller, and the Cily

Attorney), Agency shall reasonably provide information, participate in debriefings,
complete surveys, respond to information requests required for insurance or audit
purposes, and reasonably aid the City in the prosecution or defensc of any civil or
criminal procoedings related to Agency’s perfoimance under this Agrecment or any
matter in which Agency Personnel is identified by City MPD as a witncss. Such
assistance shall include the provision, by Agency, of personnel or other records in
criminal and/or civil proceedings as reasonably requested by City.

5.6. [Intentionally left blank.]

3.7.  Agency Personnel Names to be Sent to City MPD. Agency will provide (o
City MPD a list of all Agency Personnel that Agency intends Lo provide under this

Agreement within 10 days of signing this Agreement or by June 1, 2020, whichever
occurs later. The list shall be provided in the following format attached as Exhibit A. An
electronic version of this spreadsheet will be made available upon request,

5.8.  LEO Criterig. Each of the LEOs provided by Agency shall mect the
following criteria:

5.8.1. Each LEO must be duly licensed or certified as a law enforcement
officer or equivalent by the State of Wisconsin or by the authority of the state in
which the Agency is located. Statutory certification requirements for Agency
LEOs shall be forwarded to the City MPD with the list of all Agency Personncl
required by Section 5.7,

5.8.2. Each LEO, by reason of experience, training and physical fitness
must be qualified and capable of performing the duties required of an active duty
licensed or certified police officer assigned to an cvent of the Convention’s size

and scope.

5.8.3. Rach LEO participating in crowd control or management
assighments as part of the Major Incident Response Team, as determined by City
MPD, must have completed Mobile Fleld Force training or its equivalent and will
complete other training as required by City MPD or USSS bascd upon the LEO's
Convention assignmen,



3 8.4, Lach LEO must have been employed as a licensed or cerfified
police officer for a minimum of two years by the Agency.

5.8.5. Each LEO must be an officer in good standing with the Agency.
The Agency shall promptly notify the City MPD in the event that any LEO is no
longer an officer in good standing with the Agency and the Agency shall remove
that LEO from the list of Agency Personnel.

5.8.6. No LEO may have (i) been sued in an individual capacity in the
fast three years and adjudicated as liable for violatlons of the first amendment of
the U.S. Constitution, or (ii) have any sustained complaints for the use of
cxcessive, unreasonable or unnecessary force within the last five years,

59.  Agency Personnel Equipment.

3.9.1. Each LEO shall be cquipped by Agency at Agency’s own cxpensc,
with a seasonally appropriate patrol uniform and equipment, including but not limited to:
service belts, service weapan, radio, a device that contains oleoresin of capsicum, an
electronic control device, and a personal sofl ballistic body armor as required to be worn
by the LEO while on duty for the Agency. Agency shall not bring to the Convention
Facilitics any chemical or other non-fethal munitions except as provided by City MPD
unless authorized by City MPD.

5.9.2, A complete, sanclioned, equipment list will be provided to Agency
as part of the preparatory materials provided by City MPD no later than June 1, 2020.
Any equipment, gear, service weapons or munitions that are not included on the
equipment list may not be used by Agency Personnc! during the Convention unless (a)
Agency notifies City MPD in writing no later than July 1, 2020, and (b) City MPD
consents [n Writing to the use of the requested additional equipment.

5.9.3. Agency Personnel may not bring or utilize any demo equipment
provided at low or no cost to Agency by a supplier seeking to demonstrate new
equipment to the Agency or other agencies.

5.10, City MPD Can Decline Agency Personnel. At any time during the term of
this Agreement, City MPD has the solc discretion {0 decline assignment or deployment of
any Agency Personnel at any time without cause or explanation. [n the event that City
MPD declines assignment or deployment of Agency Personnel dug to no fault of Agency
or Agency Personnel, City MPD shall reimburse Agency for any costs already incurred
pursuant to the terms and limitations of Section 7. of this Agreement.

5.11.  Agengy Judgment and Priority. Agency has entered this Agreement in
good faith and intends to provide those Agency Personnel set forth herein to assist City




witly implementation of the Securily Plan duting the Convention Security Period,
However, the Parties recognize that resource availability requires Agency to exercise its
best judgment in prioritizing and responding {o the public safety nceds of its own
jurisdiction. That prioiitization decision belongs solely to Agency and Agency may
recall its Agency Personnel in accordance with the termination procedures set forth in
Section 14. of this Agreement,

5.12.  Agency Responsible for Costs, Agency shall be respoasible for all costs
associated with providing Agency Personnel that are not explicitly assumed by City in
this Agreement and/or authorized In Writing. Nothing in this Section shall prohibit City
MPD Commanding Officers from agreeing In Writing to the assignment of specific costs
borme of unforeseen circumstances during the Convention Security Period.

6. City Responsibilities. In addition to its lead local law enforcement
responsibilitics for the Convention, the City will provide all of the following:

6.1.  Event Training. City agrees that it will provide training for Agency
Personnel as determined necessary by City MPD and USSS  Training will include the
provision of preparatory materials and training according to the schedule described in
Section 4.3.

6.2.  Transportation and Food. Agency Personnel will commute to and from
the City on the days they are assigned to provide services for the Convention. The
commute will be to a Jocation designated by the City MPD Commanding Officer based
upon Agency Personnel’s assigiiment each day. City will provide food for Agency
Personnel while on duty. City MPD will provide food location assignments to Agency
prior to the Convention Security Period, City will not provide lodging to Agency
Personnel due ta Agency’s proximity to the Metropolitan Area.

6.3,  Procuring Insurance, City is in the process of procuring a law
enforcement liability insurance policy to cover certain liabilities of the Parties associated
with the Convention. Said insurance policy will include coverage for the Agency and the
Agency Personne! supplied to City for the purpose of fulfilling Agency’s obligations
under this Agreement for the Convention, Certificates of insurance shall be provided to
Agency prior to the Convention Security Period. In the event that the policy cannot be
procured before the Convention Secutity Perlod, City will notify Agency in writing.

7. Payment Terms,

7.1, Costs Covered. City shall cover the tollowing costs, provided such cosis
arg, 1n Cily's sole discretion, (1) actual, necessary, and pre-approved by the City cither
through assignments, as set forth herein, or otherwise In Writing utilizing Exhibit D, and
(2) properly supported by itemized receipts to be and/or payroll records submitted along




with the form attached hereto as Exhibtt B, and supported by all of the documentation sct
forth in Exhibit C. Any costs incurred by Agency prior (o receiving pre-approval
pursuant to subsection 7.1.1. of this Section 7.1, are incurred at Agency’s own risk.

7.1, Payment for Agency Personnel Time, Payment for actual time
wotked and, if authorized by the U.S. Department of Justice and approved In
Writing, actual tinte in training for each Agency Personnel whose services are
actually utifized (including “on duty status” set forth in Section 5.4., or an
auxiliary status) by the City MPD during the Convention Security Period, at the
rate(s) provided by Agency in the Agency Personnel list required by Section 5.7.
Agency Personncl arc considered to be working when they are physically located
at the Convention Facility to which they are assigned between the time that they
check in with a City MPD Commanding Officer or designee and the time that
they check out with a City MPD Commanding Officer or designee at the end of
their shift, Agency Personnel are also considered to be working when they are
being transported to the Convention Facility to which they are assigned before
and after their shift in a vehicle authorized by the City MPD. Agency Personnel
are not considered 1o be working while located at their place of lodging or home
or while traveling (o or from their place of lodging or home to the meeting place
for City MPD transportation of Agency Personne} to the Convention Facilitics to
which they are assigned, unless Agency Personnel are covered by a collective
bargaining agreement or employment contract that requires them to be paid for
such tinte (Agency shall provide City with a copy of such agrecment or contract).
The rates of Agency Personnel shall not exceed the costs of the individual Agency
Personnel’s normal salary and benefits, and the houts worked shall not exceed the
hours set forth in the relevant training materials or Convention Security Period
assignment unless pre-approved In Writing.

7.1.2. Approved Expenses. City shalf reimburse reasonable and
documented transportation and various additional expenscs of Agency Personnel
during such time that they are actually providing services under this Agrcement
during the Convontion Securily Period. City will estimate and itemize allowable
expenses and categories of expenses at least iwo nronths before the Convention
Security Period, and provide that estimate to Agency. Transportation expenses
will be eslimated using the current federal GSA mileage reimbursement rates.
Agency will have six weeks after receiving the cstimate to contest the not-to-
exceed. The City shall not unrcasonably deny Agency’s requests; however, the
decision of the City MPD Commanding Officer shall control, Agency shali not
be reimbursed in exeess of the not-to-exceed amount, nor shall Agency be

+ reimbursed for cxpenses trom categories of spending that are not set forth on



City's not-to-exceed esfimaie (i.e. petsonal entertainment, additional food or
transportation beyond that provided or authorized In Writing by City.)

7.2, Withhold Payment. In the event Agency fails to comply with any terms or
conditions of this Agreement or fo provide in any manner the work ot services as agreed
to herein, City may withhold a reasonable amount of any duc payment until corrective
action has been taken or completed. City may withhold payment for any Agency
Personnel refusing to perform the work assigned by City MPD pursuant to Section 5.3. of
this Agreemont. This right is in addition to and not in Heu of the City's right of
lermination,

7.3, [Intentionally QOmitted}

7.4.  Tederal Grant Requirements. Agency shall be reimbursed for allowablc
expenses as a subrecipient of a federal grant expected to be awarded to the City. As such,
Agency shall comply with all applicable requirements set forth in the DOJ Grants
Financial Guide (https://oip.gov/financialguide/doj/pdfs/DOJ_Financial Guide.pdf), as set
forth in 2 C.F.R. Part 200, and any additional requirements set forth in the grant
agreement itsel{ between the federal government and the City, a copy of which will be
provided to Agency by June 1, 2020, and is incorporated into this Agreement by
reforence. Apency and City affirmatively acknowledge that the federal grant funds will
not be used to supplant local and/or state funds. In order lo provide adequate
documentation of the costs of Agency Personncl expected to be reimbursed by City,
Agency should create a separato rate code within its payroll system to be used to
accurately track work of Agency Personnel under this Agreement.

8. Law Enforcenient Procedures.

8.1,  NoPolice Authority. Unless Agency is from a municipality located in the
State of Wisconsin, Agency Personnel may not act with the arrest or other police
authority of a law enforcement officer of any Wisconsin law enforcement agency
pursuant to Wis. Stat, § 175.46. Except as provided in this Section 8.1., the services to be
provided by Agency Personnel shall be Hmited to scourity detail in accordance with the
procedures and assignments that shall be provided by City MPD,

82.  Aclivitles. Law enforcement methods employed by the LEOs shall
conform to the lawful commands of the City MPD Commanding Officer or his/her
designee, City MPD Policies, City of Milwaukee Municipal Code of Ordinances, |
Wisconsin law, the United States Constitution, and other applicable law.

8.3,  Conformance to Security Plan. All functions and duties to be performed
by Agency Personnel under this Agreement shall conform to the Security Plan,
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9 Term, The term of the Agreement shall begin on the Effective Datc and shall
end upon the completion of all obligations under this Agreement inclusive of
participation in ctiminal and/or civil trials,

10, Consideration Consideration for this Agreement shall be the exchange of
monetary reimbursement for the services of Agency Personnel, the enhanced public
safety and improved law enforcement activity in the Metropolitan Area for the
Convention Security Period, and the professional growth and development of City MPD
and Agency Personnel through the City and the Agency’s training and coaperative efforts
to pravide a safe and secure Convention.

11, Independent Contractor.

11.). Independent Relationship. This Agreement is not intended to and will not
constitute, create, give rise to, or otherwise recognize a joint venture, partnership,
corporation or other formal business association or organization of any kind between the
Partics The rights and obligations of the Parlies under this Agreement will be only those
expressly set forth in this Agreement. Agency will perform under this Agreement as at
independent contractor to the City and not as a representative, employee, agent, or partiter
of the City. Nothing in the paragraph shall be construed to invalidate a Busincss
Associate Agreement executed between the City and Agency, if required by Section 13.3.
of this Agreement,

11.2.  Agency Personnel Remain Bmployees of Agency. Except to the extent
covered by reimbursement by City compensation for Agency Personnel specifically set
forth in this Agreement, Agency acknowledges and affirms that Agency remains fully
responsible for any and all obligations as the cmployer of its Agency Personnel, including
among other things: responsibility for the payments of: (i) carnings; (ii) overtime
earnings; (iit) withholdings; (iv) insurance coverage; (v) workers® compensation; (vi)
death benefits; (vil) medical and legal indemnity where lawlul and appropriate; and (viii)
all other requirements by law, regulations, ordinance or contract. Agency shall be
responsible for the payment of any compensation or death benefits to Ageney Personnel
who arc injured or kitled while providing scrvices to City under the terms of this
Agreement. City shall reimburse Agency for those expenses to the extent required by
state taw,

11.3. Discipline / Probable Cause Matters. City shall refer disciplinary matters
involving Agency Personnel to Agency. Based on the judgment of City, if a particular
matter tepresents prabable cause for the issuance of a criminal complaint, then such
matter shall be referred divectly (o the Milwaukee Police Department or an external law
enforcement agency, as appropriate, for investigation with appropriate notice to Agency

12, Lisbility.

11




12,1 Indemnification. The City shall indemnify Agency Personnel for
liability to third parties incurred while Agency Personnel are acting within the scope of
their employment to fulfill the terms of this Agreement to the extent required by Sec.
66.0313, Wis. Stats.

12.2. No Waiver. Irrespective of any term of this Agreement, nothing contained
in this Agreement shall waive or amend, nor be constried to waive or amend any
privilege, defense, limitation of liability, or immunity that cither Party, their respective
officials, agents, or employees may have under any applicable federal, state, local, or
common law.

13. Records.

13.1.  Agency to Comply. Agency shall comply with all apphcable local, state,
and federal laws and requirements pertaining to maintenance and disclosure of personal
information (name, age, phone number, address, social security number, etc.) belonging
to members of the public and criminal justice records.

13.2,  Security Information. Agency shall comply with all privilege
requirements and procedures set forth by the USDHS, USSS or other governmental
entity. If Agency has custody of a record provided by City which contains details of
security arraugements or Investigations, Agency shall, as soon as practical and without
delay, notify City of any request to disclose such record and shall follow the requirements
of Section 13.5., below, prior to disclosure. For purposes of this Paragraph, the term
“record” shall be broadly construed and shalt include, but not be limited to, all
documents, paper, clectronic files, and other things containing information, irrespective
of the form of that record or data, /L e. electronic, hard copy, voice recording, photograph,
cte., unless such form is specified by law.

13.3. Protected Health Care Information. Agency will comply with ali

applicable state and federal medical privacy laws, including but not limited to HIPAA
and Sections 51,30, 146.816 and 146.82 of the Wisconsin Statutes, when applicable,

13.4. Wisconsin Public Records Law. Both Parties understand that City is
bound by the Wisconsla Public Records Law, and as such, all of the terms of this
Agreement are subject to and conditioned on the provisions of Wis, Stat. sec. 19.21 ef
seq. Agency acknowledges that it is obligated to assist the City in retaining and
producing records that are subject to the Wisconsin Public Records Law, including but
not limited to those records produced or collected by Agency under this Agreement
pursuant to Wis. Stat, sec. 19.36(3) and that the failure to do so shall constitule a material
breach of this Agreement. The Parties further agree and acknowledge that because of the
federal grant described in Scetion 7.4, of this Agreement, 2 CFR 200,333 shall establish
the minimum recard retention requircments fo be followed by Agency. Agency certifies
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that it will comply with the record retention requirements in 2 CFR § 200.333. Agency
furthor certifics that it wlll retain all records as required by 2 CFR § 200.333 for a perjod
of three years after it receives City notice that the City has submitted final expenditure
reports or quarterly or annual financial reports, as applicable, and all other pending
matters are closed. Nothing in this Section 13.4. should be construed as prohibsting the
Agency from retaining records [or longer than 2 CFR § 200.333 requires.

13.5. Nolice of Request for Disclosure. Agency will provide notice to City of
any request for the disclosure of information associated with or generated as a resuit of
the work performed under this Agrcement at least ten business days before such
information is disclosed and shall confer with the City and, if Clty deems appropriate, the
USSS before deciding whether the Wisconsin Public Records Law requires Agency to
release the requested records. Nothing in this paragraph shall supersede any other term
of this Section 13., and in the event of a direct conflict between this paragraph and any
other paragraph and of this Section, this paragraph shall not control.

13.6. City Access (o Agency's Records. Agency agrees that any duly
authorized representalive of the Cily, including the City Attorney and the City
Comptroller or other financial representative, or a federal grant auditor, will have access
lo, and the right to, examine any directly pertinent records, documents, paper, and data of
the Agency, involving transactions related to this Agreement until the expiration of the
records retention period described in Section 13.4., above.

14,  Early Termination.

14,1, Termination by City. City may terminate this Agreement at any time and
for any rcason, Should City terminate this Agreement, City shall pay Agency for any
costs actually and already incurred pursuant to Section 7. City may withhold payment of
costs for any parlicular Agency Personnel if that Agency Personnel receives (raining from
City MPD and fails to comply with or perform any material term, condition or obligation
contained in this Agreement and either such breach cannot be cured, or, if such breach
may be cured, Ageney or Agency Personnel fails to cure such default within seven
calendar days after the City or City MPD provides Agency with notice of such failure,

14.2. Terminalion by Agency,

14.2.1. Agency may terminate this Agreement prior to May 1, 2020, upon
a determination that it must do so to meet its own stafling needs. Upon such
termination, Ageney shall fully refund to City all costs, funds, or other payments
that the City may have paid to Agency pursuant (o this Agrecment.

14.2.2. Agency may lerminate this Agreement on ot after May 1, 2020,
only upon the occutrence of an Agency Emergency Event, including continuation
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of emergency orders in Agency’s jurisdiction related o the COVID-19, or
coronavirus, pandemic. If Agency terminales prior to the Convention Security
Period, Agency shall fully refund to City all costs, funds, or other payments that
the City may have paid to Agency pursuant to this Agreement. [ Agency
(erminatos during the Convention Security Period, City shall pay to Agency only
those costs, funds, or other payments for work performed by Agency prior to the
momenl of termination,

14.2.3. Agency may lerminate this Agreement without payment of costs
described in subsec. 14.2.2. if City fails to comply with or perform any material
term, condition or obligation contained in this Agreement and either such breach
cannot be cured, or, if such breach may be cured, City fails to cure such default
within 7 calendar days after the Agency provides Cily with notice of such failure,

14.2.4. Despite the language in this section about refunding of costs, funds
or other payments made by City to Agency, it is not expected that there will be
any costs, funds or other payments madc to Agency prior to the Convention
Security Period.

14.3.  Parties Contract in Good Faith. The Parties shall act in good faith to
provide as much advance written notice of termination under this Section to the other
Party that is reasonable under the circumstances.

14.4. Consequential Damages. Neither Party shall be entitled to recover any
penalties, consequential damages or attorneys’ fees related to an event of termination
hereunder,

15, Governing Law. This Agreement, and all questions arising in connection
herewith shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the internal laws of the
State of Wisconsin. Venue for any action arising out of or in any way related to this
Agreement shall be exclusively in Milwaukee County for matters arising under state Jaw
and in federal district court in the Eastern District of Wisconsin for matlers arising under
federal jurisdiction,

16.  Notices. All notices required under this Agrcement shall be provided to:

To the City: Alfonso Morales
Chief of Police
749 West State Streel
Milwaukee, WI 53233

MPDChief@milwakee.gov
Via email and paper copy sent via U.S. Mail

With courtesy copies which shall not constitute notice to
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Deputy City Atlorney Mary Schanning
City Hall, Room 800

200 East Wells Street

Mitwaukee, WT 53202
mschan@milwatkee. gov

and

Nicholas DeSiato

Chief of Staff

Milwaukeo Police Department
749 West State Street
Milwaukee, WI 53233
nidesi@mihwaukee gov

To Agency: Chief Richard Oliva
City of Franklin Police Department
9455 West Loomis Road
Franklin, Wisconsin 53132
ROtva@fi-anklinwi gov

17, Additional Provisions,

7.1, Further Assurances. The Parties shall perform such acts, execute and
deliver such instruments and documents, and do all such other things as may be
reasonably necessary (o accomplish the terms of this Agreement.

17.2. No Waiver. Any failure of a Party to assert any right under this
Agreement, including but not limited to acceptance of partial performance or continued
performances after a breach, shall not constitute a waiver or a termination of that right,
this Agreoment, or any of this Agreement’s provisions,

}7.3.  Subcontracting. Neither Party shall subcountract for any of the work
contemplated under this Agreement without obtaining the prior written approval of the
other Parly.

17.4.  No Third Party Beneficiary. No provision in this Agreement is intended
to create, or shall create, any rights with respeet to the subject matier of this Agreement in
any third party, including but not limited to members of the general public.

17.5. Headings. The captions and headings of pavagraphs and sections in this
Agreement are for convenience of reference ouly, and shall not be construed as defining
or limiting the terms and provisions in this Agreement,
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17.6.  Severability. If any provision of this Agreement shall be held invalid or
unenforceable by a court ol competent jurisdiction in any jurisdiction, such invalidity or
wnenforceability shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the remainder of this
Agreement in that jurisdiction or the validity or enforceability of any provision of this
Agreement in any other jurisdiction.

17.7.  Suryival. The terms of this Agreement and any exhibits and attachments
that by reasonable implications contemplate continued performance, rights, or
compliance beyond expiration or termination of the Agreement survive the Agreement
and will continue to be enforceable.

17.8. Counterparts. This Agreement may be execuled in multiple parts.
Signatures to this Agreement transmitted by facsimile or by electronic mail shall be valid
and effective to bind the Party so signing,

17.9.  Nondiscrimination. It is the City’s policy not to discriminate against any
qualilied employee or qualified applicant for employment because of an individual’s sex,
race, religion, color, national origin or ancestry, age, disability, lawful source of income,
marital status, sexual orientation, gender identity or expression, victimhood of domestic
abuse or sexual assault, past or present membership in the military service, HIV status,
domestic partnership, genetic identity, homelessness, familial status, or an individual’s
affilintion or perceived affiliation with any of these categories, pursuant to Milwaukec
Code of Ordinances Scction 109-9. The Parties will comply with all requirements
imposed by or pursuant to the vegulations of the appropriate federal agency effectuating
Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964. The Patties agtree to comply with all applicable
requirementy of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, 42 U,S.C. 12101, e/ seq.

SIGNATURES APPEAR ON THE FOLLOWING PAGE(S)
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The Parties have executed this Agreement as on the dates set forth below.

CITY OF MILWAUKEE
g L
2 ‘;i’ teo#

Alfonso Morales, Chief of quice
Dated this day of sz 3 mm , 2020,

/Kyc' a Sawa, City Comptroller .

Dated this ] day of "Ufr , 2020

Authorizing Resolution 191193 & 191820

Approved as to Form and Exccution:

Wy

- [ 4
Office of the Cily Allorney
Dated this_VO_day of \j’(,utq‘ , 2020.

CITY OF FRANKLIN

By. QL‘JF‘»LWH /&/ ’ \‘\\\H'l:!u,,

S,t@phen’R.@bn \\\;::\ 9‘:’:’4.{]/:;{/,”
$&) R
[ts: Mayor s ]
=z ﬁ( SEAL )...;‘:
L ‘ = ‘2"'.‘ o 5
By _/J&M/L&/W« e O
Sandra 1., Wesolowski "’/5,5, ,?R k)

Its: City Clerk

Dated this 5 #' day of June, 2020.

1077-2018- 1850265094
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List of Ageney Personnel and Commanding Officer

Exhibit A

(Electronic version available from Captain Derrick Harris, dharri@milwaukee.gov)

Agency:

Date:

Name

Agency Commanding Officer:
Commanding Officer Siguature:
Payroll ID | LEO Rank | Hourly Wage | Hourly | Mobils Field
Number Rate / Fringe Force
Overlime Benefit Training
Rale Cost completed?
yes/no
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Exhibit B

(klectronic version available from Captain Derrick Harris, dharri@milwaukee.gov)
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Exhibit C

(Electronic version available from Captain Dertick Harris, dharri@mitwaukee.gov)
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e i i, 2000

City s , DEMOCRATIC
A of : GiE : NATIONAL
Milwankee T [ , By St} : : e CONVENTION

Assisting Agency

Prepared By Contact Phone's # Slgnature

Approved By Contact Phone's # Signature

i e v & T s s e 9 3 2
o b LCosts s T e Siatn
Yotal Total Regular Total Overtime Total Regular and
Number of Personnel ) N
Regular Hours Overtime Hours Cost Cost Overtime Cost
$ $ $
Three sets of documentation are required. Pension
Rate 000%
a Outside Agency Tracking Form These forms were signed off on by the personnel during the event and in the possession of the City FicA
of Milwaukee {Clty] If you are in possession of any of these timesheets, please provide them to the City as soon as possibl Rate 0.00%
Medicare
b. Daily work records/work logs, ime and attendance records, payroll registers This Includes whatever your typlcal system is to track Rate 000%
payroll This wlil be submitted as part of the reimbursement package These records will be reconciled against the timesheets in order | Other Benefits
to approve final reimbursement For this reason, these records should show informatlon such as hourly rates, number of hours worked, Rate 0 00%
total amount of personnel expense, etc. Yotal
Fringe S -
<. Final payroli cosis submitted with reimb q {Reimt of P | Costs — Outside Agencies and ~ Total
Reimbursement Request Form) Wages S -

T
P
Number of Days deral Diem Food
Meals Travel days will be paid at 75% as stipulated by federal Number of Officers {Combine To and From Federal Per Diem Foo! Total Cost
cegulations, https.f/fwww.gsa govfiravel/plan-hook/per-them jates Prorated) Rate {Travel Days)
Note Travel day meal per chems will aot be reimbursed for outside
agencies that are within 100 nmules of Milwaukee
$ 4350 | S
Transportation Costs (T
Airfare’ Receipt from airline or travel agent indicating name of Number of Officers Number of Tickets Average Airfare Price Total Cost
traveler dates of travel and total cost of ticket receipt from airline (Per Round Trip)
wdicating name of traveter dates and cost of any baggage fees
assessed and boarding passes. $ $
Auto reimbursement: Google map showing vehicle route to and Total Miles
. i Total Cost
from Milwaukee Mileage reimbursed at federally approved rates Number of Vehicles {Combine to and From) Mileage Rate otal Co
https.//www gsa.gov/ftcavel/plan-book/transportation-airfare pov-
etc/privately-owned-vehicle pov-mileage-reimbursement-rates
a Motorcycles 50.545/mile  This includes fuel
b. Private Vehicles  $0.575/mile — This includes fuel
¢. Gov't Owned Velucles  $0.17/mile — This includes fuel S S
N el Rent
umb r:::i ::::/ ented Cost Per Bus/Rented Vehicie Total Cost
Bus/Vehicle Rentals Contract cost of rental vehicles or buses, highway and bridge toll fees

Additional Expen}sAes Please provide a delailed description a'nd total Description of Additional Cost Amount of Total Cost

cost for any additional expenses not listed specifically an this form

where reimbursement is being requested Please be aware of any
applicable federal per diem rates related to your request

Please provide any supporting doc ion and/or calc
that will help facilitate the review of your request Example: if your
trip to and from Milwaukee wilf require overnight lodging, please
provide the number of officers who required this acc i )
and the invoice for the total cost of the lodging.
NOTE Any reimbursement under thls section must he preapproved|
{n Writing by the Ctty and such preapproval shall be attached to
this form $ B

Sy wh S noPRE e s 2 Ber®s S

All expenses incurred as described in the Intergovernmental Agreement and Estimate Cost Forms (ECF) are eligible for Salary S
reimbursement The costs inrtially provided were and require doc ion for final appi and Per Diem N
reimbursement, .
Transportation
Note Credit card statements are not considered a valid document for the purposes of reimbursement. Additional Expenses
Total Cost $ -

Please feel free to contact the following City of Milwaukee Prsonnel with any questions you may have
Bryan Rynders 414 286-8524 Rhonda Kelsey 414 286-3639
Dennis Yaccarino 414 286 8552 Andrea Fowler 414 286-5563




Exhibit D
Additional Expenditure Authorization Form - “In Writing”

Directions for Use of This Form: Use this form to obtain approval for additlonal expenditures “In
Writing,” pursuant to your Agenocy's Intergovernmental Agreement for Law Enforcement
Services for the 2020 Democratic National Convention in Milwaukee, Wisconsin “Agreement.”
Please note that your agency will not bo reimbursed for any expenditures that wore not expressly
agreed to in the expense cstimate provided pursuant (o Section 7.1.2, of the Agreement unless you
have both (1) obtained a valid signature on this form before making the expenditure, and (2)
provide the City will the supporting documentation necessaty for reimbursement described in
Exhibit B of the Agreement.

" Agency Information

A geney: .

Agency Personnel Completing Form:

Date:

Addittonal Expenditure Information

Expenditure Requested:

Reimbursable Cost*

Vendor:

Deseription/Purpose:

Additional Memo (optional):

Clty of Milwaukee Commaudiung Officor Approval Information

Name:

Runk:

Dato:

Signature:

Memo (optional):
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MILWAUKEE POLICE DEPARTMENT

STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURE

910 - CIVIL DISTURBANCE AND CROWD MANAGEMENT

GENERAL ORDER: 2020-15
ISSUED: March 16, 2020

REVIEW/APPROVED BY:
EFFECTIVE: March 16, 2020 Assistant Chief Regina Howard
DATE: March 5, 2020

ACTION: Creates SOP WILEAG STANDARD(S): 13.1.1

910.00 PURPOSE (WILEAG 13.1.1)

910.05

The purpose of this standard operating procedure is to establish guidelines for managing
crowds, protecting individual rights, and preserving the peace during demonstrations and
civil disturbances.

POLICY (WILEAG 13.1.1)

It is the policy of the Milwaukee Police Department to protect individual rights related to
assembly and free speech, effectively manage crowds to prevent loss of life, injury, or
property damage and minimize disruptions to persons who are uninvolved.

910.10 DEFINITIONS

A. CIVIL DISOBEDIENCE
The refusal to obey laws in an effort to affect change and/or express a view point
characterized by using passive resistance or other nonviolent means.

B. CIVIL DISORDER
Group acts of violence and/or disorder prejudicial to public safety, law, and good
order.

C. CIVIL DISTURBANCE
An unlawful assembly that constitutes a breach of the peace or any assembly of
persons where there is potential of imminent danger of collective violence, destruction
of property, or other unlawful acts. These are typically, but not always, spontaneous
occurrences requiring the emergency mobilization of police forces and related
emergency services.

D. CROWD CONTROL

Techniques used to address civil disturbances, to include a show of force, crowd
containment, dispersal equipment and tactics, and preparations for multiple arrests
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E.

CROWD MANAGEMENT

Techniques used to manage lawful assemblies before, during, and after the event for
the purpose of maintaining their lawful status through event planning, pre-event
contact with event organizers, issuance of permits when applicable, information
gathering, personnel training and other means.

DEMONSTRATION

A lawful assembly of persons organized primarily to engage in free speech activity.
These may be scheduled events that allow for law enforcement planning. They
include, but are not limited to, marches, protests, and other assemblies intended to
attract attention. Lawful demonstrations can devolve into civil disturbances that
necessitate enforcement action.

. FIELD OPERATIONS COMMANDER

The individual who has overall command of all field resources and is responsible for
execution of the deployment plan. This individual carries out the orders and directives
of the incident commander and coordinates with supervisory personnel assigned to
the deployment.

INCIDENT COMMAND

The Incident Command System organizational element responsible for overall
management of the incident and consisting of the incident commander (either single or
unified command structure) and any assigned supporting staff.

INCIDENT COMMANDER (IC)

The individual responsible for all incident activities, including the development of
strategies and tactics and the ordering and the release of resources. The IC has
overall authority and responsibility for conducting incident operations and is
responsible for the management of all incident operations at the incident site.

NATIONAL INCIDENT MANAGEMENT SYSTEM (NIMS)

A set of principles that provides a systematic, proactive approach guiding government
agencies at all levels, nongovernmental organizations, and the private sector to work
seamlessly to prevent, protect against, respond to, recover from, and mitigate the
effects of incidents, regardless of cause, size, location, or complexity, in order to
reduce the loss of life or property and harm to the environment.

PEACEFUL DEMONSTRATION

A gathering of people expressing a position in a cooperative manner without violation
of the law.
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L. RIOT

A violent and out of control disturbance of the public peace by a statutorily defined
number of people in violation of the laws of Wisconsin. Members shall refer to the
MPD Quick Reference Guide to Protect Peaceful Assembly (form PP-3), which
provides members with guidance regarding the applicable amendments to the United
States Constitution and Milwaukee City Ordinances related to riots and unlawful
assemblies.

910.15 PROCEDURES (WILEAG 13.1.1)

A. PREPARATION AND PLANNING

1. The Fusion Division shall make every effort to make advance contact with event
organizers and to gather the following necessary information about the event to
ensure accurate assignment of personnel and resources:

a.

b.

What type of event is involved?
When is it planned?

Will the event coincide with other routine, large scale events (e.g. sporting
events)?

Is opposition to the event expected?
How many participants are expected?
What are the assembly areas and movement routes?

What actions, activities, or tactics are anticipated, to include use of demonstra-
tor devices designed to thwart arrest?

. What critical infrastructures are in the proximity of the event?

The Fusion Division shall check with Tactical Planning and Logistics and
ascertain if permits have been issued.

What is the history of conduct at such events?
During the event a member of the Fusion Division shall be assigned to the CP
giving real time updates to the IC. The Fusion Division shall monitor social

media for additional information regarding the event.

The Fusion Division shall provide the IC of photos of known agitators.

. Are event organizers cooperative?

Who are the potential counter-protest groups?
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o. Is there a history of violence between the group demonstrating and potential
counter-protest groups?

2. The IC, or a designee, when time pemits shall prepare a written action plan
subject to the approval of the Chief of Police, or designee.

a. The IC, or a designee, shall make every effort to communicate with the
following while preparing for the demonstration:

1.

2.

3.

Key community leaders and stakeholders;
Faith based leaders; and

Elected officials.

b. The written action plan should address the following and be distributed to all
participating agencies.

1.

2.

10.

11

12.

13.

14.

Command assignments and responsibilities;

Personnel, unit structure, and deployment considerations to include the
need for special response teams (i.e., SWAT, emergency medical
personnel, and plainclothes officers);

Regular communication with legal advisors;

Liaison with event planners, to include their legal advisors, where applicable;
Liaison with outside agencies;

Communications plan, to include release of information to the media;
Pre-event intelligence analysis;

Weather and terrain at the event location;

Transportation, support, and relief of personnel;

Staging points for additional resources and equipment;

Traffic management, including perimeter security;

First aid stations established in coordination with emergency medical service
providers;

Demonstrator devices, extrication teams, and equipment;

Transportation of prisoners;
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15. Arrestee processing areas;

16. Any laws, ordinances, or administrative rules specific to the event;
17 Have other agencies such as fire and EMS been notified?;

18. Is there a need to request mutual aid?;

19. Has the appropriate level of properly equipped personnel been allocated to
ensure safety of bystanders, officers, and demonstrators?; and

20. Will off-duty personnel be required?

B. MANAGEMENT AND ORGANIZATION PRINCIPLES

1.

Government may impose reasonable restrictions on time, place, and manner in
which persons assemble and engage in free speech activity. The Milwaukee Police
Department shall place only those limitations and restrictions on demonstrations
necessary to maintain public safety, preserve order and to the degree possibie,
facilitate uninhibited speech, commerce and freedom of movement.

An Incident Command System (ICS) shall be used in crowd management and civil
disturbances to ensure control and unified command.

Organization of responsibilities shall be as follows:

a.

The Chief of Police, or designee, shall designate an incident commander (IC)
responsible for overall control of a demonstration or civil disturbance.

The IC shall implement the written action plan.
in the case of a widely dispersed demonstration or disturbance, or event with

multiple locations, multiple ICs may be assigned at the discretion of the Chief of
Police, or designee.

. The IC shall be responsible for preparing operational plans and management

details associated with planned demonstrations.

The primary objectives of the IC at a civil disturbance are to accomplish the

following:

a. Protect persons, regardless of their participation in the disturbance;.

b. Disperse disorderly or threatening crowds in order to eliminate the immediate
risks of continued escalation and further violence.

c. Arrest law violators, including those responsible for property damage, and

remove or isolate persons inciting violent behavior.
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5.

Supervisors and officers shall be briefed on what to expect and appropriate
responses. The IC, or his or her designee(s), shall be responsible for ordering any
response deemed appropriate.

(WILEAG 13.1.1.1, 13.1.1.2)

C. GENERAL CROWD RESPONSE

1

10

Officers shall be deployed to monitor crowd activity. Sufficient resources to handle
multiple unruly persons shall be available, depending on the fluidity of the situation
and degree of actual or likely disruption.

Uniformed personnel shall wear their badges, nameplates or Major Incident
Response Team (MIRT) identification numbers in a visible location on their person
at all times.

Officers shall be positioned in such a manner as to minimize contact with the
assembled crowds.

Officers should avoid engaging in conversations related to the demonstration with
attendees, refrain from reacting in response to comments from demonstrators, and
maintain a courteous and neutral demeanor.

Persons who reside, are employed, or have emergency business within the area
marked off by a police line shall not be prevented from entering the area unless
circumstances suggest that their safety would be in jeopardy or their entry would
interfere with law enforcement operations.

The field supervisors designated by the IC should establish and maintain
communication with event organizers and relay information on crowd mood to the
IC.

. Supervisors shall maintain close contact with their assigned officers to ensure

compliance with orders, monitor behavior and disposition, and ensure that they are
aware of any changes in crowd behavior or intent.

Audio and video recording of the department crowd response should be
considered for evidentiary purposes.

Mass arrests shall be avoided, unless necessary.
Officers shall ensure that a means of egress for all individuals is present at all

times.
(WILEAG 13.1.1 1)

D. SPONTANEOUS EVENTS OR INCIDENTS

The department must quickly restore order, prevent incidents from escalating, protect
innocent citizens and isolate the incident. The National Incident Command System
(ICS) shall be followed in responding to spontaneous events.
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1. The first officer to arrive on the scene of a spontaneous civil disturbance shall:

a.

d.

e.

Observe the situation from a safe distance to determine if the gathering is
currently or potentially violent;

Notify the Technical Communications Division of the nature and seriousness of
the disturbance, particularly the availability of improvised or deadly weapons,
the location and estimated number of participants, current activities (e.g.,
blocking traffic), direction of movement, and ingress and egress routes for
emergency vehicles;

Request the assistance of a supervisor and necessary backup;

Attempt to identify crowd leaders and agitators engaged in criminal acts; and

At the first available opportunity, request the crowd to voluntarily disperse.

2. The first officer or supervisor in charge at the scene shall:

a.

b

Deploy officers at vantage points to report on crowd actions;

Establish a perimeter sufficient to contain the disturbance and prohibit entrance
into the affected area;

Ensure that, to the degree possible, uninvolved civilians are evacuated from the
immediate area of the disturbance;

. Establish a temporary command post;

Provide ongoing assessment to the Technical Communications Division.
Move and reroute pedestrian and vehicular traffic around the disorder.

Control unauthorized ingress and egress by participants.

. Prevent attempts to assist or reinforce participants.

3. The IC shall also ensure that:

a.

Adequate security is provided to fire and EMS personnel in the performance of
emergency tasks;

Support and relief of personnel are available;

A secure staging area for emergency responders and equipment is designated;

. Public Relations shall establish staging points for media representatives and

provide available information as appropriate;
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e.

The Technical Communications Division (TCD) shall make sure the event is
logged in CAD for documenting activities and actions taken during the course of
the incident;

Photographic or video evidence is preserved, in accordance with applicable law
and department policy, of crowd actions and officer response;

Photographs or videos are taken of any injuries sustained by law enforcement
officers; and

. The need for full mobilization of MIRT officers and the recall of off-duty MIRT

officers is determined.
(WILEAG 13.1.1.1, 13.1.1.5, 13.1.1.6)

E. USE OF FORCE

1. Officers shall follow all procedures set forth in SOP 460 Use of Force related to
any uses of force.

2. Unless exigent circumstances justify immediate action, officers shall not
independently make arrests or employ force without command authorization.

3. The following restrictions and limitations on the use of force shall be observed
during demonstrations and civil disturbances. In all cases, weapons shall be
carried and deployed only by trained and authorized officers:

a.

Canine teams may respond as backup when appropriate but should not be
deployed for crowd control (e.g., containment or dispersal). Canines should
remain in patrol vehicles or other secure locations and, whenever reasonably
possible, out of the view of the crowd. Canines may be deployed in appropriate
circumstances related to bomb detection, pursuit of suspects in buildings, and
related situations.

Horses may be used to contain, control, and direct groups in nonviolent
demonstrations as appropriate. They should not be used against passively
resistant demonstrators, including those who are sitting or lying down. Unless
exigent circumstances exist, horses should not be utilized when the use of
chemical agents is anticipated or deployed or in icy or snowy conditions or
when similar lack of footing may jeopardize the animal, rider, or others.

Patrol vehicles may be used to contain, control, or direct persons as
appropriate but shall not be intentionally brought into contact with them unless
the use of deadly force is authorized.

. Bicycles may be used to control and move persons as appropriate

Electronic control devices (ECDs) should be used during civil disturbances only
for purposes of restraint or arrest of actively resistant individuals when
alternative less forceful means of control are not available or are unsuitable and
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only when the individual can be accurately targeted. ECDs shall not be fired
indiscriminately into crowds.

Oleoresin capsicum (OC) may be used, in accordance with SOP 465 Hand-
Held Chemical Agent, against specific individuals engaged in unlawful conduct
or actively resisting arrest, or as necessary in a defensive capacity when
appropriate. OC spray shall not be used indiscriminately against groups of
people where bystanders would be unreasonably affected, or against passively
resistant individuals. High-volume OC delivery systems (such as MK-9 and MK-
46) are designed for and may be used in civil disturbances against groups of
people engaged in unlawful acts or endangering public safety and security
when approved by the IC. Whenever reasonably possible, a warning should be
issued prior to the use of these systems.

. A baton or similar device can be used as a defensive weapon; as a means of

overcoming resistance (e.g., used in the two-hand horizontal thrust on a police
line); to stop control, or neutralize perceived threatening resistance; as a show
of force; or as a means to contain or disperse a crowd.

. All uses of force shall be reported and investigated in accordance with SOP

460 Use of Force.
(WILEAG 13.1.1.1)

F. CROWD DISPERSAL

1.

Before ordering forced dispersal of a civil disturbance, the |C should determine
whether lesser alternatives may be effective. These alternatives include the use of
containment and dialogue, as follows:

a. Establish contact with event organizers or crowd leaders to assess their

intentions and motivations and develop a mutually acceptable plan for de-
escalation and dispersal.

. Communicate to the participants that their assembly is in violation of the law

and that the department wishes to resolve the incident peacefully, but that acts
of violence will be dealt with swiftly and decisively.

. Supervisors issuing dispersal orders shall do so in compliance with the MPD

Quick Reference Guide to Protect Peaceful Assembly (form PP-3) as the
member shall state, ‘I am (Rank, Name), a member of the Milwaukee Police
Department, | hereby declare this assembly to be unlawful, and hereby order
you to disperse. Refusal to disperse will be in violation of Milwaukee Code of
Ordinances Section 105-1. If you do not disperse immediately you will be
arrested.”

d. Target specific violent or disruptive individuals for arrest.

2. Prior to issuing dispersal orders, in accordance with the MPD Quick Reference

Guide to Protect Peaceful Assembly (form PP-3), the IC should ensure that all




General Order 202015 CIVIL DISTURBANCE AND CROWD MANAGEMENT Page 10 of 12

potentially necessary law enforcement, fire, and EMS equipment and personnel
are on hand to successfully carry out tactical operations and that logistical needs
for making mass arrests are in place

When the IC has made a determination that crowd dispersal is required, he or she
shall direct field supervisors, where time and circumstances permit, to issue
warnings prior to taking action to disperse the crowd.

a. The warning shall consist of an announcement citing the offenses or violations
being committed, an order to disperse in accordance with the MPD Quick
Reference Guide to Protect Peaceful Assembly (form PP-3), and designated
dispersal routes.

b. A second and a third warning shall be issued at reasonable time intervals
before designated actions are taken to disperse the crowd.

c. Where possible, the warnings shall be audio using the Long Range Acoustic
Device (LRAD) and documented in CAD.

Specific crowd dispersal tactics shall be ordered as necessary where the crowd
does not heed warnings. These include, but are not limited to, any one or
combination of the following:

a. Display of forceful presence to include police lines, combined with motorcycles,
patrol vehicles, mounted patrol units, bicycle units, and mobile field forces;

b. Multiple simultaneous arrests;

c. Use of aerosol crowd control chemical agents upon the direction of the Chief of
Police, or in the event the Chief of Police is unavailable, an assistant chief of
police;

d. Law enforcement formations and the use of batons for forcing crowd
movement.
(WILEAG 13.1 1.1, 13.1.1.6)

G. MASS ARREST

It is the policy of the department to avoid making mass arrests of persons when arrest
avoidance is reasonable in the interests of safety and security. However, in a civil
disturbance it may be necessary to make arrests of numerous individuals over a
relatively short period of time. For this process to be handled efficiently, safely, and
legally, the following shall be observed:

1.

Mass arrests shall be conducted by designated squads. Arrests should be made by
two-person teams. Members should not enter a crowd alone. If possible, limit the
number of arrests to ensure that arresting members are able to recall specific facts
for incident reports.
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2

A mobile arrestee staging area shall be designated for holding arrestees after
being arrested and while awaiting transportation.

District shift commanders shall ensure that adequate detention space will be made
available in the district in which the incident is occurring.

The incident commander shall ensure that an arrest team is designated to process
all arrestees and that an adequate number of vehicles are available for that purpose.

Arrest teams shall be advised of the basic offenses to be charged in all arrests,
and all arrestees shall be advised of these charges.

Arrestees who are sitting or lying down but agree to walk shall be escorted to the
transportation vehicle for processing. Two or more officers shall carry those who
refuse to walk.

Arrestees shall be searched incident to arrest for weapons, evidence of the crime
of arrest, and contraband.

Transporting officers shall not accept arrestees without a properly prepared Arrest/
Conveyance Card (form PA-7) and shall ensure that all arrestee property is
properly secured and transported with the arrestee.

Anyone who requests medical attention or is injured, to include arrestees, shall be
provided medical attention. Photographs shall be taken of all known injuries.
(WILEAG 13.1.1.2)

H. DEACTIVATION

When the disturbance has been brought under control:

1.

All personnel engaged in the incident shall be accounted for and an assessment

and documentation made of personal injuries in accordance with SOP 010
Absence.

Witnesses, suspects, and others should be interviewed or questioned.

All necessary personnel shall be debriefed as required.

. Any equipment utilized by officers should be replaced.

An after action report shall be completed as soon as possible after the incident.
Comprehensive documentation should include the basis for the incident, the
department’s response to the incident, with a statement of impact to include the
costs of equipment, personnel, and related items.

I. TRAINING

Officers should receive both initial and ongoing training on appropriate response to
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crowd control and management. Joint training should also be conducted with all
agencies who are involved in crowd management activities.

AM mfk

oo At

ALFONSO MORALES
CHIEF OF POLICE




MILWAUKEE POLICE DEPARTMENT

STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURE
001 — FAIR AND IMPARTIAL POLICING

GENERAL ORDER: 2018-37 REVIEWED/APPROVED BY:

ISSUED: December 21, 2018

EFFECTIVE: December 21, 2018 Director Regina Howard
DATE: December 20, 2018

ACTION: Amends General Order 2014-105 (September 19, 2014) WILEAG STANDARD(S): 1.7.8

001.00

PURPOSE

001.05

The work of our police members has a substantial and positive effect on crime and helps
us pursue our mission of creating neighborhoods capable of sustaining civic life. We
recognize that crime disproportionately impacts some of our neighborhoods, and police
tactics, while proper and effective, can at times be perceived as frightening or alienating.
An unfortunate paradox exists: the vulnerable neighborhoods most in need of police
services are often inhabited by residents who sometimes feel unfairly targeted by police.
We must be aware that the way our authority is used is equally as important as the result
of its use.

To that end, this policy is intended to reaffirm this department's commitment to fair and
impartial policing, to clarify the circumstances in which officers can consider race, color,
ethnicity, national origin, economic status, sexual orientation, gender identity or
expression, age, gender, religion, limited English proficiency, disability, and housing
status when making law enforcement decisions, and to reinforce procedures that serve to
ensure the public that we are providing service and enforcing laws in an equitable way.

POLICY (WILEAG 1.7.8)

Police members shall not rely to any degree on an individual's race, color, ethnicity,
national origin, economic status, sexual orientation, gender identity or expression, age,
gender, religion, limited English proficiency, disability, or housing status in carrying out
law enforcement activities except when credible, locally relevant information links a
person or people of specific characteristics/status, as listed above, to a specific unlawful
incident, or to specific unlawful incidents, criminal patterns, or schemes. This restriction
on the use of race/ethnicity does not apply to law enforcement activities solely designed
to strengthen the department's relationship with a diverse community.

(WILEAG 1.7.8.2)

Note: Biased based profiling by our police members is prohibited and is defined as
the following: Police-initiated action that relies to any degree upon common
traits associated with belonging to a certain group; such as race, color,
ethnicity, national origin, ancestry, age, gender, gender identity or expression,
sexual orientation, religion, marital status, economic status, disability,
political affiliation, cultural group, limited English proficiency, disability,
housing status or any other identifiable characteristics of an individual rather
than the behavior of that individual, or credible information that leads the
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police to a particular individual who has been identified as being engaged in
or having been engaged in criminal activity.
(WILEAG 1.7.8.1)

Police members may use common traits as listed above in selecting whom
they stop, when a person matches the specific description of an individual
who is suspected of engaging in criminal behavior based on credible

evidence.
%, P e

(WILEAG 1.7.8 2)
ALFONSO MORALES
CHIEF OF POLICE
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MILWAUKEE POLICE DEPARTMENT

STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURE

117 — INTERACTIONS WITH TRANSGENDER, INTERSEX, AND/OR GENDER
NON-CONFORMING (TIGN) PERSONS

GENERAL ORDER: 2018-16
ISSUED: May 23, 2018

REVIEWED/APPROVED BY:
EFFECTIVE: May 23, 2018 Director Regina Howard
DATE: May 9, 2018

ACTION: Rescinds and Recreates General Order 2016-56 (October 10, 2016) | WILEAG STANDARD(S): NONE

117.00 PURPOSE

117.05

The purpose of this standard operating procedure is to establish the department's policy,
procedures and responsibilities for interactions with transgender, intersex, and/or gender
non-conforming (TIGN) persons.

POLICY

117.10

It is the policy of the Milwaukee Police Department to treat all persons with the courtesy
and dignity that is inherently due to every person as a human being. Members shall not
exhibit any bias, prejudice or discriminate against any individual or group based on their
actual or perceived sexual orientation, gender, or gender identity/expression.

DEFINITIONS

A.

GENDER EXPRESSION

External manifestations of gender; frequently expressed through one's name,
pronouns, clothing, haircut, behavior, voice, or body characteristics.

GENDER IDENTITY

An individual's internal deeply held sense of gender. Unlike gender expression,
gender identity is not visible to others.

GENDER NON-CONFORMING

Gender expression that does not conform to cultural norms, such as traditional notions
of masculinity or femininity.

. GOVERNMENT-ISSUED IDENTIFICATION CARD

This shall only include a Wisconsin operator's license or identification card, a city of
Milwaukee municipal identification card, a passport or passport card, or state or
federal government issued identification card.

Note: Members should be aware the Milwaukee municipal identification card
may include other gender markers, such as the non-binary gender marker
(signified with an “X”) or non-disclosed / other gender mark (signified
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with a “-“). Other state and local governments (including Oregon,
California, the District of Columbia, etc.) also include gender markers
other than male or female.

INTERSEX INDIVIDUALS

An umbrella term used to describe a wide range of natural bodily variations. Intersex
people are born with a reproductive or sexual anatomy and/or chromosome pattern
that does not seem to fit typical definitions of "male" or "female." In some cases,
intersex traits are visible at birth, while in others they are not apparent until puberty.
Some intersex variations may not be visibly apparent at all. People with intersex
conditions should not be assumed to be transgender. The term "hermaphrodite” is an
offensive and out-of-date term that should not be used.

SEXUAL ORIENTATION

A term describing a person's attraction to members of the same sex and/or a different
sex, often termed lesbian, gay, bisexual, heterosexual, pansexual or asexual.

. TRANSGENDER

A term for people whose gender identity, expression, or behavior is different from
those typically associated with their assigned sex at birth. "Trans" is shorthand for
"transgender." Transgender is correctly used as an adjective, not a noun, thus
"transgender people" is appropriate but "transgenders" is often viewed as
disrespectful.

PROCEDURE FOR TREATMENT OF TIGN POPULATION

A.

If an individual self identifies as TIGN, members shall respect the expressed gender
and use pronouns that are appropriate for the individual's gender presentation or the
person’s pronoun of choice (e.g., "she, her, hers”; “he, him, his”; or “they, them.”).

. When requested, members shall address the individual by the name based on their

gender identity rather than the name that appears on their government issued
identification. Members should be aware that individuals' names may change between
one interaction and the next and should use the name currently used by individuals.

. When a situation arises that involves the need to clarify gender identification, the

member shall respectfully and discreetly inquire as to how the individual wishes to be
addressed (e.g., sir, miss, ms.) and the name by which the individual wishes to be
addressed. This hame shall be documented as an alias if it differs from the individual's
legal name. The member may also ask, “What are your pronouns?” to clarify the
preference for use of she, he, they, or them.

Members shall not, unless legally necessary (e.g., processing an arrest), require proof
of an individual's gender or challenge an individual's gender identity/expression.

TIGN individuals who present a gender or name that differs from the gender and/or
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gender marker or name on their identification documents or in official databases
typically may be expressing their gender identity. Therefore, TIGN individuals should
not be presumed to have knowingly misrepresented information concerning name or
gender and should not be arrested for obstruction solely on that basis.

Note: If the TIGN individual presents a different gender marker or name from the
gender marker or name on their identification documents or in official
databases, the member shall complete a field interview card in
accordance with SOP 085 (Citizen Contacts, Field Interviews, and Search
and Seizure). The member shall ensure the TIGN individual’s preferred
gender marker and/or name is included in the narrative field of the
TriTech Field Interview module.

Members shall not request an individual during a field encounter to remove
appearance related items such as wigs or clothing that conveys gender identity unless
there is an articulable and specific law enforcement reason to do so.

. Members shall not make assumptions regarding an individual's sexual orientation

based on the individual's gender or gender identity/expression.

. Members shall not disclose an individual's gender identity or sexual orientation to

other arrestees, members of the public, or other governmental personnel, absent a
proper law enforcement purpose.

Absent providing details regarding a pertinent criminal investigation, members shall
not disclose to parents or guardians sensitive information they discover about a
juvenile's gender identity, gender expression, or sexual orientation. This information
shall be kept private so as to avoid placing the juvenile at increased risk for violence or
rejection in the home and to allow the juvenile to choose whether to provide the
information.

GUIDELINES FOR SEARCHES OF TIGN ARRESTEES

A.

When a member has reason to believe that an individual is TIGN and a frisk or search
of that person is necessary, they will respectfully and in a professional manner ask the
individual their preference with respect to the gender of the searching officer. The
individual's search preference should be honored as long as no exigent circumstances
exist that would require an immediate search.

. If an individual does not name a search preference, the individual's gender shall be

classified as it appears on the individual's government-issued identification card or in
official department databases and the search shall be conducted by a member of the
same sex as the government-issued identification card or official department database
designation.

. At least two officers should be present for these searches when possible. It is

understood that the dynamic, fluid and emergent nature of some situations are such
that immediate searches are necessary to preserve officer and public safety and to
prevent the destruction of evidence. Accordingly, searches may be undertaken by any
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officer where made necessary by these emergent conditions or the lack of availability
of the officer of a specific gender.

D. In the event that an arrestee objects to any element of this standard operating
procedure, if they make claims regarding their gender that are not credible, are
uncooperative, or do not have a government-issued identification card / do not appear
in any official department databases and do not indicate a search preference, the
member shall notify a supervisor prior to searching the arrestee. A supervisor shall
make a determination based on the information available to them at the time.

E. Members should be aware that the presence of needles may be indicative of
prescribed hormone treatment and/or therapy and is not necessarily indicative of
illegal drug possession, use, or drug paraphernalia.

F. Ifitis imperative that an immediate search be conducted, members shall not endanger
themselves or the public to comply with this section.

117.25 GENDER CLASSIFICATION GUIDELINES FOR TIGN INDIVIDUALS WHO HAVE
BEEN ARRESTED

A. An arrestee’s gender shall be classified as it appears on the individual's government-
issued identification card.

1. For the purpose of listing gender on citations, arrest reports, and other official
documentation, members shall use the designation listed on the individual's
government-issued identification card.

Note: Members should be aware the Milwaukee municipal identification card
may include other gender markers, such as the non-binary gender
marker (signified with an “X”) or non-disclosed / other gender mark
(signified with a “-“). Other state and local governments (including
Oregon, California, the District of Columbia, etc.) also include gender
markers other than male or female. If the individual has a gender
marker of “X” or “-,” or a gender marker other than male or female
listed on their identification card, the member shall respectfully ask
the individual whether they most closely identify with male or female
and use that for data entry of the individual’s gender.

2. For the purpose of listing the name, members shall always enter the individual's
name as it appears on their government-issued identification card. If the arrestee
identifies himself or herself using a different name, that name shall be listed in the
alias section on the arrest reports.

B. In the event that a government-issued identification card is unavailable:

1. If the member has established identification through official department databases,
the name and gender from that identification shall be used. If the arrestee identifies
himself or herself using a different name, that name shall be listed in the alias
section on the arrest reports.
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2 If no government identification i1s established through either a government-issued
identification card or through official department databases the member shall
respectfully ask the individual whether they most closely identify with male or
female and use that for data entry of the individual’'s gender.

C. When there is uncertainty regarding the appropriate classifications of an arrestee’s

gender or if the individual is not comfortable with either option or refuses to answer, a
supervisor shall be consulted for further guidance on the appropriate classification.

117.30 DETENTION OF TIGN ARRESTEES

AM mfk

A. Members transporting transgender, intersex, and/or gender non-conforming (TIGN)

persons shall report the arrestee’s gender identity and preferences to the municipal
lockup or detention facility.

1. The booker shall document the TIGN individual’s pronoun of choice (e.g., “she,
her, hers”; “he, him, his”; or “they, them.”) and gender marker preference in the
narrative field in the Inform Jail System. Members shall share the arrestee’s
gender identity and preferences only with necessary personnei.

2 All information concerning the arrestee’s gender identity and preferences shall be
passed on to subsequent shifts and to the municipal lockup facility or detention
facility the arrestee is transferred to, if applicable.

. Booker requests to remove appearance-related items due to safety and security

concerns (e.g., prosthetics, clothes of the presenting gender, wigs, cosmetic items) shall
be consistent with SOP 090 Prisoners and Booking. TIGN arrestees shall not be asked
to remove appearance-related items if non-TIGN arrestees are not required to do so.

TIGN arrestees shall be asked by the booker where they would feel most safe before
placement and every effort shall be made to ensure the individual is placed in the
cellblock area consistent with their request. Unless the individual expresses a concern
for their safety, the individual shall be housed in a cellblock area consistent with their
gender identity.

Note: If the arrestee’s preference for placement cannot be accommodated, the
booker shall document the reason in the narrative field in the Inform Jail
System.

D. TIGN individuals shall receive the same standards of care as other individuals based

on medical need, including needs related to hormone medications or therapy.
Whenever a transgender individual expresses a need for medical attention, members
shall handle the situation pursuant to SOP 090 Prisoners and Booking.

o
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MILWAUKEE POLICE DEPARTMENT

STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURE

460 — USE OF FORCE

GENERAL ORDER: 2019-22
ISSUED: June 21, 2019

REVIEWED/APPROVED BY:
EFFECTIVE: June 21, 2019 Director Regina Howard
DATE: February 13, 2019

ACTION: Amends General Order 2015-17 (May 5, 2015)

WILEAG STANDARD(S): 5.1.1, 5.1.2, 5.1.3,
5.1.4,5.21,5.3.1,5.3.2,5.3.3

460.00

PURPOSE

460.05

460.10

The purpose of this procedure is to provide instructions for the proper use of force by police
members, provide a fair and impartial review of use of force incidents, determine whether
the actions of police members were justified, and to maintain public confidence in the
Milwaukee Police Department.

POLICY

It is the policy of the Milwaukee Police Department that members hold the highest regard
for the sanctity of human life, dignity, and liberty of all persons. It is the policy of the
department to accomplish the department’s mission with the cooperation of the public and
with minimal reliance upon the use of physical force. Members shall only use the force
necessary to perform their duties and in accordance with department policy.

DISTURBANCE RESOLUTION MODEL (WILEAG 5.1.2, 5.1.4)

It is the policy of the Milwaukee Police Department that all uses of force will comply with
the state of Wisconsin Defense and Arrest Tactics (DAAT) Disturbance Resolution Model,
Intervention Options, as outlined below:

A. APPROACH CONSIDERATIONS

Justification
Decision Making Desirability
Control of distance
Tactical Deployment Positioning (relative positioning / relative positioning with multiple subjects)

Team Tactics

Threat Assessment Opportunities
Officer/subject factors

Special circumstances
Level/stage/degree of stabilization

Tactical Evaluation

B. INTERVENTION OPTIONS

MODE PURPOSE
Presence To present a visible display of authority
Dialogue To verbally persuade
Control Alternatives To overcome passive resistance, active resistance, or their threat
Protective Alternatives To overcome continued resistance, assaultive behavior, or their threats
Deadly Force To stop the threat
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1. Department authorized and issued less lethal weapons include an approved
wooden baton, approved expandable baton, TASER™ X2 ECD, and MK-3 (small
canister) and MK-4 (large canister) Oleoresin Capsicum.

a. Members shall refer to SOP 465 Hand Held Chemical Agent and SOP 467
Electronic Control Device regarding the use of Oleoresin Capsicum and
electronic control devices, which are control alternatives.

b. The approved wooden baton and approved expandable baton are intermediate
weapons under protective alternatives. The goal of using a baton is to impede a
subject, preventing him or her from continuing resistive, assaultive, or otherwise
dangerous behavior.

2. Department authorized and issued less lethal weapons issued to the Tactical
Enforcement Unit include:

a. Launchers, chemical delivering systems, and hand delivered chemical
grenades, which are control alternatives.

b. Hand held delivered impact munitions, weapon delivered impact munitions,
distraction devices, weapon delivered chemical barricade ferret munitions,
weapon delivered chemical muzzle blast munitions, and weapon delivered
breaching rounds, which are protective alternatives.

c. Members shall refer to the Tactical Enforcement Unit SOl regarding the use of
less lethal weapons issued to the Tactical Enforcement Unit.

C. FOLLOW-THROUGH CONSIDERATIONS

Stabilize Application of restraints, If necessary

Monitor/Debnef Maintain alertness (subject’'s condition, etc) / Communication (normalize
scene)

Search if appropriate

Escort if necessary

Transport If necessary

Turn over/Release Removal of restraints, if necessary

Note: Police members shall be trained and qualified in the safe and proficient
use of department authorized and issued firearms. Police members shall
be required to qualify with a state certified department firearms instructor
prior to being authorized to carry such firearms and shall be required to
maintain their qualification in order to ensure continual safe and
proficient firearm use. All sworn members shall receive a copy and
demonstrate their understanding of this directive before being authorized
to carry any firearm.

(WILEAG 5.1.2.2)

460.15 OBJECTIVE REASONABLENESS (WILEAG 5.1.1)

The use of force by a police member must be objectively reasonable. Police members
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shall use only the force necessary to effectively maintain control of a situation and protect
the safety of police members and the public. Objective reasonableness is judged from the
perspective of a reasonable police member facing similar circumstances and is based on
the totality of the facts known to the police member at the time the force was applied,
along with the member's prior training and experience, without regard to the underlying
intent or motivation of the police member.

AMOUNT OF FORCE (WILEAG 5.1.2, 5.1.3)

460.25

A. Force that is intended or likely to cause great bodily harm or death, may only be used
as a last resort:

1. If reasonable under all the circumstances then existing to prevent great bodily
harm or death to the officer or a third party;

2 When necessary to prevent a suspect's escape and the officer has probable cause
to believe that the suspect presently poses a significant threat of great bodily harm
or death to the officer or others;

(WILEAG 5.1.2.1)

3. To kill an animal if the officer or another person is threatened with serious bodily
harm by the animal or otherwise to provide for the safety of the general public; or

4. To kill an animal that has been so badly injured that its destruction would prevent
further suffering.

B. Police members may draw or display their firearms in circumstances where they
reasonably believe it may be necessary to use their firearm in the performance of their
duties.

C. The firing of warning shots is prohibited. When feasible, a verbal warning should be
given prior to the use of force likely to cause great bodily harm or death.

D. Police members shall not discharge their firearm at a person who presents a danger
only to him or herself (e.g., attempted suicide).

DUTY TO INTERVENE

Any officer who personally observes another officer using force, which the observing
officer believes to be beyond that which is objectively reasonable under the
circumstances, shall reasonably attempt to intervene to prevent the use of such excessive
force, if the observing officer is in a position to do so, and if any such intervention does
not jeopardize safety. Any such intervening officer shall promptly report their
observations, along with his/her own intervening actions to a supervisor. A failure to
intervene in any unreasonable use of force, when there is an opportunity to do so,
demonstrates a lack of courage, and a violation of the Code of Conduct.
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460.30 DISCHARGE OF FIREARM INCIDENTS (WILEAG 5.3.3)

A. SHOOTING OF ANIMALS

Whenever a police member shoots an animal and there is no personal injury or property
damage, and all rounds are accounted for, the member’s field supervisor shall conduct
the use of force investigation and file the Use of Force Report in the AIM system, unless
directed otherwise by higher authority. The supervisor shall indicate in the subject tab,
the type of animal (e.g., dog, deer) and fill out the applicable subject details (e.g.,
injuries, photos, animal breed).

. ACCIDENTAL / UNINTENTIONAL DISCHARGE

Whenever a police member accidentally or unintentionally discharges a firearm
regardless of personal injury or property damage, the Criminal Investigation Bureau
shift commander shall be notified and make the determination who shall be assigned
to conduct the use of force investigation and file the Use of Force Report.

. INTENTIONAL DISCHARGE

Whenever a police member intentionally discharges a firearm at a person (regardless of
whether personal injury or property damage occurs), the member shall promptly notify
his/her shift commander of such fact. The shift commander shall promptly notify the
Criminal Investigation Bureau shift commander, who shall assign a police lieutenant to
conduct the use of force investigation and file the Use of Force Report.

. ASSIGNMENT TO ADMINISTRATIVE DUTY

Whenever a police member's actions or use of force resuits in death or great bodily
harm to another, the member shall be placed on administrative duty pending an
administrative review.

460.35 RESTRICTIONS ON DISCHARGING FIREARMS

A. Discharging a firearm at or from a moving vehicle shall only be done in the following

circumstances and only when all other reasonable alternatives have been exhausted
or deemed unacceptable.

1. A police member shall not discharge a firearm at the driver or occupant(s) of a
moving vehicle, or the vehicle itself, unless deadly physical force is being used
against the police member or another person by means other than a moving
vehicle, or, the moving vehicle poses an imminent and ongoing threat of
substantial physical harm to the police member or another person from which there
is no reasonable means to escape, and the risks are outweighed by the need to
use deadly physical force. Once the threat of the moving vehicle ceases, a police
member shall not discharge his or her firearm at the vehicle.

2 Police members shall not intentionally place themselves to either the front or the
rear of a moving vehicle’s path. If they find themselves in danger from a moving
vehicle, they shall attempt to move out of the way, if possible, rather than
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discharge their firearm. Firing at a moving vehicle will not, in most circumstances,
stop the vehicle. Further, should the driver be wounded or killed, the vehicle may
still continue in motion.

3. A police member shall not discharge a firearm from a moving vehicle unless deadly
physical force is being used against the police member or another person by
means other than a moving vehicle (e.g., fired upon), and the risks are outweighed
by the need to use deadly force.

4. Police members shall not reach into or place any part of their bodies inside a driver
occupied vehicle during a traffic stop or field interview.

460.40 RENDERING FIRST AID FOLLOWING USE OF FORCE

Following the use of lethal or less lethal weapons, or other applications of force, members
shall render or request medical aid, if needed or if requested by anyone, as soon as
reasonably possible. This may include detecting obvious change in condition or behavior,
clearing chemical agents from the eyes, providing first aid, evaluation by emergency
medical services or immediate aid by medical professionals.

460.45 USE OF FORCE REPORT (PF) (WILEAG 5.2.1, 5.3.1,5.3.2)

A. PURPOSE
The Use of Force Report is designed to document those incidents involving the use of
force by department members as described herein. The report shall be completed by a
supervisory officer of a higher rank than the member that used force, except for
supervisors assigned to the Internal Affairs Division - Risk Management who can
investigate and complete a Use of Force Report for any department member.

B. WHEN TO FILE REPORT

1. The Use of Force Report shall be completed by a supervisory officer when a
department member:

a. Discharges a firearm except in a training situation or for lawful recreational
purposes.

b. Uses a baton to strike a subject or animal in the line of duty.
c. Discharges an irritant, chemical, or inflammatory agent.

d. Deploys an electronic control device to include contact stun and probe
deployment.

e. Department canine bites a person.

Note: This section does not apply when a department canine bites a
person during a training session. If the department canine bites a
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person during a training session, the bite shall be documented on a
Department Memorandum (form PM-9E) and forwarded through the
chain of command to the commanding officer of the Specialized
Patrol Division.

f Forcible blood draws requiring use of force to obtain a sample where a subject
claims injury or is injured as a result of police action.

g. Uses bodily force that involves focused strikes, diffused strikes, or
decentralizations to the ground.

h. Uses any type of force in which a person is injured or claims injury, whether or
not the injury is immediately visible.
(WILEAG 5.3.1.1,5.3.1.2,5.3.1.3,5.3.1.4)

Note: When in doubt as to whether a use of force incident should be
documented on a Use of Force Report, notify your shift commander
or immediate supervisor for guidance and direction.

2. The supervisor responsible for filing a Use of Force Report shall obtain a number in
the AIM system prior to securing from duty on the date in which the incident
occurred. The member(s) and subject(s) names, date, time and location of the
incident shall also be entered on the same date the number was generated.

3. In any situation which triggers the filing of a Use of Force Report photographs must
be taken of the subject against whom force was used, to illustrate any injury or lack
thereof.

4. The Use of Force Report is to be completed and tracked to the appropriate
supervisor/shift commander within 3 days of the incident. A critical incident Use of
Force Report shall be filed in accordance with section 460.45.

5. Each subsequent review by the shift commander/commanding officer shall be
completed and tracked in an expeditious manner.

6. Reports shall be thoroughly completed and reviewed within thirty (30) days following
the date on which the incident occurred and then tracked to the Internal Affairs
Division - Risk Management.

7. The Internal Affairs Division - Risk Management shall review reports within fourteen
(14) days following receipt from the commanding officer of that work location.

C. NOTIFICATION
1 Members using force as described in 460.45(B) shall, as soon as possible, notify

their immediate supervisor. The supervisor shall determine if the use of force
resulted in injury, great bodily harm, or death to a person.

2 Department members having knowledge of uses of force as described in 460.45(B)
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4.

5.

shall as soon as possible also notify their immediate supervisor.

If the use of force resulted in great bodily harm or death to a person, or if injury was
sustained as a result of the member's use of a firearm, the supervisor shall notify
his/her shift commander. The shift commander shall then notify the Criminal
Investigation Bureau shift commander.

Whenever a police member intentionally discharges a firearm at a person
(regardless of whether personal injury or property damage occurs), the member
shall promptly notify his/her shift commander of such fact. That shift commander
shall promptly notify the Criminal Investigation Bureau shift commander.

All Other Types of Force

If the use of force did not involve great bodily harm or death to a person, but
involved a use of force as otherwise listed above, the responding supervisor shall
notify his/her shift commander. The shift commander may consult with the Criminal
Investigation Bureau shift commander to determine if the field supervisor or a police
lieutenant shall conduct the use of force investigation and complete the Use of Force
Report. The Criminal Investigation Bureau shift commander shall assign a police
lieutenant to investigate the more serious or complex use of force incidents.

D. SPECIFIC DIRECTIONS

Following are specific directions for completing the Use of Force Report:

1.

General Information
a. Complete all fields (e.g., incident type, dates, times, address, and status).

b. The address, the location of the subject at the time the use of force was
initiated, must be verified.

c. Details
1. Indicate the location and lighting of the use of force.

2. Indicate if video or audio was available and the name of the supervisor who
reviewed the video. Supervisors shall attempt to obtain and review all video
and/or audio recordings that may have captured the incident including
video/audio from body worn cameras, mobile digital video / audio recording
equipment, surveillance cameras, pole cameras, video obtained from
citizens, etc. An electronic (CD/DVD) copy of any recovered video shall be
forwarded to the Internal Affairs Division ~ Risk Management.

3. ldentify all citizen witnesses and include their name, sex, race, birth date,
address, and phone number. For department members who are witnesses,
complete only the name field using rank and name. For more than three
witnesses, include all others in the notes/narrative section.
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2. Subject

Identify the person who was the object of the use of force. If several people were the
objects of the force in a single incident, enter all subjects under the subject tab and
complete all subject details

. Employees

Identify all members who used force in the incident by entering them under the
employee tab and linking them to the subject(s). Complete all employee details,
including use of force details. Members who were present, but did not use force, are
to be included in the details-witness fields.

a. Duty status: All members taking action in their official capacity are on duty. For

the purpose of this report, indicate “Off Duty” if the member was off duty
immediately prior to the incident.

b. Number of officer(s): Indicate whether the member was assigned to a one-officer
or two-officer unit at the time of the incident.

c. Type of force used: indicate the type(s) of force used (e.g., ECD, bodily force,
firearm).

d. Bodily force: Indicate yes or no. Identify through use of DAAT terminology the
specific type of force employed, followed by a bodily force description. For
example: compliance hold (pressure points, come-along); decentralization;
focused strike (hand, forearm, kick); or diffused strike, etc.

e. Baton: Indicate yes or no, the type, and the number of strikes.

f. lrritant/chemicalfinflammatory: Indicate yes or no, the type of substance used:
CS gas, or OC, including the amount discharged and the distance discharged.

g. Firearm: Indicate yes or no, the specific type of firearm used to inciude the make,
model and serial number. include the number of shots fired.

h. Less lethal type: 12 gauge bean bag, Sage SL6 40MM.
i ECD: Indicate yes or no, number of cycles, and the serial number.
j- TEU related: indicate yes or no.

k. Forced blood draw: Indicate yes or no. Include the description of the force used.
See SOP 120.55.

4. Notes

a. Describe in a detailed narrative the incident and events leading to the use of
force.
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b. Statements shall be separately obtained and documented from the person the
force was used against, from the officer(s) using force, and from all citizen and
officer witnesses. An explanation of why there was no statement obtained from
any of the aforementioned shall also be included.

c If the use of force resulted from a field interview, traffic stop, or other proactive
activity, describe in detail the reasonable suspicion for the initial stop, pat-down,
and/or search.

d. Describe in detail any events captured by video and audio recordings (e.g.,
body worn cameras, mobile digital video / audio recording equipment, pole
cameras, private surveillance cameras, video obtained from citizens).
Supervisors shall include a time stamp(s) in their report indicating the specific
times of significant events captured by video.

E. ADDITIONAL REPORTS AND INVESTIGATION

1. A written report from the member who uses force as defined in this order is not
required if such member has given a detailed statement to the respective Criminal
Investigation Bureau lieutenant or the field supervisor. However, this does not
preclude further statements, or written reports by the member using force when so
directed by the Chief of Police.

2. Whenever the use of force by a member is investigated as a personnel
investigation, a claim, a notice of injury, or a summons and complaint is filed with
the city of Milwaukee naming a member of the department, the member in question
shall submit additional reports or provide statements when so directed by a
supervisor.

F. INTERNAL AFFAIRS DIVISION - RISK MANAGEMENT RESPONSIBILITIES

1. The Internal Affairs Division — Risk Management shall be responsible for the
retention of all Use of Force Reports via the AIM system.

2 The commanding officer of Internal Affairs Division — Risk Management shall
provide the Use of Force Report to the Police Academy for training purposes.

3. Use of force data will be analyzed / audited on a regular basis by the Internal
Affairs Division - Risk Management.

G. COMMANDING OFFICER'S REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION

1. The member's commanding officer shall review the AIM system Use of Force Report
and enter a recommendation under “Incident Tracking”. When the commanding
officer determines the use of force is in compliance, these reports shall be
forwarded through “Incident Tracking” and general information “Status” directly to
the appropriate supervisor of the Internal Affairs Division - Risk Management.

2 If the review finds the member's use of force was not in compliance, training is
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needed, or if there are serious injuries requiring admission to a hospital or if death
occurs, the commanding officer shall enter a recommendation under “Incident
Tracking”. These reports shall be forwarded through “Incident Tracking” and
general information “Status” directly to their respective bureau commander.
Commanding officers may, at any other time they believe notification to their
bureau commander is warranted, forward the Use of Force Report to their bureau
commander.

460.50 USE OF FORCE COMMITTEE

AM mfk

A.

A Use of Force Committee shall conduct periodic comprehensive reviews of all use of
force issues affecting the department.

The Chief of Police shall appoint police members to the Use of Force Committee, who
shall serve a one-year term, subject to extension at the discretion of the Chief of
Police.

. The department's range master and a supervisor from Office of Management Analysis

and Planning shall be standing members of the Use of Force Committee and shall not
be subject to the aforementioned term limit.

. The Use of Force Committee shall meet quarterly, or as otherwise directed by the

Chief of Police, and shall focus on, but not be limited to, the following:

—_—

. Appropriateness of use of force by department members.
2 Proper field supervision and supervisory review of use of force incidents.

3. Application and effectiveness of department policies and procedures concerning
the use of force.

4 Proper use and effectiveness of equipment.
5. Effectiveness of use of force training.

6. ldentification of training needs and opportunities for department members.

The Use of Force Committee shall prepare a written report of the committee’s finding
and/or recommendations, and submit such report to the Chief of Police within ten (10)
days of the completed quarterly or directed review.

Any recommendations or other matters for consideration by the Use of Force
Committee shall be forwarded through the chain of command to the Office of the

Chief.
%, Phn e

ALFONSO MORALES
CHIEF OF POLICE




Department of Justice (DOJ)
Office of Justice Prograins

Oflice ol the Assistant Attomey General Washington, D.C 20531
March 23, 2020

The Honorable 1homas Barrett
City of Milwaukee

200 Last Wells Street, Caty Hall
Milwaukee, W1 53202-3515

Dear May or Barrett

On behalf of Attorney Genceral William P Bary, ot 1s my pleasure to enform you that the Office of Justice Programs (OJIP?), U.S
Department of Justice (DOJ), has approved the application by City of Milwaukee for an award under the OJP funding
opportunity citilled "BJA I'Y 20 Presidential Nomunating Conventions.” The approved award amount is $50,000,000 These
funds are for the project entitled Funding to Support the 2020 Presidential Nominating Convention

The award document, including award conditions, is enclosed The entire document is to be reviewed carefully before any
decision to accepl the award. Also, the webpage enttled "Legal Notices Special circumstances as 10 particular award
conditions” (ojp gov/lunding/U'xplore/l cgalNotices-AwardReqts himy) is to be consulted prior to an acceptance. Through that
"Lugal Notices” webpage, OJP sets out -- by funding opportunity -- certam special circumstances that may or will affect the
applicability ol one or more award requirements  Any such legal notice pertaining to award requirements that is posted
through that wehpage 1s incorporated by reference into the award

Please note that award requiremenis melude not only award conditions, but also complance with assurances and certifications
that relate to conduct durmg the period of perforntance for the award  Because these requirements encompass financial,
administrative, and programmatic matters, as well as other imporiant matters (e.g., specific restnctions on use of funds), it 1s
vilal that all key staff know the award requirements, and receive the award conditions and the assurances and certitications, as
well as (he application as approved by O3 (Information on all pertinent award requiremients also must be provided to any
subrccipient of the award )

Should City of Milwaukee accept the award and then fail to comply wath an award requirement, DOJ will pursue appropriate
remedies for non-compliance, which may mcelude temunation of the award and/or a requirement to repay award funds.

Please direct questions regarding this award as follows
- For program questions, comact Stephen Fender, Program Manager at (202) 616-8241, and

- For financial questions, contact the Customer Service Center ol QJP's Olfice of the Cluel | mancial Officer at
{800) 458-0786, or nt ask ocfoZZusdoy gov

We look forward to working with yout
Suicerely,

e ——

Katharine T Sullnan
Principal Deputy Assistant Attorney General

Frl



Department of Justice (DOJ)
Office of Justice Programs
Office of Civil Riglts

Washington DC 20531
March 23, 2020

It Honorable Thomas Barrett
City of Nilwaukee

200 East Wells Street

City Hall

Mihwaukee, W1 53202-3515

Pear Mayor Barrett

Congratulations on your recent award  1he Olfice lor Civil Rights (OCR), Oftice of Justece Programs (OJP), U S Department of
Justice (1DOJ) has been delegated the responsibility Tor casuriag that recipients ol federal financial assistance from the OJP, the Office
of Comniumty Oriented Palictng Services (COPS), and the Office on Violence Agamnst Women (OVW) are not engaged m
discrimination prohubited by law  Several federal el nights faws, such as hitle V1 of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and Title 1X of
the Education Amendments of 1972, require recipents of federnd linancial assistance to give assurances that they widl comply wuh
those laws  In addiuon to those civil rights laws, many gramt program statutes comtain nondiscnmittation provisions that require
comphance with then as a condition of receiving federal financial assistance  For a complete review of these cevil rights laws and
nondiscrumination requircmends, i connection with OJP and other DOJ avwards, see

https./lojp.gov/tunding/Lxplore/l egalOverview/CivilRightsRequiremcats hun

Under the delegation of authonty, the OCR investigates allcgations of discimmnation against recipients from indvaduals, enteuies, or
groups ln addivion, the OCR conducts hmited comphiance reviews and audits based on regulatory criteria  [hese reviews and auduts
permntt the OCR 1o ¢y atuate whether recipients of linancial assistance from the Department are providing services i a non-
discrtiminatory manaer to their service population or have employment practices that meet equal-opportumity standards.

I yon are a recipient of grant awards under the Ommbus Crine Control and Safe Streets Act or the Juvemie Justece and Delinquency
Prevention Act and your agency s part of a crimumal justice system, there are two addiionat obligations that may apply m connection
with the awards - (1) complying with the regulation relating to 1 qual | mploymeat Opporiumity Programs (FLEOPs), and (2)
submittng findings of discnmwmation to OCR | or additional mformateon regarding the FEOP requuement, sce 28 CFR Part 42,
subpart F, and for addwonal information regarding requirements when there 1s an adverse finding, sce 28 C U R §§ 42 204(c),
205(cX3) Please submt tinformation about any adverse finding to the OCR at the above address

We at the OCR are available to help you and your orgamization meet the eivil rights requirements that are associaled with OJP and

other DOJ grant funding 1€ you would {ike the OCR 1o assist you n fullithng your organization’s civil nghts or neadiscrnnmation
respoastlitics as a recipient of federal financal assistance, piease do not hestate to Iet us know

Smcerely,

Michael L \liston

Director

cc Cirant Manager
[inancral \nalyst



Department of Justice (DOJ) {
Oflice of Justice Programs
Office of the Chief Fmancial Officer

Washmgton D C 20531

March 23, 2020

The Honorable homas Barrett
City of Milwaukee

200 East Wells Street

City Hall

Milwaukee, Wi 53202 - 3515

Reference Gramt Number 2020-ZC-BX-0002
[ear Mayor Barrett .

{ am pleased to torm you that my oflice has approved the Tollowmg budget categonies for the alorementioned grant award i }
the cost categortes wentified below

Category Buadget
Personnel $4,977,956
I ninge Benelits $73,002
Travel 50 §
Lquipment $5,883,420
Supplics $3 354,610
Construction 50
Contractual $33,211,012
Other S0 ;
Total Direet Cost $47,500,000 '
Indhrect Cost $2,500,000
lotal Project Cost $£50 000,000
Federal F-unds Approved $50,000,000
Non-Federal Share $0 %
Progrim Income 0

Match 1s not required for this grant program
All mdividual consultant Eees w excess of $630 per 8 hour day requare prior approval ol OSP
fhe hine item fabeled "Contractual* may mclude contracts, subawards, or consultants.

All Sole Source procurements i excess ol 3250k require prior approval by OIP  \ watten justificaion mctuding an tlemized
budget of the procurement amounl will nced to be submutted via a Grant Adjustment Noteee (GAN)

Fhe applicant 15 a focal goverument umt and 1s not requured to submit an mdirect cost rate agreement  The grantee must retam the
cost alfocation pians on file for aucht purposes



If you have questions regarding this award, please contact
- Program Questions, Stephen Fender Program Manager at (202) 598-9490

- Financial Questions, the Office of Chicf Financial Officer, Customer Service Center{(CSC)
at (800) 458-0786, or you may contuct the CSC at ask oclo@ nsdoj gov

Congratulauons, and we look forward to working with you

Sincerely,

,3{},% N 0N

Leigh Benda
Chuef Finanuial Ofticer



Department of Jushice (DOJ)

Office of Jushice Programs
PAGE | OF I?

Bureau of Justice Assistance Grant
I RECIPIENT NAML AND ADDRISS (Including 71p Coile) 4 \WARDNLMBER  2020-ZC BX-0002
Cny of Mhiwaukee - -
200 I-ast Wells Street Cuty Hali $ PROJECT PLRIOD FROM 1001 20t9 FO  03.31 2021
Milwaunkee, WI 53202-3515
BUDGET PERIOD FROM 10.01 2019 TQO  03.31 2021
6. AWARD DATE  0323.2020 7 ACTION
2a. GRANTTL IRS VERDOR NO 8. SLPPLEMENT NUNBFR Initial
396005532 00
2b. GRANTEF DUNS NO — — —
006434211 9 PREVIOUS AW ,\Rn,\.\mu\'r_ ) S0 .
3 PROJECTTITLE 10 AMOUNT OF THIS AWARD $ 50,000,000
Funding to Support the 2020 Presidential N g € I e — — _
11 TOTAL AWARD $ 50,000,000
12 SPECIAL CONDITIONS
MIL ABOVE GRANT PROJECT IS APPROVI 1) SLIJLCT TO SLCH CONDITIONS OR | INITATIONS AS ARE SET FORTII
ON THL ATTACIHED PAGE(S).
13 STATUTORY ALTHORITY FOR GRANT
This projeet is supposted under FY 20 BIA - Presidential Nomi g € the Dep of Jusuce Appropriations Act, 2020 Pub, | 116-93, 133 Stat

2317, 2407
I4 CATALOG OF DOMISTIC FEDERAL ASSISTANCL (CFDA Number)

16.738  t:dward Byrae Venonal Jusuce Assistance Grant Program

13 METHOD OF PAYMENT
GPRS

I oy rrrovy. I R CTiAccerranc:

16. TYPED NAML AND TITH E OF APPROVING OFFICIAL 13 FYPI D NAME AND TITLE OF ALTHORIZED GRANTEE OFFICIAI
Katharine T Sollivan Thomas Bamett
Mayor

Prnespal Deputy Assistan \ilumey General

17 SIGNATURE OF APPROVING OFFICIALL 19 SIGNATURE OF AUTHORIZED RECIPICNT OFFICIAL 19A DATE

R 1oy useonky
20 ACCOUNTING CLASSIFICATION CODI'S 2 V/CLGT0042

FISCAE FUND  BLD DV
YEAR CODE  \CT  OFC REG SUIL POMS  AMOLNT

X [} 7t §0 00 00 30000000

CIP FORM 4000 24REN 5 87) PREVIOUS EDITIONS ARE OBSOLETE

(D FORM 41308 24REY 4-88)



Department of Justice (DOJ)

Office of Justice Programs AWARD CONTINUATION
Burenu of Justice Assistance SHEET PAGH 2 OF 17
Grant
FROJECT NUABER  20207C X-0002 o ANARDDATE 03237020

SPECHIL CONDITIONS

I Requiremients of the anard, remedies for non-comphance or for materially false statements

[he conditons of this award are matecial requicements of the anard  Compleance with any assurances or cerifications
submitted by or on behall'of the recipient that relate to conduct dunng the period of performance also is a material
requirement of thes award By signing and accepting this award on behalf of the recipicnt, the authonzed reciprent
offictal accepts atl natenial requiremnents of the award, and specifically adopls all such assurances or cerifications as if’
personally exceuted by the swthorized recipient ofticial

1 mlure to comply with any onc or more of these award requirements -- whether a condition set aut in full below, a
condibion incorporated by reference below, ar an assurance or cerilication related 1o conduct dunng the award period -
- may result i the Office of Justice Programs ("OJP") 1aking appropriate action wath respect to the recipient and the
award. Among other things, the OJP may withhold award funds, disallow costs, or suspend or ternunale the award
The U'S Department ol Justice ("1DOJ"), meluding OJP, also may take other legal action as appropnate

Any matenally false lcutious, or fraudulent stalement lo the federal govermment eclated lo tus anard (or concealment

or omisston of a material fact) may be the subjeet of crimmal prosecution (ncludng under 18 U $.C 1001 and/or 1621,
and/or 34 U'S C 10271-10273), and also may lvad to imposition of civil penalues and administrative remedies for false
clawts or otherwise (ncluding under 31 U S C 3729-3730 and 3801-3812).

Should any provision of a recquireinent of this anard be held to be i alid or unenforceable by its terms, thal provision
shall tirst be applied with a hiuted construction so as 10 give il the maxnmum efteel perniited by law  Should nt be
leld, instead, that the provision 15 utterly mvalid or -unenforceable, such provision shall be deemed severable from this
asvord.

2 Applicability of Part 200 Umiform Requirements

The Uniform Admimstrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements s 2 C F R Part 200, as adopted
and supplemented by DOJin 2 C I R Part 2800 (together, the "Part 200 Uniform Requwements”) apph 10 this | Y
2019 anard from O

The Part 200 Uniform Requirements were first adopted by DOJ on December 26, 2014 11 thus FY 2019 anard
supplements funds previously awarded by OJP undee the same award number (e g., funds awarded during or before
December 2014), the Part 200 Uniform Regquicements apply with respect to all funds under that award number
(regardless of the award dale, and regardless of whether denved from the imtial award or a supplemental award) that
are obligated on or afler the acceptance date of this FY 2019 anard

lor more nformation and resources on the Part 200 Uniform Requerements as they relate to OJP awards and subawards
("subgrants"). see the OJP website at hips Zogp gov/lundmg/Part200UniformRequirements him

Record retention and access  Records pertinent to the award that the reciprient (and any subrecipient ("subgrantec”) at
any tier) must rekun - typically for a period of 3 years from the date of submission of the final expenditure repon (SF
425), unless a different retention penod apphics -- and to which the recipient (and any subrecipient (“subgrantec™) at
any tier) must provide aceess iclude performance nicasurement nformation,  addition to the financial records,
supporting documents, stauistical records, and other portinent records mdieated at 2 C 1 R 200 333

In the event that an award-reltated question anses from documents or other matenals prepared or distributed by OJP

that may appear to conflict with or differ m some way fram the provisions of the Part 200 Uniform Requirements, the
recipient 1s to contact OJP promptly for clanfication.

O FORN J000.2 4RIV 4 88)
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PROJECTAUMBER  2020-ZC BX 0002 AWARD DATE 03 23 2000

6

SPECE I, CONDITIONS

Conmphance with 1XO) Grants t inanciat Guide

Reterenees to the DOJ Grants Fmanaat Guide are 0 the DOJ Grants I inancial Guide as posted on the OJP websine
{currently, the "DOJ Geaants I mancial Guide” avalable at hitps Zojp gov/financialguide/DOJindex titm), wictuding any
updated version thal inay be posted doring the period of performance  The recapient agrees o comply with the DOJ
Grants [ inancial Guide

Reclassification of vanous statutory provisions o a new fnle 34 ol the Umited States Code

On Scptember 1, 2017, vanous staurtory provisions previonsly codificd clsewhere in the U S Code were editonally
reclassificd (that 1s, moved and renmbered) 0 a new litle 34, entitled “Crime Controt and ! av Lnforcement * The
reclassilication encompassed a number of statulory provisions pertinent 0 OJP awards (that 1s, OJP grants and
cooperative agreements), mcluding many provistons previousty codified n Title 42 of the U S Cade

Flfcetive as of September I, 2017, any reference i this award document to a statutory provision that has been
reclassified to the new Title 34 of the U S Code 15 1o be read as a reference to thal statutory provision as reclassificd to
Title 34 This rule of construction specifically inctudes references set owt in award condibons, references set om in
maienal mcorporated by reference through anard conditions, and references set out i other award requirements

Reqnred training for Pornt of Contact and all 1 nancial Pomnts of Contact

Both the Point of Contact (PFOC) and all T mancial Pomts of Contact (1 POCs) for this award must have successtully
completed an "OJI financial management and grant admunistriagion trammg” by 120 days alter the datc of the
recipient’s acceplance of' the award - Successtul completion of such a traming on or afler Jannary 1, 2018, will satisly
this condstion

In the event that erther the POC or an t POC for this award changes during the penod of performanee, the new POC or
POC must have successfutly completed an "OSP financial management and grant administration traming" by 120
calendar days aller -- (1) the date of OSP's approval of U "Change Grantee Contact™ GAN (in the case of g new
PQOC), or (2) the date the POC enters information on the new | POC in GMS (in the case of a new 1 POC)  Successiul
completion of such a tranmng on or aficr Jannary 1, 2018, will sausfy this condition

A bist of OJP wainings that OIP will consider "OJP financial management and grant administration trinmg” for
purposes of this condition 15 avarlable at hitps /www agp.govitcammg/fints htm - All tramgs that sausfy tis condition
inctude a session on gramt frand prevention and detection

The recipient should anticipate that QJP will immediately withhold ("freeze”) award funds 1€ the rectpient fuls w
comply with this candiion  The reaipient's fulure to comply atso may fead QSP to impose additional appropriate
condifions on this award

Requirements related to “de minmus® mdirect cost rate

A reapient that s chigible under the Part 200 Umiform Requicements and other applicable faw w use the “de mnuns”
mdrrect cost rate descrtbed 2 C FR 200 4140 and that elects to nse the "de munmus® mdirect cosl sate, must advise
OJP 1 wating of both s chigibelity and its clecnon and must comply wah all associated requasements i the Part 200
Uniform Requirements The “de mmenns*® rate may be applied onhy to modified otal direct costs (MTDC) us defined
by the Part 200 Umiorm Requirenients

OJP FORM 0002 ¢REN 4 8%)
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SPECHL CONDITIONS
7 Requirenmient to report potentially duphicative funding

11 the recipsent currently has other active awards of federal fimds, or 1 the recipient recetves any other award of federal
funds during the peniod of performance for this award, the recipient promptly must determune whether funds from any
of those other federal awards have been, are bemg, or are (o be used (in whole or in part) for one or more of the
identical cost tems for which funds are provided under this award. 1750, the reciprent must promptly noufy the DOJ
awarding agency (OSP or OVW, as appropniate) m waiting of the potential duphication, and, 1f so requested by the DO
awarding agency, must seck a budget-modulication or change-of-project scope grant adjustment notice (GAN) to
climnate any inappropriate duplication of fundwng,

8 Requrements related to System for Award Management and Universal ldenuifier Requirements

‘The reciptent must comply with apphcable requircments regarding the System for Award Managewent (SAM)
currently accessible at hitps./Avww sam gov/  This includes appheable requirements regarding registeation with S \M,
as well as mamtanung the currency of mlormation n SANE

“The recipient also naust comply with applicable restnictions on subawards ("subgrants®) to first-tier subrecipients
(first-nier "subgrantees”), metuding restnctions on subawards to eatities that do not acquire and provide (1o the
recipient) the unigue catity wdentitier required for SAM registration

The details of the recipient’s obligations related 10 SAM and to unique entity sdenufiers are posted on the OJI web site
aL s /ojp.gov/funding/l xplore/SAM him (Award condiion  System for Award Management (SAM) and Universal
Identificr Requirements), and arc incorporated by refercnice here

This condition docs not apply to an award 10 an mdividual who recerved the award as a natural person @ ¢ , unrelated to
any business or non-profit organization that he or she may own or operate m his or her name)

QIP FORM 4000 2 (REN 4 88}
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PROJECT NUMBFR  2020-7C BX-0002 ARARD DATL 0323 2029

SPEC LU CONDIFIONS
9 Lmployment chgibitiy verdication for hinng under the award
1 The recipient (and any subrecipiont at any tier) must--
A Ensure that, as part of the luring process for any position withun the United States that 1s or will be funded (in whole
or m part) with award fands, the recipient (or any subrecipient) properly verifies the crploy ment chgibility of the

mdivadual who s bemng tured, consistent with the provisions of 8 U S C 1324a(a)( 1) and (2)

8 Noufy all persons associated with the recipient (or any stbrecipient) who are or will be mvolved m activ ities under
this award of both--

(1} this award requirement lor venficauon of employment cligibiity, and

(2) the assoctated proviswons m 8 US O 1324aga)( 1) and (2) that, generally speaking, make st unlaw ful, i the United
States, to luce {or reuenit for employwent) certam aliens

C Provide traming (to the extent necessary) to those persons required by this condition o be nottied of the award
requrement for employnient chgibility ventication and of the associated provisions of 8 1) S € 1324u(a)( 1) and (2)

0 As part of the recordkeeping for the anard (including pursviaat to the Part 200 Unifonn Requirements), maintain
records of all employment eligibility verifications pertient to complince with this award condition m accordance with
[ orm [-9 record retention requirements as well us records of all pectiment notifications and trammgs

2 Monnoring

‘The recipient’s monitoring responsibilities inclide monitormg of subrecipient compliznce with this condition

3 Allowable costs

To the exient that such costs are pot reimbursed under any other lederal program, award finds may be obligated tor the
reasonable, necessary, and atlocable costs (1IFany ) ol actions designed to ensure compliance with this condition

4 Rules of construction

A Staffinvolved i the inng process

{-or purposes of tns condition, persons “who are or wall be involved 1n activities under thus award” spectlically metudes
{without instation) any and all ceupient {or any subrecipient) oNicials or other stalf who are or will be mvolved n the
tunng process with respeet to a position that 1s or will be fimded {in whole or m part) with award funds. t
8 Emplovinent eligibidity confimation with 1 -Venlh

tor purposes of satisfymg the cequrement ol this condion regarding yerification of cmployment chigibility, the
recipient (or any subreciprient) may choose to participate mand use, T -Vendy (www c-venfy gov), provided an
appropriate persont authonized t act on behalf of the veciprent {or subrecipient) uses | -Venfy (and follows the proper
L-Venfy procedures, mcluding 1 the event of a “Tentative Noncontirmauon” or a “Fmal Nonconfirmation®) to

confirm cimployment cligibatity lor cach birng for a positton wn the United States that is or will be Tunded (1n whole or
m part) with award funds

C "United States” specifically mcludes the Distnet of Calumbia, Puerto Rico Guawm, the Virgin [slands ol the United
States and the Commonwealih of the Northers Manana Islands

1> Nothing m this condition shall be understood 1o muthorize or require any recipicat any subrecipient at any Wiy, os

OJP FORM 40002 (RI'N 4 38)
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SPECE I CONDITIONS

any person or other entity, to violate any lederal law, including any applicable covil rights or nondiscrmunaton faw

I Nothing i this condition including m paragraph 4 B | shall be understood 1o relieve any reciprent, any subrecipient
at any tier, or anv person or ather enbity, of any obligaiion otherwise imposed by law, including 8 U S C 1324a(a)(1)
and (2)

Questions about L-Verufy should be directed to DIS T or more inlormation about L-Venfy visut the L-Verify
website (https Zawww.c-venly gov/) or email | -Venly at L-Venly @dhs.gov  L:-Venfy employcer agents can emad L-
Venly at E-Venlyl mployerAgent@dhs gov

Questions about the meaning or scope ol this condition shonld be directed to OJP, before award acceplance

1) Requirement to repont actal or simminent breach of personally identifiable nformation (PIl)

he recipient (and any “subrecipient” at any ter) must have wrtten procedures m place (o respond i the event ol an
actual or mwminent "breach™ (OMB M-17-12) ' it {or a subrecypient) -- (1) creates, collects, uses, processcs, stores,
maintains, dissemmates, discloses, or disposes ol “personally 1dentsfiable informauon (PI1)” 2 CFR 200 79) within the
scope ol an OJP grant-funded program or actvity, or (2) uscs or operates a "T'ederal mformation system* (OMB
Circular A-130) The reciptent’s breach procedures must include 2 requuement to geport actual or mamment breach ot
PH to an OJP Program Manager no later than 24 hours afler an occurrence of an actual breach, or the detection ol an
immment breach

t1 All subawards (“subgrants™) must have specific lederal authorization

‘The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee™) at any tier, must comply with all applicable requirements for
authorization ofany subaward. Flus condition apphics to agreements that -- for purposcs of federal grants
admumstirative requirements -- OSP considers i "subaward™ (and therefore daes not consider a procurement
"contract")

Ihe details of the requirement lur authonization of any subaward are posted on the OJP web site at
https.//ojp gov /fundmg/ECxplore/SubanardAuthonzatiun him (Avward condiion  All subawards (“subgrants”) must have
speetfic federal authonization), and arc meorporated by reference here

12 Specific post-award approval required (o use a noncompetitive approach in any procurement contract that would
excecd $250,000

The recipient, and any subreciprent ("subgrantec”) at any ier, must comply with all applicable requirenicnts to obtain
specilic advance approval to use a noncompetitive appraach i any procurement contract that would exceed the
Sunphificd Acquisition Threshold (vurrently, $250,000). This condition applics to agreements that -- for purposes ol
federal granis adnumstratve reqmeements -- OJP consaders a procurement "contract” (and therefore does not consider
a subaward).

The detads of the requirement for advance approval 1o use a noncompetiuve approach in a procurement contract under
an OJP award are posted on the QP web site at hitps./fojp.gov/fimding/l xplore/NoncompettiveProcurement htm
{Award condition  Specilfic post-anard approval required Lo use a noncompetitive approach in a procurement contract
{+f contract would exceed $230 000)) and are mcorporated by reference here

OJP FORNLA000 2 (REN 4 88)



Department of Justice (DOJ)

Office of Justice Programs AWARD CONTINUATION
Bureau of Justice Assistance SHEET r 7 ok 17
Grant
PROJCCT NUMBER  2020-7C BX 0002 AW ARD DATI 03232020

SPECIAL CONDITIONS

Unreasonable restiicuions on competition under the award, assoctation with federal government

SCOPL Tlus condition apphes with respect (0 any procurement of propesty or services thatis hunded (in whole or m
part) by this award, whether by the recipient or by any subrecipient at any tier, and regardless of the dollar anvount ot
the purchase or acquisinon, the method of procurement, or the nature of any Iegal mstrument used The provisions ol
this condition must be among those mcluded m any subaward (at any tier)

I No discriminauon, it procurement transactions, against associates of'the federal government

Conststent with the (DOJ) Part 200 Uniform Requirements -- mcluding as set out at 2 C £ R 200 300 (requiring
awards to be "manage{d] and admimsterfed} in a inanner so as 10 ensure that Federal fundmg 1s expended and
issociated programs are implemenied 1 full accordance with U S statutory and public policy requirements") and

200 319(a) (gencralty requinng “fafil procurement transactions ftof be conducted m 3 nanner provading full and open
competiion” and forbidding practices “restrctive of competiion,” such as “[p{lacing unreasonable requirements on
fims 1n order for them to gahiy 1o do busmess” and taking “[any arbitrary action 1 the procurement process®) -- no
reciprent {or subrecipient, at any tier) nay (nany procurcment ransaction) discriounate against any person or eatity on
the basis of such person or catity’s status as an "associate of the Federal government“ (or on the basis of such person or
entity's status as a parent alfiliate or subsidiary of such an ussociate), excepl as expressly setowtin 2C - R

200 319(a) or as specifically authonized by USDOJ

2 Monnonng
The recipient’s moaitoning responsibilitics include monstoring of subrecipicat comphance with this condition
3 Allowable costs

To the extent that such costs are not reimbursed under any other federal program, award finds may be obhgated for the
reasonable, necessany, and allocable costs (i any ) of actions desigaced 1o easture comphance with this condition

4 Rules of construction

A The term "associate of the federal government” means any person or entity engaged or employed (in the past or at
present) by or on behalfof the federal goverament -- as an employee contractor or subcoatractor (at any tier), grant
rectpient or -subrecipient (at any hier), agent or othermwise -- i undertakng any work project, or acuvity for or on
behalf of (or n providing poods or services to or on behalf of) the federal government, and includes any applicant for
such employment or cagagement, and any person or entity commitied by legal instrument to undertake any such work
project, or activatv (or to provide such goods or scrvices) in future

B Nothing in this conditon shall be understond 1o nuthorize or requare any reapient, any subreciptent at any tier, or
iy person or other entity, 1o violate iy federal liw inchidg any apphcable civil nghts or nondiscnmmation law
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SPECTHH CONDITIONS

14 Requiremens pertamug 10 prolubited conduct related to traffickmg i persons (including reporting requirements and
OJP amhonty to termunate award)

e recipient, and any subrecipient (“subgrantee™) at any tier, must comply with all apphcable requirements (including
requircments 16 report allegations) pertanning to prolibited conduct related to the traflfickng of persons, whether on the
part of recipients. subrecipients ("subgrantees™) or mdividuals defined (for purposes of this condifion) as "employ ees”

of the recipient or of any snbreciient

The details of the reaipient’s abliganons related 1o prohibited conduct related to traflicking m persons are posted on the
OJP web site at hups Happ gov/lunding/l xplore/ProlubitedConduct- rafficking him (Award condstion  Prohibited
conduct by recipients and subrecipients related 1o trafficking in persons (ncluding reporting requirements and OJP
authornty 10 terniinate award)), ansd are meorporated by reference here

15 Determmation of suitability to mteract with participating minors

SCOPE This condition apphics to this avard 1t 1t 1is mdicated i the application for the award (as approved by
DOJ)or 1n the apphcation for any subaward, at any er), the DOJ funding announcement (solicitation), or an
assoclated federal statute -- that a purpose of some or all of the acuvitics to he carried out under the award (wWhether by
the reciprent, or a subrecipient at any tier) is to benelit a set of indiniduals under 18 years of age

The recipient, and any subreapent at any lier, must make deternnnations of suability before centain individuals may
titeract with pascipatng mnors.  Fhis reguirement apphies regardless of an indvidual’s employ ment status.

The detauls of this requiremient are posted on the OJP web site at hitps. fojp.gov/funding/l xplore/Interact-Minors.him
(Award condition. Determmation of sutabihity required, n advance, for certan individuals who may interact with
participating numors), and are mcorporated by reference here

16 Compliance with apphicable rules regarding approsal, plamung, and reportmg of conferences micehings, traimngs, and
other events

The recipient, and any subrecipient ( ‘subgrantee™) at any ucr, must comply with all apphicable laws, regulanons
policies, and olMicial DOJ guidance (mcluding speaific cost lints, prior approsal mnd reporting requirements, where
upphcable) govermng the use of federal [unds for expenses related to conferences (as that term s defined by DOJ),
chuding the provision of food andVor bes erages at such conferences, and costs of attendance at such conferences

Infonnation on the pentinent NDOJ Jdelinmon of conferences and the rules applicable to this award appears in the DOJ
Grants | inancial Guade (currently, as scetion 3 10 of "Postaw ard Reguirements” in the *DOJ Grants Financial Guide")

17 Requirement for data on performance and effectivencess under the award

The recipient must collect and mamtam data that measure the performance and effectiveness ol'work under this award
The daa must be provided to OJI? i the mamer (including within the ume frames) specificd by OJP i the program
sobicitation or other apphcable swnitten gwmdance  Data collecion supports comphiance with the Goverument
Perlormance and Restlts A {GPRA) and the GPRA Modermzation Act of 2010 and other apphicable laws

18 OJP Tranmng Gudwg Prmaples
Any (raimag or trauung matenials that the reapient -- or any subrecipient (“subgrantee™) at any ber -« develops or

delivers wih QJP award fonds must adhere to the OJP 1 ranmg Guding Principles for Grantees and Subgrantecs,
asalable a hups./Zojp gov/lunding/lmplement] rammgPrnciples! orGrantees-Subgrantees him
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SPECEI CONDITIONS

Lt of fnlure to address audit issucs

T'he recipient understands and agrees that the DOJ awarding ageney (OJP or OVW, as appropnate) may withhold
award funds, or may impose other related requirements, (f (as determined by the DOJ awardng agency) the recpient
docs not sahsfactonly and promptly address outstandig issues from audits required by the Part 200 Uniform
Requirements (or by the terms of this award), or other outstanding issucs that anse i connection with audits,
investigations, or reviews of DOJ awards.

Potential imposuion of additional requirements

The recipient agrees to comphy with any additonal requirements that may be inposed by the DOJ awarding agency
(OJP or OV, as appropniate) duning the period of performance for this award, if the reciprent 1s designated as "high-
ask” for purposes of the DOJ mgh-nsk grantee hist

Comphance with 1D0J regulutions pertmmng to avil nghts and nondisunimination - 28 C 1 R Part 42

The recipient, and any snbrecipient ("subgranice”) at any ey, must comply with all apphicable requirements of 28
Cl R Part 42, speafically mctuding any apphicable requirements m Subpart £ of 28 C F R Part 42 that relate to an
equal employ ntent opportumity program

Comphance with DOJ regulations pertamung to avil nights and nondiscrummation - 28 C F R Part 54

‘The recipient, and any subrecipient (“subgrimice”) at any her, must comply with all applicable requirements of' 28
CT R Part 54, which relates to nondiscrmuination on the basis of sex in certan "education programs.”

Compliance with DOJ regulations pestanning (o civif nights and nondiscrinunation - 28 C F R Part 38

The recipient, and any subrecipient (“subgrantec”} at any ter, must comply with all applicable requrements of 28
CFR Part 38 (as mav be applicable from time to time), specilicatly including any applicable requirements regarding
writien nolice to program benetictaries and prospeclive program beneficiarics

Currently, among other things, 28 C F R Past 38 imcludes rules that prohibit specific forms of discrimmation on the
basts of religion, a rehigions behet, a refusal to hold a rehgions beliel, or refissal to atiend or participate in a religions
practice  Part 38, currently, also sets out rules and requirements that pertam to recipient and subrecipient
("subgrnntec™) orgmuzations (hat engage m or conduct exphatly rchgious activities, as well as rules and requirements
that pertam (o recipients ind subrecipients that are faith-bascd or rehigious organtzations

Ihetext of 28 C 1 R Part 38 1s available via the | lecrome Code of | ederal Regulations (currenthy aceessible at
https.//www eclr gov/egi-bvl Cl R ’page=browse). by browsing to Tule 28-Judicial Admanistration, Chapter [, Part
38, under ¢-CFR "cumrent” data

OIP FORM 4000.2 (RFY 4 88)



Department ol Justice (10))

Office of Justice Programs AWARD CONTINUATION
Bureau of Justice Assistance SHEET PAGE 10 OF 17
Grant
PROJLCT NUMBER 2020-ZC DN 0002 AWARD DATE 03 23 2020 -

24

[
[

26

SPECIAL CONDITIONS

Resinctions on "lobbying”

In gencral, as a matter ol federal kaw, federal inds awarded by OJP may pot be used by the recipient, or any
subreciptent {"subgrantec™) at any tier, either duectly or mdirectly, ta suppon or oppose the cnactment, repeal,
modtfication, or adoption of any law, regulation, or policy, ot any level of government Sce 18 USC 1913 (There
may be exceptions 1f an applicable federal statute specilically anthorizes certamn activitics that othenwise would be
barred by law )

Anather tederal knv generally protabits federal funds avwarded by OSP lrom being used by the recipient, or any
subrecipicnl at any tier, to pay any person ta influcnee (or attempt to nflucner) a federal agency, a Member of
Congress, or Congress (or an official or emiployec of any of thiem) with respect to the awarding of u Rderal grant or
cooperalive agreement, subgrant, contract, subcontract or loan, ar with respeet to actions such as renewing, extending,
or modifying any such anard. See 31 1) S C 1352 Certan exceptions to this law apply, mcluding an exception that
applies to Indian tnbes and tnbal orgamzanions

Should any queshion arise as to whether a particular use of federal funds by a reciprent (or subrecipicnt) would or nugiu
fall within the scope of these prohibrtsons, the revipient 1s to contact OJP for guidance, and may not proceed without the
express prior wntten approval of OJP

Comphance w ith gencral appropriations-law restrictions on the use of federal funds (FY 2019)

the recipicnt, and any subrecipient ("subgrantec”) at any tier, must comply with alt applicable sestnetions on the use of’
federal tunds set out in federal appropriations statntes. Pertinent restrictions including from vanous "genceat
provisions” in the Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2019, are set out at

https //ojp.gos fanding/Explore/F'Y 1 9AppropriatonsRestnetions.him, and are incorporated by reference here

Should a questeon @nise as to whether a partcular use of federal tunds by a recapient (or a subrecipient) would or night
tall within the scope of an appropriations law restriction, the reaipient s to contact OJP for gutdance, and may not
proceed without the express prior wrilien approval of OJP

Reporting potential fraud waste, and abuse, and sinnlar nuscondnct

“The recyment and any subreaipients ("subgrantees™) must promptly refer lo the DOJ Office of the Inspector General
(O1G) any credible evidence that a principal, eiaploy ee, agent, subrecipient, contriclor, subcontractor, or other person
has, i connection with fimds under this award - (1) submutted a Ckum that violates the False Claims Act, or (2)
comanitted a crimmal or avil violation ol kiws pertainmg to frand, confict ol interest, bnbery, gratmty or sumilar
misconduct

Potential fraud, waste, abuse, or nusconduct wwolving or relatmg to funds under thns award should be reporied to the
OLG by--(1) onlinc subnussion accessible via the OIG webpage at hitps Zoig justice.gov/hotlme/contuct-grants htm
(sclect "Subnut Report Online®), (2) inail direcied to. Othice ol the Inspector General, ULS Depantment of Justice,
Tnveshigations Division, 1425 New York Avenue N W Suite 7100 Washington, DC 20530, and/or (3) by (acsinmile
directed fo the DOJ OIG Fraud Detechon Oftiee ( \uin - Giantee Reporting) at (202) 616-9881 (fux)

Additional mformation 1s s artable from the DO OLG website at eps Zorg, justice gov/hotline
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Restriciions and certifications regarding non-disclosure agreements and related matiers

No recapient or subrecipient (*subgrantec”) under this anard, or entity that reccives a pracurement contract or
subcontract with any funds under tns award, may require any employce or contractor to sign an iternal confidentiabity
agreement or statement that prolubats or otherwise restricts, or purports to prolibit or restricl, the reporting (10
accordance with law) of waste, [raud, or abusc to an mvestigative or law enforcement representative of a federal
department or agency authorized lo receive such mformation

The forcgoing 1s not intended, and shall not be understoed by the agency making this awnard, to contravene
requirements applicable to Standard Form 312 (wlich relates to classified information), Form 44 14 (which relates 1o
sensitive compartmented informiation), or any other form issucd by a federal department or agency governmg the
nondisclosure of classilied information

I [n accepling this award, the recipient--

. represents that it nerther requures nor has required internal confidentiality agreements or statements from employces
ar contractors that currently prohibit or otherwise currently restrict (or purport to prohibit or restrct) employces or
contractors from reporting waste, fraud, or abnse as described above and

b certilies that, if ot learns or i1s notuficd that 1t 1s or has been requinng its employees or contriactors (0 exceule
agrecments or statcrcats that prolubit or othenvise restrict {or purport to prolubit or restrict), reporting of waste, (rand,
or abuse as described above, 1t will imniedately stop any further obhigations of award funds, will provide prompt
written notification lo the federal agency making this award, and will resume (or permit resumnption of) such
abligations only if expressly authonzed to do 50 by that agency

2 Ifthe recrpient does or 15 authorized under this anard to make subawards ("subgrants™), procorement contracts, or
hotli--

a1t represents that--

(1) t has deternmned thal no other entity that the reeipient's application proposes may or will receive award funds
(whether through a subaward (“subgrant”), procurement contract, or subcontract under a procurement contract) either
requires or has required el confidenbahity agreements or statements from employecs or contractors that currenthy
prohubit or otherwise currcutly restrict (or purport to protubit or restriut) employees or contractors from reportng waste
fraud, or abusc as described above, and

(2) it has made appropriate inquiry, or otherwise has an adequate factual basis, 1o support this representation, sad

b atcertitics thut 1 ot tearns or s nobified that any snbrecipient, contraclor, or subcontractor enlity that recewes funds
under this award s or has been requiring its cmployees or contraclors (0 execule agreements or statements that prolibit
or otherwise restrict (or purport to prolubit or restrict) reporting of waste, fraud, or abuse as descnibed above, it will
munediately stop any further obligatious of award funds to or by that entity, wilt provide prompt wntten potification o
the federal agency making this anard, and wifl resume (or perimt resumption of) such obligations only 1f expressh
authorized to do so by that agency
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SPECHU CONDITHIONS

28 Complance with 41 U'S C 4712 (including prolubitions on reprisal, notice to employees)

The reciprent (and any subredapient atiny tier) must comply with, and s subject to, all apphcable provisions of 41

S C 4712, ncluding alf applicable provisions that prohibil, under specified circumstances, discnnunatiun against an

cmployee as reprisal for the cmployee’s disclosure of information related to gross musmanagement of a federal grani, a

gross waste of federal funds, an abuse of msthority relatg to a federal grant, a substanual and speaific danger to public
fiealth or satety, or a violation of Jaw, rule, or regulation related to a federal grant.

The rectpicnt also must inform its employees, in wriing (and m the predominant native language of the workforee), of
cmployee nghts and remedies under 41 US C 4712

Should a question arise as to the applicability of the provisions of 41 U S C 4712 to this award, the recpentis to
contact the DOJ awarding agency (OJP or OV, as appropaate] for guidance

29 [ neouragement of policres to ban texe messaging while drving

Pursuant to Lxceative Order 13513, “I ederat ] caderstup on Reducing Text Messagmg Wiute Dinvang," 74 | ed. Reg
51225 (Octoher 1, 2009), DOJ encourages recipicnts and subrecipients (“subgrantees™) to adopt and enforce policies
banning employces from text messaging while driving any vehicle during the course of perlforming work funded by this
award, and to establish workplace safety polictes and conduct education, awarcncss, and other outreach to decrease
crashes caused by distracted drivers.

30 Requirement to disclose whether recipient 1s designated “igh nisk* hy a federal grant-making agency outside of DOJ

[fthe rectpient 1s designated "lngh nsk” by a feileral grant-making ageucy outside of DOJ, currently or at any time
during the course of the period of performance under this award the recipient must disclose that fact and certain related
nformation to QJI by emadl at QIP ComplimnccReporting@oyp usdo) gov  For purposes of this disclosure, ligh nisk
wcludes any status under winch a federal awarding agency provides addimonal aversight due to the receprent's past
performance, or other programmauce or financial concerus with the recipient. The recspient's disclosure must include
the followmng 1 The lederal awarding ageney that awrently designates the recipicnt tigh nisk, 2 The date the recipient
was designated agh nisk, 3 Thie lugh nisk point of contact at that federal awarding agency (name, phone aumber, and
emanl address), and 4 The reasons tor the hugh-nisk status, as set out by the federal awarding agency

31 Cooperating with OJP Monutoring

The reeiprent agrees to cooperate with O monutonng of Uus award parsuant to OJP's guidehines, protocols, and
procedures, and (o cooperate with OJP (including the grant manager for this award and the Oftice of Chiel Financial
Officer (OCFO)) reguests selated to such momforng. mcduding requests refated to desk sexiews and/or site visits. The
recipient agrees ta provide to QJP all documentation necessary for OJP ta complete its monitormg tasks includmyg ;
documentation related to any subawards made under this anward 1 urther, the recipient agrees to abide by reasonable

deadiines set by OIP for providing the requested documents  Failure to cooperate with OJ*s monlonng activities may

resuft i actions that affeet the recipient’s DOJ awards, uicluding, but pot inited to withhotdings and/or other

restrictions on the recipient’s daceess to award funds, relerat to the DO OIG for audit review, designation of the

recipient as a DOJ thgh Rusk grantee, or termumation of an award(s)
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32 FFATA reporung  Subawards and executive compensition

The reciprent must comply with apphicable requircments to rcpon lirst-tier subawards (“subgrants™) o $23,000 or

more and, in certam circumstances, to report the names and toral compensation of the Jive most highfy compensated
executives of the reciprent and first-ter subreeipients (lirst-tier “subgrantees®) ofaward Junds  the details of recipons
obhigations, which denive from the [ ederal Funding Accountabihity and Transparency Actof 2006 (1{ ALA), are posted
on 1he OJP web site at hups.Zogp gov/iunding/t xplore/kt ATA him (Award condition Reporting Subaw ards and

I xecutive Compensation), and are incorporated by refercuce here

I'tus condttion, including its reportmg requurcement, docs not apply te-- (1) an award ol less than $25,000, or (2) an
award made 1o an nidividual who received the avard as a natural person (1 ¢., unrelated to any busmess or non-profit
organtzation that he or she may own or operate in his or her name).

33 Required monitoring o) subawards

e recipicnt must monitor snbawards under ths avard in accordance with all apphicable statutes, regnlations, award
conditions, and the DOJ Grants | inancial Gude, and must inctude the applicable conditions of this avard in any
subaward, Among other things, the reeipientis responsible for oversight of subrecipient spending and monstoring l
speertic outcomes and benelits attributable to use of award funds by subrecipients. The reeiprent agrees (o submt, upon
request, documentation ol its policies and procedures for momloring of subawards ander this award

31 Use of program meome

Program meome (as defined i the Part 200 Uniform Requirenients) must be used in accordance with the provisions of
the Part 200 Uniform Requircments  Program income camings and expenditures both must be reported on the quarterly
Federat Fiancral Report, S1 425

35 Justice Informauon Shanng

Infomiation sharng projecis Funded under dus award must comply with DOJSs Global Jusuce Informauon Sharing
Inhanve (Global) gurdelmes  1he reciprent (and any subreciprent at any tier) must contorm (o the Globat Standards
Package (GSP) and all constituent clemends, where applicable, as descrabed at hitps./ / t ogp gov/ gsp_grantconditivn
The recipient (and any subrecipient at any tier) mast document planned approaches lo information shanng and describe
complanee with tic GSP aad appropriate privacy policy that protects sharcd information, or provide detuled
justificution for wiy an alternative approach 1s recommended.

36 Avadance of duphicalion of networks

I'o avord duplicatmg exishing networks or H systews wany iutiatives hunded by BIA for law enforcement mformanon
sharing systems whuch mvolve wnterstate connectivity between jurisdictions, such systems shall employ, 1o the exient
possible, existing networks as the communication backbune (o achieve mterstate connectnily, unless the recipient an
demonstrate to the satisfaction of BJA that this requirement svould not be cost elfective or would impair the
functionahity ot an existing or proposed IT system

37 Comphance wnth28C 'R Part 23

With respect to any information technolog) system funded or supported by Junds under this award, the recipient (and
any subreeipient at any hier) must comply with 28 C T R Part 23, Crimmal Intelligence Systems Operating Policies (I
OJP derermmines dus regulation to be applicable Should OJP determme 28 C1 R Part 23 w0 be applicable, OJP may m
1ts diserction, perfornn aadits of the sy siem, as por the regulation: Should any viokwon o 28 C | R Part 23 veeur, the
reeipient may be Jined as per H U S C 10231 )-(d). The reaiprent way not sutisy such  fine with federnt fands.

OFP FORNLN00. 2 (RIN 4 8%)



30

40

41

42

43

Department of Justice (DO

Office of Justice Programs AWARD CONTINUATION

Bureau of Justice Assistance SHEET AGE 14 OF 17
Grant

2020.7C IN-0002 WARD DATH 03 23 2020 T

SPECHIT CONDIHIONS

Confidentiahity of' data

{he reciprent (and any subreciprent i any ter) must comply with all condideatiality requerements of 34 U4 S € 1023
and 28 CF R Part 22 that are applicable to collection use, and revelation of data or mformation The recipient further
agrees, as a condibion of award approsal, to subnut a Privacy Ceruficate that is n accord with requirements of 28
CFR Part 22 and, m particular, 28C F R 2223

Vertfication and updating of reaiment contact nfarmatton

The recipient must verfy its Pornt of Contact{POC), Fmancied Pomnt of Contact (F'POC), and Authonized
Represemialive contact information i (IS, mcludmg telephone number and c-mait address {1 any information 1s
incorrect or has changed, a Grant Adjustment Nouce (GAN) miust be subnutted via the Grants Managememt System
{GMS) to document changes

Justification of consultant rale

Approval of this award docs not indicate approval ol any consultant rate 1n excess of $630 per day A detarled
Justification must be submitied to and approved by the OJP program office prior to obhgation or expendtture of such
funds.

Centification of body amor “mandatory wear” policics

{f recipient uses Runds under this anard to purchase body amor, the reciprent must subnut a signed certtfication thin
law enforcement agencies recens mg body annor purchased wath funds from this award have a waticn "mandatory
wear” pohicy in ¢tlect The seciprent must keep signed certitications on file for any subrecapicnts planmng to utihize
tunds from this award for hallistic-resistant asd stsb-resistant hody armor purchases. Thus pohicy must be i place for

at least all umformed officers before any funds from tns award may be used by-an-agency for-body amior There are no
requirements regarding-the-nature ot the policy othar than ot be a mandatory wear poliey for all unifonned oflicers
while on duty

Body amor - compliance with NI standacds and other requirements

Balhstrc-resistant und stab-resistant body anmor puschased wath JAG anard funds may be purchused af any theeat
tevel, make or model, from any distnbutor or manufacturcr s long as the body armor has been tested and tound to
comply with apphicable National (nstitute of Justice butlistic or stab standards and 15 listed on the N1 Comphant Bedy
Armor Model List (hitps./mi) govitopies/technology /body-anmor/Pages/camplunt-balliste-anmor aspx) In addition
balhistc-resistant wd stab-resistant hody armor purchased must be made mr the Unned States and must be ungquely
fitted, as set forth mn 34 U S C 10202{c){1)(A) The latest NH standard information can be found here hittps 7/ ny ponvi
topres/ technology/ body-amior/ pages/ safety-witiative asps

[he recipient agrees to cooperate with any assessments, national evalwiuon cllorts, or mlormation or data collechon
requests, including but not hinuled to, the provision of any mtormition required for the assessment or ¢s aluabion of any
activities withun this project

OJP FORM 4000.2 (RF\ 4 88)
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SPECIAL CONDITIONS

With respect to ths award, tederal funds muy nol be used to pay cash compensation (salary plus bonuscs) to any
employee of the award recipient al a rate that exceeds 110% of the maximum annual salary payable to a member ol the
{ederal government’s Semor f xecubive Senvice (SFS) at an agency with a Certified SIS Performance Appraisal System
for thal year  ( \u award recipient may compensaie an cimploycee at a ugher rate, provided the amount in excess of this
compensation hmitation is pad with non-tederal funds )

This hiitation on compensations rates atlowable under this award may be waived on an individual basis at the
discretion of the OJP offivial indicated i the program announcement under which this award 15 made

The recipicat agrees that w will submit monthly status reports lo OJP on-hne as an attachment o s Program Offlice
Approval Grant Adyustment Notice (GAN), not later than 13 days alter the end of each calendir month These reports
should provude a hist of cxpenditures by budget category o date, as appraved m the application budget or subsequent
budget reviston GAN Additionally  the reports should describe any projected delays to the progect, or actual delays to
date

All revisions 10 the budget, whether within a lime wem or across budget categones, must be subnnited for prior approval
by OJP A Budget modification Grant Adjustment Notice (GAN) utsst be subnnlted once these revisions are
deterniined by the reeipient and no grant (unds may be obhigated or expended on new budget stems until the GAN 15
approved.

Any and all Memoranda of Understanding (MOU) entered into by and between the grantee and any und all other
Junsdictions engaged 10 the performance of work under this grant should include a certification by those partcipating
sunsdictions alTinmatively acknowledging grant funds will not be used to supplant local and/or stawe finds More
information about supplanting can be found m the DOJ Grants | inancial Gude -

hitp.//opp gov/linancialgurde/DON/ndex him

the recipient agrees 1o monior subawards under tus award i accordance with afl applicable statutes, regulations,
OMB cireulars, and guideluies, ncluding the DOJ Grants | inancial Guude, and to inctude the apphcable conditons ot
this award i any subaward. The recipient s responsible for oversight of subrecipicat speading and monitonng of
specific outcomes and benefits attnbutable to use of funds by subrecipients. The reaipient agrees to submu, upon
request, documentation ol s pohicies and procedures for monuonng of subawards under this award

“The rectpient must subaut a certification to BIA that all grant-Tonded cqumipiment has been purchased and i1s already
operational as of the dale ol the certification The cerfication nust be recenved by BJA no fater than fourteen (14)
calendar days prior to the commencement date of the prestdential nomtnating convention with respect to which the
grant 1s made  No lunds awarded under tins grant may be obligated, expended or drawn down to cover costs for any
cquipnient that 1 not covered by the certification

Al least thirty (30) days prwr to the commencement of the Presudential Nomwating Convention, the reciprent nust
subwit to the BJA, documentuation that identitics by name, all state and local law enlorcement agencies/jurnisdictions
that the rectpient anticipales ta reimburse with grant [unds for secunity and related costs, including overlinie associnted
with the Presidential Nomnauing Convennon No grant Tunds may be used for reimbursement of a state or loeal law
enforcement agency/fjunsdiction which is not included on thus hist, without specific approval by the BJA Direetor The
BJA Parcclor mantans the nght to dony rennbursable expenditures incurred by the grantee of the expenditures are
athervise ineligible for reimbursement under any other apphicable statute, regulation or award proviston

The grantee shall make its uaclasstled operationnl secunity plan ncluding any amendments thereto, available lor
mspection by designated BJA oflicials dunng sne visns conducted by B/, or upon request by, and for review by, the
BIA Drrector

I FORM 4000 2 (RI-\ 83}
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2 The reapient understands and acknowledges that for purposes of this award, lood and/or beverages expenses are
deemed reasonable and allowable only to the extent that. 1) such costs are directly related to [aw cnforcement and
related sceunty operations assowated with the Presidential Candidate Nommaung Convention, 2) such costs have been
specifically included m the budget approved by OJP; 3 )such costs arc consistent wath threshold limits established by
OJP m the Hinancial Guide, and 4) actual costs related 10 food and beverage are reported directly 1o OJP afler the
convention The recipicat may not expend funds lor food and/or beverage expenses that are related 10 other conferences
or meetings, or are otherwise deented unreusonable or unaflowable by BJA and/or OJP's Oftice of the Chief Financial
Olficer (OCI O)

o

33 The award recipient agrees 10 pros de a lur and transparent process lor funsdictions that are hostng offictal
Convention cvents, or providing agreed upon mutual assistance, to receive reimbursciment for reasonable law
cnlorcement-related cosis from the appropriated funds, and disburse grant funds to all authorized mutual aid partners
involved in faw enforcement and refated law enforcement activities m a timely manner BJA reserves the night to freeze
grant funds via a Grant Adyustinent Noteee atany tunie durimg the course of thus award if any part of this special
condition 1s nol adhered 1o by the award recipient

Ly
‘-

The recipent acknowledges that five percent (5%) of the total anward amount will be withheld unul 90 days priar 1o the
award cnd date  To remove this withholding condition, the recaprent must submint to BJA for s review and approval a
timelme lor the closure ol the grunt, along with an assurance by the granice that all documents necessary for closcout
will be subnutted no later than Y0 days alter the award end date  The grantee will also subrut, along with the tmetine
and necessary closcout documents, a hist of all remaming expenditures (designated by upproved budgel category)
planned for the withheld funds The grantee also agrees (e submit any other supporting docuntentalion deemed
necessary by BJA prior to the release of the withheld funds. BJIA will issue a Grant Adjustment Notice to remove this
condition only upon its receipt and approval of this additional documentation No portion ol the live percent
withheld lunds may be expended or drawn down unul the recipient receives notice of this GAN approval

[
[y

Recipient mtegriny and performance matters  Regqinrement to report inforination on certam enil, cnmumal, and
admunistrative proceedings a SAM and 1 APHS

The recapient must comply with any and all apphcable requirements regarding reporting of nformation on civil,
crimmal, and adnunistraive procecdings connected with {or connecied to the performance of) etther this QJP award or
any other granl, cooperalive agreenmiend, or procurement contrict from the federal government  Under certan
circumslances, recipients of OJP awnards are required to report nformation about such proceedngs. through the federal
System for Award Manageatent (known as "SAM") 1o the designated lederal ntegnity and performance system
(currently, "I APHIS™)

‘The details of recipient obligahions regarding the required reporting (and updaung) ol information on certain civil,
eriminal, and adnumstrative proceedings 10 the federal designated integnty and perfonnance system {currently,
"FAPHS") within SAM are posted on the QJI web stie at hiips.Zojp gov/lunding/T APHS him (Award condition
Recipient fntegnty and Performance Matters. indluding Reupient Reporting to FAPIS), and are mcorporated by
reference here

36 The reciprent agrees to complete all grant draw downs on a rennbursement-only basis.

§7  None of the funds of this award may be used lor subawards that are awarded on the basis of partisan politica)
consigerations.

O30 FORNL4000. 2RIV 4 381
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38 lorany subawards made to the Host Commttees, the grantee niust conduct subreuipient monitoring and may only
provide grant funds to these orgamizations on a direct reimbnrsement basis for all supported costs once confirmed.
Grant funds cannot be snbawarded directly for the full amount of the subaward to these entitics i order 10 ensure
adequate oversight of grant funds.  \my adjustments o thas monstorg and reimbursement process lor the Host
Comnuttees must be approved in advance by BIA m wnting

wn
A=)

Lxpenditures prohibited withont waiver

No funds under this award may be cxpended on the purchase ol items prohibited by the JAG program stotute, unless as
set forth a1 34 US C 10152 the BIA Director cenifics that extraordnary ind exigent circumstances exist, making such
expenditures essential to the mamtenance of public safely and good order

60 Compliance with National ! avironmental Policy Act and related statutes

Upon request, the reaipient (and any subrecipicnt at any ter) must assist BJA m complying with the Nahonal
Favironmental Pohicy Act {NI PA), the National | hstanc Preservation Act, and other related (ederal environmental
impact analyscs reqmrements m the use ol these award funds, either directly by the recipient or by a subrecipient
Accordmgly, the recipient agrees to lirst deternune af any of the following activities will be fiinded by the grant prior
to obligating funds for any of these purposes 1011 1s determmed that any of the followang activities will be funded by
the award, the reaipient agrees to contact BJA

The recipient understands that this condition applics to new actiy sties as set out below, whether or not they are being
specifically funded with these award funds That s, as long as the activ ity 1s being conducted by the reepeent, a
subrecpicent, or any third party, and the activity needs to be undertaken m order to use these award funds, lis condition
must first be met The activitics covered by tlus condition are

@ New construction,

b Minor renovanon or remodeling of a property lacated i an environmentally or hustoneally seasitive area, weluding
properties located within a 100-year Hood plain, a wetland, or habiat for endangered speeies, or a property hsted on or
ehgible for listing on the Natienal Regster ol Histone Places,

¢ A renovation, lease, or any proposed use of a building or facitity that wilt erther {a) result in a change i its basic
prior us¢ or (b) significantly change 1ts size,

d Implementation of a new program mvoly mg the use af chenucals other than chemicals that are (a) purchased as an
meidental component of « funded actnaty and (b) tndsuonally used Tor example i office, houschold, recreational, or
eduecation environments, and

e lplementation ol a program relating to undestine methamphe timine laboratory operations mcluding the
dentification seizure or closure of Lindestime methamphictaniine labogatanes.

The reciprent understands and agrees that complymg with NFPA may require the preparation of an | nvironmental
Assessment and/or an Invironmental Impact Statement as directed by BJA  The reerpient fiarther understands and
agrees to the requiremients for implemeatation ol a Mitganon Plan, as defailed at hitps /bja gov/Tunding/nepa lum|  for
progranis relaimg to methamphetumine laboratory operations

\pptication of I'ms Condition e Recipient's | xistmg Programis or Activiies  For any of the recapient’s or its
subreciprents’ existing prograns or actinuttes that will be funded by these award Giands, the recipient, upon speeific
request from BJA agrees to cooperate with BJA m anv preparation by 13J:A of a national or program ey ronmental
assessment of that funded program or achiv ity

P FORM 4000 2 (REV 3 88)
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Memorandum To: Official Grant File

From: Orbin Terry, NEPA Coordinator
Subject: Incorporates NEPA Comphance in Further Developmental Stages for City of
Milwaukee

Awards under this program will be used to provide support for law enforcement expenditures and related security
costs, including overtume All recipients must assist BIA i complying with NEPA and other related federal
environmental impact analyses requirements in the use of grant funds, whether the funds are used directly by the
grantee or by a subgrantee or third party Accordingly, prior to obligating funds for any of the specified activities,
the grantee must first determune « any of the specified activities will be funded by the grant. The specified
activities requiring environmental analysis are: a New construction; b Any renovation or remodeling of a property
located in an environmentally or historically sensitive area, including properties located within a [00-year flood
plam, a wetland, or habitat for endangered species, or a property histed on or eligible for listing on the National
Register of Historic Places, ¢ A renovation, lease, or any proposed use of a building or facility that will either (a)
result m a change in its basic prior use or (b) significantly change s size, d Implementation of a new progran:
mvolving the use of chemicals other than chemicals that are (a) purchased as an incidental component of a funded
activity and (b) traditionally used, for example, i office, household, recreational, or education environments; and
¢ Implementation of a program relating to clandestine methamphetamine laboratory operations, including the
identification, seizure, or closure of clandestine methamphetamine laboratories.

Complying with NEPA may require the preparation of an Environmental Assessment and/or an Environmental
Impact Statement, as directed by BJA. Further, for programs relating to methamphcetamine laboratory operations,
the preparation of a detailed Mitigation Plan will be required. For more information about Mitigahon Plan
requirements, please see hitps:/www bja gov/F'unding/nepa html. Please be sure to carefully review the grant
conditions on your award document, as 1t may contain more specific information about environmental comphance



Department af Justice (DOJ) GRANT MANAGER'S MEMORANDUM, PT. I:
Office of Justice Programs PROJECT SUMMARY !

Burcauw ol Justice \ssishnce

PROJI-C T NUNIBLR

PAGE 1 OF ]
2020-/¢ -BN-0002

This project i;kppunc‘l undec Y2035V Presidenual \ 2 C onventions, the l)tpﬂlllliwnl ol Justice Appropriations Act IOZO—Fub—L--INI 6-93 133 St
2317 2407
b STAFF CONTACT (N & icdephone numberny 2 PROJLCT DIRLC TOR t\amie address & Ickephone number)
Stephen Fender Steven Vahan
(202) 598-91% Direclor
200 Caust Wells Sircet
\hiwaukee, WI 53202 3515
(414) 7080973
Ja IPPLEOF FHE PROGRANE b PONIS CODE (SLE INSTRUCTIONS

O\ REVIRSD)
BIAFY 20 Presidential Sominanng Convenhons

4OVTHLY OF PROJCY

Funding 1 Suppert the 2020 Presidential \ Lo

5 NANE & ADDRESS OF GRANTEFF 6 NAVH & ADRLSS OF SUBGRANTEE

Oity of Mihwaukee
200 Last W ells Street Caty Hall
Mhlwankee WE53202 3518

7 PROGRAM PERIOD 8 BEDGH 1 PERIOD
FROM 10.01 2019 o 03312021 FROAI 10:01 2019 TO 0331202
9 AMOUNT OF AWARD 10 DATI OF AW \RD
S 50.000,000 03232020
11 SECOND YEAR'S BUBGET £2 SECOM3 YFAK S BUDGEF AWOLUNT
I3 TUIRD YEAR'S BUDGE T PIRIOD 14 THIRD YEAR'S BE DGET ANIOLNT -

15 SUNINARY DESCRIPTION OF PROJELCT (See msirucaon ou reverse)

e Democratic Natiomal Convention t(DNC) wall be held July [3-16. 2020, in \Milwauikee Wisconsin The DN was Jesignated o Natonal Special Securiy Fyent

(NSSF) by the Department of Homeland Sceunty Wuli NSS1 staius, the I nued Siales Secrer Service (USSS) is the lead agency in charge of secunty for the DNC

The reapient will utihize grani Tunds 10 provide support For law euforcement expenditures and redated Jae enforcement actwines, mcludg overtilne assoctaled

with the 2020 DN\C The staled purpose of tus Finding 15 to provide support for law cuforcament acivates, including personnel necessiny eqaipment and overtime
!

costs associated with the 2020 Rupublican Democrafic Presidemial ¢ \ g Convenl

Thereas a requirement thar cach grantee: liscal agent recerang an avward will

» Ctilize grant funds fos faw enforcament acusiies menrred dunng the 2020 Repubhiean Democratic Presid [N g Convention

» Fully explore other non-federal fandung streams o ensure tha federal funds are being used w suppl and not suppl ifable state oual or other

OIP FORM 4000:2 (RN 4881



sources and obtain required Memaoranduins of {,nd ling (MOLs)

« Carefully manage the drawdown of grant funds based on approved costs and adhere 1o the 120) Fmancisl Gwde rules on cash management

« Ensure that wilten and properly executed murval awd agreements are mn place and that funds can be reimbursed » a umely manner,

¢ Provide a fair and transpareat process for other Jusisdictions that may be hosung official Convention events, or providing agreed upon mustual assistance 1o the
host €1ty to recerve reimbursement for reasonable sccucty related costs frem the appropnated funds,

« Develop and utihize a centrahzcd documented awhonzauon process for 2xpend of award funding for of ac bility and

* Pasticipate tn tratning on the prevenuon of Fraud Wasie and Abuse delivered by the Department of Iusuice Oftice of the Inspector General (I)OJ Ol(,-) prior v
the conventions

NCANCF
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milwaukee journal sentinel

ELECTIONS

Police departments begin to withdraw
from security agreements for 2020 DNC,
some citing directive on crowd munitions

Bill Glauber, Ashley Luthern, Mary Spicuzza and Alison Dirr Milwaukee Journal Sentinel
Published 6 53 pm CT Jul 27, 2020 l Updated 6:02 p.m. CT Jul. 28, 2020

At least 100 law enforcement agencies have withdrawn agreements to send personnel to next
month's Democratic National Convention, some of them citing orders to Milwaukee's police
chief to cease the use of tear gas and pepper spray during demonstrations.

The withdrawals cast doubt on a program to bring about 1,000 police officers from outside
agencies to help shore up security for the event, scheduled for the week of Aug 17. Among
the agencies confirmed to have withdrawn are police departments in Fond du Lac, Franklin,
Greendale and West Allis.

Asked on Monday if the agreements were collapsing, Fond du Lac Police Chief William Lamb
said, "Yes," adding that he expects other agencies from across the state to withdraw from the
program.

"We regret having to do that," said Lamb, who chairs the Wisconsin Police Executive Group,
which consists of police chiefs from cities with populations of more than 20,000 people.

The action by Lamb and others comes as Milwaukee's Fire and Police Commission issued a
directive last week to Milwaukee Police Chief Alfonso Morales to change department policy
to discontinue the use of tear gas and pepper spray.

Morales spoke to several media outlets Tuesday and told at least one that more than 100 law
enforcement agencies had backed out of agreements with the city for security at the
convention. In a letter to the U.S. Department of Justice sent two weeks ago, Milwaukee
officials listed fewer than 60 partner agencies as assisting with DNC security.

https //www jsonline com/story/news/poltics/elections/2020/07/27/dnc-police-departments-withdraw-secunty-agreements-milwaukee/5520421002/ 1/5



7/30/2020 DNC Police departments withdraw from security agreements in Milwaukee

Police confirmed Tuesday afternoon that more than 100 law enforcement agencies are no
longer assisting with the event.

"MPD’s top priority remains to ensure that next month’s DNC is a safe event for all visitors
and participants,” the department said in the statement.

Morales abruptly postponed a scheduled interview with the Milwaukee Journal Sentinel
Tuesday afternoon.

"We respect the Fire and Police Commission's decision," Lamb said in an interview. "But in
this particular case, we strongly disagree with the actions they've taken. We believe (that) in
removing those tools, the use of chemical irritants or pepper spray, from the available
resources that the law enforcement officers would have at their disposal if protests become
non-peaceful would severely compromise the safety of the public and also the safety of the
law enforcement officers who would be assigned to protect the DNC."

Lamb sent a letter to Milwaukee police on July 6 outlining his organization's concerns about
limiting the use of tear gas and pepper spray. His group has not received a reply, he said, but
added that he understands that the situation in Milwaukee is "fluid."

West Allis police first sent a letter to Morales with concerns in mid-June after Milwaukee's
Common Council temporarily halted the purchase of those chemicals. A more recent bid
for barricades, pepper spray, a "tactical gas delivery system," food and drink for officers and
other equipment appears on its way to being fulfilled.

But then came the directive from the Milwaukee Fire and Police Commission.

"Our concern is that in the event protests turn non-peaceful, such a policy would remove
tools from officers that may otherwise be legal and justifiable to utilize in specific situations,"
West Allis Deputy Chief Robert Fletcher said in an email.

The decision to withdraw was not done lightly, he said, but the department believed such a
policy would compromise the safety of officers and the public.

Franklin Police Chief Rick Oliva raised similar concerns in a letter he sent to Morales last
week stating that his agency was no longer sending personnel to assist at the convention "due
to recent decisions by Milwaukee elected and appointed officials.”

"It is apparent there is a lack of commitment to provide the Milwaukee Police Department
with the resources it needs to ensure the safety of peaceful protesters, attendees, citizens and
police personnel,” Oliva wrote in his July 23 letter, copies of which were sent to Mayor Tom
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Barrett, the Common Council president and the FPC. "I can not send personnel if they are
not properly equipped or will not be allowed to engage in appropriate actions which would
ensure their safety."

Oliva noted in his letter that the agreement had said officers were to be provided "sufficient
resources to handle multiple unruly persons,” and that the deal allowed for

early termination if the city "fails to comply with or perform any material term, condition or
obligation contained in the agreement."”

In a letter to Morales Tuesday, Greendale Police Chief Ryan Rosenow echoed Oliva's message
and said he would no longer be sending officers to assist.

Waukesha's police chief said he is consulting with the city attorney's office on how to
withdraw from the agreement, which had promised about two dozen Waukesha officers.

"My position is we're not going to be sending our officers to support the DNC," said Chief
Daniel Thompson, who was hired in March after a 29-year career with the Milwaukee Police
Department.

"I understand that use of chemical irritants and pepper spray is serious and those are to be
used only when legally justified,” he said. "But when you take that out of the continuum that
doesn’t leave the officers much other than getting harmed or using deadly force and that’s
not good for any officer or the public."

The Milwaukee Police Department declined to comment on the situation.

"For security purposes and the safety of the delegates and those attending the Democratic
National Convention, the Milwaukee Police Department declines to comment on the staffing
for its operational plan,” according to a statement released Monday evening.

Griselda Aldrete, executive director of the FPC, referred questions about the issue to
Commissioner Nelson Soler, who did not respond to an interview request. Soler serves
as chairman of the Policies and Standards Committee, which is reviewing operating
procedures for crowd control.

Other agencies remain, while some have stepped back for
other reasons

Some agencies are still planning to send officers to assist with the event.

.Green Bay Police Chief Andrew Smith said at this point his department is one of them.
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“We made a commitment that we would assist Chief Morales and the Milwaukee Police
Department,” Smith said. “We intend to honor that commitment.”

Glendale Police Captain Rhett Fugman said Monday that his department still plans to send
five officers to assist with the DNC.

West Bend Police Chief Kenneth Meuler said he remains committed to sending about a
dozen officers for the effort.

“I am confident that Chief Morales and city officials will work out an agreement to address
the concerns that some of the other chiefs have raised," said Meuler, a former Milwaukee
Police Department captain.

The Wisconsin State Patrol also still plans to provide security assistance at the DNC and so
does the Rock County Sheriff's Office.

Milwaukee Common Council President Cavalier Johnson said the council has "only asked for
transparency when it comes to the use of chemical irritants — especially during a time when
tensions between law enforcement and the community need to be de-escalated."

"I’'m very thankful to police forces from Green Bay, West Bend and other communities from
across Wisconsin and the United States that not only will honor their commitment to provide
security during the Democratic National Convention but also respect the moment that our
nation is in as we collectively re-examine police-community relations,” he said.

Others are no longer sending officers to help but said the decision was made independently
of concerns about the COVID-19 pandemic and any recent directives.

Eau Claire Police Chief Matt Rokus said he decided against sending the 10 officers the agency
had originally planned to send to assist with the convention in February.

"The commitment to send 10 officers was made by our previous chief, prior to my
appointment,"” Rokus said.

He added that Eau Claire previously had three large local music festivals and another large

event planned that would have coincided with the original July dates of the DNC in
Milwaukee.

"It really had to do with local needs at the time," Rokus said.

New Jersey State Police said Monday that their deployment of about 55 people was canceled.
No reason was given.



APPROVAL REQUEST FOR MEETING
DATE
COUNCIL ACTION
08/04/2020
REPORTS & ITEM NUMBER
Police Department request for approval to purchase
RECOMMENDATIONS 911 Nextgen call recording and logging system 6‘. 3 i

At the April 21, 2020 meeting, the Common Council approved the following motion related to the
purchase of a new call recording and logging system that will perform time saving functions such as
being able to email a recording; geo fence searches; viewing call locations on a map; text message

replay.

MOTION TO UPGRADE OF 911 NEXTGEN

Accept the (federal) grant with the commitment to fund 100% of the project costs of $26,883.50 with the
expectation the City would receive 60% of the costs, estimated to be $16,130.00, as a reimbursement, with City
costs being $10,754.00, and further that the Council directs the Director of Finance & Treasurer to prepare
budget amendment to move contingency appropriation to Police Equipment and reflect the grant resources.

Approved.

A current quote for the project is $23,877.50 (attached).

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED:

Motion to approve the purchase and installation of the Nelson Systems NexLog system.




Office use only

NexLog740DX

DX701

108233-000

DX730

DX703

324430

DXANA16

271052

209029

271140

DX902

6/25/2020

9455 W Loomis Rd
Frankhn, WI 53132

Description
Nexi.og740 DX

NexLog 740 DX-Series base system 3U rack-
mountable, Core i5 CPU, 16GB DDR4 RAM,
2 Network Ports (100/1000), Embedded
Linux, NexLog DX-Series software, web-
based configuration manager, audio controls
& amplified speaker on front panel

Integrated 7" Color LCD Touch Screen
Display

Dual hot-swap power supplies, 120/240 VAC

Standard Nexl.og 740 DX-Seriess Archive 1
Blu-ray Drive (also supports single-side DVD-
RAM media)

2 x 1TB fixed-mount s/w-RAID1 = 1TB
storage
Rack Mount Kits

Rack Mount Shdes - 4 Post, 3U (for NexLog
740)

Analog Telephone/2-way Radio Channel
AnalogTelephone/2-way Radio Channel
Record Card - 16 Channels Each

VOIP

Internal IP Recorder w/ 8 G 711 Ch Licenses

PSAP 9-1-1 Interface and Integrations

911 NENA ANI/ALI CAD Spill Integration
Interface license for VESTA 911/Callworks IP
Audio Recording

Motorola-Vesta SMS recording via 13 Logging
Events

Nelson Systems Inc Proprietary

“l'lnit l;}ice

$7,995 00

$1,295 00
Standard

Standard
Standard
$360 00
$4,000 00
$3,850 00
$3,495 00

$2,495 00

$1,995 00

Page

Neilson Systems
_— —— H o€ 0o ¢ P 0 F & 1T € 0
Salesperson Customer Sales Contact Date 6/25/20
Jacob Jiles Cindy Manke Phone # 414-858-2670 \WO #
Cust PO# Customer Project Coordinator Cust # PO #
Phone # Zone# 1
Prepared for: Franklin Police Department Ship To: SAME

$7,995 00

$1,295 00

$0 00

$0 00

$0 00

$360 00

$4,000 00

$3.850 00

$3,495 00

$2,495 00

$1,995 00

1




Install Kits I

109033-007 Quick Install Kit (Includes #264242-007 23FT $300 00 1 $300 OOI
Connector Cable & Punch down Block) STD
Telco Pin-Out

Software
271083 MediaWorks DX (Web) Concurrent Access $995 00 1 $995 00
for 8 Users

271098 Geo Search/View (requires Lat/Lon, MW $995 00 1 $995 00
PLUS, Google Maps)

115021 Nexlog Reporting Engine (Enhanced $995 00 1 $995 00
Reporting)
Speclal instructions/Transferred items do not order

System Price (Total of Hardware and Software) $28,770.00

Services

Services Description Rate Qty Total Price
Installation and project management $2,000 00
Training $300 00
Services Price $2,300.00

6/25/2020 Nelson Systems Inc Proprietary Page 2



_ oo Maintenance Agreement
Standard ’ Yearly Amt # of Total Price

months
*205-2000 8-5 Service GMA $2,626 55 12 $2,626 55
DXSUS-12MO Software Update Subscniption from Eventide required with GMA purchase $843 30
Maintenance Price $3,469.85

, :'Summary

Price

Solution Components
System Price $28,770 00
Services Price $2,300 00
Marntenance Price Declined $0 00
Discount 25 00% -$7,192.50
1 YEAR WARRANTY ON NEW HARDWARE AND SOFTWARE, 90 DAY WARRANTY FOR ADD ONS
Freight and/or sales tax -- to be added if applicable. $0 00
Total Investment $23,877.50

Price for presentation purposes only, subject to change based on final configuration Price quotation does not include freight or sales tax -- to be added to
invoiced amount as applicable Lease rates valid upon acceptance by leasing company Down payment of 50% on any orders over $5,000 is required Final
invoice fo be sent upon delivery Invoices are net 10 days - 1 5% per mo on past due balances

Customer Acceptance Date

Nelson Systems, Inc Representative Sales Rep # Date

This document becomes a confirmed sales order upon signature of customer and Nelson Systems, Inc representative

Pricing valid for 60 days
Possesston of Equipment
| have verified that our facility has received all equipment purchased from Nelson Systems, Inc, including CD's, manuals, etc

Authorized Signature Date

6/25/2020 Nelson Systems Inc Proprietary Page 3



APPROVAL REQUEST FOR MEETING

COUNCIL ACTION DATE
August 4, 2020

REPORTS AND An Ordinance to Amng the Municipal Cf)d? to Provide ITEM NUMBER
RECOMMENDATIONS for Common Council, Boards’, Commissions’ and
Committees’ Members, Applicants’, and the Public @ , /7[ .

Remote Government Meetings Attendance

This subject matter was put over to this meeting at the July 21, 2020 Council meeting. A copy of the above-
entitled draft ordinance is annexed hereto. Also annexed hereto are Wisconsin Department of Justice Office of
the Attorney General Office of Open Government Advisories issued on March 16, 2020 and March 20, 2020.

Also, following this agenda item is an amendment to the Public Health Emergency Resolution which addresses
the extension of time for the Public Health Emergency and provides for Citizen Comment to be submitted in

writing and which may be read into the record at meetings, as discussed at the July 21, 2020 Council meeting,
as an alternative and in lieu of any action on this subject matter item.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

A motion to adopt An Ordinance to Amend the Municipal Code to Provide for Common Council, Boards’,

Commissions’ and Committees’ Members, Applicants’, and the Public Remote Government Meetings
Attendance;

or

such other action as the Common Council may deem appropriate.

Legal Services Dept.: jw




Josh Kaul
Wisconsin Attorney General

P.O. Box 7857
Madison, WI 53707-7857

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE
March 16, 2020

Office of Open Government Advisory:
Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID-19) and Open Meetings

MADISON, Wis. — The Wisconsin Department of Justice’s (DOJ) Office of Open
Government (OOG) has prepared the following advisory in response to inquiries as
to the applicability of the Wisconsin’s open meetings law, Wis. Stat. §§ 19.81 to 19.98,
in light of current public health concerns regarding COVID-19. This advisory is
provided pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 19.98.

As explained below, governmental bodies typically can meet their open meetings
obligations, while practicing social distancing to help protect public health, by
conducting meetings via telephone conference calls if the public 1s provided with an
effective way to monitor such calls (such as public distribution, at least 24 hours 1n
advance, of dial-in information for a conference call).

The open meetings law states: “[I]t 1s declared to be the policy of this state that the
public 1s entitled to the fullest and most complete information regarding the affairs
of government as is compatible with the conduct of governmental business.” Wis.
Stat. § 19.81(1). To that end, the law requires that “all meetings of all state and local
governmental bodies shall be publicly held in places reasonably accessible to
members of the public and shall be open to all citizens at all times unless otherwise
expressly provided by law.” Wis. Stat. § 19.81(2). A meeting must be preceded by
notice providing the time, date, place, and subject matter of the meeting, generally,
at least 24 hours before 1t begins. Wis. Stat. § 19.84.

The open meetings law “does not require that all meetings be held in publicly owned
places but rather 1n places ‘reasonably accessible to members of the public.” 69 Op.
Att’y Gen. 143, 144 (1980) (quoting 47 Op. Att’y Gen. 126 (1978)). As such, DOJ’s
longstanding advice 1s that a telephone conference call can be an acceptable method
of convening a meeting of a governmental body. Id. at 146. More recently, DOJ
guidance deemed video conference calls acceptable as well. Wis. Dep’t of Justice,



Wisconsin  Open  Meetings Law Compliance Guide 11 (May 2019),
https://www.doj.state.wi.us/sites/default/files/office-open-
government/Resources/OML-GUIDE.pd{.

When an open meeting 1s held by teleconference or video conference, the public must
have a means of monitoring the meeting. DOJ concludes that, under the present
circumstances, a governmental body will typically be able to meet this obligation by
providing the public with information (in accordance with notice requirements) for
joining the meeting remotely, even if there 1s no central location at which the public
can convene for the meeting. A governmental body conducting a meeting remotely
should be mindful of the possibility that it may be particularly burdensome or even
infeasible for one or more individuals who would like to observe a meeting to do so
remotely—for example, for people without telephone or internet access or who are
deaf or hard of hearing—and appropriate accommodations should be made to
facilitate reasonable access to the meeting for such individuals.

To be clear, providing only remote access to an open meeting is not always
permissible, as past DOJ guidance shows. Where a complex plan, drawing, or chart
is needed for display or the demeanor of a witness is significant, a meeting held by
telephone conference likely would not be “reasonably accessible” to the public because
important aspects of the discussion or deliberation would not be communicated to the
public. See 69 Op. Att’y Gen. at 145. Further, the type of access that constitutes
reasonable access 1n the present circumstances, in which health officials are
encouraging social distancing (including avoiding large public gatherings) in order to
mitigate the impact of COVID-19, may be dafferent from the type of access required
1 other circumstances. Ultimately, whether a meeting is “reasonably accessible” 1s a
factual question that must be determined on a case-by-case basis. Id.

If you have questions or concerns regarding the application of the open meetings law,
please contact the Office of Open Government at (608) 267-2220.



Josh Kaul
Wisconsin Attorney General

P.O. Box 7857
Madison, WI 53707-7857

NEWS FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE

March 20, 2020

Office of Open Government Advisory: Additional Information Regarding

Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID-19) and Open Meetings

MADISON, Wis. — The Wisconsin Department of Justice’s (DOJ) Office of Open
Government (OOG) continues to prepare additional information in response to
inquiries as to the applicability of the Wisconsin’s open meetings law, Wis. Stat. §§
19.81 to 19.98, 1n light of current public health concerns regarding COVID-19. This
advisory 1s provided pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 19.98.

Conducting open meetings remotely can pose a number of technological and practical
1ssues that governmental bodies should consider in advance, including, among other
things, the following:

[ ]

Governmental bodies must ensure that they follow the notice requirements of
Wis. Stat. § 19.84 and such notice should inform the public that the meeting
will be held remotely and provide all mmformation necessary for the public to
monitor the meeting.

Notices should provide instructions for how the public may access the remote
meeting, whether it is to be held via telephone conference call or video
conference call. This includes providing the telephone number, video
conference link, and any necessary passcodes or other login information.

As DOJ’s Office of Open Government advised 1 1ts March 17, 2020 advisory,
a governmental body conducting a meeting remotely should be mindful of the
possibility that 1t may be particularly burdensome or even infeasible for one or
more 1ndividuals who would like to observe a meeting to do so remotely—for
example, for people without telephone or imnternet access or who are deaf or
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hard of hearing—and appropriate accommodations should be made to facilitate
reasonable access to the meeting for such individuals.

e When conducting a wideoconference or internet-based meeting, the
governmental body should strongly consider providing the public with an
alternative telephone dial-in option for observing such a meeting so that lack
of internet access 1s not a barrier to observing the meeting.

e At the beginning of each meeting conducted remotely, the chair of the
governmental body should encourage all body members to identify themselves
before they begin speaking and not to speak over one another. This will help
all those listening to the meeting better understand who 1s speaking.

¢ When possible, a governmental body may wish to consider recording the
meeting and posting 1t on its website as soon as practicable after the meeting
concludes.

e As a bottom line, governmental bodies meeting remotely can and should

consider steps that ensure that their meetings remain open and accessible to
the public.

If you have questions or concerns regarding the application of the open meetings law,
please contact the Office of Open Government at (608) 267-2220.

See also:

March 17, 2020 — Office of Open Government Advisory: Coronavirus Disease 2019
(COVID-19) and Open Meetings

Page 2 of 2
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STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN MILWAUKEE COUNTY
Draft 7/28/20
ORDINANCE NO. 2020-

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE MUNICIPAL CODE TO PROVIDE FOR COMMON
COUNCIL, BOARDS’, COMMISSIONS’ AND COMMITTEES’ MEMBERS,
APPLICANTS’, AND THE PUBLIC REMOTE GOVERNMENT MEETINGS

ATTENDANCE

WHEREAS, the Wisconsin Department of Justice Office of the Attorney General
issued an Advisory by the Office of Open Government on March 16, 2020, providing in part:
“DOJ’s longstanding advice is that a telephone conference call can be an acceptable method
of convening a meeting of a governmental body.... More recently, DOJ guidance deemed
video conference calls acceptable as well. Wis. Dep’t of Justice, Wisconsin Open Meetings
Law Compliance Guide 11 (May 2019),...”; and

WHEREAS, the Wisconsin Department of Justice Office of the Attorney General
issued an Advisory by the Office of Open Government on March 16, 2020, providing in part
with regard to providing information necessary for the public to monitor the meeting:
“Governmental bodies must ensure that they follow the notice requirements of Wis. Stat. §
19.84 and such notice should inform the public that the meeting will be held remotely and
provide all information necessary for the public to monitor the meeting. Notices should
provide instructions for how the public may access the remote meeting, whether it is to be
held via telephone conference call or video conference call. This includes providing the
telephone number, video conference link, and any necessary passcodes or other login
information.”; and

WHEREAS, the Common Council having considered remote participation in
meetings by members of the Common Council and City Boards, Commissions and
Committees, and the remote monitoring thereof by the Public, and having determined same
to be reasonable and in furtherance of the health, safety and welfare of the Community.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Mayor and Common Council of the City of Franklin,
Wisconsin, do ordain as follows:

SECTION 1: §10-26. of the Municipal Code of the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, is
hereby created to read as follows:

§10-26. Boards', Commissions' and Committees' Members
remote meeting attendance; Applicants’ remote meeting
attendance; remote meeting access by the Public.

Members of all City Boards, Commissions and Committees may
individually attend a meeting of the respective Board,
Commission or Committee, by way of telephone and/or



ORDINANCE NO. 2020-

Page 2

SECTION 2:

SECTION 3:

electronic audio and/or video communication, provided that at a
minimum, each member’s meeting attendance includes audio
communication ability by, to and from the member. Persons
representing an applicant or a petitioner upon an application or
petition or a requestor for an item before the respective Board,
Commission or Committee, and members of the Common
Council, may also attend and participate in the meeting remotely
in the manner as available to the members thereof. The public
may individually attend a meeting and meetings of all City
Boards, @ Commissions and Committees by  way
of telephone and/or  electronic audio and/or  video
communication, by way of such methods, devices and
equipment available and determined to be reasonable for such
purposes by the City Department of Information Services and
the IT Director. Notice of the availability of such remote
attendance by the public by way of telephone and/or electronic
audio and/or video communication shall be stated on the agenda
for the respective meeting. All comments by persons during a
Citizen Comment Period and all comments by persons on public
hearing items during a public hearing shall be made in person in
attendance at the meeting location and not remotely.

§19-1. Meeting time and date, of the Municipal Code of the City of
Franklin, Wisconsin, the title thereof only, is hereby amended to read
as follows: “Meeting time, date and place.”.

§19-1.E. of the Municipal Code of the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, is
hereby created to read as follows:

E. Common Council Members’ remote meeting attendance;
Applicants’ remote meeting attendance; remote meeting access
by the Public. Members of the Common Council may
individually attend a meeting of the Common Council, by way
of telephone and/or electronic audio and/or video
communication, provided that at a minimum, each
member’s meeting attendance includes audio communication
ability by, to and from the member. Persons representing an
applicant or a petitioner upon an application or petition or a
requestor for an item before the Common Council may
also attend and participate in the meeting remotely in the
manner as available to the members thereof. The public may



ORDINANCE NO. 2020-
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SECTION 4:

SECTION 5:

SECTION 6:

individually attenda Common Council meeting by way of
telephone and/or electronic audio and/or video communication,
by way of such methods, devices and equipment available and
determined to be reasonable for such purposes by the City
Department of Information Services and the IT Director. Notice
of the availability of such remote attendance by the public by
way of telephone and/or electronic audio and/or video
communication shall be stated on the agenda for the respective
meeting. All comments by persons during a Citizen Comment
Period and all comments by persons on public hearing items
during a public hearing shall be made in person in attendance at
the meeting location and not remotely. Citizens may provide
written comments upon any City related subject matter, except
for a matter which is the subject of a public hearing, to the
Clerk’s Office and/or an elected official, which comments may
then be read into the record during a Citizen Comment Period of
a Common Council meeting, provided such written comments
are received at least 24 hours prior to the publicly noticed
meeting commencement time.

The terms and provisions of this ordinance are severable. Should any
term or provision of this ordinance be found to be invalid by a court of
competent jurisdiction, the remaining terms and provisions shall remain
in full force and effect.

All ordinances and parts of ordinances in contravention to this
ordinance are hereby repealed.

This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its
passage and publication.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this

day of

, 2020, by Alderman

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of

Franklin this day of

, 2020,

APPROVED:

Stephen R. Olson, Mayor
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ATTEST:

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT



APPROVAL REQUEST FOR MEETING

COUNCIL ACTION DATE
N August 4, 2020

REPORTS AND A Resolution to Amend A Resolution in Ratification of
RECOMMENDATIONS | A Proclamation Declaring A Public Health Emergency In
Response To The Coronavirus Disease 2019 (Covid-19), _

As Amended, to Extend the Time Period of the Public é i 5 R

Health Emergency Until January 5, 2021 and to Allow

for Citizen Comment Submitted in Writing to be Read
into the Record

ITEM NUMBER

A copy of the above-entitled Resolution is annexed hereto.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

A motion to adopt A Resolution to Amend A Resolution in Ratification of A Proclamation Declaring A Public
Health Emergency In Response To The Coronavirus Disease 2019 (Covid-19), As Amended, to Extend the

Time Period of the Public Health Emergency Until January 5, 2021 and to Allow for Citizen Comment
Submitted in Writing to be Read into the Record.




STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN MILWAUKEE COUNTY
draft 7/28/20
RESOLUTION NO. 2020-

A RESOLUTION TO AMEND A RESOLUTION IN RATIFICATION OF A
PROCLAMATION DECLARING A PUBLIC HEALTH EMERGENCY
IN RESPONSE TO THE CORONAVIRUS DISEASE 2019 (COVID-19), AS AMENDED, TO
EXTEND THE TIME PERIOD OF THE PUBLIC HEALTH EMERGENCY UNTIL
JANUARY 5,2021 AND TO ALLOW FOR CITIZEN COMMENT SUBMITTED IN
WRITING TO BE READ INTO THE RECORD

WHEREAS, the Mayor issued a Proclamation Declaring a Public Health Emergency on
March 16, 2020, which was ratified and confirmed by the Common Council by Resolution No.
2020-7605 on March 17, 2020, as amended by the Common Council by Resolution No. 2020-
7609 on March 24, 2020, Resolution No. 2020-7615 on April 21, 2020, and by Resolution No.
2020-7628 on May 28, 2020; and

WHEREAS, while recognizing that Wisconsin Department of Health Services issued
Emergency Orders and COVID-19 Public Health Plan for Milwaukee County Order #1 are no
longer in effect, the Common Council substantially recognizes that a Public Health Emergency
continues to exist; and

WHEREAS, under this continuing Public Health Emergency, the Common Council
strongly urges all to follow the public health recommendations and guidelines of the Franklin
Health Department, the Wisconsin Department of Health Services, the World Health
Organization, the United States Department of Health and Human Services and the Centers for
Disease Control and Prevention.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Common Council of the
City of Franklin, Wisconsin, that the March 16, 2020 Proclamation Declaring a Public Health
Emergency, and Resolution No. 2020-7605 adopted by the Common Council on March 17, 2020
incorporating same, as amended by the Common Council by Resolution No. 2020-7609 on
March 24, 2020, Resolution No. 2020-7615 adopted by the Common Council on April 21, 2020,
Resolution No. 2020-7628 adopted by the Common Council on May 28, 2020, and by
Resolution No. 2020-7641 adopted by the Common Council on July 7, 2020, be and the same is
hereby amended to provide and declare that the duration of the Public Health Emergency is
hereby extended to January 5, 2021 at 11:59 p.m., and to allow for Citizen Comment submitted
in writing to be read into the Record, subject to any future amendments by way of Proclamation
or Resolution as may be declared or adopted by the Mayor and/or the Common Council,
respectively.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Common Council of the City of
Franklin, Wisconsin, that the aforesaid Proclamation and Resolution, as amended, be and the
same is hereby specifically amended to provide that “Citizens may provide written comments
upon any City related subject matter, except for a matter which is the subject of a public hearing,



RESOLUTION NO. 2020-
Page 2

to the Clerk’s Office and/or an elected official, which comments may then be read into the record
during a Citizen Comment Period of a Common Council meeting, provided such written
comments are received at least 24 hours prior to the publicly noticed meeting commencement
time.”

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that all of the Declarations and Resolveds in the
aforesaid Proclamation and Resolutions, not pertaining to the time of duration of the Public

Health Emergency and Citizen Comments as amended hereunder, shall remain in full force and
effect.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this

day of , 2020.
Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin
this day of , 2020.
APPROVED:

Stephen R. Olson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT



(FRANKLIN BUSINESS PARK) TO AMEND
SECTION 13.(10) OF ORDINANCE NO. 93-1279,
i.e., §15-3.0423(10), TO ALLOW THE
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
TO WAIVE DRIVEWAY SETBACKS FROM
INTERIOR LOT LINES OF A PROPERTY
ZONED PLANNED DEVELOPMENT
DISTRICT NO. 18 WHEN ABUTTING A
NEWLY CREATED BY CERTIFIED SURVEY
MAP PROPERTY ZONED PLANNED
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO. 18 AND THE
PROPERTIES SHARE AN EXISTING
DRIVEWAY

(JOHN J. MALLOY, MANAGING MEMBER
OF WISCONSIN COMMERCIAL 2015, LLC)

(AT 9750 SOUTH OAKWOOD PARK DRIVE)

APPROVAL REQUEST FOR MEETING
\,.ZZ | COUNCIL ACTION DATE
// 08/04/20
REPORTS & AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND §15-3.0423 OF | ITEM NUMBER
RECOMMENDATIONS | THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE
PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO. 18 GCov o
¥ Q¢

A motion to adopt Ordinance 2020-

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

On July 23, 2020, the Plan Commission and the Community Development Authority
(CDA) have recommended approval of this Planned Development District (PDD)
major amendment at their respective meetings, to allow the CDA to waive driveway
setbacks from interior lot lines.

, to amend §15-3.0423 of the Unified
Development Ordinance Planned Development District No. 18 (Franklin Business
Park) to amend Section 13.(10) of Ordinance No. 93-1279, i.e., §15-3.0423(10), to
allow the Community Development Authority to waive driveway setbacks from
interior lot lines of a property zoned Planned Development District No. 18 when
abutting a newly created by Certified Survey Map property zoned Planned
Development District No. 18 and the properties share an existing driveway (at 9750
South Oakwood Park Drive).

Department of City Development RMM




Planning Department . City of Frankiin Phone (414) 425 4024
9228 West Loomis Road Fax (414) 427 7691

Frankhin, Wisconsin 53132 Web Site ww v rark i a1 2oy
Email garerainigne ng@ rang » v Iov ——

Date of Application 06/10/2020

PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT (PDD) APPLICATION

Comuplete, accurate and specific information must be entered Please Print

Applicant (Full Legal Name[s]) Applicant is Represented by- {contact person)(Full Legal Name(s])
Name JohnJ Malloy Name Christopher Carr

Company Wisconsin Commercial 2015 LLC Company The Sigma Group

Mailing Address 757 N Broadway Surte 700 Mailing Address 1300 W Canal Street

City / State _Milwaukee Wi zip 53202 City / State  Milwaukee WI zip 53202
Phone (414) 588 4363 Phone (414) 643-4163

Email Address malloy12855@gmail com Email Address ccarr@thesigmagroup com

Project Property information
Property Address 9730 S Qakwood Park Drive Tax Key Nos 900 0010 005

Property Owner(s) Wisconsin Commercial 2015 LLC

Existing Zoning FDD#18

Maihng Address 757 N Broadway Surte 700 Existing Use Office, Industrial & Commercial Mixed Use
City / State Milwaukee Wi zp 53202 Proposed Use Office Industrial & Commercial Mixed Use
Email Address imalloy12855@gmail com Future Land Use Identification  Office Industral & Commercial Mixed Use

*The 2025 Comprehensive Master Plan Future Land Use Map I1s avallable at htip //www frapkimwi gov/Heme/ResourgasRacuments/Mags him

PDD submittals for review must include and be accompanied by the following
[ This Apphication form accurately completed with original signature(s) Facsimiles and coptes will not be accepted
. Application Filing Fee, payable to City of Franklin
[ $6000, PDD-New W} $3500, PDD Major Amendment [ $500, PDD Minor Amendment
W] Legal Description for the subject property (WORD doc or compatible format)
W] seven (7) complete collated sets of Application matenals to include
[i] One (1) original and six (6} copies of a written Project Summary, (description of the proposed development of the property to include the proposal’s
mtent, impacts, and consistency with the Comprehensive Master Plan, any new building construction and site work, interior/exterior building
madifications or additians to be made to property site improvement costs, estimate of project value and any other information that i1s available )
E] Three (3) folded full size, drawn to scale copies (at least 24" x 36 ') of the Site Plan, Building Elevations, Landscape Plan, Qutdoor Lighting Plan,
Natural Resource Protection Plan, etc (See Sections 15-7 0101, 15 7 0301, and 15 5 0402 of the UDO for information that must be denoted or
included with each respective plan )
W] Four (4) folded reduced size {11"x17") copies of the Site Plan package
[] 0One colored copy (11"x17") of the building elevations if applicable
[} one copy of the Site Intensity and Capacity Calculations, if applicable (see Division 15 3 0500 of the UDO)
l:l Three copies of the Natural Resource Protection Plan report, if applicable (see Section 15-4 0102 and 15-7 0201 of the UDO)
E] Email {or CO ROM) with all plans/submittal matenals Plans must be subrmitted in both Adobe PDF and AutoCAD compatible format (where applicable)

*Upon receipt of a complete submttal, staff review will be conducted within ten business days
*PDD and Major PDD Amendment requests require Plan Commission review a public hearing, and Common Council approval
*Minor PDD Amendment requests require Plan Commussion review and Common Council approval

The applicant and property owner(s) hereby certify that (1) all statements and other information submitted as part of this application are true and correct to the best
of applicant’s and property owner(s)’ knowledge (2} the applicant and property owner(s) has/have read and understand all nformation in this apphcation and (3)
the applhcant and property owner(s) agree that any approvals based on representations made by them n this Application and its submittal, and any subsequently
issued building permits or other type of permits, may be revoked without notice If there i1s a breach of such representation(s) or any condition(s) of approval By
execution of this apphication the property owner(s) authorize the City of Franklin and/or its agents to enter upon the subject property{ies) between the hours of 7 00
am and 700 pm daily for the purpose of inspection while the apphcation is under review The property owner(s) grant this authorization even If the property has
been posted agamnst trespassing pursuant to Wis Stat §943 13

(The applicant’s signature must be from a Managing Member If the business is an LLC, ar from the President or Vice Pre},ident if the business is a corporation. A

signed applicant’s authorizatio lettgrfmay be provided in lieu of the applicant’s signature below, arld a signeq' p?qepert‘/ owner’s authorization letter may be
pravi%'ed ipieu of tlie pro7-§' >/ owier’s signature[s] below If more than ane, all of the oy ne[s/q}' the prq pertwfrl_wit sign this Application).
: ’ o oA Vol 7 £ N
T A . N —

;i;nat_)re Praperty wner ( ) Signa ure Applicakt ——

John J Malloy Managing Member ~ ,Jaobn | Malloy Managing Memb
Ngme & Title (PRINT) 06/ 107702 Nagre & Title (PRINT)

/1072020 > 5

~ Date - Date 06/10/2020
Signature Property Owner Signature  Applicant's Representative
Name & Title {PRINT) Name & Title {PRINT)

Date Date




STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN MILWAUKEE COUNTY
[D, i T T 20)
ORDINANCE NO 2020-

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND §15-3.0423 OF THE UNIFIED
DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE PLANNED DEVELOPMENT
DISTRICT NO 18 (FRANKLIN BUSINESS PARK) TO AMEND SECTION
13.(10) OF ORDINANCE NO. 93-1279, 1 e, §15-3.0423(10), TO ALLOW THE
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY TO WAIVE DRIVEWAY
SETBACKS FROM INTERIOR LOT LINES OF A PROPERTY ZONED
PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO. 18 WHEN ABUTTING
A NEWLY CREATED BY CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP PROPERTY
ZONED PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO 18 AND THE
PROPERTIES SHARE AN EXISTING DRIVEWAY
(JOHN J. MALLOY, MANAGING MEMBER OF
WISCONSIN COMMERCIAL 2015, LLC)

(AT 9750 SOUTH OAKWOOD PARK DRIVE)

WHEREAS, §15-3 0423 of the Unified Development Ordinance provides for
and regulates Planned Development District No. 18 (Franklin Business Park), same
having been created by Ordinance No 93-1279 and later amended by Ordinance Nos
1997-1437, 2000-1627, 2003-1743, 2005-1851, 2012-2094 and 2015-2196; and

WHEREAS, Planned Development District No. 18 (Franklin Business Park)
currently includes those lands legally described as follows-

PARCEL 3 OF CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO 6566, RECORDED
SEPTEMBER 29, 1998, AS DOCUMENT NO 7607434, IN THE NE 1/4
AND SE 1/4 OF THE NE 1/4 OF SECTION 26, TOWN 5 NORTH,
RANGE 21 EAST, CITY OF FRANKLIN, COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE,
STATE OF WISCONSIN Tax Key No 900-0010-005, and

WHEREAS, John J. Malloy, managing member of Wisconsin Commercial
2015, LLC, having petittoned for a further amendment to Planned Development
District No 18 (Franklin Business Park) to allow the Community Development
Authority to waive driveway setbacks from interior lot lines of a property zoned
Planned Development District No 18 when abutting another newly created by
certified survey map property zoned Planned Development District No. 18 and the
properties share an existing driveway [this application ts 1in conjunction with a
proposed Certified Survey Map to subdivide the property at 9750 South Oakwood
Park Drive into two separate lots application], and

WHEREAS, the subject petition was before the Community Development
Authority on July 23, 2020, the Authority having recommended approval thereof to



ORDINANCE NO 2020-
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the Common Council 1n conjunction with its and the Plan Commussion’s conditional
approval of a Certified Survey Map for the Wisconsin Commercial 2015, LLC
driveway setbacks from nterior lot lines and land division project, and

WHEREAS, the City of Franklin Plan Commission on the 23rd day of July,
2020, having reviewed the proposed amendment to Planned Development District No
18 and thereafter having recommended to the Common Council that the proposed
amendment be approved subject to the conditions and restrictions included herewith,
and

WHEREAS, the Common Council having considered the petition and having
concurred with the recommendation of the Community Development Authority and
Plan Commussion and having determined that the proposed amendment to Planned
Development District No. 18 (Franklin Business Park) 1s consistent with the 2025
Comprehensive Master Plan of the City of Franklin, Wisconsin and will serve to
further orderly growth and development and promote the health, safety and weltare of
the Community

NOW, THEREFORE, the Mayor and Common Council of the City of
Franklin, Wisconsin, do ordain as follows.

SECTION 1 §15-3.0423 Planned Development District No. 18 (Franklin
Business Park) of the Unified Development Ordinance of the
City of Franklin 1s hereby amended to add the following as a
separate paragraph at the end of the Subsection (10) existing
text.

"The driveway setback “Not abuting a public right-of-way
provisions of Subsection (10) herein shall not apply to abutting
properties which have been divided by an approved by the City
certified survey map, which abutting properties share an existing
driveway mmprovement upon the property to be divided,
depicted upon the certified survey map as approved, with an
approximately equal area of such existing driveway being
located on each of the abutting properties. Additionally, the
driveway setback "Abutting any public right-of-way™. "Abutting
Franklin Drive™ and "Abutting West Ryan Road™ provisions of
Subsection (10) herein, respectively, as applicable to the subject
aforesaid abutting properties, shall not apply to the aforesaid
abutting properties m the area of the shared existing driveway
improvement where 1t enters a public rnight-of-way The
aforesaid existing driveway setback non-applicability provisions



ORDINANCE NO 2020-

Page 3

SECTION 2.

SECTION 3

SECTION 4.

SECTION 5.

are subject to the approval thereof by way of the 1ssuance of a
waiver of the stated Subsection (10) provisions by the
Community Development Authority, upon its review and
recommendation process of the subject certified survey map,
and any site and building plan(s) applicable thereto Any final
approval by the Common Council of the subject certified survey
map, additionally following the review and recommendation of
the Plan Commuission, shall be conditioned upon the execution
and recording of a shared driveway easement binding the
owner(s) of the aforesaid abutting properties, respective heirs,
successors and assigns "

All other applicable terms and provisions of §15-3 0423 Planned
Development District No 18 (Franklin Business Park) not
mnconsistent with the terms of this Ordinance, and the Untified
Development Ordinance of the City of Franklin, as amended
from time to tume, shall apply to the Wisconsin Commercial
2015, LLC drveway setbacks from nterior lot lines and land
division project and propert(ies) currently both located at 9750
South Oakwood Park Drive, and all Planned Development
District No 18 (Franklin Business Park) properties, and all
terms and provisions of §15-3 0423 Planned Development
District No. 18 (Franklin Business Park) as existing immediately
prior to the adoption of this Ordinance and not amended by this
Ordinance, shall rematn in full force and effect

The terms and provisions of this ordinance are severable
Should any term or provision of this ordinance be found to be
invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining terms
and provisions shall remain i full force and eftect

All ordinances and parts of ordinances 1n contravention to this
ordinance are hereby repealed

This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after
1ts passage and publication.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of

Franklin this

day of , 2020, by Alderman

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of
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Franklin this day of , 2020

APPROVED

Stephen R Olson, Mayor
ATTEST

Sandra L Wesolowskt, City Clerk

AYES  NOES  ABSENT



@ CITY OF FRANKLIN €5 Item C.3
REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION

Meeting of July 23, 2020

PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT AMENDMENT AND CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP

RECOMMENDATION: City Development Staff recommends approval of the Planned Development
District and Certified Survey Map applications for property located at 9720- 9750 S Oakwood Park Drive

Project Name: Wisconsin Commercial 2015, LLC Planned Development District
Amendment (major) and Certified Survey Map

Project Address/Tax Key: 9750 S Oakwood Park Drive/900 0010 005

Property Owner: Wisconsin Commercial 2015, LLC

Applicant: Wisconsin Commercial 2015, LLC

Current Zoning: Planned Development District No 18

2025 Comprehensive Plan: Commercial

Action Requested: Recommendation of approval of the proposed PDD Amendment

Application and Certified Survey Map

PROJECT DESCRIPTION/ANALYSIS

The applicant filed a Planned Development District Amendment and Certified Survey Map requesting to
subdivide the property located at 9750 S Oakwood Park Drive

The proposed Certified Survey Map subdivides the existing parcel nto two separate lots The property 1s
proposed to be divided 1n half with Lot 1 having an area of 3 876 acres and Lot 2 having an area of 3 874
acres

The property 1s currently developed with two buildings that share an access and loading area The applicant
1s proposing the land division 1n order to sell the southern parcel, Lot 2

PDD No 18 currently requires a 15-foot parking and driveway setback from property lines that are not
abutting a public right-of-way' The CSM results in driveway and parking setbacks that cross the proposed
property line (1 e a zero foot setback) Therefore, the CSM application was filed concurrently with a PDD
Amendment Application that would allow the CDA to waive driveway and parking setbacks from mterior
property lines

More specifically, the applicant 1s requesting to amend Section 15-3 0423 of the Unified Development
Ordinance Planned Development District No 18 (Franklin Business Park) to amend Section 13 (10) of
Ordinance No 93-1279 to insert the language below at the end of the “Parking and Driveway Setbacks™
section
"The driveway setbach “Not abutting a public right-ot-way provisions of Subsection (10) herein
shall not apply to abutting properties which have been divided by an approved by the City certified
survey map, which abutting properties share an existing driveway improvement upon the property
to be divided, depicted upon the certified survey map as approved  (see Section 1 of attached
draft Ordinance for full text)

! One side yard may be less than 15 feet it that side yard 1s at least 10 feet and both side yards together are at least 30 teet



Note there are no extertor site or building changes proposed In addition, each building and lot conform to
current PDD No 18 standards, except for the driveway and parking lot setback as discussed above

It can also be noted that stmilar language to waive butlding and parking setbacks tfrom mterior property
lines can be tound n the B-3 Commumnity Business District and the OL-2 General Business Overlay

District

RECOMMENDATION

A motion to determme the proposed amendment to Planned Development District No 10 to be a major
amendment

A motion to recommend approval of the Planned Development District Amendment
A motion to recommend approval of the Certified Survey Map, subject to the approval of the concurrently

submitted Planned Development District Amendment Application and recording of the cross-access
casement with the Milwaukee County Register of Deeds

(3]



City of Franklin
Department of City Development

Date: June 29, 2020
To.  JohnJ Malloy. Wisconsin Commercial 2015, LLC

From Department of City Development Staff

RE-  Applications for Major Planned Development District (PDD) amendment and
Certified Survey Map (CSM) — 9720-9750 Oakwood Park Drive

Below are comments and recommendations for the proposed Planned Development
District Amendment and Certified Survey Map submitted by Wisconsin Commerctal
2015, LLC for property located at 9720-9750 S Oakwood Park Drive.

Department of City Development comments

| Per Section 15-7 0702 of the UDO, please show correctly on the face of the CSM, 1n addition
to the information required by § 236 34 of the Wisconsmn Statutes, the following
a. Owner, Subdivider, Land Surveyor. Name and address of the owner,
Subdivider, and Land Surveyor
b. Existing Zoning. The Certified Survey Map shall indicate on 1ts face the
current zoning and zoning boundary lines of all parcels, lots or outlots
proposed to be created by the Certified Survey Map.
2. Please confirm that the Land/Building Ratio requirement of the PDD No. 18 (below)
is met
“No more than 75 percent of any site shall be covered with buildings, surface
pavement or other covering materials which are impervious to surface water
absorption.”
Please provide a draft copy of the shared drive/cross-access easement.
4. Per the Declaration of Protective Covenants for Franklin Business Park section 21
Right to Re-Subdivide, a re-subdivision shall not be permitted without prior approval
by the Association and the CDA. Approval e-mail received on June 25, 2020.

(O8]

Engineering Department comments

5 The proposed PDD Amendment must be approved first before the approval of this
proposal

6 Prepare water main easement for the existing hydrants within the property for the

Cuty of Frankhn to take over for its maintenance The easement must be submutted for

the City s review and approval This easement should also be depicted on this

proposal

Vust resolve any technical issues dentified by the Miwaukee County

8 There ts a private storm drainage system between the two buildings They need to
show that on the proposed certified survey map Please send us a copy of the
maintenance agreement of the storm drainage system



Regulo Martinez-Montilva

From: Joe A Bukovich <jbukovich@pointre com>
Sent: Wednesday, July 15, 2020 2 20 PM

To: Regulo Martinez-Montilva

Cc: Heath Eddy, Jesse Wesolowski

Subject: RE Franklin Business Park Association

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Completed

Dear Regulo,

The Review Board has no objection to amending the PDD per the planning recommendation attached to your original
email

Thank you,
Joe

Joseph A. Bukovich, P.E.
Vice President Development
MLG Capital

19000 W. Bluemound Road
Brookfield, W1 53045

(262) 424-5997 (mobile)
(414) 908-9157 (fax)

3()+ MLG Capital

-

Yoy | Real Estate Investments

From: Regulo Martinez-Montilva <RMartinez-Montilva@franklinwi gov>

Sent: Wednesday, July 15, 2020 8 51 AM

To: Joe A Bukovich <jbukovich@pointre com>

Cc: Heath Eddy <HEddy@franklinwi gov>; Jesse Wesolowski <jweslaw@aol com>
Subject: FW Franklin Business Park Association

Good morning Joe,

Per your e-mail below, the Review Board has no comments about the CSM for 9720-9750 S Oakwood Park Drive
However, the e-mail is silent about the concurrent Planned Development District (PDD) amendment, do you have any
comments about the proposed amendment? See attached report {bottom of page 1) for proposed language and
additional information

Thank you,

Régulo Martinez-Montilva, AICP

Associate Planner - Department of City Development
City of Franklin

9229 W Loomis Road



Franklin, W| 53132

Phone (414) 425-4024 [/ 427-7564
RMartinez Montilva@franklinwi gov

“ Franklin

From: John Malloy <imalloy12855@gmail com>

Sent: Thursday, June 25, 2020 4 07 PM

To: Regulo Martinez-Montilva <RMartinez-Montilva@franklinwi gov>
Subject: Fwd Franklin Business Park Association

Regulo, please see below for approval from the Association
Thanks
John

---------- Forwarded message ---------

From Joe A Bukovich <jbukovich@pointre com>
Date Thu, Jun 25, 2020 at 11 05 AM

Subject RE Franklin Business Park Association
To John Malloy <jmalloy12855@gmail com>

CC Barry S Chavin <Barry Chavin@ngkf com>

Good Morning John,

On behalf of the Franklin Business Park Association Review Board, please accept this email as the Boards’s approval to
subdivide Parcel 3 of CSM No 6566 in accordance with the attached draft csm

Thank you,

Joe

Joseph A. Bukovich, P.E.
Vice President Development
MLG Capaital

19000 W Bluemound Road

Brookheld WI 53045

(262) 424-5997 (mobile)



APPROVAL REQUEST FOR MEETING

COUNCIL ACTION DATE
08/04/20
REPORTS & A RESOLUTION CONDITIONALLY ITEM NUMBER

APPROVING A 2 LOT CERTIFIED SURVEY

RECOMMENDATIONS | ™" \{AP, BEING PARCEL 3 OF CERTIFIED
SURVEY MAP NO. 6566, RECORDED G, 7 ‘

SEPTEMBER 29, 1998, AS DOCUMENT NO.

7607434, IN THE NE 1/4 AND SE 1/4 OF THE
NE 1/4 OF SECTION 26, TOWN 5 NORTH,
RANGE 21 EAST, CITY OF FRANKLIN,
COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE, STATE OF
WISCONSIN

(WISCONSIN COMMERCIAL 2015, LLC)
(9750 SOUTH OAKWOOD PARK DRIVE)

On July 23, 2020, the Plan Commission and the Community Development Authority
(CDA) have recommended approval of this Certified Survey Map (CSM) at their
respective meetings, conditioned upon the adoption of an ordinance to amend the
Planned Development District No. 18 (Franklin Business Park), section 13.(10) of

Ordinance No. 93-1279, to allow the CDA to waive driveway setbacks from interior
lot lines.

Additionally, the CDA carried the following motion to waive the interior parking

setbacks:
A motion to provide that upon its review and recommendation of approval of
the certified survey map application of Wisconsin Commercial 2015, LLC, the
Authority hereby waives the applicable setbacks requirements provisions of
§15-3.0423 Subsection (10) Planned Development District No. 18 of the
Unified Development Ordinance, to allow for the division and development of
the land to be divided by the certified survey map, subject to the approval by
the Common Council of the Planned Development District No. 18 Subsection

(10) Ordinance Amendment and the Certified Survey Map applications before
the Authority at this meeting.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

A motion to adopt Resolution 2020- , conditionally approving a 2 lot
certified survey map, being parcel 3 of certified survey map no. 6566, recorded
September 29, 1998, as document no. 7607434, in the NE 1/4 and SE 1/4 of the NE
1/4 of Section 26, Town 5 North, Range 21 East, City of Franklin, County of

Milwaukee, State of Wisconsin (Wisconsin Commercial 2015, LLC) (9750 South
Oakwood Park Drive).

Department of City Development RMM




STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN MILWAUKEE COUNTY
[Draft 7-15-20]
RESOLUTION NO. 2020-

A RESOLUTION CONDITIONALLY APPROVING A 2 LOT CERTIFIED SURVEY
MAP, BEING PARCEL 3 OF CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO. 6566, RECORDED
SEPTEMBER 29, 1998, AS DOCUMENT NO. 7607434, IN THE NE 1/4 AND SE 1/4
OF THE NE 1/4 OF SECTION 26, TOWN 5 NORTH, RANGE 21 EAST, CITY OF
FRANKLIN, COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE, STATE OF WISCONSIN
(WISCONSIN COMMERCIAL 2015, LLC)

(9750 SOUTH OAKWOOD PARK DRIVE)

WHEREAS, the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, having received an application for
approval of a certified survey map, such map being Parcel 3 of Certified Survey Map No.
6566, recorded September 29, 1998, as Document No. 7607434, in the NE 1/4 and SE 1/4 of
the NE 1/4 of Section 26, Town 5 North, Range 21 East, City of Franklin, County of
Milwaukee, State of Wisconsin, more specifically, of the property located at 9750 South
Oakwood Park Drive, bearing Tax Key No. 900-0010-005, Wisconsin Commercial 2015,
LLC, applicant; said certified survey map having been reviewed by the City Plan
Commission and the Community Development Authority and the Plan Commission and the
Community Development Authority having recommended approval thereof pursuant to
certain conditions; and

WHEREAS, the Common Council having reviewed such application and Plan
Commission and Community Development Authority recommendation and the Common
Council having determined that such proposed certified survey map is appropriate for
approval pursuant to law upon certain conditions.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Common Council of
the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, that the Certified Survey Map submitted by Wisconsin
Commercial 2015, LLC, as described above, be and the same is hereby approved, subject to
the following conditions:

1. That any and all objections made and corrections required by the City of Franklin, by
Milwaukee County, and by any and all reviewing agencies, shall be satisfied and
made by the applicant, prior to recording.

2. That all land development and building construction permitted or resulting under this
Resolution shall be subject to impact fees imposed pursuant to §92-9. of the
Municipal Code or development fees imposed pursuant to §15-5.0110 of the Unified
Development Ordinance, both such provisions being applicable to the development
and building permitted or resulting hereunder as it occurs from time to time, as such
Code and Ordinance provisions may be amended from time to time.



WISCONSIN COMMERCIAL 2015, LLC — CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP
RESOLUTION NO. 2020-

Page 2

3.

Each and any easement shown on the Certified Survey Map shall be the subject of
separate written grant of easement instrument, in such form as provided within the
City of Franklin Design Standards and Construction Specifications and such form
and content as may otherwise be reasonably required by the City Engineer or
designee to further and secure the purpose of the easement, and all being subject to
the approval of the Common Council, prior to the recording of the Certified Survey
Map.

Wisconsin Commercial 2015, LLC, successors and assigns and any developer of the 2
lot certified survey map project shall pay to the City of Franklin the amount of all
development compliance, inspection and review fees incurred by the City of Franklin,
including fees of consults to the City of Franklin, for the 2 lot certified survey map
project, within 30 days of invoice for same. Any violation of this provision shall be a
violation of the Unified Development Ordinance, and subject to §15-9.0502 thereof
and §1-19. of the Municipal Code, the general penalties and remedies provisions, as
amended from time to time.

. The approval granted hereunder is conditional upon Wisconsin Commercial 2015,

LLC and the 2 lot certified survey map project for the property located at 9750 South
Oakwood Park Drive: (i) being in compliance with all applicable governmental laws,
statutes, rules, codes, orders and ordinances; and (ii) obtaining all other governmental
approvals, permits, licenses and the like, required for and applicable to the project to
be developed and as presented for this approval.

. The approval granted hereunder is conditional upon the adoption of an ordinance to

amend §15-3.0423 of the Unified Development Ordinance Planned Development
District No. 18 (Franklin Business Park) to amend section 13.(10) of Ordinance No.
93-1279, i.e., §15-3.0423(10), to allow the Community Development Authority to
waive driveway setbacks from interior lot lines of a property zoned Planned
Development District No. 18 when abutting a newly created by Certified Survey Map
property zoned Planned Development District No. 18 and the properties share an
existing driveway.

The applicant shall submit a written shared driveway easement, for City staff review
and Common Council approval. The shared driveway easement shall be recorded with
the Milwaukee County Register of Deeds Office concurrently with recording of the
Certified Survey Map.

The applicant shall address and satisfy the Engineering Department comments in staff
memorandum dated June 29, 2020, for Engineering Department review and approval,
prior to the recording of the Certified Survey Map.



WISCONSIN COMMERCIAL 2015, LLC — CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP
RESOLUTION NO. 2020-
Page 3

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Certified Survey Map, certified by owner,
Wisconsin Commercial LLC, be and the same is hereby rejected without final approval and
without any further action of the Common Council, if any one, or more than one of the above
conditions is or are not met and satisfied within 180 days from the date of adoption of this
Resolution.

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that upon the satisfaction of the above conditions
within 180 days of the date of adoption of this Resolution, same constituting final approval,
and pursuant to all applicable statutes and ordinances and lawful requirements and
procedures for the recording of a certified survey map, the City Clerk is hereby directed to
obtain the recording of the Certified Survey Map, certified by owner, Wisconsin Commercial
LLC, with the Office of the Register of Deeds for Milwaukee County.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this

day of , 2020.
Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of
Franklin this day of , 2020.
APPROVED:

Stephen R. Olson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT



€ CITY OF FRANKLIN &5 Item C.3
REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION

Meeting of July 23, 2020

PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT AMENDMENT AND CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP

RECOMMENDATION: City Development Staff recommends approval of the Planned Development
District and Certified Survey Map applications tor property located at 9720- 9750 S Oakwood Park Diive

Project Name: Wisconsin Commercial 2015, LLC Planned Development District
Amendment (major) and Certified Survey Map

Project Address/Tax Key: 9750 S Oakwood Park Drive/900 0010 005

Property Owner: Wisconsin Commercial 2015, LLC

Applicant: Wisconsin Commercial 2015, LLC

Current Zoning: Planned Development District No 18

2025 Comprehensive Plan: Commercial

Action Requested: Recommendation of approval ot the proposed PDD Amendment

Application and Certtfied Survey Map

PROJECT DESCRIPTION/ANALYSIS

The applicant filed a Planned Development District Amendment and Certified Survey Map requesting to
subdivide the property located at 9750 S Oakwood Park Drive

The proposed Certified Survey Map subdivides the existing parcel into two separate lots The property 1s
proposed to be divided in halt with Lot 1 having an area ot 3 876 acres and Lot 2 having an area of 3 8§74
acres

The property s currently developed with two buildings that share an access and loading area The applicant
1s proposing the land drvision in order to sell the southern parcel, Lot 2

PDD No 18 currently requires a 15-foot parking and driveway setback from property lines that are not
abutting a public right-of-way' The CSM results in driveway and parking setbacks that cross the proposed
property line (1 ¢ a zero foot setback) Therefore, the CSM application was filed concurrently with a PDD
Amendment Application that would allow the CDA to warve driveway and parking setbacks from intertor
property lines

More specitically, the applicant 1s requesting to amend Section 15-3 0423 of the Unified Development
Ordinance Planned Development District No 18 (Franklin Business Park) to amend Section 13 (10) of
Ordinance No 93-1279 to msert the language below at the end of the ~Parking and Driveway Setbacks™
section
"The driveway setback “Not abutting a public nght-ot-way provistons of Subsection (10) heremn
shall not apply to abutting properties which have been divided by an approved by the City certified
survey map, which abutting properties share an existing driveway improvement upon the property
to be divided, depicted upon the certified survey map as approved  (see Section 1 of attached
draft Ordinance for full text)

' One side yard may be less than 15 feet 1f that side yard 15 at least 10 feet and both side yards together are at least 30 feet



Note there are no extertor site or building changes proposed In addition, each building and lot conform to
current PDD No 18 standards, except for the driveway and parking lot setback as discussed abosve

[t can also be noted that similar language to waive building and parking setbacks from nterior property
lines can be found in the B-3 Community Business District and the OL-2 General Business Overlay

Dastrict

RECOMMENDATION

A motion to determne the proposed amendment to Planned Development District No 10 to be a major
amendment

A motion to recommend approval of the Planned Development District Amendment
A motion to recommend approval ot the Certified Survey Map, subject to the appioval ot the concurrently

submitted Planned Development District Amendment Apphication and recording of the cross-access
easement with the Milwaukee County Register of Deeds

8]
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Regulo Martinez-Montilva

From: John Malloy <jmalloy12855@gmail com>

Sent: Wednesday, July 8, 2020 3 21 PM

To: Regulo Martinez-Montilva

Cc: Heath Eddy, Gall Olsen, Chavin, Barry, Chnistopher Carr; Adam J Tuta)

Subject: Re Staff comments - Major PDD amendment and CSM / 9720-9750 S Oakwood Park Dr
Attachments: CSM REVISED pdf

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

Regulo, attached is the revised CSM, reflecting the changes requested by the Department of City Development In
comment 1 in your correspondence dated lune 29, 2020 |n addition, in response to comment 2, our engineernng firm
has confirmed that the Land/Building Ration requirement of the PDD No 18 1s met, 1 e no more than 75% of the site 1s
covered with buildings, surface pavement or other covering materials which are impervious to surface water
absorption Our counsel is putting the finishing touches on the draft of the shared drive/cross-access easement, and |
will share that with you as soon as 1t is available

in regards to the Engineerning Department comments, we will provide a water main easement that follows the template
provided by the City While we have the location of the hydrants on the survey, we do not have records of the water
main Can the City provide plans and/or locate the water man in the field in order for us to create the exhibits?
Thanks

John

On Mon, lun 29, 2020 at 11.29 AM Regulo Martinez-Montilva <RMartinez Montilva@franklinwi gov> wrote

John,

I have attached staff comments regarding your Major Planned Development District (PDD) amendment and Certified
Survey Map (CSM) applications. These applications are tentatively scheduled for the July 23, 2020, Pian Commussion and
Community Development Authority meetings; and August 4, Common Council meeting. The Department of City
Development prepares packets for each meeting, so the applicant needs to submit revised application materials as
follows:

o Plan Commission meeting, please submit 12 paper coptes and 1 electronic copy by July 13
s Community Development Authority (CDA), please submit 12 paper copies by July 13

s Common Councif meeting, resubmittal not required

Plans should be folded to 8.5” x 11", Plan Commussion meets at 7:00 p.m., CDA at 6:00 p.m. and Common Council at
6.30 p.m.

Feel free to call me if you have questions.

Regards,



Régulo Martinez-Montilva, AICP

Assoclate Planner - Department of Gity Development
City of Frankhn

9229 W Loomis Road

Frankhn, W1 53132

Phone (414) 425-4024 [ 427-7564

RMartinez Montilva@franklinwi gov

“ Franklin

JohnJ Malloy

Managing Member

Wisconsin Commercial 2015 LLC
(414) 588-4363
ymalloy12855@gmail.com
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CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO.

PARCEL 3 OF CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO 6566 RECORDED SEPTEMBER 29 1998 AS DOCUMENT NO 7607434 IN THE NE
1/4 AND SE 1/4 OF THE NE 1/4 OF SECTION 26 TOWN 5 NORTH RANGE 21 EAST CITY OF FRANKLIN COUNTY OF
MILWAUKEE STATE OF WISCONSIN
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CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO.

PARCEL 3 OF CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO 6566 RECORDED SEPTEMBER 29 1998 AS DOCUMENT NO 7607434 IN THE NE
1/4 AND SE 1/4 OF THE NE 1/4 OF SECTION 26 TOWN 5 NORTH RANGE 21 EAST CITY OF FRANKLIN COUNTY OF
MILWAUKEE STATE OF WISCONSIN

SURVEYOR S CERTIFICATE

STATE OF WISCONSIN)
SS

MILWAUKEE COUNTY)

| Baiba M Rozite a Professional Land Surveyor certify

That | have surveyed divided and mapped

PARCEL 3 OF CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO 6566, RECORDED SEPTEMBER 29, 1998, AS DOCUMENT
NQ. 7607434, IN THE NE 1/4 AND SE 1/4 OF THE NE 1/4 OF SECTION 26 TOWN 5 NORTH, RANGE 21 EAST,
CITY OF FRANKLIN, COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE, STATE OF WISCONSIN

Said parcel contains 337 610 square feet or 7 750 acres of land more or less

That } have made the survey land division and map by the direction of the owner of said land

That the map ts a correct representation of all the exterior boundaries of the land surveyed and the land
division thereof made

That 1 have fully complied with section 236 34 of the Wisconsin Statutes and the Unified Development
Ordmance Dwision - 15 of the Crty of Franklin in surveying dividing and mapping the same

BAIBAM ROZITE PLS 2351 DATE

CITY OF FRANKLIN COMMON COUNCIL APPROVAL

Approved and accepted by the Common Counclil of the City of Franklin by Resolution No

Signed this day of

Signature Signature
Stephen Olson Mayor Sandra L Wesolowsk! City Clerk
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CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO.

PARCEL 3 OF CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO 6566 RECORDED SEPTEMBER 29 1998 AS DOCUMENT NO 7607434 IN THE NE
1/4 AND SE 1/4 OF THE NE 1/4 OF SECTION 26 TOWN 5 NORTH RANGE 21 EAST CITY OF FRANKLIN COUNTY OF
MILWAUKEE STATE OF WISCONSIN

OWNER S CERTIFICATE

Wisconsin Commercial 2015 LLC a Wisconsin imited liabiity company duly organized and existing under and by
virtue of the laws of the State of Wisconsin as owner certifies that said entity caused the land descnbed on this
certified survey map to be surveyed divided mapped and dedicated as represented on this certified survey map in
accordance with the requirements of Chapter 236 of the Wisconsin Statutes and the Unified Development Ordinance
Division - 15 of the City of Franklin

This agreement is binding on the undersigned and successors and assigns

Date

Wisconsin Commercial LLC
By Wisconsin Commercial 2015 LLC its sole member

Signature

Type or Print Name  John Malloy

Title _Managing Member

STATE OF )
)SS
COUNTY)

Personally came before me this ___day of , 20 John Malloy Managing Member of Wisconsin
Commercral 2015_LLC to me known to be the person who executed the foregoing instrument and acknowledged
that they executed the foregoing instrument as such officer on behalf of the entity by its authonty

Notary Signature

Print Notary Name

Notary Public State of My commission expires

(Notary Seal)
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CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO.

PARCEL 3 OF CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO 6566 RECORDED SEPTEMBER 29 1998 AS DOCUMENT NO 7607434 IN THE NE
1/4 AND SE 1/4 OF THE NE 1/4 OF SECTION 26 TOWN 5 NORTH RANGE 21 EAST CITY OF FRANKLIN COUNTY OF
MILWAUKEE STATE OF WISCONSIN

MORTGAGEE'S CERTIFICATE OF CONSENT

TOWN BANK, NA A CORPORATION DULY ORGANIZED AND EXISTING UNDER AND BY VIRTUE OF THE LAWS OF THE
STATEQF ___ , MORTGAGEE OF THE HEREIN DESCRIBED LAND DOES HEREBY CONSENT TO THE
SURVEYING DIVIDING AND MAPPING OF THE LAND AS REPRESENTED ON THIS MAP AND DOES HEREBY CONSENT TO
THE ABOVE CERTIFICATE OF WISCONSIN COMMERCIAL 2015 LLC OWNER

IN WITNESS WHEREOF THE SAID TOWN BANK HAS CAUSED THESE PRESENTS TO BE SIGNED BY ITS
, THIS __ DAY OF , 20

SIGNATURE

STATE OF WISCONSIN)

1SS
MILWAUKEE COUNTY)
PERSONALLY CAME BEFORE ME THIS _ DAY OF , 20 . - . TOME KNOWN TO BE THE
PERSON WHO EXECUTED THE FOREGOING INSTRUMENT AND TO ME KNOWN TO BE THE OF

TOWN BANK AND ACKNOWLEDGED THAT THEY EXECUTED THE FOREGOING INSTRUMENT BY ITS AUTHORITY

(SEAL) NOTARY PUBLIC STATE OF WISCONSIN
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES
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WISCONSIN COMMERCIAL 2015, LLC
PROJECT SUMMARY
JUNE 2020

Wisconstn Commercial, LLC 1s the owner of the property at 9720-9750 S. Oakwood Park Drive in
Frankiin, Wl (“Property”), having acquired the Property in Aprt 2007 Wisconsin Commercial 2015 LLC
is the sole Member of Wisconsin Commercial, LLC The Property resides within the boundaries of
Planned Development District No 18 (“PDD No 18”)

The Property 1s comprised of two mirror-image buildings, each approximately 54,400 SF in size The
North Building is located at 9720 S Qakwood Park Drive, and the South Building 1s located at 9750 S
Oakwood Drive Each building has its own parking lot accessible off Oakwood Park Drive the North
Building’s parking lot to the north side of that building, and the South Building’s parking lot to the south
side of that building The buildings share a truck court in between the two buildings

In early 2020, a potential Buyer contacted the Broker for Wisconsin Commercial, LLC, indicating that
they needed up to 40,000 SF of contiguous space to relocate warehouse and distribution operations
currently mamtained elsewhere n the Crty of Milwaukee The Buyer, a regional distributor of passenger
and light truck tires, as well as agricultural, industnal and specialty tires, indicated that their strong
preference was to own the building they would occupy After touring properties throughout the metro
Milwaukee area, they concluded that the South Building best met its needs

Wisconsin Commercial 2015, LLC and the Buyer have a fully-executed Offer To Purchase {(“OTP”) for the
South Bullding that contemplates that the Property would be sphit down the middle of the truck court
that is between the North and South Buildings The result would be that each building would retain its
separate parking lot, with the truck court being shared subject to an easement entered into by the
parties on or before closing of the sale The easement will address, among other things, City of Franlklin
prohibitions on outdoor storage and the hke. A new Certified Survey Map would be completed by The
Sigma Group for purposes of separating the parcels into two When the parcels are split in the middle
of the truck court, we will end up with 0’ pavement setback on the interior line in this location.

Representatives of Wisconsin Commercial 2015, LLC have been in contact with City of Franklin Planning
Department since the OTP was executed and, along with a representative of The Sigma Group,
participated n a pre-application conference call on June 8, 2020



City of Franklin
Department of City Development

Date:  June 29, 2020

To:

Fro

RE.

John J. Malloy. Wisconsin Commercial 2013, LLC
m. Department of City Development Staff

Applications for Major Planned Development District (PDD) amendment and
Certified Survey Map (CSM) — 9720-9750 Oakwood Park Drive

Bel

ow are comments and recommendations for the proposed Planned Development

District Amendment and Certified Survey Map submitted by Wisconsin Commercial

201

5, LLC for property located at 9720-9750 S Oakwood Park Drive.

Department of City Development comments

!

(™)

Per Section 15-7 0702 of the UDO, please show correctly on the face of the CSM, in addition
to the mformation required by § 236.34 of the Wisconsin Statutes, the following
a. Owner, Subdivider, Land Surveyor. Name and address of the owner,

Subdivider, and Land Surveyor
b. Existing Zoning. The Certified Survey Map shall indicate on its face the

current zoning and zoning boundary lines of all parcels, lots or outlots
proposed to be created by the Certified Survey Map.

Please confirm that the Land/Building Ratio requirement of the PDD No. 18 (below)

is met
“No more than 75 percent of any site shall be covered with buildings, surface
pavement or other covering materials which are impervious to surface water
absorption.”

Please provide a draft copy of the shared drive/cross-access easement

Per the Declaration of Protective Covenants for Franklin Business Park section 21

Right to Re-Subdivide, a re-subdivision shall not be permitted without prior approval

by the Association and the CDA. Approval e-mail received on June 25, 2020.

Engineering Department comments

5

The proposed PDD Amendment must be approved first before the approval of this
proposal

Prepare water main easement for the existing hydrants within the property for the
City of Franklin to take over for its maintenance The easement must be submutted for
the Cuty s review and approval This easement should also be depicted on this
proposal

Vust resolve any technical issues identified by the Milwaukee County

There 1s a private storm drainage system between the two buildings They need to
show that on the proposed certified survey map Please send us a copy of the
maintenance agreement of the storm drainage s) stem



Planning Department

9229 West Loomis Road

Franklin Wisconsm 53132

Emall generalplanning@frankiinwi gov

Phone (414} 425 4024
Fax {414)427 7651
Web Site www franklinwi gov

City of Franklin

e

Date of Application 06/10/2020

CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP (CSM) APPLICATION

Complete, accurate and specific information must be entered Pleage Print.

Apphicant [Full Legal Name(s]) Applicant is Represented by (contact person}(Full Legal Name[s])
Name  JohnJMalloy Name Chnistopher Carr

Company _ WWisconsin Commercial 2015 LLC Company __ The Sigma Group

Mailing Address /57 N Broadway Suite 700 Mailing Address __ 1300 W Canal Street

City / state _Milwaukee, WI Zp _ 53202 City / State __Milwaukee, W1 Zip 53202
Phone _ (414)588-4363 Phone _ (414) 643 4163

Jmalloy12855@gmail com

Email Address Email Address _ccarr@thesigmagroup com

Project Property Information

Property Address _ 9720-9750 Oakwood Drive 900-0010-005

Tax Key Nos

Property Owner(s) _Wisconsin Commeraial 2015 LLC

Existing Zomng _ PDD#18
Existing Use _Office, industrial & Commerctal Mixed Use

Mailing Address 757 N Broadway Suite 700
City / State Milwaukee, WI
Emall Address  Jmatloy12855@gmail com

Zip 53202 Proposed Use Office Industrial & Commercial Mixed Use
CMP Land Use Identification

*The 2025 Comprehensive Master Plan Future Land Use Map 1s availlable at  http //www franklinwg gov/Home/ResourcesDocuments/Maps h m

Certified Survey Maps shall be prepared as provided in § 236 34 (1m]} (c} Wis. Stats. and Dwision 15-7.0700 of the Unified Development Ordinance.

Certified Survey Map submittals for review must include and be accompanied by the following:
Milwaukee County Review Fee, payable to Milwaukee County Register of Deeds $75
X1 Two (2) original map copies for Milwaukee County review, prepared at 8-1/2" wide by 14 long on durable white paper
This Application form accurately completed with oniginal signature{s} Facsimiles and copies will not be accepted
[X] Application Filing Fee, payable to Crty of Frankhin  $1,500
Seven (7) complete sets of Application matenals, for City of Franklin review to include
Project Summary a written detailed description of the project One (1) onginal and six {6) copies
Map Copres One (1) original map copy and six (6) map coptes prepared at 8 1/2" wide by 14" long and must be clearly fegible
] As may be required, seven (7) copies of a "Natural Resource Protection Plan and "Landscape Plan ' for any landscape bufferyard easement areas
[ If applicable, three (3) copies of the Natural Resource Protection report (see Division 15-9 03090 of the UDO)
[ If applicable, one copy of the Site intensity and Capacity Calculations (see Division 15-3 0500 of the UDO)
Email {or CD ROM) wath all plans and submittal matenials in Adobe PDF  {May be waived by City Planner }

*Upon receipt of a complete submittal, staff review will be conducted within ten business days
* All Certified Survey Map requests reguire Plan Commission review and Common Council approval
*All Certified Survey Map requests shall comply with Chapter 236 of the Wisconsin State Statutes

The apphcant and property owner(s) hereby certify that (1) all statements and other information submitted as part of this application are true and correct
to the best of applicant’s and property owner(s) knowledge, (2) the applicant and property owner(s) has/have read and understand all information in this
application, and (3) the applicant and property owner(s) agree that any approvals based on representations made by them in this Apphcation and its
submittal, and any subsequently issued bullding permits or other type of permits, may be revoked without notice i there 1s a breach of such
representation(s) or any condition(s) of approval By execution of this apphication, the property owner(s) authorize the City of Franklin and/or its agents to
enter upon the subject property(ies) between the hours of 700 a m and 7 00 p m daily for the purpose of inspection while the application 1s under review
The property owner(s) grant this authorization even if the property has been posted against trespassing pursuant to Wis Stat §943 13

(The applicant’s signature must be from a Managing Member if the business is an LLC, or from the President or Vice President if the business is a
corporation A signed applicant’s authorization letter may be provided in lieu of the applicant’s signature below, and a signed property owner’s

authorization letter may be provided in lieu of the property owner’s signature[s] below. If mare than one, all of ti}g\awners of the property must sign this
2 3

Appligation). AN PR X

o TR R A/ Vo )Y 4

s St ! / ! LA VT

A i
' : / & o [ ol T
\ﬁv\/ Ve T s ™, Y P V4 .
o 1 { I il | i/ Y
‘-._Slgnafu re Propertv\'.lwner r—— 7 L signature Applicant — o
MohnJ Malloy Managing Member John ] Malloy Managing Member
Naige & Title {PR NT) ‘Name & Title (PRINT)
Date _06/10/2020 Date _06/10/2020

Signature Property O vner Signature Applicant’s Representative
Name & Title {PRINT) Name & Title (PRINT)

Date Date




7/13/2020 Gmail RE Franklin Business Parx Assccation

™~

RE: Franklin Business Park Association

Joe A Bukovich <jbukovich@pomnire com>
To John Malloy <ymailoy 12855@gmail com>
Cc "Barry S Chavin® <Barry Chavin@ngkf com>

Good Morming John
On behalf of the Franklin Business Park Association Review Board please accept this emad as the Boards s approval to subdivide Parcel 3 of CSM No 6566 in

Thank you

Joe

Joseph A, Bukovich PE
Vice President Development
VILG Capaital

1300C v Biluemound Road
Brookfield ! 53045

(262) 424-5997 (mobule)

{414) 908-9157 [fax)

30~ MLG Capital

Fongl Tsiate irvestiments

From* John Malloy <jmailoy12855@gmai com>

Sent: Wednesday June 24 2020 2 09 PM

To Joe A Bukovich <jbukovich@poinire com> Joe A Bukovich <ibukovich@poinira com>
Cc Barry S Chavin <Barry Chavin@ngkf com>

Subject: Re Franklin Business Park Association

Joe thanks for taking time to talk this afternoon about our Building sale in Franklin  Attached to this e-mail 1s the Project Summary and the CSM  Please take a
any questions Otherwise please indicate the Association’s approval of our plan

https //mail google com/mail/u/07k=332b6a0b898&wiew=pi&search=all&permmsgid=msg-1%3A1670487633124003522&simpl=msg-f%3A1670487633124003



APPROVAL REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION MTG. DATE
-y August 4, 2020
Reports & STATUS OF W. MARQUETTE AVENUE ROAD EXTENSION ITEM NO.
Recommendations BETWEEN S. 49T STREET AND S. 515T STREET & 8
BACKGROUND

On March 17, 2020, Common Council moved to “... prepare the necessary documents to receive
developers’ donations for the road right-of-way and engineering specifications for W Marquette
Avenue and to advertise for bids for a competitive public works project, along with an alternate
bid for adding water and sewer ” All voted aye Motion carried

The developments are the Oak Ridge Subdivision (11.88 acre parcel owned by Walter R.
Hablewitz- TKN 759 9981 010) and Pleasant View Estates (27.01 acre parcel owned by Creative
Homes Inc- TKN 788 9981 003). Staff contacted the adjacent developers and their representatives
on Wednesday, March 18, 2020, outlining needs from the developers.

There was a conference call with the developers on April 6, 2020. Staff has followed up with
Lynch Engineering, who was hired and working in cooperation with both developments, on
multiple occassions. To summarize the status, this issue is at a standstill because the City and the
developers do not have an agreement outlined to allow the City to accept donations for the road
right-of-way and bidding documents. At issue is the City’s lack of direction on assessments to the
developers for the completion of the project.

Staff cannot proceed as directed by Common Council. Guidance on plan to assess, or not to assess,
is needed.

ANALYSIS

Although there are variations that may be negotiated, there are essentially three options that would
result in the construction of W. Marquette Avenue:

1. The developer(s) construct the project as part of their development project(s) as with most
other new roads constructed in Franklin.

2. The City constructs the project with minimal assistance (donations of the right-of-way and
the engineering plans) from the adjacent developers.

3. The City constructs the project and special assesses the benefitted properties.

4. Some variation of the above three options.

Option 1 1s not elaborated in this Council Action. This has been discussed at many previous
Common Council meetings. Historically, the City has usually noted that “the City does not build
these roads.” Upon research, there are exceptions.

Recently, W. Evergreen Street road and utility infrastructure was constructed to facilitate
development of Pleasant View Park. In 2014, a decision was made to defer assessment to the
adjacent landowner until the property developed (which occurred in 2016).




Attached is an undated (presumably circa 1979) 7-page report from Jack Bennett, P.E.- City
Engineer to the Franklin Finance Committee on the topic of Special Assessments for Street
Reconstruction. The document states that “...the City of Franklin has no policy for the assessment
of reconstruction of street projects, but does have an assessment policy for the construction of new
roadways... included such projects as S 35% Street, S 29" Street, South 33™ Street, and West
Central Avenue...” Staff has not yet been able to locate Engineer’s Reports for the referenced
streets. A phone conversation with Mr. Bennett confirmed this practice and noted that properties
were also assessed when a road was improved from a rural section to a curb and gutter section.
Staff found three instances where properties were assessed for concrete curb and gutter and
concrete driveway approaches.

Option 2 assumes that right-of-way and engineering will be donated to the City. For the purposes
of this Council Action, Staff has not developed a cost estimate. Attached is a quote that Lynch
Engineering obtained from Wanasek Corporation in April 2019 that will be assumed to be close
enough for a discussion and all should acknowledge that the plans and a firm quote should be
finalized before any numbers are used for final evaluation. Staff has not compared the plans with
the quote but herein is assumed that all prices are for public work in the proposed W. Marquette
Avenue right-of-way only.

Below are calculations assuming that land is donated, design engineering is donated, and storm
drainage issues are incorporated within the two developments. Note that if both developments are
not constructed at the same time as the road, City, MMSD, and DNR requirements will necessitate

separate storm water management design and construction for the road alone. (* denotes assumed
budget)

$434,770.00 Grading (road and sidewalk work- see note below)

$193,070.00 Sanitary sewer

$142,345.00 Water main (does not include water main to loop to the east)
$£83,323.90 *Water main to the east for looping

$104,125.00 Storm sewer (assumes that developments occur at the same time)

$957,633.90 Sub-total Project Costs

$143,645.09 *15% Construction contingency
$165,191.85 *15% Inspection
$1,266,470.84 Total Project Costs (Option 2)

Note- all options could consider that the City explore park impact fees to pay for the sidewalk. It
is unclear how much the sidewalk portion was part of Wanasek’s quote.

This Option 2 could be fully born by the City, or a negotiated agreement with the developers
(Option 4).

Option 3 assumes that the City must budget all items. Both developers have indicated to Staff that
they are hesitant to donate real estate and other services if they will also be assessed for the
improvements. This option would include land acquisition sufficient to address storm water
retention/detention needs. (* denotes assumed budget)




$957,633.90 Sub-total from Option 1 Construction
$200,000.00 *Additional work needed for storm retention/detention
$173,645.09 15% Construction contingency

$1,331,278.99 Subtotal project costs

$199,691.85 *15% Engineering

$199,691.85 *15% Inspection

$140,000.00 *Land acquisition (4 acres @ $35k/acre)
$1,870,662.68 Total Project Costs (Option 3)

Option 3 would include consideration of special assessment. Wisconsin Statute §66.0701 «...city
may, by ordinance, provide that the cost of installing or constructing any public work or
improvement shall be charged in whole or n part to the property benefited, and make an
assessment against the property benefited in the manner that the governing body determines.
Franklin municipal code §207-15.B also uses may language.

In Franklin, an Engineer’s Report is required and both State Statutes and Franklin Municipal Code
provide broad guidance on how the benefit may be attributed to property owners. Franklin Code
further specifies that the amount to be assessed “shall be apportioned among the individual parcels
in the manner designated by the City Council” [§207-15.G]. Furthermore “...accomplish a fair
and equitable assessment” [§207-15.J] language is specified. §207-15R discusses maximum rates
for utilities when front foot basis is used, but no maximum assessments are mentioned if other
methods are employed.

Both developers have expressed a desire that if the City desires to assess, only proposed lots
fronting the improvements in their subdivision plats should be assessed and have also expressed
an opinion that the proper assessment should not exceed $40,000 per developer. Staff contends
that both subdivisions need this infrastructure to facilitate the whole and complete development of
each subdivision. $80,000 [$40k x 2 developers] represents less than 5% of the total project costs

and is not representative of the relative need for each subdivision. Staff would not support this
limited assessment in the Engineer’s Report.

The enclosed exhibits illustrate which properties should be assessed for water, sewer, and roads.

Properties already served by existing infrastructure are not assessed for newly constructed
infrastructure.

For the potable water system, the cost of the project was interpolated from the Wanasek bid to be
extended to the end of the existing water main at the end of the school property. The entire water
main would be about 1,300 feet and considering the interpolation of a project to extend to the
school property, the water system portion of the total project cost is approximately $337,000, or
about $260/LF (or $130/LF/side). The 2020 maximum assessment rate for water is
$121.42/LF/side. Since this assessment would include two existing single-family parcels, Staff
recommends that the potable water system be assessed upon a front foot basis. Per §207-15.R(2),
the balance of the costs would be financed by the water connection fee fund.

For the sanitary sewer, and storm sewet/retention basin systems, the potential assessments are from
the two developable lands. Staff contends that regardless of acreage and frontage, each

development has equal need for this infrastructure sewer so the costs should be split 50/50 amongst
the two developments.

This road should be improved to the western property line of Pleasant View Elementary School.
(PV). There has been much discussion regarding PV’s need for the road connection. The issue of




road impact fees would reduce the City cost approximately 6% related to the future student growth
at the school. The PV representatives have stated that they have no need for this road extension.

With the exception of two residential lots that are on private wells, Staff does not believe that
existing residential homes benefit from the construction of new infrastructure as they are already
served by water, sewer, and road. For the remaining land to be developed as subdivisions, Staff
considered methods of allocating percentages based on frontage length of adjacent land and acres

for development. Staff supports that each development equally needing the infrastructure is a “fair
and equitable” method.

Below is a table that summarizes a first pass at allocation of assessments for each property owner.
If assessments are the desired option, an engineering consultant will be needed to fully develop

plans and construction estimates for a City project. Staff would provide a similar analysis in the
Engineer’s Report.

Property Potable Water Sanitary Sewer St(l){;:le::iv(:::r / Road z:(t:;:eg :;
Footage Cost % Cost %  Cost %  Cost

Hablewitz 750 $91,065 50% $14431983 | 50% $279,833 | 47% $321,941 $837,159
Koplinski 140 $16,999 $16,999
Hamrick 300 $36,426 $36,426
Creative Homes 1100  $133,562 50% $14431983 | 50% $279,833 | 47% $321,941 $879,656
Franklin School 6% $41,099 $41,099
Franklin City $59,323 $59,323
Lol Component $337,375 $288,639.65 $559,666 $684,981 |  $1,870,662

To defend a decision to assess or not assess for these improvements, the Common Council must
be able to answer the question, “Does the City install/pay for new roads/infrastructure as part
of our normal business process?” Franklin has historically assessed for utilities unless it met
defined criteria for exceptions as outlined in the municipal code- which is not applicable here. As

for roads, there have been limited previous assessments for roadways, and the known examples
are listed in discussion for Option 1.

If the answer to the above question is “no,” then it would be very hard for the Council to change
course now and go with Option 2, and then change back to its standard policy/practice. Unless, of
course, Council would like to change its policy/practice and begin paying for all of the new
roads/infrastructure needed for new development, which would be very expensive. On the other
hand, if the answer is “yes,” where one can say that the City typically pays for these improvements,

then asking the developers to do so in just this case would again be selective and the City would
likely not be successful in that effort.

Option 4 assumes that the City and the Developers negotiate an agreement. One example may be
Option 2 where the City agrees to participate with $XXX,XXX. This option could also be Option
3 where the City will finance $XXX, XXX and special assess the remainder of the improvements.

Historically, Franklin has only required partial recovery of the costs when the City desired
something greater than needed for the benefited properties- i.e. over size, greater depth, extra wide,
across undevelopable lands, etc. In this situation, the public utilities are the minimum size, the
street would be the minimum required for a residential development, and there is no adjacent
undevelopable land due to wetlands or other natural resources.




OPTIONS
A. Direct Staff to proceed with Option 1- require developers to pay for and construct

infrastructure. If the Common Council prefers to continue on with past policies and practices,
Option 1 should be selected.

B. Direct Staff to proceed with Option 2- agree to pay for improvements and only ask developers
for donation of engineering design and right-of-way. If Common Council would like to change
course from the overwhelmingly majority of past practices, and be responsible for funding
future developer needed improvements/infrastructure, this option should be selected.

C. Direct Staff to proceed with Option 3- plan to conduct this project as a City project and direct
Staff to solicit a separate design firm for the work. If Common Council is willing to fund the
project up front and get paid back over time, through the special assessment process, Option 3
should be selected.

D. Direct Staff to implement Option 4 by a combination of methods. Development of roadways
and infrastructure is not something that the City can jump back and forth on with regard to
funding. It is believed that communities may change methods once and it might be defendable,
but flipping back and forth is not defendable.

FISCAL NOTE

There is a combined $750,000 in the 2020 Budget for W. Marquette Avenue from S. 51% Street,
through S. 49" Street, to Pleasant View School.

The Road Impact Fees study, currently under development, is considering that Pleasant View
Elementary School has a current enrollment of 510 and has a building capacity of 540 students
(almost 6% future growth). That would result in $26,100 [6% of the $435,000 in road costs above

A budget amendment would be required to authorize the $1,875,000 in total costs [increase the

appropriation by $1,125,000] — which would require Finance input to identify the additional
funding.

If desired, Staff can research applicability of impact fees to pay for the sidewalk section.

RECOMMENDATION

(Option A) Direct Staff to work with developers as they plan and pay for infrastructure related to
their developments.

Engineering Department: GEM




TO: FRANKLIN FINANCE COMMITTEE
FROM: JOHN M. BENNETT, P.E., CITY ENGINEER

SUBJECT: PRELIMINARY REPORT ON SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS FOR STREET
RECONSTRUCTION.

Gentlemen:

Pursuant to the request of the Chairman of the Finance Committee
regarding the possibility of special assessing the cost of roadway
reconstruction of State Trunk Highway (S.T.H.) 100 and other

future reccnstruction projects, please be advised that the Franklin
Engineering Department has investigated the policies of other

communities relative to special assessments and is submitting the
following comments for review by the Finance Committee.

At the present time, the City of Franklin has no policy for the
assessment of reconstruction street projects, but does have an
assessment policy for the construction of new roadways. New

roads have been assessed in the past and have included such projects
as South 35th St., South 29th St., South 33rd St. and West Central
Ave. The City has not assessed reconstruction street projects with
the major recent example being that of West Drexel Ave. The
difference between a reconstruction street project and a new con-
struction street project is that a reconstruction project would
include construction work on a street that is considered a fully
accepted street where new construction would include construction
work on newly acguired right-of-way or in existing rights-of-way
where the street was not improved with a hard driving surface,

I. Other Communities' Assessment Policies

While the Franklin Engineering Department has not made an
extensive survey of the assessment policies of other communi-
ties, we have looked into two communities that do special assess

road reconstruction projects. A brief description of the City
of Milwaukee and the City of Janesville assessment policies for
road reconstruction are as follows:

A. City of Milwaukee Assessment Policy

Each year the City of Milwaukee sets an assessment rate

for new construction and reconstruction projects based on
the average rate of the construction cost for the following
year. The special assessment rate for 1979 has been
established as follows:

Improvements 1l & 2 Family Lots All Other Lots
8" Pavement $22.00/ft. $§24.00/f¢t.
Curb & Gutter 5.25/ft. 5.25/ft.
Storm Sewer 8.00/ft. 8.00/f¢t.



IT.

The City of Milwaukee bases their assessment rate on a
complex formula, but as I understand their procedure,

the assessment rate is set to reflect the cost of a local
residential street and the City of Milwaukee general

fund picks up the costs above the special assessment costs.
The City of Milwaukee no longer uses an area assessment
charge,although they still have the procedure on their

books. The area charge was only used for what they call a
"street opening” or the construction of a new access to

an area which was obtained through property acquisition.

B. City of Janesville Assessment Policy

The City of Janesville has a very simple assessment policy
which has been in effect for over ten years. Their
assessment policy calls for a maximum assessment of 1/2 the
cost of a 36 foot face to face street for all residential
uses and a maximum assessment of 1/2 the cost of a 52 foot
face to face street for all commercial and industrial

properties. If the assessment cost is less than the above,
the actual assessment costs would be used. If the con-

struction cost on such as a major highway is greater than
the above, the City picks up the cost above the assessment rate.

Recommended Method of Special Assessment for City of Franklin
Reconstruction Projects

The method of special assessment used by the City of Janesville
appears to be best suited for consideration by the City of
Franklin. It appears logical that property owners should pay
an assessment equal to the cost of a minor street just as the
property owner that purchases a new lot in a subdivision, in
fact, must pay for the cost of the street when the lot is
purchased. It also appears logical that commercial, industrial
and multifamily uses will benefit to a higher degree due to the
reconstruction of a roadway as they produce more traffic.

Using the Janesville method of special assessment and adapting
their method to the City of Franklin would involve the deter-
mination of the width of a minor street and the width of a
collector street to be used for the calculation of the maximum
assessment rate. The City of Franklin municipal code defines

the width of a local and collector street as 28 feet and 40 feet
respectively. Therefore, the City of Franklin could use the
Janesville method of special assessment by using the 28 foot
width for a minor street and 40 foot width for a collector street.
Also, it is recommended that the portion of the City of Milwaukee
assessment policy be used regarding the definition of single-
family and two-family versus all other uses instead of the
Janesville policy of residential uses versus non-residential

uses as the Milwaukee policy will shift a higher rate to the
multi-family zoned lands.

While the above recommended policies are very general and other
items such as corner lot consideration, double frontage and other
exceptions must be addressed, the above recommendations will

give a starting point for the consideration of an assessment policy.



III.

Calculation of Assessment Cost for 1979

In order to apply the above recommended assessment policy to
see how the policy would effect proposed projects under con-
sideration by the City, it is necessary to determine the
assessment rate for 1979. The following are the assumptions
and calculations for the maximum assessment rates for a local
and collector street. The cost calculations for a local street
would be used to determine the maximum assessment rate for all
other uses except single-~family and two-family lots.

The following is the Engineering Department estimate for the
1979 cost of the construction of a local and collection system.
The cost estimates are based only on the cost of the roadway
surface and all other items of construction such as grading and
shouldering have not been included in the cost estimate as

they may vary from project to project.

A. Local Street Assessment Rate to Be Used for Single-Family
and Two-Family Uses

1. ILocal street Assessment Rate - Roadways without curb
and gutter - Roadway width 24 feet-subdivision con-
struction standards.

Stone - $1.76/sq. yd. x 2.67 sq. yd./ft. = $4.70
Asphalt -~ $6.30/sq.yd. x 2.67 sq.yd./ft. = §16.82
Total $21.52

$21.52 per running foot or $10.76 per front foot.

2. Local Street Assessment Rate - Roadways with curb and

gutter - Roadway width face to face 28 feet - Sub-
division construction standards.

Stone - $1.76/sq.yd. x 2.67 sq.yd./ft. = $4.70
Asphalt - $6.30/sq.yd. x 2.67 sq.yd./ft. = 16.82
Curb & Gutter - $5.50 per ft. x 2 = 11.00

Total $32.52

$32.52 per running foot or $16.26 per front foot

B. Collector Street Assessment Rate to Be Used for All Other
Uses than Single-Family and Two-Family Uses.

1. Collector Street Assessment Rate - Roadways without

curb and gutter - Roadway width 36 Feet -~ subdivision
construction standards.

Stone - $1.76/sq.yd. x 4 sq.yd./ft. = §$7.04
Asphalt - $6.30/sqgq.yd. x 4 sq.yd./ft.= 25.20

Total $32.24
$32.24 per running foot or $16.12 per front foot.



2. Collector Street Assessment Rate - Roadways with
curb and gutter - Roadway width 40 feet face to face -
Subdivision construction standards.

Stone - $1.76/sq.yd. x 4 sq.yd./ft. $7.04
Asphalt - $6.30/sq.yd. x 4 sq.yd./ft.= 25.20
Curb & Gutter - $5.50 per ft. x 2 11.00

It

Total $43.24
$43.24 per running foot or §21.62 per front foot.

IV. Calculation of the Assessment Return for the Reconstruction
of S.T.H. 100

A,

Assumptions

Assume that a special assessment ordinance would be created
based on the above recommendation and that the 1979 con-
struction rates would be used for the calculation of the
assessments. Also, assume that no assessment would be
collected for lots fronting on the service drives which
parallel S.T.H., 100.

Calculation of Assessment Return from Frontage of All
Single-Family and Duplex Lots at the Rate of the Local
Street Rate and all Other Uses at the Rate of a Collector
Street.

The construction of S.T.H. 100 from West Colldge Ave. to
Phyllis Lane will be reconstructed with curb and gutter and
said section is calculated at a curb and gutter assessment
rate. The remaining section of S.T.H. 100 will not have
curb and gutter installed and the assessment rate does

not include the calculation for curb and gutter.

1. Single- family and two-family frontage between West
College Ave. and W. Phyllis Lane where curb and gutter
will be installed:

2600 front footage x $16.26/ft. = $42,276
2. All other frontage except single~family and two-family

between W. College Ave. and W. Phyllis Lane where
curb and gutter will be installed:

5350 front footage x $21.62/ft. = §115,667
3. Single-family and two-family frontage between a point

north of W. Church St. to a point south of W. Church
St. where no curb and gutter will be installed:

2585 front footage x $10.76/ft. = $27,815

Total $185,758



Summary of S.T.H. 100 Project Cost as Estimated by the
State Division of Highways

City of Franklin share of project cost $328,750
Assessment return as calculated above 185,757

City of Franklin's cost after assessment
return $142,993

In addition to the above, the City could assess a portion
of the storm sewer costs in the portion of S.T.H. 100

in which storm sewer is installed between W. College Ave.
and W. Phyllis Lane. The State Division of Highways has
calculated that $25,000 of the storm sewer cost is for
off road drainage; therefore, the City will have to pay
100% of the $25,000 in addition to 15 percent of the
remaining storm sewer cost. The total cost for all storm
sewer costs are included in the $328,750 estimate. Listed
below are two alternative methods that may be considered
for assessment of the storm sewer costs for S.T.H. 100,

1. Assess the storm sewer costs at the same rate as the
City of Milwaukee assesses for storm sewer - $8.00
per front foot. There is no question that this is a
lower rate than the actual storm sewer cost within an
average subdivision street. The assessment return
at $8.00 per front foot for the section of S.T.H. 100
that has storm sewer installed is as follows:

7950 front feet x $8.00/ft. = 863,600

If storm sewer is assessed at $8.00 per front foo%,
the City of Franklin's cost of the reconstruction of
S.T.H. 100 would be as follows:

City's share of project cost $328,750
Assessment return for roadway assessment 185,757
Assessment return for storm sewer assessment 63,600
City of Franklin's cost after assessment

returns $ 79,393

2. Assess only the cost of the $25,000 of road drainage.
While the City's cost of the storm system will be more
than the $25,000 as the City must pay 15 percent of the
cost of the remaining storm sewer, the City could
justify only assessing the cost of the $25,000 off-
road system drainage. The assessment rate for the
off-road system drainage would be as follows:

$25,000/7950 front feet = $§3.14/front foot

If the storm sewer is assessed at $3.14 per front foot,

the City's cost of the reconstruction of S.T.H. 100 would

be as follows:



City's share of project cost $328,750
Assessment return for roadway assessment 185,757
Assessment return for storm sewer assessment 25,000
City's cost after assessment return §117,993

Calculation of the Assessment Return for the Reconstruction of
South 68th Street Between West Rawson Avenue and West Drexel Avenue

In order to provide an example of how a reconstruction assess-
ment policy might effect a local reconstruction street project,

the Franklin Engineering Department has selected South 68th
Street between West Rawson Avenue and West Drexel Avenue as

an example. Due to extensive grading required for the
reconstruction of S. 68th St. and the amount of double frontage

lots, it appears that S. 68th St. would be a good example of
how a maximum reconstruction would function. The following are

the calculations required to determine the assessment return:

A. Assessable frontage assuming that double frontage lots
within the subdivisions would not be assessed - 8070 feet.

B. Assessment rate for single-family and two-family with no
curb and gutter - $10.76/ft.

C. Assessment return:
8070 front feet x $10.76/ft. $£86,833

. Estimated cost of reconstruction cost of
S. 68th St. between W. Rawson Av. and
W. Drexel Av. 150,000

E. Project cost to the City after assessment
return $63,167

The use of the special assessment policy on S. 68th St. would
reduce the City's cost from $150,000 to $63,167 as the difference
in cost would be picked up through the special assessment charge.
The effect of the special assessment policy would vary for each
street improvement with some reconstruction projects being
self-supporting. The recommended assessment policy would have

a direct correlation between the required improvements within

an improved subdivision. Unimproved lots located on existing
streets within the City have historically sold for much less
than improved lots within an improved subdivision. Therefore,
it appears logical that the cost of street improvements should
be passed on to the owners of unimproved lots which will offset
the lower initial investment of the unimproved lot.



VI.

VII.
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Assessment of Improvements Benefitting Only Individual Properties

It is recommended that all improvements that would not be
considered a direct public benefit such as driveway culvert
and driveway apprcaches would be assessed as 100 percent of
the cost if installed by public contract. This policy could
be incorporated into the special assessment ordinance.

Summary

In summary, the above is a preliminary report on the general
policies for the development of a special assessment policy.

If the Finance Committee or the Common Council wishes to
proceed further with the assessment policy, it will be
necessary to work out the detailed procedures as how to

handle double frontage lots, corner lots, non-conforming uses
and other circumstances that should be covered by the
assessment policy. Please advise, if you wish the Franklin
Engineering Department to proceed with the detailed development.

Yours very truly,

¥

i /8 f e 1R G e

/ﬁohn M. Bennett, P.E.
f/City Engineer

JMB:nc¢



REPORT ON SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS

WEST AIRWAYS AVENUE
CURB & GUTTER & DRIVWAY APPROACHES

JUNE 3, 2002

The Common Council of the City of Franklin directed the Franklin Engineering Department to
prepare the Report on Special Assessments for the concrete curb and gutter and concrete
driveway approach portion of the reconstruction of West airways Avenue from east of S. 60"
Street to east of S. 57" Street as included in Resolution 2002-5325 adopted May 21, 2002, which
resolution described the portion of the streets in which improvements are to be installed.

Herewith is the report, consisting of Schedules A through D, attached.

CITY OF FRANKLIN

Ronald J. Romeis, P.E.
Assistant City Engineer

Assessments/Assessiments Airways Ave 2002



REPORT ON SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS

SOUTH 57™ STREET
CURB & GUTTER & DRIVWAY APPROACHES

MAY 18,2004

The Common Council of the City of Franklin directed the Franklin Engineering Department to
prepare the Report on Special Assessments for the concrete curb and gutter and concrete
driveway approach portion of the reconstruction of South 57" Street from W. Airways Avenue to
W. Franklin Drive as included in Resolution 2004-5698 adopted May 4, 2004, which resolution
described the portion of the streets in which improvements are to be installed.

Herewith is the report, consisting of Schedules A through D, attached.

CITY OF FRANKLIN

Ronald J. Romeis, P.E.
Assistant City Engineer

Assessments/Assessments 57" Street 2004



REPORT ON SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS

S. 51 STREET
W. RAWSON AVENUE TO A POINT 1300 FEET NORTH
PROJECT NO. 2007-R101

NOVEMBER, 2008

The Common Council of the City of Franklin directed the City Engineer to prepare the Report on
Special Assessments for the reconstruction including medians and drives requiring grading and
the installation of concrete curb and gutter, sidewalks and bituminous pavement as included in
Resolution No. 2008 — 6502 adopted on December 2, 2008.

Herewith is the report, consisting of Schedules A through D.

John M. Bennett, P.E.

City Engineer

Date

RIR/sg

Assessments/Special Assessments S 51 Street W Rawson Avenue to a pt 1300 nosth reconstruction 2008









APPROVAL REQUEST FOR MEETING DATE
AL COUNCIL ACTION August 4, 2020
REPORTS AND RESOLUTION TO ISSUE A CHANGE ORDER 03 ITEM NUMBER
RECOMMENDATIONS FOR PLEASANT VIEW PARK PAVILION )
(4901 W. EVERGREEN STREET) &. C] '
IN THE AMOUNT OF $8,186.06

BACKGROUND

On June 18, 2019, Common Council awarded a contract to Ray Stadler Construction Co. in the amount of $544,000 for the
construction of the Pleasant View Pavilion in Pleasant View Park- 4901 W. Evergreen Street. The project is a lump-sum
construction project On August 20, 2019, a Change Order No. 1 was issued for $19,117.06 to incorporate some concrete
work. Change Order No. 2 was issued for locks and miscellaneous code revision requirements for $6,407.47.

During a final punch list inspection, Staff noted some needed changes. These changes were not in the plans and will require
an additional cost

ANALYSIS

The changes are related to downspouts (to accommodate underground drainage), snow rail systems, additional guttering,
and weather-stripping around the overhead doors. Staff has discussed the changes with the architect and is comfortable that
it 1s best to ask the contractor to make the changes for the increased cost of $8,186.06

OPTIONS
A. Authorize the full amount for a change order; or
B. Refer to Staff with additional direction.

FISCAL NOTE
Finance recommends that the required $8,200 be appropriated from the 2020 park land appropriation.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

(Option A). Resolution 2020- a resolution to issue a Change Order 03 for Pleasant View Park Pavilion (4901 W.
Evergreen Street) in the amount of $8,186.06.

Engineering: GEM




STATE OF WISCONSIN: CITY OF FRANKLIN: MILWAUKEE COUNTY
RESOLUTION NO. 2020 -

RESOLUTION TO ISSUE A CHANGE ORDER 03
FOR PLEASANT VIEW PARK PAVILION (4901 W. EVERGREEN STREET)
IN THE AMOUNT OF $8,186.06

WHERFEAS, the Common Council awarded a lump sum contract on June 18, 2019, to Ray
Stadler Construction Co. for the construction of the Pleasant View Pavilion in Pleasant View Park-
4901 W. Evergreen Street (Project 2019-3) in the amount of $544,000; and

WHEREAS, the Common Council previously authorized Change Order No. 1 and No. 2
to bring the project total to $569,524.53; and

WHEREAS, additional weather-stripping, gutters, downspouts, and ice guards are needed
that were not included in the initial design; and

WHEREAS, Staff has reviewed the changes with the project architect;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Common Council of the City
of Franklin, that the Mayor and City Clerk are authorized and directed to execute Change Order
03 to increase the total contract amount by $8,186.06 to $577,710.59.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this ___th
day of , 2020 by Alderman

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin
this th day of 2020.

APPROVED:

Stephen R. Olson, Mayor
ATTEST:

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT



CHANGE ORDER
CITY OF FRANKLIN
DEPARTMENT OF ENGINEERING

Change Order No: 03 Dated: August 4, 2020

PROJECT NAME Pleasant View Pavilion in Pleasant View Park

PROJECT LOCATION 4901 W. Evergreen Street

CONTRACTOR* Ray Stadler Construction Co.

Contract For

Nature of the Changes:
» [nstall additional weather-stripping, gutters, downspouts, and ice guards

These changes result in the following adjustment of Contract Price and Contract Time: (CITY
CONTRACT ONLY)

Original Contract Price $ 544,000

Contract price prior to this Change Order $ 569,524.53

Net Increase resulting from this Change Order $ 8,186.06 (+)

Current contract price including this Change Order $ 577,710.59

Net (Increase/Decrease) in time resulting from this Change Order Increase 0 calendar days

The above changes are Approved by:

Mayor City Clerk Contractor:
By: Stephen R Olson By. Sandra L. Wesolowski By:

Date. Date: Date:
Director of Finance & Treasurer City Attorney

By Paul Rotzenberg By: Jesse A. Wesolowski

Date: Date:




OPERATE A MEGA MEDIA XCHANGE
STORE, WITH THE ADDITION OF A
GAMING LOUNGE, LOCATED AT 6544
SOUTH LOVERS LANE ROAD (GARDEN
PLAZA SHOPPING CENTER)

(ROBERT A. SETTECASE, OWNER OF
MMX3 LLC (MEGA MEDIA XCHANGE),
APPLICANT)

APPROVAL REQUEST FOR MEETING
COUNCIL ACTION DATE
/ 08/04/20
REPORTS & A RESOLUTION IMPOSING CONDITIONS | ITEM NUMBER
AND RESTRICTIONS FOR THE
ECOMMENDATION
R ENDATIONS APPROVAL OF A SPECIAL USE TO & 0.

applicant).

A motion to adopt Resolution 2020-

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

At the July 23, 2020, regular meeting, the Plan Commission carried a motion to
recommend approval of a Resolution imposing conditions and restrictions for the
approval of a Special Use for used merchandise store under the Standard Industrial
Classification (SIC) No. 5932 upon property located at 6544 S. Lovers Lane Road.

, imposing conditions and restrictions
for the approval of a special use to operate a Mega Media Xchange store, with the
addition of a gaming lounge, located at 6544 South Lovers Lane Road (Garden Plaza
shopping center) (Robert A. Settecase, owner of MMX3 LLC (Mega Media Xchange),

Department of City Development RMM




STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN MILWAUKEE COUNTY
AR R
RESOLUTION NO 2020-

A RESOLUTION IMPOSING CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS
FOR THE APPROVAL OF A SPECIAL USE TO OPERATE A MEGA
MEDIA XCHANGE STORE, WITH THE ADDITION OF A GAMING

LOUNGE, LOCATED AT 6544 SOUTH LOVERS LANE ROAD
(GARDEN PLAZA SHOPPING CENTER)
(ROBERT A SETTECASE, OWNER OF MMX3 LLC
(MEGA MEDIA XCHANGE), APPLICANT)

WHEREAS, Robert A Settecase, owner of MMX3 LLC (Mega Media Xchange),
having petittoned the City of Franklin for the approval of a Special Use within a B-3
Community Business District under Standard Industrial Classtfication Title No. 5932 ~Used
Merchandise Stores”, to allow for a Mega Media Xchange movies, video games and
electronics buy/sell/rental store (with the addition of a gaming lounge to this Franklin
location, m which customers will rent gaming computers and systems in an interactive
environment serving food and non-alcoholic beverages) use, with hours of operation from
10.00 am to 9 00 p m, Monday through Saturday, and 11-00 am to 7.00 p.m. on Sundays,
upon property located at 6544 South Lovers Lane Road (Garden Plaza Shopping Center),
bearing Tax Key No 705-8997-004, more particularly described as follows.

Parcel No. 2, Certified Survey Map No 5375, being a re-division of Parcel
No | of CSM No 3247, Outlot 2 of Whitnal Edge Subdivision, and unplatted
lands in the Northwest 1/4 and the Southwest 1/4 of the Northwest 1/4 of
Section 5, Town 5 North, Range 21 East, in the City of Franklin, County of
Milwaukee, State of Wisconsin, as recorded in the office of the Register of
Deeds for Milwaukee County, Wisconsin on February 15, 1990 at Reel 2420,
Image 890 to 893 inclustve, as Document No 6354945, and

WHEREAS, such petition having been duly referred to the Plan Commuission of the
City of Frankhn for a public heaning, pursuant to the requirements of §15-9 0103D of the
Unified Development Ordinance, and a public hearing having been held before the Plan
Commussion on the 23rd day of July, 2020, and the Plan Commussion thereafter having
determined to recommend that the proposed Special Use be approved, subject to certain
conditions, and the Plan Commussion further finding that the proposed Special Use upon
such conditions, pursuant to §15-3 0701 of the Unified Development Ordinance, will be m
harmony with the purposes of the Unified Development Ordinance and the Comprehensive
Master Plan, that 1t will not have an undue adverse tmpact upon adjoining property, that it
will not mterfere with the development of neighboring property, that it will be served
adequately by essential public facilites and services, that 1t will not cause undue traffic
congestion, and that 1t will not result in damage to property of significant importance to
nature, history or the like, and



ROBERT A SETTECASE, OWNER OF MMX3 LLC (MEGA MEDIA XCHANGE) -
SPECIAL USE
RESOLUTION NO 2020-

Page 2

WHEREAS, the Common Council having received such Plan Commission

recommendation and also having found that the proposed Special Use, subject to conditions,
meets the standards set forth under §15-3 0701 of the Umified Development Ordinance.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Common Council of

the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, that the petitton of Robert A Settecase, owner of MMX3
LLC (Mega Media Xchange), for the approval of a Special Use for the property particularly
described 1n the preamble to this Resolution, be and the same 1s hereby approved, subject to
the tollowing conditions and restrictions

I.

(OS]

That this Special Use 1s approved only for the use of the subject property by Robert
A Settecase, owner of MMX3 LLC (Mega Media Xchange), successors and assigns,
as a movies, video games and electronics buy/sell/rental store (with the addition of a
gaming lounge) use, which shall be developed n substantial compliance with, and
operated and maintained by Robert A Settecase, owner of MM X3 LLC (Mega Media
Xchange), pursuant to those plans City file-stamped May 22, 2020 and annexed
hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit A

Robert A Settecase, owner of MMX3 LLC (Mega Media Xchange), successors and
assigns, shall pay to the City of Franklin the amount of all development compliance,
mspection and review fees incurred by the City of Franklin, including fees of consults
to the City of Franklin, for the mowvies, video games and electronics buy/sell/rental
store {with the addition of a gaming lounge) use, within 30 days of invoice for same
Any violation of this provision shall be a violation of the Unified Development
Ordinance, and subject to §15-9 0502 thereof and §1-19 of the Municipal Code, the
general penalties and remedies provistons, as amended from time to time

The approval granted hereunder 1s conditional upon Robert A Settecase, owner of
MMX3 LLC (Mega Media Xchange) and the movies, video games and electronics
buy/sell/rental store (with the addition of a gaming lounge) use for the property
located at 6544 South Lovers Lane Road (Garden Plaza Shopping Center) (1) bewng
in compliance with all applicable governmental laws, statutes, rules, codes, orders and
ordinances, and (11) obtaining all other governmental approvals, permuits, licenses and
the like, required for and applicable to the project to be developed and as presented
for this approval

All signage shall comply with the requirements of Chapter 210 of the Municipal Code
and must receive a Sign Pernmut from the Inspection Services Departiment prior to
installation.



ROBERT A SETTECASE, OWNER OF MMX3 LLC (MEGA MEDIA XCHANGE) -
SPECIAL USE

RESOLUTION NO 2020-

Page 3

S The applicant shall obtamn all necessary approvals from the Health Department prior
to the operation of food and beverage services

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that in the event Robert A Seitecase, owner of
MMX3 LLC (Mega Media Xchange), successors or assigns, or any owner of the subject
property, does not comply with one or any of the conditions and restrictions of this Special

Use Resolution, following a ten (10) day notice to cure, and failure to comply within such
time pertod, the Common Council, upon notice and hearing, may revoke the Special Use
permission granted under this Resolution

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that any wviolation of any term, condition or
restriction of this Resolution 1s hereby deemed to be, and therefore shall be, a violation of the
Unified Development Ordinance, and pursuant to §15-9 0502 thereof and §1-19 of the
Municipal Code, the penalty for such violation shall be a forfeiture of no more than
$2,500 00, or such other maximum amount and together with such other costs and terms as
may be specified therein from time to time. Each day that such violation continues shall be a
separate violation. Failure of the City to enforce any such violation shall not be a waiver of
that or any other violation

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be construed to be such
Special Use Permit as 1s contemplated by §15-9 0103 of the Unified Development
Ordinance

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, pursuant to §15-90103G of the Unified
Development Ordinance, that the Special Use permission granted under this Resolution shall
be null and void upon the expiration of one year from the date of adoption of this Resolution,
unless the Special Use has been established by way of the 1ssuance of an occupancy permit
for such use

BE 1T FINALLY RESOLVED, that the City Clerk be and 1s hereby directed to obtain
the recording of a certified copy of this Resolution 1n the Office of the Register of Deeds for
Milwaukee County, Wisconsin

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
day of , 2020

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of
Frankim this day of , 2020.




ROBERT A SETTECASE, OWNER OF MMX3 LLC (MEGA MEDIA XCHANGE) -
SPECIAL USE

RESOLUTION NO 2020-
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APPROVED

Stephen R Olson, Mayor

ATTEST

Sandra L Wesolowsk1, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT
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REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION
Meeting of July 23, 2020

Special Use

RECOMMENDATION: City Development Staff recommends approval of this Special Use application for
Mega Media Xchange at 5444 S Lover Lane Rd for Used Merchandise Stores (SIC No. 5932 )

Project Name: Mega Media Xchange

Project Address: 6544 S Lovers Lane Rd

Property Owner: Hartland Meadows, LL.C

Applicant: Robert Allen Settecase, Mega Media Xchange (MMX3 LLC)
Zoning: B-3 Community Business District

Use of Surrounding Properties: This property is located within a strip-mall type shopping center
development, with surrounding stores including an Anytime
Fitness, Kumon Math and Reading Center, and Budget Blinds.
To the east there are several residential developments, and to the
west, north, and south there are several car dealerships, a gas
station, and a hardware store.

Applicant Action Requested: Approval of a Special Use Permit

INTRODUCTION:

Mega Media Xchange is a regional business that buys and sells used movies, video games, and electronics.
They have been in business since 1997 and currently operates three locations, including on the east side of
Milwaukee (N. Farwell Ave), in Greenfield (Layton Ave ), and in Brookfield (Bluemound Rd)

Their newly proposed Franklin location at 6544 S Lovers Lane Rd in the Garden Plaza shopping center will
also include a gaming lounge, in which customers will rent gaming computers and systems in an
interactive environment. Mega Media Xchange also plans to serve pizza and non-alcoholic beverages.

The new location in Franklin will operate Monday-Saturday from 10:00 am to 9:00 pm and Sundays from
11:00 am to 7.00 pm

PROJECT DESCRIPTION AND ANALYSIS:

The proposed location of Mega Media Xchange in Franklin at 6544 S Lovers Lane Rd falls within the B-3
Community Business District zoning district. Used merchandise stores may be allowed by Special Use
permit in the B-3 district and are classified under the Standard Industrial Classification (SIC) No. 5932:

5932 Used Merchandise Stores

This industry includes stores primarily engaged in the retail sale of used merchandise, antiques,
and secondhand goods, such as clothing and shoes; furniture; books and rare manuscripts; musical
instruments, office furmiture; phonographs and phonograph records; and store fixtures and
equipment. This industry also includes pawnshops




Mega Media Xchange has submitted a substantially complete application for a special use permut, allowing
for Section § 15-3 0701 of the Unitied Development Ordinance sets out the General Standards for
Special Uses The applicant has submitted 1esponses to each of those standards, asserting that there
will be no undue adverse umpact ot wnterference with surrounding development as a result of this
special use, and that the use will provide adequate public facilities The applicant asserts that theie will
be no undue traffic congestion, no destruction of significant featuies, and that the business will comply
with all standards

The applicant also states that there will be a public benetit to Mega Media Xchange's presence in
Franklin ~The city of Franklin does not a have a business like Mega Media and 1t will seive as a
fanmily entertainment destination to save the customer money from puichasing ttems new and
providing a service to customers that want to sell [their] unwanted 1tems ™

The mtent of the B-3 district 1s to accommodate the needs of a much lairger customer population that
served by the B-1 Neighborhood Shopping Distiict, to provide for a relatively large grouping of
establishments, and to provide for an arrangement or retail trade establishments that are compatible 1n
function and operation Staff believes that this special use 1s 1n harmony with the intent of this zoning
district

UDO Section § 15-3 0703 Detailed Standards for Special Uses 1in Nonresidential Districts does NOT
apply to this project, as the proposed special use not one of the specified special uses in this section

STAKFF RECOMMENDATION:

The Department of City Development staft recommends approval of this application to: Special Use

As the applicant 1s not proposing extertor modifications to the property beyond a new sign (to be permitted
separately), a Site Plan amendment 1s not required at this tme Finally, staft also would like to remind the
apphicant that a permut to serve food and beverages will be needed form the health department, intormation
has already been provided to the applicant regarding this requirement

|§®]
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City of Franklin
Department of City Development

Date June 23, 2020
To Robert Allen Settecase, Mega Media Xchange (MMX3 LL.C)

From Department of City Development Staff
RE Special Use — Mega Media Xchange — 6544 S Lovers Lane Rd

Please be advised that City Staff has reviewed the above application for the Special Use
Permit for Mega Media Xchange at 6544 S Lovers Lane Road The application was
recerved and filed on May 26, 2020, following a consultation with the apphicant at the
beginning of May

Mega Media Exchange buys and sells games and electronics, and at the Franklin location
will also rent gaming equipment and provide an interactive environment serving food and
drinks Used merchandise stores are allowed only by Special Use Permit 1n the B-3
Commumty Busmess District and are classified under the Standard Industrial
Classification (SIS) No 5932

The application 1s substantially complete, and the proposed special use appears to meet
the General Standards for Special Uses as defined in UDO § 15-3 0701 Staff comments
are as follows

Department of City Development

o The application states that the Project Summary should include a description
of any new building construction and site work, interior/extertor moditications
or additions to be made to the property, as well as site improvement costs
This information 1s missing from the project summary Please include this
information 1n a re-submitted project summary so that Department ot City
Development staff can determine 1f a site plan amendment would be needed
for this project

e The operator would need to have a food license to serve pizza at this location,
please contact the Health Department to obtain the appropriate license

e A license from the Clerk’s Office may be required. please call 414-425-7500
for more information

o New signage requires a separate permit from the Inspection Services
Department

o For mformation about required building permits, please contact the Inspection
Services Department

Engineering Department Staff Comments

No comments

Fire Department Staff Comments

The fire department has no comments/concerns at this time



Mega Media Xchange
Project Summary

Mega Media Xchange buys and sells movies. video games. and electronics Also, Mega Mcdia
will be adding a gaming lounge to 1t's Franklin location 1 which customers will rent gaming
computers and sy stems 10 a interactive environment serving pizza and non-alcoholic beverages
['he only work being done inside the space 1s painting the interior walls Mega Media has been in
business for 23 years since 1997 with three current locations

Franklin
JUL 132020
City Development



Planning Department — C’ty of Frankiin Phone (414) 425 4024
§229 West Loonmiis Road Fax (414) 427 7691

Frankhn Wisconsin 53132 rﬂ e Web Site www franklinw: gov
...

Email generalplanmng@ franklinwi gov
Date of Application 05 192020

SPECIAL USE / SPECIAL USE AMENDMENT APPLICATION

Complete, accurate and specific information must be entered Please Print

Applicant (Full Legal Name(s]) Applicant is Represented by (contact person){Full Legal Name(s])
Name Robert Allen Settecase Name
Company Mega Media Xchange Company

i
Mailing Address 1709 N Farwell Ave Mailing Address t

City / State  Milwaukee WI zp 53202 City / State Zip

phone 4147453889 Phone

Emall Address obmmx@gmail com Ematl Address

Project Property Information

Property Address 6544 S Lovers Lane Rd Frankiin Wi Tax Key Nos 705 8997 004

property Owner(s) Hartland Meadows LLC '
PO Box 61 Existing Zoning B3 I‘
Mailing Address Existing Use Amusement Center

City / State  EIm Grove Wi zip 53132 Proposed Use 20d hand dealers hcense garming lounge

Emall Address JInvestmentinc@aol com

Future Land Use Identification  SomMmercial

*The 2025 Comprehensive Master Plan Future Ltand Use Map is available at  http //www. franklinwg gov/Home/ResourcesDocuments/Maps htin

Special Use/Special Use Amendment submittals for review must include and be accompanied by the following

["T This Application form accurately completed with original signature(s} Facsimiles and copies will not be accepted

E] Application Filing Fee payable to City of Franklin [] $1000 Special Use Amendment

[l $1500, New Special Use over 4,000 square feet 1 $750, New Special Use under 4,000 square feet

[T Legal Description for the subject property {WORD doc or compatible format)

[C] One copy of a response to the General Standards, Special Standards {if applicable), and Considerations faund in Section 15 3 0701(A), (B), and (C) of
the Unified Development Qrdinance available at wwaw frankbnwi gov

[[] seven (7) complete callated sets aof Application matenials to mclude |
[[] one (1) original and six {6) copies of a written Project Summary mncluding descripuon of any new building construction and site work, (

interior/exterior building modifications or additions to be made to property, site improvement costs, estimate of project value and any other
information that is avarlable )

1

i

[] three (3) folded full size, drawn to scale copies (at least 24" x 36 ) of the Site Plan/Stte Plan Amendment package (The submuttal should include i
only those plans/items as set forth in Section 17 7 0101, 15 7 0301 and 15 5 0402 of the Unified Development Ordinance thot are impacted by the

development (e g, Site Plan, Building Elevations, Landscape Plan, Outdoor Lighting Plan, Natural Resource Protection Plan, etc ) i

H

|

|

] Four {4) folded reduced size {11"x17"} copies of the Site Plan/Stte Plan Amendment package
7] One colored copy (11"x17") of the building elevations, if applicable
7] Three copies of the Natural Resource Protection Plan and report, if applicable (see Section 15-4 0102 & 15 7 0201 of the UDO)
] Email (or CD ROM) with ail plans/submittal materials Plans must be submitted in both Adobe PDF and AutoCAD compatible format (where applicoble)

*Upon receipt of a complete submittal staff review will be conducted within ten business days
«Special Use/Special Use Amendment requests require Plan Commission review a Public Hearing and Common Council approval

The applicant and property owner(s) hereby certify that (1) all statements and other information suboutted as part of this apphication are true and correct to the best
of applicant’s and property owner(s} knowledge (2) the applicant and property owner(s} has/have read and understand alf information in this application, and (3)
the apphcant and property owner(s) agree that any approvals based on representations made by them m this Application and its submuttal and any subsequenily
1>sued building permits or other type of permits may be revoked without notice if there 1s a breach of such representation(s) or any condition(s) of approval By
execution of thus application, the property owner{s) authonze the City of f ranklin and/or 1ts agents to enter upon the subject property(ies) between the hours of 7 00
am and 7 00 pm dally for the purpose of inspection while the application is under review The property owner(s) grant this authorization even i the property has
been posted against trespassing pursuant to Wis Stat §943 13

{The applicant’s signature must be from a Managing Member if the business is an LLC, or from the President or Vice President if the business Is a corporation A
signed applicant’s authorization letter may be provided in heu of the applicant’s signature below, and a signed property owner’s authorization letter moy be
provided-inlieu of the property owner’s signature[s] below If more than one, all of the owners of the property must sign this Application)

Signatuze ’Properw Owner Slgnatu'e A - T
“(ama vt . zovq gAY %Sé 2 t07~7‘r’/ PR
Name & Title (PRINT) . Name & Title {PRIN
Date 2 l 11[ 20 Date N ;, 9 9‘ ad
5 1T
Signature Property Owner Signature Applicant s Representative I"l [ARRALNLL] ‘

Nome & Tiie TP — Name & Title (PRINT oaie M AY 2 2 2[)2[)
City Development




EXHIBIT A
LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF THE SHOPPING CENTER

PARCEL No 1 and No 2,

Parcels 1 and 2 of Certified Survey Map No 5375 recorded in the office of the Register of
Deeds for Milwaukee County, Wisconsin, on February 15, 1990 in Volume 2420 of Certified
Survey Maps, at page 890, as Document No 6354945, being a re-division of Parcel 1 of Certified
Survey Map No 3247, Outlot 2 of Whitnall Edge Subdivision and unplatted lands in the Northwest
“a and the Southwest ¥4 of the Northwest ¥ of Section 5, Township 5 North, Range 21 East Said
lands being in the City of Franklin, County of Milwaukee, State of Wisconsin

PARCEL No 2,

CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO 5375, BEING A RE-DIVISION OF PARCEL NO 1 OF
CSM NO 3247, OUTLOT 2 OF WHITNAL EDGE SUBDIVISION, AND UNPLATTED LANDS
IN THE NORTHWEST ¥4 AND THE SOUTHWEST % OF THE NORTHWEST V. OF SECTION 5,
TOWN 5 NORTH, RANGE 21 EAST, IN THE CITY OF FRANKLIN, COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE,
STATE OF WISCONSIN, as recorded Iin the office of the Register of Deeds for Milwaukee County,
Wisconsin on February 15, 1990 at reel 2420, Image 890 to 893 inclusive, as Document No
6354945
Tax Key No, for Parcel No , 1 705-8997-003

Tax Key No , for Parcel No , 2 705-8997-004

Franklin
MAY 22 2020
vy Development



DIVISION 15-3.0700 SPECIAL USE STANDARDS AND REGULATIONS
SECTION 15-3.0701 GENERAL STANDARDS FOR SPECIAL USES

A. General Standards. No special use permit shall be recommended or granted pursuant to
this Ordinance unless the applicant shall establish the following

1 Ordinance and Comprehensive Master Plan Purposes and Intent. The proposed use and
development will be 1n harmony with the general and spectfic purposes for which this Ordinance
was enacted and for which the regulations of the zoning district in question were eslablished
and with the general purpose and intent of the City of Franklin Comprehensive Master Plan or
element thereof

Response: Mega Media Xehange has always been o good neighbor in the city it s located and
plans to follow the city of Frankim regulations it has set forth.

N

No Undue Adverse Impact. The proposed use and development will not have a substantial or undue
adverse or detnimental effect upon or endanger adjacent property, the chaiacter of the area, or the
public health, safety, morals, comfort, and general welfare and not substantially diminish and impair
property values within the community or neighborhood

Respoase: Wy curreat three locations fiave never had adverse effects on any wdjacent
properties and that will not change with the nen location.

wa

No Interference with Surrounding Development. The proposed use and development will be
constructed, arranged, and operated so as not to dominate the immediate vicinity or to interferc
with the use and development of neighboring property 1n accordance with the apphcable zoning
district regulations

Response: My current three locutions have never interfered with surrounding development
and that will not change with tie new location,

4 Adequate Public Facilities. The proposed use and development will be served
adequately by essential public facilities and services such as streets, public utilities including
public water supply system and sanitary sewer, police and fire protection, refuse disposal. public
parks, hibraries, schools, and other public faciltties and utilities or the applicant will provide
adequately for such facilities

Respouse. The space has alf these irems addressed and it will st that wav if T occupy the
spce.

5 No Traffic Congestion. The proposed use and development will not cause undue traffic
congestion nor draw significant amounts of traffic through residenual stleetﬁr@@kﬁmte
measures will be taken to provide ingress and egress so designed as to minmize traffic

W\\v x azu

Page |
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congestion n the public streets

Response: The curient spuce hias plendy of parhing and ny customer base visits the store
consistently throughour the day.

No Destruction of Significant Features. The proposed use and development will not result in
the destruction, loss, or damage of any natural, scenic, or historic feature of significant
1mportance.

Response: This does not apply as it iy an existing space with no ontside alterations besides 4
SIgH.

Compliance with Standards. The special use shall. in all other respects, conform to the
applicable regulations of the district in which 1t 1s located, except as such regulations may.
in each instance, be modified by the Common Council pursuant to the recommendations of the
Plan Commission The proposed use and development shall comply with all additional
standards imposed on it by the particular provision of this Division and Ordinance authorizing
such use

Response: Megu Media will conform with all rules and regulations for the city of Franklin.

Special Standards for Specified Special Uses. When the zomng district regulations authorize
a special use in a particular zoning district and that special use is indicated as having special
standards, as set forth in Section 15-3 0702 and 15-3.0703 of this Division, a Special Use
Pernut for such use i such zoning district shall not be recommended or granted unless the
applicant shall establish compliance with all such special standards

Response: Blega Media will conform with all rudes and regulations for all special stundards
Jor the city of Franilia.

Considerations In determining whether the apphcant's evidence establishes that the foregoing
standards have been met, the Plan Commission and the Common Council shall consider the
following

Public Benefit Whether and to what extent the proposed use and development at the particular
location requested is necessary or destrable to provide a service or a facility that is in the interest

of the public convenience or that will contiibute to the general welfare of the neighborhood or
community

Response: The city of Fianhlin does not « have a business lthe Mega Yiedus and it will seirve

as a fumily eatortammeiit destinatioa to save the custonier money from purchasing
irenn nen asd providung a service to customness that want to sell there unwanted itens,

Page | 2
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Alternative Locations Whether and to what extent such public goals can be met by the location
of the proposed use and development at some othet site or in some other area that may be more
appropriate than the proposed site

Response: Mega Medwa hay had a location i Broohfield since 1998 with the same landlord
and v ouly considering this location because of the relativnship they lave with the
{andiord.

Mitigation of Adverse Impacts Whether and to what extent all steps possible have been taken
to minimize any adverse effects of the proposed use and development on the immediate vicinity
through building design, site design. landscaping, and screening.

fesporse: Hega Vedw fiey always iad only positive affects with it’s curreni locations for 23

years and this wifl not change with 4 nen location.

Establishment of Precedent of Incompatible Uses in the Surrounding Area. Whether the
use will establish a precedent of, or encourage, more mtensive or incompatible uses in the
surrounding area

Response: Mega Media 1s the only store that offers what it has and will ot affect other stores
in Frankiin.

Page | 3
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APPROVAL REQUEST FOR MEETING

DATE
/ COUNCIL ACTION
[ 08/04/20
REPORTS & RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CERTAIN | ITEM NUMBER
OFFICIALS TO ACCEPT A

RECOMMENDATIONS | CONSERVATION EASEMENT FORANDAS | (5~ /.
PART OF THE APPROVAL OF A
CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP FOR SCOTT A.
MAYER AND SUSANNE MAYER AT 9533
W RYAN ROAD

City Development staff recommends approval of a resolution authorizing certain
officials to accept a conservation easement for and as part of the approval of a
Certified Survey Map for Scott A. Mayer and Susanne Mayer at 9533 W Ryan Road
subject to technical corrections by the City Attorney.

On July 7, 2020, the applicant submitted a conservation easement for Common
Council approval to comply with condition No. 7 of the Certified Survey Map
Resolution No. 2019-7493:

Applicant shall provide a conservation easement for the Natural Resource
Preservation requirement for Mature Woodlands shown on proposed Lot 2 and
for Wetlands shown on Lot 1 per UDO Section 15-7.0201K prior to filing for a
building permit on either property.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

A motion to adopt Resolution No. 2020- , authorizing certain officials to accept
a conservation easement for and as part of the approval of a Certified Survey Map for
Scott A. Mayer and Susanne Mayer at 9533 W Ryan Road, subject to technical
corrections by the City Attorney.

Department of City Development: RMM



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN MILWAUKEE COUNTY
RM [7-28-2020]
RESOLUTION NO. 2020-

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CERTAIN OFFICIALS TO ACCEPT A
CONSERVATION EASEMENT FOR AND AS PART OF THE APPROVAL OF A
CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP FOR SCOTT A. MAYER AND SUSANNE MAYER AT
9533 WRYAN ROAD

WHEREAS, the Common Council having approved Certified Survey Map No. 9163
upon the application of Scott A. Mayer and Susanne Mayer, on May 21, 2019, and the Plan
Commission having conditioned approval thereof in part upon Common Council approval of
a Conservation Easement to protect the mature woodlands, wetlands, wetland buffers and
setbacks, on the site; and

WHEREAS, §15-7.0702.P of the Unified Development Ordinance requires the
submission of a Conservation Easement and Natural Resource Protection Plan in the
Certified Survey Map review process and the Unified Development Ordinance requires
conservation easements to be imposed for natural resource features identified within such
Plan to protect such features, all as part of the approval process for a Certified Survey Map;
and

WHEREAS, the City Engineering Department, Department of City Development and
the Office of the City Attorney having reviewed the proposed Conservation Easement and
having recommended approval thereof to the Common Council.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Common Council of
the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, that the Conservation Easement submitted by Scott A.
Mayer and Susanne Mayer, in the form and content as annexed hereto, be and the same is
hereby approved, subject to technical corrections by the City Attorney; and the Mayor and
City Clerk are hereby authorized to execute such Easement as evidence of the consent to and
acceptance of such easement by the City of Franklin.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Clerk be and the same is hereby
directed to obtain the recording of the Conservation Easement in the Office of the Register of
Deeds for Milwaukee County, Wisconsin.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
day of , 2020.




A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CERTAIN OFFICIALS TO ACCEPT A
CONSERVATION EASEMENT

SCOTT A. MAYER AND SUSANNE MAYER

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-

Page 2
Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of
Franklin this day of , 2020.
APPROVED:

Stephen R. Olson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT



CONSIERVATION FASE MEN

Reserved for Recording

Name and Return Address
City of Franklin

¢ o City Clerk

9229 West L oonus Road
Franklm W1 s3132

894-9998-002
Parcel ldentification Number(s)

CONSERVATION EASEMENT

9533 West Ryan Road

This Conservation easement ts made by and between the C11Y OF FRANKLIN, a munieipal corporation of the State of
Wisconsin herematter referred to as *Grantee.” and Scott A Mayer and Susanne Mayer hereinatter reterred to as* Grantor
and shall become effective upon the recording of this Grant of Conservation Easement, together with the Acceptance

followmg with the Olfice of the Register ot Deeds for Milwaukee County, pursuant to §700 40(2)(b) of the Wisconsin
Statutes

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, Grantor 1s the owner i fee simple of certain real property located within the City of Frankhn
Milwaukee County Wisconsin described as Certified Survey Map No 9163 being a redivision ot Lot 2, Certified Survey
Map No 7363 being a part of the West 'z of the East ' 2 of the Northeast Quarter of Section 29, Township 5 North Range 21
East, as recorded i DOC #10910841, recorded with the Milwaukee County Register of Deeds, on September 26 2019 and
as described in Exhibit A attached hercto Only those portions of Lot 1| and Lot 2 of saud property which lay within the
boundaries of Lot | and or Lot 2 and contain mature woodland grove and delineated wetlands as idenufied i the metes and

bounds description in Exhibit B Legal Description ot Conservation Easement, attached hereto are hereby made protected
property as set forth herein

WHEREAS the Grantor desires and intends that the natural elements and the ecological and aesthetic values of the
protected property ncludimg without himitation  mature woodlands young woodlands, ponds streams floodplams
floodways floodlands. shore bufters wetland bufters wetland setbacks wetlands and shoretand wetlands and referred to

l



Lxhibit B | egal Description of Conservation Fasement to be preserved and mamtamed by the continuation of land use that
will not nterfere with or substantially disrupt the natural elements or the workings of natural systems and

WHEREAS Grantee 1s a holder™ as contemplated by §700 40(1)b)!1 of the Wisconsin Statutes whose purposes
mclude while exercising regulatory authonty granted to 1t mter afiv under §62 23 and §236 45 of the Wisconsin Statutes
the conservation of land natural areas open space and water arcas and

WHEREAS, the Grantor and Grantee by the conveyance to the Grantee of the conservation casement on, over and
across the protected property desire to conserve the natural values thereot and prevent the use or development of the
protected property for any purpose or i any manner meonsistent with the terms of this conservation easement and

WHFRFAS the Grantee 1s willing to accept this conservation easement subject to the reservations and to the covenants
terms conditions and restrictions set out herewmn and unmposed hereby

NOW THEREFORE, the Grantor for and 1n consideration of the foregoing recitations and of the mutual covenants
lerms, conditions, and restricttons subsequently contained and as an absolute and unconditional dedication does hereby grant
and convey unto the Grantee a conservation easement in perpeturty on over and across the protected property

Grantee’s rights hereunder shall consist solely of the following

I To view the protected property n its natural, scenic and open condition

2 To enforce by proceeding at law or in equity the covenants subsequently set forth, mcluding and in addition to all other
enforcement proceedmngs, proceedings to obtam all penalties and remedies set forth under Division 135-9 0500 of the
Unified Development Ordmance of the City of Frankhn, as amended from time to tume any violation of the covenants
subsequently set forth being and constituting a violation of such Umified Development Ordinance as amended from time
to time or such local applicable ordinance as may be later adopted or m effect to enforce such covenants or the purposes
for which they are made, 1t beng agreed that there shall be no waiver or forferture of the Grantec s night to Insure
compliance with the covenants and conditions of this grant by reason of any prior fatlure to act. and

To enter the protected property at all reasonable times for the purpose of inspecting the protected property to deternune tf
the Grantor 1s complying with the covenants and conditions of this grant

(oS}

And In furtherance of the foregoing affirmative nghts of the Grantee, the Grantor makes the following covenants which shall

run with and bind the protected property in perpetuity namely that on over or across the protected property the Grantor
without the prior consent of the Grantee shall not
I Construct or place buildings or any structure,

2 Construct or make any improvements, unless notwithstanding Covenant | above, the improvement s spectfically and
previously approved by the Common Council of the City of Franklin upon the advice of such other persons entities and
agencies as it may elect, such improvements as may be so approved beimng intended to enhance the resource value of the
protected property to the environment or the public and including, but not hmited to animal and bird feedmy stations
park benches the removal of anmmal blockage of natural dramage or other occurring blockage of natural drainage and
the like,

3 Excavate dredge grade mune, drill or change the topography of the land or ts natural condiion I any manner
including any cutting or removal of vegetation, except for the removal of dead or diseased trees

4 Conduct any filling, dumping, or depositing of any material whatsoever, including but not limited to soul yard waste or
other landscape materials, ashes. garbage or debris

5 Plant any vegetation not native to the protected property or not typical wetland vegetation

6

Operate snowmobitles dune buggies, motorcycles all-terramn vehicles or any other types of motorized vehicles

To have and to hold this conservation easement unto the Grantee forever Fxcept as expressly hinuted herem, the Grantor
reserves all rights as owner of the protected property including but not linited to, the night to use the protected property for
all purposes not inconsistent with this grant Grantor shall also have the right pursuant to Division 15-4 0102(2)(d) of the
Unified Development Ordinance of the City of Frankhn to remove up to thirty percent (30°0) of the mature woodlands at
Grantor’s discretion Grantor shall be responsible for the payment of all general property taxes levied assessed or accruing
agamst the protected property pursuant to law

The covenants terms conditions and restrictions set forth in this grant shall be binding upon the Grantor and the Grantee and

ther respective agents personal representatives heirs successors and assigns and shall consuitute servitudes running with

the protected property in perpetuity  This grant may not be amended except by a writing exccuted and delivered by Grantor
2



and Grantee or their respective personal representatives heirs, successors and assigns  Notices to the parties shall be
personally delivered or matled by U S Mail registered man! return receipt requested as tollows

To Grantor To Grantee

Scott A Mayer and Susanne Mayer City of Frankln

9733 Rvan Road Office of the City Clerk
Frankim, WI 53132 9220 W Loomis Road

Frankhn Wisconsin S3132

In witness whereof, the grantor has set its hand and seals this on this date of 2020

Scott A Mayer

By — —
Susanne Mayer
STATE OF WISCONSIN )
}ss
COUNTY OF Ml WAUKEE )
This mstrument was acknowledged before me on the day of 2020 by Scott A Mayer and Susanne

Maver

[0 me known to be the person(s) who executed the foregoing £ asement and acknowledged the same as the voluntary act and
deed ot said Scott A Mayer and Susanne Mayer owners

Notary Public

My commission expires

Acceptance
The undersigned does hereby consent to and accepts the Conservation Easement granted and conveyed to 1t under and
pursuant to the foregoing Grant of Conservation Fasement In consideration of the making of such Grant Of Conservation
Easement the undersigned agrees that this acceptance shall be binding upon the undersigned and 1ts successors and assigns
and that the restrictions imposed upon the protected property mav only be released or waived n writing by the Comnmon
Counctl of the City of Franklin, as contemplated by §236 293 of the Wisconsin Statutes

In witness whereof the undersigned has executed and delivered this acceptance on the dav of 2020

CITY OF FRANKI IN

gtephen?O lson Mavor

Se;dmL Wesolowsk Clt\félerk

(98]



STATE OF WISCONSIN )
) ss
COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE )

Personally came before me this dav of

2020 the above named Stephen R Olson

Mayor and Sandra L. Wesolowskr City Clerk of the above named municipal corporation City ot T ranklm to me known to
be such Mayor and City Clerk of satd municipal corporation and acknowledged that thev executed the foregoing mstrument
as such officers as the Deed of said municipal corporation by its authority and pursuant to Resolution No adopted

by its Common Council on the day of

This instrument was drafted by the City of Franhlin

Approved as to contents

Regulo Martinez-Montilva, Associate Planner
Department ot City Development

Approved as to form only

Jesse A Wesolowsk
City Attorney

, 2020

Notary Public

My commission expires

Date

Date



CONSENT OF CORPORATE MORTGAGFEFE

a corporation dulv organized and ewvsting under and by virtue of the laws of the State of
Wisconsin mortgagee of the above described land, does hereby consent to the surveymg dividing and mapping ot the land

described on the map and does hereby consent to the above certificate of . owners
IN WITNESS WHLEREFOF, the sad . o has caused these presents to be siened by
e ] and countersigned by
ws o at o Wisconsin and s corporate seal to be hereunto
aftixed this day of 2020
In presence ot
( Corporate Seal)
Corporate Name Countersigned
State of Wisconsin )
)ss
County of )
Personally came before me ths day of . 2020,
_ o o and of said corporation and acknowledged that they executed

the foregoing instrument as such officers as the deed of said corporation by 1ts authority

W isconsin

My commission expires

W



ARC

(262) 542-8200

FORM ARC-101

CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP No. 4103

Being a redivision of Lot 2, Certified Survey Map No 7363, being a part of the West one

-half of the East one-half of
the Northeast Quarter of Section 29, Town 5 North, Range 21 East, City of Franklin, Mil

waukee County, Wisconsin

Prepared By Prepared For Lot Detail
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(262) 542-8200

FORM ARC- 101

CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP No. 9/(s3

Beng a redivision of Lot 2, Certified Survey Map No 7363, being a part of the West one-half of the East one-half of
the Northeast Quarter of Section 29, Town 5 North, Range 21 East, City of Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin

Legend

¢ mdicates 1" wron pipe found NOTE

® ndicates 1 25" wron pipe found. - Wetland/NRPE data provided by Graef,

0 mdicates 1 315" won pipe set Lot Detail dehmeatton and descriptions are by seperate
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ARC

(262) 542-8200

FORM ARC-1G1

CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP No. (&3

Being a redivision of Lot 2, Certified Survey Map No 7363, being a part of the West one-half of the East one-half of

the Northeast Quarter of Section 29, Town 5 North, Range 21 East, City of Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin
NATURAL RESOURCES PROTECTION EASEMENT
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ARC”

(262) 542-8200

N

FORM ARC-101

CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP No Q((3

Being a redivision of Lot 2, Certified Survey Map No 7363, being a part of the West one-half of the East one-half of
the Northeast Quarter of Section 29, Town 5 North, Range 21 East, City of Frankln, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin
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ARC

(262) 542-8200

FORM ARC-101

CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP No. (03

Beng a redivision of Lot 2, Certified Survey Map No 7363, bemg a part of the West one-half of the East one-half of
the Northeast Quarter of Section 29, Town 5 North, Range 21 East, City of Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin

SURVEYORS CERTIFICATE

State of Wisconsim)
County of Jefferson) SS

I, Paul ] Hilmer, surveyor, do hereby certify- That [ have surveyed, divided and mapped a redivision of Lot 2, Cernfied
Survey Map No 7363, bemg a part of the West one-half of the East one-half of the Northeast Quarter of Section 29, Town 5
North, Range 21 East, City of Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin

Said lands containing 1574339 5 square feet or 36 14 Acres of land.

That I have made such survey and map by the direction of Scott A Mayer, owner of said land
That such map 1s a correct representation of all extenior boundaries of the land surveyed an the land division thereof made

That [ have fully comphed with the provisions of Chapter 236 34 of the Wisconsin Statutes and the subdivision regulations of
the City of Frankim m surveymng and mapping the same.

Dged)tlus th day of Iﬁxmw
\

Paul j\}kﬁi{el&-——/

Professional Land Surveyor # 2496
Hilmer & Associates, LLC

NOTES
- The contours have been traced from Milwaukee County GIS mapping system.
- The Outlot 1 Wetland location, Mature Woodland Conservancy Area and Natural resource Protection Easement have all

been derived from Certified Survey Map No 7363 dated January 30th, 2004, Lots 1 and 2 per Graef dated Apnl 15,2019
- All bmldings on Lot 2 shall be removed.

Rev 4/30/19 Rev 8/9/19
Rev 4/28/19  Rev 8/1/19
Rev 2/14/19 Rev 7/23/19 Rev 8/12/19

This instrument drafted by Paul J Hilmer Sheet _ 5 of 7 sheets



ARC

(262) 542-8200

FORM ARC-101

CERTIFIED SURVEY MAPNo 4163

Being a redivision of Lot 2, Certified Survey Map No 7363, being a part of the West one-half of the East one-half of
the Northeast Quarter of Section 29, Town 5 North, Range 21 East, City of Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin

OWNER'S CERTIFICATE

As owners, We hereby certify that we have caused the land described on this map to be surveyed, divided and mapped as
represented on this map We also certify that this map 1s required by Chapter 236 34 of the Wisconsin Statutes and the
Subdivision Regulations of the City of Franklin and must be submtted to the following for approval

1) City of Franklin

r'.\
Witness and seal of said owner this / 9 day of Qﬂj /89 ‘[ ,20 _'_9_

\
Scqtt Mayer, Owner

State of Wisconsin)

MNlwaukee ‘Wisconsin) SS

h
Personally came before me thus K day of ﬂww of ,20 )9 Scott and Susanne Mayer,

Owners, to me known to be the persons whom executed the foregoing wstrument and acknox‘x‘rllﬁ'dged the same
\\\\\\\ 'III;,I
R M

e Mayer, Owner

- WG, W "
(Notary seal) Ww Mm ﬂﬂ/w . \\\\\‘\\(,ER M ”1/,,,, St G O’///,///
Notary Public,]  Ndwau bos , Wisconsin N O %2 2%
My commussion expires __Y)oJef~ AOTAR) ‘\OTA‘R.)’ :2
2 o - s E
e < PyUBL <3
i S
v o
s 0 )Z:OF SO
L0 o
CONSENT OF CORPORATE MORTGAGEE : \?\\“‘ g

, a corporation duly organized and existing under and by virtue of the laws of the State of
Wisconsin, mortgagee of the above described land, does hereby consent to the surveyy(qlwdmg and mappimng of the land
described on this map, and does hereby consent to the above certificate of , OWners

IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, the said has cauged these presen be signed by
1S _, and countersigned by , ,at s
Wisconsin, and 1its corporate seal to be hereunto affixed this . , dax of / ,20

Bl W N O O N
AR N

) {
County) §S \
e before ¥pe this day @ ,20 s

 an \ 3 , of said corporation, and acknowledged that
they executed the tregomg mst?&@tj such officers as the deed of said corporation, by its authonty

State of Wiscons

(Notary Seal) A
Notary Public, | , Wisconsin \“‘:\{&,\5(; On e,{:;//(,

My commmssion expires

Rev 4/30/19 Rev 8/9/19
Rev 4/28/19 Rev 8/1/19 )
Rev 2/14/19 Rev 772319 Rev 8/12/19

This instrument drafted by Paul J Hilmer




ARC

(262) 542-8200

FORMARC 101

CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP No. 463

Being a redivision of Lot 2, Certified Survey Map No 7363, being a part of the West one-half of the East one-half of
the Northeast Quarter of Section 29, Town 5 North, Range 21 East, City of Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsm

COMMON COUNCIL APPROVAL

Approved and accepted by the Common Council of the City of Franklin, by Resolution No Ko/ i - 71 723
onthis_ o2/ 5T | dayof mMay ,2019

20

\) U
STEVE OLEON - %YOR ~VoF FR4 .{V,'é’c
1 / S IS
s W ;c\):. ."/1”,
SANDRA L WESOLOWSKI - CLERK i -
g, SEAL
‘I/ 'I'&""-.. é‘\\\
’//40 . "% \\
’, /TEE co\\)\\\\‘

DocC. # 10910841
RECORDED
09/26/2019 10.39 apm
ISRAEL RAMON
REGISTER OF pEEDS
MILWAUKEE COUNTY, wy

AMOUNT 10 00
—

Rev 4/30/19 Rev 8/9/19
Rev 4/28/19 Rev 8/1/19
Rev 2/14/19 Rev 7/23/19 Rev 81219

This instrument drafted by Paul J Hilmer




STATT ZF WISCONSIN

Mic,  UREF COUNTY

b« undersizned Register of Deeds of Milwaukee
Co-tiry hereby certfy that this document Is a true
and carrect copy of the original on file or record In
my office  Witnass my hand and official seal this

SEP 262019

Date

Ism% /// k——.————_\
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LINE TABLE LINE TABLE
LINE # | LENGTH DIRECTION LINE # | LENGTH DIRECTION

L 952" | S45°0718"W L17 74 20" | N75°39'04"W

L2 21 03" | S03'5910"W L18 9318 | S00'5412"W

L3 40 55’ | S36"11'03"W L19 43 51" | N74°08'55"W

L4 39 40" | S55"10°05"W L20 37 41" | NO7°44'08"E

L5 68 59" | S0914'28"E L21 21.75" | N22'33'46"W

L& 32.67" | S32°31'48"E L22 16.94" | S72°54'11"W

L7 3323 | S21°04'02"E L23 12 99" | N57°42'09"W

L8 2199 | S5319°08"E L24 18.60" | NO515°07"W

Lo 83.41" | S36'30'47"E L25 24.43" | N52°09"13"E

L10 8 31 N50'51'35"E L26 57.35" | S78'35'57"E

L11 88.38" | S81°58'44"E L27 47.66" | N41'56'37"W

L12 88.40" | S00'54'12"W L28 25.08" | N57°24'09"E

L13 55 02" | SB1'55'37"W L29 48 68" | S63°36'15"E

L14 3193 | S35M14'46"W L30 27.70' | S20°02'53"E

L15 32,73 | S69°03'03"W L31 27.27' | S85'33°40"W

L16 65 60" | S82°59'52"W L32 15.21" | N86"56'15"W

CURVE TABLE
CURVE # | LENGTH | RADIUS | DELTA CHORD LENGTH | CHORD BEARING | TANGENT
C1 116 21" | 57.29" | 116"13'26" 97.29’ N3318'50"E 92 08’
C2 66 58" | 5158 | 73'57'46”" 62 05’ N42°50'23"E 38 84
C3 4593 | 6955 | 37'5013" 45.10' S86"17'31"E 2384’
C4 80.87' | 59 46’ | 77°55'29" 74 78’ S22°48'25"E 48 09’
— | |
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LEGAL DESCRIPTION CONSERVATION EASEMENT

Easement 1

All that part of the Nartheast 1/4 of the Northeast 1/4 of Section 29 Township 5 North Range 21 East in the City of Frankiin Milwaukee County
Wisconsin more particularly described as follows

Commencing at the Northeast corner of said Northeast 1/4

THENCE South 89°35 54" West 661 29 feet along the North ine of said Northeast 1/4

THENCE South 00°54 12 West 65 02 feet to the Northeast corner of Lot 2 of Certified Survey Map numbered 9163 recorded in the office of the
Register of Deeds for Waukesha County

THENCE South 89°35 34 West along the North ine of said Certified Survey Map 310 73 feet to the point of beginning

THENCE South 45°07'18 West 9 52 feet

THENCE South 3°59 10" West 21 03 feet

THENCE South 36°11 03 ' West 40 55 feet

THENCE South 5§5°10'05' West 39 40 feet

THENCE South 9°14'28" East 68 59 feet

THENCE South 32°31'48" East 32 67 feet

THENCE South 21°04'02 East 33 23 feel

THENCE South 563°19'08 East 21 99 feet

THENCE South 36°30'47 East 83 41 feet

THENCE North 50°51'35" East, 8 31 feet to the beginning of a non-tangent curve concave southeasterly sard curve has a radws of 57 29 feet to
which a radiat ine bears South 65°12'07" West

THENCE northeasterly along said curve through a central angle of 116°13'26" an arc distance of 116 21 feet to the beginning of a non-tangent
curve concave southeasterly said curve has a radius of 51 58 feet to which a radial hne bears North 84°08 30" West

THENCE northeasterly along sawd curve through a central angle of 73°57'46" an arc distance of 66 58 feet to the beginning of a non-tangent curve
concave southerly said curve has a radwus of 69 55 feet to which a radial ine bears North 15°1237 West

THENCE easterly along satd curve through a central angle of 37°50'13 an arc distance of 45 93 feet to the begmning of a non-tangent curve
concave southwesterly said curve has a radius of 59 46 feet to which a radial hne bears North 28°13 50" East

THENCE sputheasterly along said curve through a central angle of 77°55'29 an arc distance of 80 87 feet

THENCE South 81°58 44" East 88 38 feet to the East ine of said Lot 2

THENCE South 0°54 12 West along the East Iine of said Lot 2 88 40 feet

THENCE South 81°55'37" West 55 02 feet to a Point A

THENCE South 35°14'46" West 31 93 feet

THENCE South 69°03'03" West 32 73 feet

THENCE South 82°59'52"' West 65 60 feet to the South line of sad Lot 2

THENCE North 89°06 03' West along the South line of said Lot 2 and onto the South hine of Lot 1 of said Certified Survey Map 221 17 feet
THENCE North 75°3904 West 74 20 feet to the West ine of said Lot 1

THENCE North 0°53'39 ' East along the West Iine of said Lot 1 360 51 feet to the North line of said Lot 1

THENCE North 89°35 54 East along the North Iine of said Lot 1 150 50 feet to the point of beginning

EXCEPTING therefrom the following described parcel of land
Commencing at satd Point A

THENCE North 01°41'00 East 25 86 feet to the point of beginning
THENCE (1) North 41°56 37" West 47 66 feet

THENCE (2) North 57°24 09' East 25 08 feet

THENCE (3) South 63°36'15"' East 48 68 feet

THENCE (4) South 20°02'53" East 27 70 feet

THENCE (5) South 85°3340 West 27 27 feet

THENCE (6) North 86°56 15" West 15 21 feet to the potnt of beginning

Containing 96 538 square feet (2 126 acres) more or less

| || |
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LEGAL DESCRIPTION CONSERVATION EASEMENT

Easement 2

All that part of the Northeast 1/4 of the Northeast 1/4 of Section 29 Township 5 North Range 21 East in the City of Franklin Milwaukee County
Wisconsin more particularly described as follows

Commencing at the Northeast corner of said Northeast 1/4

THENCE South 89°3554 West 661 29 feet along the North line of said Northeast 1/4

THENCE South 00°54 12 West 65 02 feet to the Northeast corner of Lot 2 of Certified Survey Map numbered 9163 recorded in the office of the
Register of Deeds for Waukesha County

THENCE continuing South 00°54'12 West along the East line of said Lot 2 91 06 feet to the point of beginning
THENCE continuing South 0°54'12" West along the East line of said Lot 2 93 18 feet

THENCE North 74°08'55" West 43 51 feet

THENCE North 7°44 08" East 37 41 feet,

THENCE North 22°33 46" West 2175 feet

THENCE South 72°54 11" West 16 94 feet

THENCE North 57°42 09" West 12 99 feet

THENCE North 5°1507 West 18 60 feet

THENCE North 52°09 13 East 24 43 feet

THENCE South 78°3557 East 57 35 feet to the point of beginning

Containing 4 816 square feet (0 111 acres) more or less

] | |

.
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APPROVAL REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION MTG. DATE
o August 4, 2020
Reports & RESOLUTION FOR GRAEF-USA, INC. ITEM NO.
Recommendations TO DESIGN THE S. 116™ STREET TRAIL FOR $150,000 6.‘ /‘ 2 \
BACKGROUND

Earlier this year, Franklin submitted the S. 116" Street Trail for a Transportation Alternatives Program (TAP)
grant. The project was not selected in the Milwaukee Metropolitan Planning Organization process and it appears
that it will not be selected at the State level.

This is an important project for Franklin and Staff is bringing this to the Common Council for consideration to
self-fund using Park Impact Fees with other matching City funds.

ANALYSIS

This trail would extend from W. Loomis Road / Waukesha County line vicinity along the WE Energies easement
(Inner Urban Rail corridor) northeast to S 116%™ Street and up the west side of S. 116" Street in the WE Energies
easement to the St. Martins area and connect to the current paved trail. The total length is about 2.5 miles and
construction 1s estimated to cost $1.5 million. This construction estimate will be updated during the design
process

There are significant drainage and wetland issues, natural features, physical constraints, and many other items that
must be addressed for the planning and design of this trail. Mary Beth Pettit, P.E. with GRAEF, has assisted the
City in conversations with the Milwaukee County Parks Department concerning this trail and is Staff’s preferred
consultant for this project. Staff has reviewed the proposal and the hourly rates are in-line with other comparable
engineering consultants.

The enclosed GRAEF agreement is an hourly, not-to-exceed contract that will extend through construction (2021).
Staff will review invoices and compare to progress on project.

Construction documents are expected to be ready for bidding on or before February 26, 2021. Common Council
may consider constructing in 2021 or later. The next TAP grant round will be in 2022. This project would be
more competitive 1f the design documents were completed.

There are approximately $40K of impact fees that are at the end of the holding period by the end of 2020, and
another $80K that are at the end of the holding period in the first half of 2020. This design project an excellent
match for use of those funds.

FISCAL NOTE

The total project budget is assumed to be $1 7 million. Trails design and construction are eligible for 71%
reimbursement ($1,065,000) from the Park Impact Fees. And the match ($435,000) would be from landfill siting
fees. The 2020 Capital Improvement Fund includes a $285,000 appropriation for Trails, Bicycle Routes &
linkages. There 1s sufficient funding 1n the Capital Improvement fund for this project’s planning,.

OPTIONS
A Authorize GRAEF to perform the planning and design for this trail. Or
B. Refer back to Staff with further direction.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

(Option A) Resolution 2020- a resolution for GRAEF-USA, Inc. to design the S. 116th Street Trail for
$150,000.

Engineering: GEM




STATE OF WISCONSIN : CITY OF FRANKLIN : MILWAUKEE COUNTY
RESOLUTION NO. 2020 -

A RESOLUTION FOR GRAEF-USA, INC. TO DESIGN THE
S. 116TH STREET TRAIL FOR $150,000

WHEREAS, the City of Franklin has long desired to construct a trail from the W. Loomis Road /
Waukesha County line vicinity along the WE Energies easement (Inner Urban Rail corridor) northeast to
S. 116th Street and up the west side of S. 116th Street in the WE Energies easement to the St. Martins
area and connect to a current paved trail; and

WHEREAS, Franklin has been unsuccessful in 2020 to obtain Transportation Alternatives
Program (TAP) grant funding, and

WHEREAS, the City has sufficient funding available, including the accumulated Park Impact
Fees to self-fund this project; and

WHEREAS, GRAEF-USA, Inc. has provided support services related to this project and is
qualified to perform the services needed to assist Franklin in the development, design, permitting, and
construction of the project.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Common Council of the City of
Franklin, Wisconsin, to authorize a professional services contract be executed for the design of the S.
116th Street Tratl for a not-to-exceed amount of $150,000.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin the
day of , 2020, by Alderman

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Common Council of the City of Franklin on the
day of , 2020

APPROVED:

Stephen R. Olson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT



This AGREEMENT, made and entered into this ____ day of
Franklin, 9229 West Loomis Road, Franklin, Wisconsin 53132 (hereinafter “CLIENT”) and Graef-
USA Inc (heremafter “CONSULTANT”), whose principal place of business is 275 W. Wisconsin

AGREEMENT

between

the City of Franklin

and

Graef-USA Inc

For
Professional Architectural and Engineering Services

Avenue, Suite 300, Milwaukee, WI 53203

WHEREAS, the CONSULTANT is duly qualified and experienced as a municipal services

WITNESSETH

consultant and has offered services for the purposes specified in this AGREEMENT; and

WHEREAS, in the judgment of CLIENT, it is necessary and advisable to obtain the services

of the CONSULTANT to provide the S. 116" Street Trail, as described in Attachment A;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of these premises and the following mutual

covenants, terms, and conditions, CLIENT and CONSULTANT agree as follows:

A.

This AGREEMENT may only be amended by written instrument signed by both

CLIENT and CONSULTANT

I.  BASIC SERVICES AND AGREEMENT ADMINISTRATION

A

CONSULTANT shall provide services to CLIENT for the S 116" Street Trail
Project, as described in CONSULTANT’s proposal to CLIENT dated July 29,
2020, annexed hereto and incorporated herein as Attachment A.

CONSULTANT shall serve as CLIENT’s professional representative in matters
to which this AGREEMENT applies. CONSULTANT may employ the services
of outside consultants and subCONSULTANTs when deemed necessary by
CONSULTANT to complete work under this AGREEMENT following approval
by CLIENT

CONSULTANT 1s an independent CONSULTANT and all persons furnishing
services hereunder are employees of, or independent subCONSULTANTS to,
CONSULTANT and not of CLIENT. All obligations under the Federal Insurance
Contribution Act (FICA), the Federal Unemployment Tax Act (FUTA), and
income tax withholding are the responsibility of CONSULTANT as employer.
CLIENT understands that express AGREEMENTS may exist between
CONSULTANT and its employees regarding extra work, competition, and
nondisclosure

During the term of this AGREEMENT and throughout the period of performance
of any resultant AGREEMENT, including extensions, modifications, or additions

Page-1
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thereto, and for a period of one (1) year from the conclusion of such activity, the
parties hereto agree that neither shall solicit for employment any technical or
professional employees of the other without the prior written approval of the
other party.

II. FEES AND PAYMENTS

CLIENT agrees to pay CONSULTANT, for and 1n consideration of the performance of Basic
Services further described in Attachment A, for a time and materials as a time and material contract
with a not-to-exceed fee of $150,000.00, subject to the terms detailed below:

A CONSULTANT may bill CLIENT and be paid for all work satisfactorily
completed hereunder on a monthly basis. CLIENT agrees to pay
CONSULTANT’s invoice within 30 days of invoice date for all approved work

B Total price will not exceed budget of $150,000.00. For services rendered,
monthly invoices will include a report that clearly states the hours and type of
work completed and the fee earned during the month being invoiced, plus
reimbursable expenses

C In consideration of the faithful performance of this AGREEMENT, the
CONSULTANT will not exceed the fee for Basic Services and expenses without
written authorization from CLIENT to perform work over and above that
described in the original AGREEMENT

D Should CLIENT find deficiencies 1n work performed or reported, 1t will notify
CONSULTANT in writing within thirty (30) days of receipt of invoice and
related report and the CONSULTANT will remedy the deficiencies within thirty
(30) days of receiving CLIENT’s review. This subsection shall not be construed
to be a limitation of any rights or remedies otherwise available to CLIENT.

III. MODIFICATION AND ADDITIONAL SERVICES

A CLIENT may, in writing, request changes in the Basic Services required to be
performed by CONSULTANT and require a specification of incremental or
decremental costs prior to change order agreement under this AGREEMENT.
Upon acceptance of the request of such changes, CONSULTANT shall submit a
“Change Order Request Form” to CLIENT for authorization and notice to
proceed signature and return to CONSULTANT Should any such actual changes
be made, an equitable adjustment will be made to compensate CONSULTANT or
reduce the fixed price, for any incremental or decremental labor or direct costs,
respectively. Any claim by CONSULTANT for adjustments hereunder must be
made to CLIENT in writing no later than forty-five (45) days after receipt by
CONSULTANT of notice of such changes from CLIENT.

IV. ASSISTANCE AND CONTROL

A Glen Morrow will coordmnate the work of the CONSULTANT and be solely
responsible for communication within the CLIENT’s organization as related to all
issues originating under this AGREEMENT.
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B CLIENT will timely provide CONSULTANT with all available information
concerning PROJECT as deemed necessary by CONSULTANT.

C CONSULTANT will appoint, subject to the approval of CLIENT, Paul R. Eiring,
PE, CONSULTANT’s Project Manager and other key providers of the Basic
Services. Substitution of other staff may occur only with the consent of CLIENT.

V. TERMINATION

A This AGREEMENT may be terminated by CLIENT, for its convenience, for
any or no reason, upon written notice to CONSULTANT.  This
AGREEMENT may be terminated by CONSULTANT upon thirty (30) days
written notice. Upon such termination by CLIENT, CONSULTANT shall be
entitled to payment of such amount as shall fairly compensate
CONSULTANT for all work approved up to the date of termination, except
that no amount shall be payable for any losses of revenue or profit from any
source outside the scope of this AGREEMENT, including but not limited to,
other actual or potential agreements for services with other parties

B. In the event that this AGREEMENT 1s terminated for any reason,
CONSULTANT shall deliver to CLIENT all data, reports, summaries,
correspondence, and other written, printed, or tabulated material pertaining in
any way to Basic Services that CONSULTANT may have accumulated. Such
material is to be delivered to CLIENT whether in completed form or in
process CLIENT shall hold CONSULTANT harmless for any work that 1s
incomplete due to early termination.

C The rights and remedies of CLIENT and CONSULTANT under this section
are not exclusive and are in addition to any other rights and remedies
provided by law or appearing in any other article of this AGREEMENT.

VI INSURANCE

The CONSULTANT shall, during the life of the AGREEMENT, maintain insurance coverage with
an authorized insurance carrier at least equal to the minimum limits set forth below:

A Limit of General/Commercial Liability $1,000,000
B Automobile Liability: Bodily Injury/Property Damage $1,000,000
C.  Excess Liability for General Commercial or Automobile Liability $10,000,000
D  Worker’s Compensation and Employers’ Liability $500,000
E Professional Liability $2,000,000

Upon the execution of this AGREEMENT, CONSULTANT shall supply CLIENT with a suitable
statement certifying said protection and defining the terms of the policy issued, which shall specify
that such protection shall not be cancelled without thirty (30) calendar days prior notice to CLIENT,
and naming CLIENT as an additional insured for General Liability.
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VII. INDEMNIFICATION AND ALLOCATION OF RISK

A To the fullest extent permitted by law, CONSULTANT shall indemnify and hold
harmless CLIENT, CLIENT’S officers, directors, partners, and employees from and
against costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to reasonable fees and
charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals, and reasonable
court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) caused solely by the negligent
acts or omissions of CONSULTANT or CONSULTANT’S officers, directors,
partners, employees, and consultants in the performance of CONSULTANT’S
services under this AGREEMENT.

B Nothing contained within this AGREEMENT is intended to be a waiver or estoppel
of the contracting municipality CLIENT or 1ts insurer to rely upon the limitations,
defenses, and immunities contained within Wisconsin law, including those contained
within Wisconsin Statutes §§ 893 80, 895 52, and 345.05. To the extent that
indemnification is available and enforceable, the municipality CLIENT or its insurer
shall not be liable in indemnity or contribution for an amount greater than the limits
of liability for municipal claims established by Wisconsin Law.

VIII. TIME FOR COMPLETION

CONSULTANT shall commence work immediately having received a Notice to Proceed from

CLIENT on or before August 5, 2020 and complete contract documents on or before February 26,
2021

IX. DISPUTES

This AGREEMENT shall be construed under and governed by the laws of the State of Wisconsin
The venue for any actions arising under this AGREEMENT shall be the Circuit Court for Milwaukee
County The prevailing party shall be awarded 1ts actual costs of any litigation, including reasonable
attorney fees.

X. RECORDS RETENTION

CONSULTANT shall maintain all records pertaining to this AGREEMENT during the term of this
AGREEMENT and for a period of 3 years following its completion. Such records shall be made
available by the CONSULTANT to CLIENT for inspection and copying upon request

XL MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

A. Professionalism The same degree of care, skill and diligence shall be exercised in the
performance of the services as is possessed and exercised by a member of the same
profession, currently practicing, under similar circumstances, and all persons
providing such services under this AGREEMENT shall have such active
certifications, licenses and permissions as may be required by law.

B. Pursuant to Law. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary anywhere else set forth
within this AGREEMENT, all services and any and all materials and/or products
provided by CONSULTANT under this AGREEMENT shall be in compliance with
applicable governmental laws, statutes, decisions, codes, rules, orders, and
ordinances, be they Federal, State, County or Local.
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Conflict of Interest. CONSULTANT warrants that neither 1t nor any of its affiliates
has any financial or other personal interest that would conflict in any manner with the
performance of the services under this Agreement and that neither it nor any of its
affiliates will acquire directly or indirectly any such interest. CONSULTANT
warrants that 1t will immediately notify the CLIENT if any actual or potential conflict
of Interest arises or becomes known to the CONSULTANT. Upon receipt of such
notification, a CLIENT review and written approval is required for the CLIENT to
continue to perform work under this Agreement

This AGREEMENT may only be amended by written instrument signed by both
CLIENT and CONSULTANT

XI1I. CONTROLLING TERMS AND PROVISIONS

The aforesaid terms and provisions shall control over any conflicting term or provision of any
CONSULTANT proposal, Attachment, Exhibit, and standard terms and provisions annexed hereto.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this AGREEMENT to be executed on the day
and year first above written.

CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN GRAEF-USA INC.

BY-

~

Stephen R Olson, Mayor

DATE

PRINT NAME _ Paul R. Eiring

BY

TITLE _Vice President

DATE July 24, 2020

Sandra L Wesolowski, City Clerk

DATE

BY

Paul Rotzenberg, Director of Finance and

Treasurer

DATE

APPROVED AS TO FORM

Jesse A Wesolowski, City Attorney

DATE
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Attachment A

One Honey Creek Corporate Center
125 South 84 Street Suite 401
Milwaukee, Wl 53214-1470

414 /259 1500

414759 0037 fax
www.graef-usa.com

Ead - - -
GR El L S U T oorue Eiat e fRse ae@

July 29, 2020

Mr Glen E. Morrow, PE

Deputy Director of Public Works / City Engineer

City Engineer / Director of Public Works / Utility Manager
City of Franklin

9229 W. Loomis Rd

Franklin, Wl 53132

Subject S. 116™ Street Trall
Dear Mr. Morrow

Per your request, Graef-USA Inc. (GRAEF) I1s pleased to provide this proposal for services to
the City of Frankiin (Client). This proposal is for professional services for S. 116t Street Trall
(Project) between W. Loomis Road and W. Swiss Street located in the City of Frankiin.

The “Project” I1s the reconstruction of approximately 2.5 miles of trail design that would
extend from W. Loomis Road / Waukesha County line vicinity along the WE Energies
easement (Inner Urban Rail corndor) northeast to S. 116th Street and up the west side of S.
116th Street in the WE Energies easement to the St Martins area and connect to the current
paved trail. The “Basic Services” to be provided by Graef for the Project are Survey, Data
Gathering, 30% Design Plan Development, 60% Design Plan Development, 90% Design
Plan Development, and Bidding Documents & Permits, and all other services described
herein other than those designated as “additional services, which Basic Services also include
agency coordination, preliminary and final roadway design, and the preparation of plans,
specifications, and estimates for the urban roadway.

Survey

Perform topographic and utility survey along the 2.5 mile trail corridor needed for
design of the trail

Date, scale, legend and north arrow

Description of ground surfaces (concrete, bituminous asphalt, grass, etc.)

Spot elevations on an approximate 25' gnd including break lines so as to accurately
generate 1-foot contour intervals

Existing ground contours

Datum for elevations

All existing utilities including overhead and underground, hydrants and valves for
sanitary, storm, gas, water, electric and telephone with utility size and type
Benchmarks and control points (location and description)

Property and night-of-way lines using GIS mapping and locating property irons In the
field

Property addresses and lot front footages

GRAEF will contact Diggers Hotline service to have underground utiities marked on
the surface for our survey crew to locate. All utility markings provided by this service
will be included in the drawings GRAEF will show additional utility locations based
on system mapping provided by the utiities and the Client.

Field Investigation

0018-0763 00
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Environmental Resources
o Office Review

o Field Investigation

e Wetland Report

30% Design Plan Development

» Plans will iInclude title sheet, typical sections, alignments, 40’ scale plan and profile
sheets with slope intercepts, and cross sections.

Plan details will include geometric layout and guardrail analysis.

R\W & Utility analysis.

GRAEF shall prepare a 30% construction cost estimate.

GRAEF shall conduct bi-weekly conference calls with the city to review design
progress. (August/Sept (4))

o GRAEF will attend a 30% review meeting with the client.

80% Design Plan Development

o Plans will Include title sheet, general notes, project overview, typical sections,
alignments, 40’ scale plan details, 40’ scale plan and profiles sheets with slope
Intercepts, and cross sections.

» Real Estate Acquisition

o GRAEF shall prepare easement exhibits as needed to coordinate fand use
for the trail.

s Public Involvement

o GRAEF shall coordinate with the city on the time and location for a public
involvement meeting for the project.

o GRAEF (with input from the city) shall establish a list of businesses and
residents to invite to the meeting. (Invites to include fire, police, and hospital
stakeholders within the area)

o GRAEF shall prepare and send meeting invitations to the meeting.

o GRAEF shall prepare exhibits and attend the public involvement meeting
Exhibits will consider alternative access to the business park during
construction.

o GRAEF shall prepare a 60% construction cost estimate.

o GRAEF shall attend two progress meetings with the Client.

o GRAEF shall conduct bi-weekly conference calls with the city to review design
progress. (October/November (4))

90% Design Plan Development

» Preparation of permits and final concurrence from agencies for the project. Permits
to include a Water Resources Application for Project Permits (WRAPP), Wetland
Permit and Chapter 30 permit as required.

» Plans will iInclude title sheet, general notes, typical sections, construction details
using WisDOT details), alignment plans with control point information, 40’ scale plan
details, ADA compliant curb ramp details, 40’ scale plan and profiles sheets with

Mr Glenn Morrow -2- July 29, 2020
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slope intercepts, traffic control, detour plans, erosion control, signing, marking,
earthwork summary, and cross sections.

¢ Traffic control/construction staging plans will be prepared for two alternatives.

o Plans to allow s. 116" Street to remain open to traffic during construction.

GRAEF shall prepare a 90% construction cost estimate.
GRAEF shall conduct bi-weekly conference calls with the city to review design
progress. (December (2))
GRAEF will attend a 75% review meeting with the client
GRAEF will attend on utility coordination meeting for the project. Meeting to be
organized by GRAEF.

Bidding Documents & Permits
o GRAEF shall finalize plans incorporating all comments received on the 90% plans
from the client.

o Prepare roadway drawings on 11"x 17" sheets, drawings will compnse the following
items

Title sheet

General notes

Project overview

Typical sections

Construction details

Plan details and paving grades

Erosion control drawings

Permanent signing drawings

Pavement marking drawings

Construction staging typical sections

Construction staging drawings

Alignment drawings

Control point location drawing

Plan and profile drawings

Misc Quantity Sheets

Earthwork summary

Cross sections

All other information necessary to construct the road

e GRAEF will prepare the Official Notice, Special Provisions, and Proposal form.
These documents will be provided to the City and the City will assemble the Manual.

¢ The Client will advertise the project for construction. GRAEF will provide electronic
documents (plans and items of the project manual listed above) for use in the
advertisement of the project.

o WisDOT pay items and clients specified SPVs will be used on the project.
¢ All CADD files in a format that can be provided to bidders for use in construction.

000000000000 000O0OO0O0

GRAEF will perform the proposed Basic Services per the following schedule

Survey August 2020
30% Plans September 2020
60% Plans October 2020
Mr Glenn Morrow -3- July 29, 2020
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75% Plans (Ready for Utilities) November 2020
90% Plans December 2020
Final Plans December 23, 2020
Advertisement for use by Client January 2021
Let\Award Spring 2021
For this Project, it 1s our understanding Client will provide the following services, items and/or
information
¢ Acquisitions of construction\right-of-entry permits as needed.
¢ R/W, plats, easement information for the corridor
¢ Record drawings for existing utilities
¢ Permit fees

For all Basic Services, Client agrees to compensate GRAEF as follows as a time and
material contract with a not-to-exceed fee of $150,000 00 as outlined in the attached fee
estimate.

The total contract imit shall not exceed $150,000.00 without written amendment and
approval by the Clent.

To accept this proposal, please sign and date the proposal and return to GRAEF. Upon
recelpt of an executed copy, GRAEF will commence work on the Project.

Graef-USA Inc. looks forward to providing services to City of Franklin,
Sincerely,

Graef-USA Inc.

I NPt Tkt

Mary Beth Pettit, P E.
Principal

Attachment GRAEF Fee Summary & Consultant Effort Summary

Mr Glenn Morrow -4- July 29, 2020

0018-0763 00



RA QRMATIO
Project Name. S. 116th Streel
Cliant Name City of Franklin
Date: 7729120

S. 116th Street Trall, City of Franklin,

o

i

e gy

X L

Management

Goneept 30%

Attachment A

DESIGN PHASE SUMMARY
el

$60,000

Preliminary 0% 445 $43,000
Pre-Final 90% an §42,000
Final 100% 52 35,000

Total Fae 1598 $150,000

k)

Survey & ROW 226 $25,300
Design 204 $68.000
Storm Water 12 $10,900
Specs, Bidding, & Perrnits 184 $15,700
Heetings 100 $12.200
Woetlands 136 $10,400

Total Fee 1598 $150,000

Proposed Time & Materials Fee for the Design of S 116th Streest, Clty of Franklin

Total Contract, Not to Exceed Fee

S 116th Streeet, City of Franklin,

Management

Survey & ROW

Design

Storm Water

Specs Bidding, & Pemmits

Maetings

Wetlands

Total




APPROVAL REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION MTG. DATE
August 4, 2020

Reports & INSTALLATION OF LIGHTS FOR ITEM NO.
Recommendations RYAN MEADOWS SUBDIVISION 6’ / 3
BACKGROUND

Ryan Meadows Subdivison (southwest corner of W. Ryan Road and S. 112" Street) is being
constructed. The Developers Agreement included an allowance for street lights and is included in
the developer’s letter of credit.

ANALYSIS
WE Energies needs payment and a signed request for the installation of the four lights to occur.

OPTIONS
A. Authorize Staff to sign the attached request letter. Or,
B. Refer back to Staff with further direction.

FISCAL NOTE

The upfront charge of $13,213.59 will be deducted from the developer’s letter of credit. These
lights will add $43.68 to the monthly electric bill for street lights.

RECOMMENDATION

(Option A) Motion to direct City Engineer to order installation of lights for Ryan Meadows
Subdivision.

Engineering: GEM




We Energies
! N daar ot

tioed oy Y

Py A0 W (e
July 27, 2020

City of Frankhn
Ronnte Asuncion
9228 W Loomus Road
Frankhin, W1 53132

Subject Work Request 4366260, Lighting at Ryan Meadows Subdivision - Frankhin, Wi
Dear Ronnie

This letter details a work request for We Energies Outdoor Lighting The upfront charge for this work,
which expires 90 days from the date of this letter, is $13,213 59, and does not include sie restoration.
Net monthly charges will initially increase by $43 68, which i1s subject to future rate changes as approved
by the Public Service Commission of Wisconsin

Review the following prior to prowiding authorization and payment

s Luminawes are controlled to provide dusk to dawn operation.

¢ Customer must contact We Energies for lighting maintenance

« Fixtures are warranted until removed

+ Non-Standard poles and conductors are warranted for 15 years

« Customer must locate private underground facihiies and grant or obtain, without expense to We
Energtes, access to praperty, necessary permissions, easements, ordinance satisfaction and
permits for installation, removal and maintenance of lighting facilities

« Termination or change requests after installation and prior to conclusion of the imitial term result in
customer charges Monthly rates for fixtures on the LED rate are reduced after the inthial term

»  All applicable lighting tanff terms and conditions are available at we-energies com.

+ We Energies does not guarantee this installation meets AASHTQ or the llluminating Engineenng
Soclety's minmum recommended standards for lighting.

Please sign the enclosed documents and return them, along with payment for the upfront charge
{payable to We Energies) in the envelope provided Matenal will be ordered upon receipt of required
authonzations and payment Work request will be scheduled when all contingencies are met If you have
any questions, please call me at 414-315-0553 We look forward to working with you on your highting
pro ect

f\cerély, /\A‘
Rf ‘”‘ .
Maurer &

Energy Services Representative
rabin maurer@we-energies com

By signing this letter, you authonze us to do this work and acknowledge acceptance of the rates and
conditions of the specified tanifs as approved by the Public Service Commission of Wisconsin

Signature Date

Print name Title

Enclosures
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APPROV}AL REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION MTG. DATE

of August 4, 2020
Reports & AGREEMENT TO ALLOW SEWAGE GRINDER PUMP AT 10609 | ITEM NO.
Recommendations W. ST. MARTINS ROAD (TKN 800 9999 002)

G- /4.

BACKGROUND

10609 W. St. Martins Road has a failing septic system and desires to connect to the public sanitary
sewer system.

ANALYSIS

This home is in a sewage basin that has not been fully developed and the nearest manhole in this
sewer shed is located almost 2,000 feet to the northwest (11100 W. St. Martins Road). However,
this home is at the upper reaches of the sewer shed and there is a manhole to the southwest about
150 feet from the home to the manhole in the neighbor’s (10551 W. St. Martins Road) front yard.
Unfortunately, 10609 cannot get to 10551 by gravity.

Staff has discussed this situation with the property owner and his plumber. Staff supports that
10551 be allowed to install a grinder sewage pump if he agrees that when a gravity sewer main is
available the owner, at that time, must abandon the grinder sewage pump and connect to the gravity
sewer. This agreement should indicate that the property owner is solely responsible for the
maintenance, operation, and replacement of the pump.

There are a handful of places around Franklin (most recently S. Woelfel Road and W. Stone Hedge
Drive in 2016) that have similar agreements.

OPTIONS
A. Approve agreement to allow a sewage grinder pump. Or,
B. Provide further direction to Staff.

FISCAL NOTE
This will have no impact on the Sewer Utility budget.

RECOMMENDATION

(Option A) Motion to enter into an agreement to allow sewage grinder pump at 10609 W. St.
Martins Road (TKN 800 9999 002). Also,

Direct Staff to register agreement with Milwaukee Register of Deeds.

Engineering Department: GEM







SANITARY SEWER CONNECTION AGREEMENT

WHEREAS, John J Reuteler and Terry Lea Reuteler ("Reutelers") are the owners of the property
commonly known as 10609 W St Martins Road, Franklin, Wisconsin, more particularly described as:

Lot 2 of Certified Survey Map No. 8777, a part of the Northwest 1/4 of Northwest 1/4, Section 17,
Township 5 North, Range 21 East, City of Franklin, County of Milwaukee, State of
Wisconsin, recorded in the office of the Register of Deeds for Milwaukee County,
Wisconsin on February 29, 2016.

WHEREAS, the Reutelers have requested permission from the City of Franklin to connect to the
extension of sanitary sewer 1n the vicinity of 10551 W. St. Martins Road, so as to have the benefit of the
immediate availability of municipal sanitary sewer service to their property; and

WHEREAS, it is likely that sanitary sewer service will be extended on W. St. Martins Road from
the opposite direction abutting the frontage of the property 11100 W. St. Martins Road and the special
assessment policy of the City of Franklin would require the property at 10609 W. St Martins Road to be
specially assessed and the owners thereof to pay the special assessment pursuant to Section 207-15.0 of the
Municipal Code of Franklin, Wisconsin, for such sanitary sewer service installation.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants set forth herein, it is hereby
agreed as follows:

1. The City of Franklin hereby grants permission to the Reutelers, as owner of the property located
at 10609 W St Martins Road, Franklin, Wisconsin, to connect to the sanitary sewer service installed near 10551
W. St Martins Road.

2. Upon connection of the property at 10609 W. St Martins Road, Franklin Wisconsin, to the
sanitary sewer service installed from the northwest abutting said property, the Reutelers shall pay to the City of
Franklin the sanitary sewer connection fees as required by the Municipal Code of Franklin, Wisconsin, as
amended from time to time.

3 All arrangements for and costs arising from the connection of the property at 10609 W. St
Martins Road, Franklin, Wisconsin, for the installation of sanitary sewer service installed to the sanitary
sewer manhole at 10551 W St. Martins Road shall be the responsibility of the Reutelers.

4 The Reutelers, for their heirs, successors and assigns, notwithstanding any prior sanitary
sewer service availability or connection to the property at 10609 W. St Martins Road, Franklin, Wisconsin,
shall be responsible for and pay to the City of Franklin any assessment levied against the property located at
10609 W. St Martins Road, Franklin, Wisconsin, for the installation of sanitary sewer service from the
northwest abutting said property and they hereby acknowledge the subject property to be specially benefited
by such future installation and waive notice and hearing upon such future special assessment, pursuant to
Section 66.0703 (7)(b) of the Wisconsin Statutes and Section 207-15.0 of the Municipal Code.

5 The provisions hereof shall operate as a covenant running with the land above particularly
described and shall bind all parties hereto, their respective heirs, executors, administrators, successors and
assigns



In witness whereof the undersigned have hereunto set forth their hands and seals upon the

dates as acknowledged, effective the day of , 2020.
(SEAL) (SEAL)
JOHN J REUTELER TERRY LEA REUTELER
STATE OF WISCONSIN )
MILWAUKEE COUNTY ; ”
Personally came before me this day of , 2020, the above named

JOHN J REUTELER and TERRY LEA REUTELER, to me known to be the person who executed the
foregoing instrument and acknowledged same.

Notary Public, State of Wisconsin

My commission expires:

City of Franklin

By (SEAL)
Stephen R Olson, Mayor

Countersigned:

By (SEAL)
Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

STATE OF WISCONSIN )
) ss
MILWAUKEE COUNTY )

Personally came before me this day of , 2020 Stephen R. Olson, Mayor,
and Sandra L Wesolowski, City Clerk, of the above named municipal corporation, City of Franklin, to
me known to be the persons who executed the foregoing instrument and to me known to be such Mayor
and City Clerk of said municipal corporation by its authority and pursuant to approval granted by its
Common Council on the day of , 2020.

Notary Public, State of Wisconsin

My commission expires:




APPROVAL /[ REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION MEETING DATE
el August 4, 2020
REPORTS AND DIRECTION CONCERNING W. PUETZ ROAD AND 2020 ITEM NUMBER
RECOMMENDATIONS ROAD PROGRAM e |5,

BACKGROUND

The 2020 Road Program includes an estimated $145,000 work on W. Puetz Road from S. 27% Street to W. Yorkshire Circle.
The attached memorandum for the proposed 2021 budget discusses a proposal for funding the improvements to W Puetz
Road that were denied for funding through the Surface Transportation Urban Program (STP).

Staff would like immediate direction from Common Council regarding W. Puetz Road. Contractors are ready to mobilize
and some work has started

ANALYSIS
The 2020 work on W. Puetz Road 1s anticipated to be a full-depth pulverization project that should keep the pavement in
good repair for about 30 years All budget items for this segment including asphalt, pulverization, undercutting, and other

miscellaneous costs are approximately $145,000. Almost all agree that the road should be widened but that is not part of
the 2020 Road Program.

If the Common Council is agreeable that a future self-funded project on W. Puetz Road should be scheduled, Staff would
prefer to patch the W. Puetz Road segment this year, and spend the savings of approximately $145,000 on a project(s) slated
for next year

For the replacement projects, Staff recommends W. Bosch Lane from S. 92" Street to termini- $57,000 and W. Fitzsimmons
Road from S 31% to termini- $87,000.

If the change in street segments were to occur, Staff would educate residents on all segments concerning the change.

OPTIONS

A. Authorize staff to replace W. Puetz Road program segments with W. Bosch Lane and W. Fitzsimmons Road. or
B. Direct Staff to stay with current plans for W. Puetz Road in the 2020 Road Program. or
C. Refer to Staff with additional direction.

FISCAL NOTE
A change in projects is essentially neutral to the 2020 budget.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

(Option A). Authorize Staff to replace W. Puetz Road segments in the 2020 Road Program with W. Bosch Lane and W.
Fitzsimmons Road

Engineering' GEM




Franklin Department of Public Works

WiscOoNSIN First to Respond Last to Leave

DATE: July 31, 2020
TO: Paul Rotzenberg, CPA. Director of Finance and Treasurer
COPY: Mayor Steve Olson

Peggy Steeno, Director of Administration

FROM: Glen E. Morrow, PE- Director of Public Works
Kevin Schlueter- Superintendent of Public Works

SUBJECT:  Capital Improvement Fund 46- W. Puetz Road projects

Many previous budgets have forecasted that Puetz Road would be improved to extend the S. 42nd
Street to S. 76th Street cross-section from S. 27th Street (STH 241) to St. Martins Road (STH 100).

A Surface Transportation Urban Program (STP) grant was unsuccessfully sought in 2013 and
2019.

I would like to recommend that if W. Puetz Road is ever to be improved, it will require local
funding.

The two sections are S. 27th Street (STH 241) to S. 42nd Street and S. 76th Street to St. Martins
Road (STH 100).

The 76th Street (CTH U) to St. Martins Drive (STH 100) section is 1.3 miles long. The
construction costs are estimated to be approximately $7.4 million and the total project costs are

almost $8.7 million. Design is requested to commence in 2023 ($200,000) and construction in
2024 ($8.5 million).

The 27th Street (STH 241) to Hunting Park Drive (42nd Street Extended) section is 1.0 miles long.
The construction costs are estimated to be approximately $5.3 million and the total project costs

are over $6.1 million. Design is requested to commence in 2027 ($200,000) and construction in
2028 ($5.9 million).

All estimates are in 2020 dollars.

Celebrating Quuality of Life  9229West.oomisRoad  Frarxhn W153132 9630  p(414}427 7565 F(4741427 7691  franklinwi gov



APPROVAL REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION MTG. DATE
August 4, 2020

Reports & RESOLUTION TO AWARD DESIGN OF INDUSTRIAL ITEM NO.
Recommendations PARK LIFT STATION (10100 S. 60TH STREET) 6 / b
REPLACEMENT TO GRAEF-USA, INC. FOR $202,100 ¢ ‘

BACKGROUND
On July 7, 2020, Common Council directed Staff to solicit consultants for design of a replacement
for the Industrial Park lift station (10100 S. 60 Street).

Staff solicited three reputable firms for these services and received statement of qualifications and
proposals. The three firms were invited because of intimate knowledge of Franklin sewer systems,
past performance, and perceived knowledge of required components in this project. The three
firms invited to submit were:

¢ Foth Infrastructure & Environment, LL.C

o GRAEF-USA, Inc.

e R.A. Smith National, Inc.

ANALYSIS

Staff met with all three firms prior to submittal and completed a thorough review of the submittals.
Although all three firms could provide these services, Staff recommends that GRAEF be selected
because they had the best understanding of the project needs and design components.

Submittals of all three firms are available by requesting them from the City Engineer/Utility
Manager.

OPTIONS
A. Award design of lift station to GRAEF.
B. Refer back to Staff with further direction.

FISCAL NOTE
The City had planned to abandon the lift station by spending approximately $3.5 million but
Waukesha’s bidders bid this portion for approximately $13 million.

This new lift station will have permanent features, such as an enclosed building for pump controls,
a natural gas generator, and additional features to prevent clogging. A budget will be established
during design but at this time is anticipated to be less than $3.0 million.

The 2020 Sewer Fund Budget includes $3.2 million of appropriations for this project.
RECOMMENDATION

(Option A) Motion to approve Resolution 2020- a resolution to award design of Industrial
Park Lift Station (10100 S. 60th Street) replacement to GRAEF-USA, Inc. for $202,100.

Engineering: GEM




AGREEMENT

between
the City of Franklin
and
Graef-USA Inc

For
Professional Architectural and Engineering Services

This AGREEMENT, made and entered into this ___ day of , between the City of
Franklin, 9229 West Loomis Road, Franklin, Wisconsin 53132 (hereinafter “CLIENT”) and Graef-
USA Inc (hereinafter “CONSULTANT”), whose principal place of business is 275 W. Wisconsin
Avenue, Suite 300, Milwaukee, W1 53203.

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, the CONSULTANT is duly qualified and experienced as a municipal services
consultant and has offered services for the purposes specified in this AGREEMENT; and

WHEREAS, in the judgment of CLIENT, it is necessary and advisable to obtain the services
of the CONSULTANT to provide the Industrial Park Lift Station, as described in Attachment A;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of these premises and the following mutual
covenants, terms, and conditions, CLIENT and CONSULTANT agree as follows:

A This AGREEMENT may only be amended by written instrument signed by both
CLIENT and CONSULTANT.

I.  BASIC SERVICES AND AGREEMENT ADMINISTRATION

A CONSULTANT shall provide services to CLIENT for the Industrial Park Lift
Station, as described in CONSULTANT’s proposal to CLIENT dated July 24,
2020, annexed hereto and incorporated herein as Attachment A.

B. CONSULTANT shall serve as CLIENT’s professional representative in matters
to which this AGREEMENT applies. CONSULTANT may employ the services
of outside consultants and subCONSULTANTs when deemed necessary by
CONSULTANT to complete work under this AGREEMENT following approval
by CLIENT.

C. CONSULTANT is an independent CONSULTANT and all persons furnishing
services hereunder are employees of, or independent subCONSULTANTS to,
CONSULTANT and not of CLIENT. All obligations under the Federal Insurance
Contribution Act (FICA), the Federal Unemployment Tax Act (FUTA), and
income tax withholding are the responsibility of CONSULTANT as employer
CLIENT understands that express AGREEMENTS may exist between
CONSULTANT and its employees regarding extra work, competition, and
nondisclosure.

D. During the term of this AGREEMENT and throughout the period of performance
of any resultant AGREEMENT, including extensions, modifications, or additions

Page-1



thereto, and for a period of one (1) year from the conclusion of such activity, the
parties hereto agree that neither shall solicit for employment any technical or
professional employees of the other without the prior written approval of the

other party

II. FEES AND PAYMENTS

CLIENT agrees to pay CONSULTANT, for and in consideration of the performance of Basic
Services further described in Attachment A, for a Lump Sum Fee of $198,100.00, subject to the
terms detailed below:

A CONSULTANT may bill CLIENT and be paid for all work satisfactorily
completed hereunder on a monthly basis. CLIENT agrees to pay
CONSULTANT’s invoice within 30 days of invoice date for all approved work.

B. Total price will not exceed budget of $201,100.00. For services rendered,
monthly invoices will include a report that clearly states the hours and type of
work completed and the fee earned during the month being invoiced, plus
reimbursable expenses.

C. In consideration of the faithful performance of this AGREEMENT, the
CONSULTANT will not exceed the fee for Basic Services and expenses without
written authorization from CLIENT to perform work over and above that
described in the original AGREEMENT

D. Should CLIENT find deficiencies in work performed or reported, it will notify
CONSULTANT in writing within thirty (30) days of receipt of invoice and
related report and the CONSULTANT will remedy the deficiencies within thirty
(30) days of receiving CLIENT’s review. This subsection shall not be construed
to be a limitation of any rights or remedies otherwise available to CLIENT.

III. MODIFICATION AND ADDITIONAL SERVICES

A CLIENT may, in writing, request changes in the Basic Services required to be
performed by CONSULTANT and require a specification of incremental or
decremental costs prior to change order agreement under this AGREEMENT.
Upon acceptance of the request of such changes, CONSULTANT shall submit a
“Change Order Request Form” to CLIENT for authorization and notice to
proceed signature and return to CONSULTANT. Should any such actual changes
be made, an equitable adjustment will be made to compensate CONSULTANT or
reduce the fixed price, for any incremental or decremental labor or direct costs,
respectively Any claim by CONSULTANT for adjustments hereunder must be
made to CLIENT in writing no later than forty-five (45) days after receipt by
CONSULTANT of notice of such changes from CLIENT.

IV. ASSISTANCE AND CONTROL

A Glen Morrow will coordinate the work of the CONSULTANT and be solely
responsible for communication within the CLIENT’s organization as related to all
issues originating under this AGREEMENT.

Page-2



B CLIENT will timely providle CONSULTANT with all available information
concerning PROJECT as deemed necessary by CONSULTANT.

C CONSULTANT will appoint, subject to the approval of CLIENT, Paul R. Eiring,
PE, CONSULTANT’s Project Manager and other key providers of the Basic
Services. Substitution of other staff may occur only with the consent of CLIENT.

V. TERMINATION

A This AGREEMENT may be terminated by CLIENT, for its convenience, for
any or no reason, upon written notice to CONSULTANT.  This
AGREEMENT may be termimated by CONSULTANT upon thirty (30) days
written notice. Upon such termination by CLIENT, CONSULTANT shall be
entitted to payment of such amount as shall fairly compensate
CONSULTANT for all work approved up to the date of termination, except
that no amount shall be payable for any losses of revenue or profit from any
source outside the scope of this AGREEMENT, including but not limited to,
other actual or potential agreements for services with other parties.

B In the event that this AGREEMENT is terminated for any reason,
CONSULTANT shall deliver to CLIENT all data, reports, summaries,
correspondence, and other written, printed, or tabulated material pertaining in
any way to Basic Services that CONSULTANT may have accumulated Such
material is to be delivered to CLIENT whether in completed form or in
process. CLIENT shall hold CONSULTANT harmless for any work that is
incomplete due to early termination.

C. The nights and remedies of CLIENT and CONSULTANT under this section
are not exclusive and are in addition to any other rights and remedies
provided by law or appearing m any other article of this AGREEMENT.

VI INSURANCE

The CONSULTANT shall, during the life of the AGREEMENT, maintain insurance coverage with
an authorized insurance carrier at least equal to the mimimum limits set forth below:

A.  Limit of General/Commercial Liability $1,000,000
B Automobile Liability: Bodily Injury/Property Damage $1,000,000
C  Excess Liability for General Commercial or Automobile Liability $10,000,000
D.  Worker’s Compensation and Employers’ Liability $500,000
E.  Professional Liability $2,000,000

Upon the execution of this AGREEMENT, CONSULTANT shall supply CLIENT with a suitable
statement certifying said protection and defining the terms of the policy issued, which shall specify
that such protection shall not be cancelled without thirty (30) calendar days prior notice to CLIENT,
and naming CLIENT as an additional insured for General Liability.
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VII. INDEMNIFICATION AND ALLOCATION OF RISK

A To the fullest extent permitted by law, CONSULTANT shall indemnify and hold
harmless CLIENT, CLIENT’S officers, directors, partners, and employees from and
against costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to reasonable fees and
charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals, and reasonable
court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) caused solely by the negligent
acts or omissions of CONSULTANT or CONSULTANT’S officers, directors,
partners, employees, and consultants in the performance of CONSULTANT’S
services under this AGREEMENT.,

B. Nothing contained within this AGREEMENT is intended to be a waiver or estoppel
of the contracting municipality CLIENT or its insurer to rely upon the limitations,
defenses, and immunities contained within Wisconsin law, including those contained
within Wisconsin Statutes §§ 893.80, 895.52, and 345.05. To the extent that
indemnification is available and enforceable, the municipality CLIENT or its insurer
shall not be liable in indemnity or contribution for an amount greater than the limits
of liability for municipal claims established by Wisconsin Law.

vil. TIME FOR COMPLETION

CONSULTANT shall commence work mmmediately having received a Notice to Proceed from

CLIENT on or before August 5, 2020 and complete contract documents on or before February 26,
2021

IX. DISPUTES

This AGREEMENT shall be construed under and governed by the laws of the State of Wisconsin.
The venue for any actions arising under this AGREEMENT shall be the Circuit Court for Milwaukee
County. The prevailing party shall be awarded its actual costs of any litigation, including reasonable
attorney fees.

X. RECORDS RETENTION

CONSULTANT shall maintain all records pertaining to this AGREEMENT during the term of this
AGREEMENT and for a period of 3 years following its completion. Such records shall be made
available by the CONSULTANT to CLIENT for inspection and copying upon request.

XL MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

A. Professionalism The same degree of care, skill and diligence shall be exercised in the
performance of the services as is possessed and exercised by a member of the same
profession, currently practicing, under similar circumstances, and all persons
providmg such services under this AGREEMENT shall have such active
certifications, licenses and permissions as may be required by law.

B Pursuant to Law. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary anywhere else set forth
within this AGREEMENT, all services and any and all materials and/or products
provided by CONSULTANT under this AGREEMENT shall be in compliance with
applicable governmental laws, statutes, decisions, codes, rules, orders, and
ordinances, be they Federal, State, County or Local.
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Conflict of Interest. CONSULTANT warrants that neither it nor any of its affiliates
has any financial or other personal interest that would conflict in any manner with the
performance of the services under this Agreement and that neither it nor any of its
affiliates will acquire directly or indirectly any such interest. CONSULTANT
warrants that it will inmediately notify the CLIENT if any actual or potential conflict
of 1nterest arises or becomes known to the CONSULTANT. Upon receipt of such
notification, a CLIENT review and written approval 1s required for the CLIENT to
continue to perform work under this Agreement.

This AGREEMENT may only be amended by written instrument signed by both
CLIENT and CONSULTANT

XIL CONTROLLING TERMS AND PROVISIONS

The aforesaid terms and provisions shall control over any conflicting term or provision of any
CONSULTANT proposal, Attachment, Exhibit, and standard terms and provisions annexed hereto

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this AGREEMENT to be executed on the day
and year first above written.

CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN GRAEF-USA BNC

BY

Stephen R Olson, Mayor

DATE

BY ‘;"’Q/ 74@

PRINT NAME. _ Paul R. Eiring

BY.

TITLE Vice President

DATE July 24, 2020

Sandra I. Wesolowski, City Clerk

DATE

BY

Paul Rotzenberg, Director of Fmance and

Treasurer

DATE

APPROVED AS TO FORM

Jesse A Wesolowski, City Attorney

DATE

Page-5



275 West Wisconsin Avenue Suite 300
Milwaukee, WI 53203

4147259 1500

414 /259 0037 fax

www.graef-usa.com

L]
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ATTACHMENT A

July 24, 2020

Mr Glen Morrow
Director of Public Works
City of Franklin

9229 W Loomis Road
Franklin, Wl 53132

Subject City of Franklin Industrial Park Lift Station

Dear Mr Morrow

Per your request, Graef-USA Inc. (GRAEF) I1s pleased to provide this proposatl for services the
City of Franklin (Client)

This proposal 1s for professional services for preparing construction documents for the
replacement of an existing sanitary lift station located on the west side of the Franklin
Industrial Park, on South 60 Street approximately 600 feet south of W Franklin Drive This
proposal 1s Attachment A of the Agreement between the City of Franklin and GRAEF that
includes all Terms and Conditions

For this project, GRAEF proposes to provide the following Basic Services

Preliminary Design and Budget Development

+ Participate in Kick-Off / Predesign Meeting

» Review local and state codes

+ Collect data from Client with regards to existing lift station operation
» Perform site visit to review existing conditions
*
*

Perform wetland investigation

Prepare Conceptual Design Plans to include the following
o Site plan

o Lift Station

o Prefabncated Building

+ Attend meeting with Client to review concepts (2 meetings)

+ Submit concept plans to Frankiin Plan Commission for review and approval (1
meeting)

» Prepare opinion of probable construction cost of new lift station to be used for City
budgeting. Neither GRAEF nor Client has any control over the costs of labor, materials
or equipment, over contractors' methods of determining bid prices, or over competitive
bidding, market or negotiation conditions Accordingly, GRAEF cannot and does not



e
GR :EF #0831 —; o

warrant or represent that bids or negotiated prices will not vary from any projected or

established budgetary constraints

Survey, Design, Permitting

Complete topographic survey

o]

o]

Contact Diggers Hotline service to have underground utilities marked on the
ground surface for survey crew to locate All utility markings provided by this

service will be included on the survey drawing Additional utility information will be

based on mapping provided to GRAEF by the Client.

Complete a topographic survey based on field measurements, to include

- Locations of existing visible features of the site (builldings, utilities, walks,
pavement, etc),

- Existing spot elevations and break lines at sufficient density to allow the
generation of one-foot contour intervals,

- Location of utiity markings provided by others, and

- As-built measurements of storm and sanitary sewer rim and invert locations
and elevations.

Prepare a topographic map showing existing features and field verified contour

lines on one-foot contour intervals

Coordinate performance of soll borings and subsurface investigation
Coordinate acquisitions of easement and/or property
Prepare Construction Document drawings to generally include the following sheets:

o]

O 00O 000000 O0OO0OO0OO0O0 OO0

o]

Floor Plans

Roof Plan

Exterior Elevations

Building and Wall Sections

Foundation Plan

Process Piping Plans

HVAC Plans

Plumbing Plans

Site Electrical and Lighting Plans

Electrical Power and Instrumentation Plans
Electrical One-Line Diagram

Electncal Process & Instrumentation Diagram (P&ID)
Electrical Generator Plans

Site Plan

Site Erosion Control and Grading Plan

Site Utility Plan

Landscaping Plans

Construction details and schedules

Prepare Project Manual including front-end contractual sections and technical
specifications

Submit final plans to Franklin Plan Commission for review and approval (1 meeting)



GR EF .

* Prepare plan review application and documents for permits
o LIift Station Project Approval from WDNR
o Water Resources Application for Projects Permit (WRAPP) to WDNR
o Lift Station Buillding Approval from DSPS

+ Participate In three design meetings with Chent

Bidding Services

* Assist City with bidding process
Respond to bidder's questions and i1ssue addendum (2 addendum)
Attend bid opening and prepare bid tabulation
Evaluate bids and prepare letter of recommendation of award
Prepare notice of award and issued for construction (IFC) documents

Construction Services

» Provide general construction contract administration
Issue Notice To Proceed to contractor
Participate in Preconstruction Meeting
Participate in Monthly Construction Progress Meetings (8)
Review contractor shop drawings submittals
Respond to contractor request for information (RFI)
Prepare construction bulletins / field change orders
Review contractor pay applications
Assist In change order negotiations and prepare change orders
Conduct site visits to observe construction
Conduct substantial completion site visit and punch list
Conduct final inspection site visit
Prepare record drawings

For this project, 1t 1s our understanding Client will provide the following services, items and/or
information.

Existing lift station and sanitary sewer construction plans
Operational data for the existing lift station including flows

Maps of sanitary sewers and service area associated with lift station
Access to the project site

Venue for meetings and invitation of appropnate staff

GRAEF will endeavor to perform the proposed services per the following schedule

* Notice to Proceed August 5, 2020

» Conceptual Design Plans to Plan Commission September 3, 2020
¢ Submit Final Cost Estimate September 18,2020
¢ Submit Final Plans to Engineering Department December 11,2020

Final Design Plans to Plan Commission January 21, 2021
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Submit Final Plans and Design Report to WDNR
Submit Final Plans to DSPS

Construction Documents for bidding

Begin Construction

Construction Complete

*Subject to change due to GWA Construction

January 26,2021
January 26,2021
February 24, 2021
Apnl 2021*
November 2021*

Per Section Il of the Agreement, GRAEF will provide the following Additional Services for

additional compensation as detailed below

Addttional meeting attendance

Full time inspection or a resident inspector

the project documents

Environmental investigations, remediation coordination or design services required
Attendance at weekly construction coordination meetings

Review of value engineering proposals by the Contractor, and resulting changes to

For all Basic Services, Client agrees to compensate GRAEF on a lump sum basis including

reimbursable expenses as noted below.

Preliminary Design and Budget Development
Survey, Design, Permitting

Bidding Services

Construction Services

Real Estate Acquisition

Geotechnical Exploration

23,500
99,500
5,900
61,200
3,500
4,500

AR P A A NP

TOTAL

198,100

Reimbursable expenses Iincluding plan review fees, printing and mileage above the

compensation are estimated at $3,000

Graef-USA Inc looks forward to providing services to the City of Franklin

Sincerely,
Graef-USA Inc.

| . o7

= i

7 T /’7//!14 /Q b4 ﬂaZ/ %
€ /

Michael N. Paulos, P £ Paul R Einng, P E.
Principal-In-Charge Vice President, Project Manager



STATE OF WISCONSIN : CITY OF FRANKLIN : MILWAUKEE COUNTY
RESOLUTION NO. 2020 -

A RESOLUTION TO AWARD DESIGN OF INDUSTRIAL PARK LIFT STATION
(10100 S 60TH STREET) REPLACEMENT TO GRAEF-USA, INC. FOR $202,100

WHEREAS, the City of Franklin desired to abandon the Industrial Park Lift Station by
constructing a gravity sewer to the Ryan Creek Interceptor northwards along S. 60" Street around the
year 2021; and

WHEREAS, the bids to construct a gravity sewer were excessively above budget; and

WHEREAS, the City solicited three consultants to design a replacement lift station in the vicinity
of the existing lift station; and

WHEREAS, GRAEF-USA, Inc. provide the most thorough understanding of the components
needed for the design of a new lift station serving this area.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Common Council of the City of
Franklin, Wisconsin, to authorize a professional services contract be executed for the Industrial Park Lift
Station Replacement for an amount of $202,100.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin the
day of , 2020, by Alderman

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Common Council of the City of Franklin on the
day of , 2020.

APPROVED:

Stephen R. Olson, Mayor

ATTEST

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT



APPROVAL REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION MTG. DATE
- August 4, 2020
Reports & RESOLUTION TO ISSUE CHANGE ORDER NO. 1 FOR ITEM NO.
Recommendations 2020 CITY HALL SIGN PROJECT P /
TO MICHAEL’S SIGNS, INC. &1
IN THE AMOUNT OF $5,350
BACKGROUND

On July 7, 2020, Michael’s Signs, Inc. was awarded the contract for the 2020 City Hall Sign. In
the process of permitting, the Franklin Director of Inspection Services requested that the LED
portion be enlarged.

ANALYSIS
Michael’s has offered an option that enlarges the LED panels to 3’5 high x 7°3” wide. A color
plan is attached.

The Tourism Commission considered this change on July 29, 2020, and are recommending to
Common Council that the Change Order No. 1 be authorized.

Michael’s contract was $39,000. This change order will bring the contract to $44,350. This
represents a 13.7% increase.

The final completion date in the contract was September 30, 2020.

OPTIONS
A. Authorize change order for a larger sign. Or,
B. Refer back to Staff with further direction.

FISCAL NOTE

The Tourism Commission had a budget of $150,000 to include the City Hall Sign, the Gateway
Signs project, and the Banner Project. The Tourism Commission reports that an additional $5,350
is within the budget. The Tourism Commission has its own budget for discretionary spending.

RECOMMENDATION

(Option A) Resolution 2020- a resolution to issue Change Order No. 1 for the 2020 City Hall
Sign Project to Michael’s Signs, Inc. in the amount of $5,350.

Engineering Department: GEM







STATE OF WISCONSIN: CITY OF FRANKLIN: MILWAUKEE COUNTY
RESOLUTION NO. 2020 -
RESOLUTION TO ISSUE CHANGE ORDER NO. 1 FOR

2020 CITY HALL SIGN PROJECT TO MICHAEL’S SIGNS, INC.
IN THE AMOUNT OF $5,350

WHEREAS, Michael’s Signs, Inc. is constructing the 2020 City Hall Sign Project; and

WHEREAS, Franklin Director of Inspection Services requested that the LED portion be
enlarged; and

WHEREAS, the Tourism Commission considered this change on July 29, 2020, and
recommended to Common Council that the Change Order No. 1 be authorized; and

WHEREAS, additional materials are needed that results in an increase of $5,350.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Common Council of the City
of Franklin, that the certain officials be authorized to issue Change Order No. 1 for the 2020 City
Hall Sign Project in the amount of $5,350.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
day of , 2020 by Alderman

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin
this day of , 2020.

APPROVED:

Stephen R. Olson, Mayor
ATTEST:

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT



CHANGE ORDER
CITY OF FRANKLIN
DEPARTMENT OF ENGINEERING

Change Order No: 01 Dated: August 4, 2020

PROJECT NAME 2020 City Hall sign

PROJECT LOCATION 9229 W. Loomis Road- Franklin, WI

CONTRACTOR: Michael's Signs, Inc.

Nature of the Changes: upsize and reconfigure sign to allow for 3'5” high x 7’3" wide LED panels.

These changes result in the following adjustment of Contract Price and Contract Time: (CITY
CONTRACT ONLY)

Original Contract Price $39,000

Contract price prior to this Change Order $39,000

Net INCREASE resulting from this Change Order $ 5,350

Current contract price including this Change Order $44,350

Net (Increase/Decrease) in time resulting from this Change Order Increase 0 calendar days

The above changes are Approved by:

Mayor City Clerk Contractor:
By: Stephen R. Olson By- Sandra L. Wesolowski By:

Date: Date: Date:
Director of Finance & Treasurer City Attorney

By: Paul Rotzenberg By: Jesse A Wesolowski

Date: Date:




APPROVAL REQUEST FOR MEETING DATE
W ~ COUNCIL ACTION Aug 4, 2020
Report on Expenditures related to the COVID-19
REPORTS & Public Health Emergency thru July 30, 2020 ITEM NUMBER
RECOMMENDATIONS G [,

Background

On March 17, 2020 the Common Council authorized spending up to $250,000 in response to the COVID-19
Public Health Emergency.

Thru July 30, 2020, the City has spent $140,737 (up from $134,800 two weeks earlier) of Labor funds, $54,822
(unchanged from two weeks earlier) In operating costs (principally $20,000 in extra postage for elections and other
mailings), and $17,183 on equipment. Details of the expenditures are:

July 16 July 30

Elections 13,878 13,878
Info Systems 3,905 3,905
Admin — postage 10,000 10,000
Finance 128 128
Muni Buildings 7,198 7,198
Police 4,904 4,904
Fire 6,532 6,532
Highway 6,026 6,026
Parks 2,251 2,251
Total 54,822 54,822

Total expenditures and encumbrances are $212,742 (up from $206,805 on July 16) This amount can be reduced by
$133,879 of reimbursable Road to Recovery costs — netting a charge of $78,863. The ‘Road to Recovery’
clam (WI's administration of the Federal Public Health Emergency relief funding) for qualifying expenditures
thru June 30 totaled $133,879 including overtime, purchase of personal protection equipment & supplies, and
equipment to address the pandemic.

In addition, the Library has expended $7,049 on COVID related costs as well, also eligible Road to Recovery
grant funding.

The State has notified the Health Department of an additional Grants for health related expenditures, $307,000
for contact tracing, $30,000 for Pandemic Response Planning and $73,600 for COVID testing

The City recently accepted a $24,400 grant from the Wisconsin Elections Commission related to increased
costs stemming from the crisis.

In addition, It appears that certain city resources are going to be negatively impacted, specifically, ambulance
revenues are down $141,000 from a year ago at the end of June, hotel tax receipts were 30% ($21,500) below
Q1 2019 for Q1 2020, as the major hotels have been effectively shut down, investment income on reduced
interest rates (estimated to reduce annual revenues by $80,000), the school liaison officer — approximately
$22,000 (with the school closed — the officer was not needed), and landfill siting revenues. These amounts
total $264,500 so far. It is too early to understand the total revenue shortfalls, but clearly there will be some
sizable amounts.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Information Only — no action requested

Finance Dept - Paul



APPROVAL . REQUEST FOR MEETING DATE
Ny COUNCIL ACTION Aug 4, 2020
REPORTS & June, 2020 Monthly Financial Report ITEM NUMBER
RECOMMENDATIONS 6, /7
o } ¢

Background

acceptance.

Receive and place on file.

The June, 2020 Financial Report is attached.

The Director of Finance & Treasurer will be available to answer any questions.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

The Finance Committee reviewed this report at its July 28, 2020 meeting and recommends its

Finance - PAR




** Franklin

WIS CONSIN

Date: July 17, 2020

To: Mayor Olson, Common Council and Finance Committee Members
From: Paul Rotzenberg, Director of Finance & Treasurer

Subject: June 2020 Financial Report

The June, 2020 financial reports for the General Fund, Debt Service Fund, TID Funds, Solid
Waste Fund, Capital Outlay Fund, Equipment Replacement Fund, Street Improvement Fund,
Capital Improvement Fund, Development Fund, Utility Development, Self Insurance Fund, and
Post Employment Insurance Fund are attached.

The budget allocation is completed using an average of the last five years actual spending
against the Amended Budget. Caution is advised in that spending patterns may have changed
Comments on specific and trending results are provided below to aid understanding or
explaining current year financial results.

Cash & Investments Summary — is provided to aid in understanding the resources available to
meet current activities. Cash & investments are positions with safety and liquidity as primary
objectives as stated in the City’s Investment policy. While retumn potential is not ignored,
investment returns are secondary in the investment decisions. Cash & Investments in the
Governmental Funds totaling $47.0 million decreased $1.5 million since last month. General
fund payroll requirements and TID Expenditures are the biggest reason for the reduction.

Cash Balances - June & May2020
$20,000,000
$15,000,000 L
$10,000,000 247
$ 4y
$5,000,000 (KA
.. % s % :
General Debt Serv TIF NonMajor Sewer Water Self Ins Other  Tax Fund
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May 2020
Financial report

The Property Tax Fund decreased $4.2 million on the June settlement.

Short term investment returns plummeted to 0.25% in June from 1.6% in January. That will cut
investment returns by 87% should the new rates hold for any length of time. To help mitigate
that decline, a further $3 million in short term holdings were converted to 6-18 month CD’s
locking in rates from 0.5 to 1.15%.

GENERAL FUND revenues of $19.8 million are $0.2 million greater than budget. Tax
collections were a little faster this year than prior years, and investment interest was stronger
than expected in Q2.

While trends are not clear as yet, some revenue shortfalls in Fines & Forfeitures and Charges
for Services are beginning to show up. It is unclear how great an impact the Public Health Crisis
will have on revenue generation.

Year to Date expenditures of $12.7 million are $1.5 million less than budget. $200,000 of Public
Health Emergency expenditures have been incurred, primarily Public Safety. Some portion of
these costs will be recovered via Federal grants administered by the State.

Clearly, the Emergency will have an adverse impact on the budget. The Common Council
authorized $250,000 of Contingency to address the Emergency, the budget has not yet been
aligned with those costs.

A $7.1 million surplus is $1.7 million greater than budget. That surplus is primarily related to
under spending, with a much smaller favorable revenue component. It is unlikely that results in
Dec will reflect a surplus of this size.

DEBT SERVICE — Debt payments were made March 1 as required. The increased development
activity of late has permitted more impact fee transfers than expected in the budget.

TIF Districts — In general 2020 TID performance is spending down the debt resources acquired
in 2019 to fund project costs. All TID fund balances have declined $9.8 million in 2020,
principally reflecting the $4 million refunding in TID 4 and the $4.5 million mortgage in TID7.

TID 3 — The 2020 increment was collected and the TID retired $650,000 of debt along
with a $760,000 Municipal Revenue Obligation payment. The TID will move to a surplus in mid-
summer when state shared revenues are received. TID3's expenditure perod closed in June
2020.

TID 4 — The 2020 increment was collected. $6.2 million of project contracts were signed
related to the business park infrastructure work. An additional $3 million resource will be needed
to support all the recent project costs approved. The TID 4 expenditure period closed in June
2020.

TID 5 — The 2020 Increment was collected. A $4 million portion of the 2018 NAN was
refunded in March.

TID 6 — The Developer is advancing infrastructure work for the new Industrial park.



May 2020
Financial report

TID 7 — Mortgage advances totaling all $4 5 million have been made and reflected as a
Grant and as a Deferred Inflow. No new project costs are expected for quite some time. The
$4.7 million deficit reflects the $4.5 million advance to fund the mortgage note.

LIBRARY FUND - Activity is occurring as planned

TOURISM COMMISSION - Very little activity has occurred so far in 2020. 2020 Room Tax
receipts are expected to be very small as the pandemic has significantly adversely impacted the
two large hotels in the City.

SOLID WASTE FUND - Activity is occurring as budgeted.

CAPITAL OUTLAY FUND - This fund is much more dependent upon landfill siting revenues in
2020 than prior years. Those resources arrive ratably over the year as opposed to Q1 for tax
levy resources. The police have ordered the three squads authorized for 2020 While Highway
has spent $41,000 on trees and ordered the salt spreader.

EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT FUND - Landfill siting is the primary resource here. The fund
has significant fund balance to call upon in the short term for the 2020 program.

The 2020 Ambulance arrived in May. Several of the Highway equipment projects are on order.

STREET IMPROVEMENT FUND - The Q2 & Q3 General Transportation Aids will fund the
2020 program. The 2020 program has been let.

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND — A $943,000 deferred inflow from MMSD will aid 2020
resources. Landfill siting resources are likely to fall significantly short of the 2020 budget, the
Common Council re-aligned landfill siting resources with new expectations. A shortfall in [andfill
siting revenues is more than offset by the deferred inflow from MMSD. No changes are needed
in 2020 expenditure appropriations.

The Police Shooting range project was completed, however bills are still coming in. The S 68"
Street hill mitigation project has been let and has started. The Pleasant View Park Pavilion
project is wrapping up. The Ryan Creek Odor control project is moving along.

DEVELOPMENT FUND - Revenues thru June are falling behind 2019 and expectations. This
may signal a slow down in development activity. No large permit has been pulled so far in
2020.

The March 1 debt payments were fully funded in 2020 for the first time in several years, and
those transfers out to the Debt Service fund were made. As the park projects are getting
completed, park impact fees are moving out. However, without progress on more park projects,
park impact fees are likely to be rebated later in 2020

There are now $5.1 million of park impact fees on hand and $2.6 million water impact fees. The
acceptance of the Loomis Road water main represents the $213,000 of water impact fee usage.
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UTILITY DEVELOPMENT FUND - Activity in this fund centers on balances rolling to the tax roll
in December each year as well as collection of utility special assessments.

SANITARY SEWER FUND - Revenues and operating costs are on budget thru June.

WATER UTILITY FUND - revenues are very close to plan, with heavier residential use related
to stay at home orders, and lighter Commercial/industrial use for the same reasons. Operating
costs are less than might be expected, resulting in improved operating results.

SELF INSURANCE FUND — Revenues are approximately on plan, as participation has
remained steady compared to 2019. Benefit payments declined sharply in April/May, as
participants refrained from seeking health care during the Pandemic. The Public Health
Emergency has delayed some elective procedures, further delaying costs. June claim costs
returned to normal. The plan has an unexpected $557,000 surplus, when a deficit was planned
for 2020, raising the fund balance to over $3 million.

RETIREE HEALTH FUND - Insurance results are on par with the prior year. The decline in the
equity markets moderated in April and May, and the fixed income position shielded the portfolio
some. There are still some net investment losses from the Feb/March sharp declines.



City of Franklin
Cash & Investments Summary

June 30, 2020
American Institutional Local Prior
Cash Deposit Capital Government Total Month
Management | Management Invest Pool Total
General Fund 509642 $ 5,610,356 $ 7,108,107 $ 3,284,682 $ 16,512,787 $16,822,793
Debt Service Funds 17,762 569,006 551,683 - 1,138,451 1,138,247
TIF Districts 75,833 8,752,878 1,671,966 - 10,500,677 11,578,001
Nonmajor
Governmental Funds 670,608 10,342,571 7,800,441 - 18,813,620 18,933,730
Total Governmental
Funds 1,273,845 25,274,811 17,132,197 3,284,682 46,965,635 48,472,770
Sewer Fund 494,081 1,101,899 - - 1,695,980 1,665,617
Water Utility 21,116 2,032,661 429,584 - 2,483,361 2,613,026
Self Insurance Fund 11,084 1,308,709 1,876,087 - 3,195,880 3,124,817
Other Designated Funds 12,227 - - - 12,227 14,169
Total Other Funds 538,508 4,443,269 2,305,671 - 7,287,448 7,417,628
Total Pooled
Cash & Investments 1,812,353 29,718,080 19,437,868 3,284,682 54,252,983 55,890,398
Property Tax Fund (338,690) 1,079,463 - - 740,773 4942920
Total Trust Funds (338,690) 1,079,463 - - 740,773 4,942 920
Grand Total
Cash & Investments 1,473,663 30,797,543 19,437,868 3,284,682 54,993,756 60,833,318
Average Rate of Return 0 25% 192% 014%
Maturities:
Demand 1,473,663 27,385,543 2,789 3,284,682 32,146,678 36,960,128
Fixed Income & Equities - - - - - -
2020 - Q2 - - - - - 1,000,817
2020 -Q3 - 167,000 - - 167,000 167,000
2020 - Q4 - 500,000 4,539,387 - 5,039,387 5,045,736
2021 - Q1 - 1,245,000 2,024,219 - 3,269,219 3,022,344
2021 - Q2 - 1,000,000 2,035,136 - 3,035,136 3,038,334
2021 -Q3 - - 2,038,994 - 2,038,994 -
2021 - 500,000 3,581,377 - 4,081,377 6,376,345
2022 - - 4,696,062 - 4,696,062 4,702,458
2023 - - 519,904 - 519,904 520,156
1,473,663 30,797,543 19,437,868 3,284,682 54,993,756 60,833,318

7/15/2020

Findata Qtrrpt Cash & Investments June 2020



City of Franklin
General Fund

Comparative Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the 6 months ended June 30, 2020

2020 2020 2020 2020 Var to Budget
Original Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Surplus

Revenue Budget Budget Budget Actual (Deficiency)
Property Taxes $ 19,015,200 $ 19,015,200 $ 16,309,737 16,484,031 174,294
Other Taxes 676,400 676,400 194,317 174,610 (19,707)
Intergovernmental Revenue 1,746,400 1,746,400 445,586 489,598 44,012
Licenses & Permits 903,200 903,200 494,859 574,428 79,569
Law and Ordinance Violations 546,000 546,000 301,700 239,214 (62,486)
Public Charges for Services 2,527,300 2,351,900 1,017,769 954,405 (63,364)
Intergovernmental Charges 182,000 182,000 84,070 83,786 (284)
investment Income 343,580 343,580 178,665 245133 66,468
Sale of Capital Assets 10,750 10,750 5,785 5,414 (371)
Miscellanous Revenue 128,500 128,500 82,070 89,685 7,615

Transfers from Other Funds 1,050,000 1,050,000 550,218 537,600 (12,618)
Total Revenue $ 27,129,330 $ 26,953,930 $ 19,664,776 19,877,904 213,128

101 08%
2020 2020 2020 2020 Var to Budget
Original Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Surplus

Expenditures Budget Budget Budget Actual (Deficiency)
General Government $ 3,365,482 $ 3431643 A § 1,838,260 1,544,841 (293,419)
Public Safety 18,446,978 18,676,439 9,375,179 8,847,914 (527,265)
Public Works 4,151,677 4,906,734 2,296,411 1,945,766 (350,645)
Health & Human Services 737,635 737,635 350,445 301,824 (48,621)
Culture & Recreation 210,448 210,448 98,934 109,214 10,280
Conservation and Development 619,400 716,294 329,406 310,249 (19,157)
Contingency & Unclassified 1,487,500 1,315,870 a 146,782 37,775 (109,007)
Anticipated Underexpenditures (315,000) (315,000) (157,500) - 167,500
Transfers to Other Funds 524,000 524,000 - - -
Encumbrances - - - (339,531) (339,531)
Total Expenditures $ 29,228,120 $ 30,204,063 $ 14,277,917 12,758,052 (1,519,865)

89 36%

Excess of revenue over
(under) expenditures (2,098,790) (3.250,133) 5,386,859 7,119,852 1,732,993

Fund Balance, beginning of year 8,633,754 8,633,754 8,633,754

Fund Balance, end of pernod $ 6,534,964 § 5,383,621 15,753,606

A Represents an amendment to Adopted Budget
E Represents an ecumbrance for current year from prior year



City of Franklin
General Fund

Comparative Statement of Revenue
For the 6 months ended June 30, 2020

2020 2020 2020 2020 Var to Budget
Original Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Surplus
Revenue Budget Budget Budget Actual {Deficiency)
Property Taxes 19,015,200 $ 19,015,200 $ 16,309,737 $ 16,484,031 174,294
Other Taxes:
Cable television franchise fees 480,000 480,000 131,039 113,322 (17,717)
Mobile Home 21,000 21,000 10,500 10,453 (47)
Room tax 175,400 175,400 52,778 50,835 (1,943)
Total Other taxes 676,400 676,400 194,317 174,610 (19,707)
Intergovernmental Revenue:
State shared revenue-per capita 405,000 405,000 - - -
Expenditure restraint revenue 150,000 150,000 - - -
State computer aid 228,000 228,000 - - -
State transportation aids 535,000 535,000 271,772 401,987 124,215
Fire insurance dues 165,000 165,000 99,000 - (99,000)
Other grants & aid 263,400 263,400 68,814 87,611 18,797
Total intergovernmental Revenue 1,746,400 1,746 400 445,586 489,598 44,012
Licenses & Permits:
Licenses 162,000 162,000 140,469 127,065 (13,404)
Permits 741,200 741,200 354,390 447,363 92,973
903,200 903,200 494,859 574,428 79,569
Law & Ordinance Violations:
Fines, Forfeitures & Penalties 546,000 546,000 301,700 239,214 (62,486)
Public Charges for Services:
Planning Related Fees 72,800 72,800 38,775 36,180 (2,595)
General Government 8,700 8,700 4415 6,764 2,349
Architectural Board Review 4,500 4,500 2,033 3,130 1,097
Police & Related 6,800 56,800 A 22,892 998 (21,894)
Ambulance Services - ALS 1,350,000 1,350,000 661,273 302,244 (359,029)
Ambulance Services - BLS - - - 218,019 218,019
Fire Safety Training 1,500 1,500 518 1,143 625
Fire Sprinkler Plan Review 40,000 40,000 19,393 2,450 (16,943)
Fire Inspections 19,500 19,500 9,692 3,197 (6,495)
Quarry Reimbursement 43,000 43,000 2,217 21,020 18,803
Weed Cutting 7,000 7,000 799 (321) (1,120)
Engineering Fees 330,000 330,000 97,811 90,865 (6,946)
Public Works Fees 3,500 16,100 6,421 61,754 55,333
Weights & Measures 7,600 7,600 36 - (36)
Landfill Operations - Siting 438,000 200,000 100,000 169,574 69,574
Landfill Operations - Emerald Park 80,000 80,000 26,235 31,683 5,448
Health Department 114,400 114,400 25,259 5,705 (19,554)
Total Public Charges for Services 2,527,300 $ 2,351,900 $ 1,017,769 $ 954,405 (63,364)

A Represents an amendment to Adopted Budget
E Represents an ecumbrance for current year from prior year



City of Franklin
General Fund

Comparative Statement of Revenue
For the 6 months ended June 30, 2020

2020 2020 2020 2020 Var to Budget
Original Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Surplus
Revenue Budget Budget Budget Actual (Deficiency)
Intergovernmental Charges:

Milwaukee County - Paramedics 100,000 $ 100,000 $ 37,976 $ 60,070 22,094

School Liaison Officer 82,000 82,000 46,094 23,716 (22,378)
Total Intergovernmental Charges 182,000 182,000 84,070 83,786 (284)
Investment Income:

Interest on Investments 240,500 240,500 127,125 97,310 (29,815)

Market Value Change on Investments - - - 86,826 86,826

Interest - Tax Roll 100,000 100,000 50,000 58,823 8,823

Other Interest 3,080 3,080 1,540 2,174 634
Total Investment Income 343,580 343,580 178,665 245,133 66,468
Sale of Capital Assets 10,750 10,750 5,785 5,414 (371)
Miscellaneous Revenue:

Rental of Property 50,000 50,000 25,857 18,554 (7,303)

Refunds/Reimbursements 35,000 35,000 14,766 8,459 (6,307)

Insurance Dividend 40,000 40,000 40,000 58,683 18,683

Other Revenue 3,500 3,500 1,447 3,989 2,542
Total Miscellaneous Revenue 128,500 128,500 82,070 89,685 7,615
Transfer from Other Funds:

Water Utility-Tax Equivalent 1,050,000 1,050,000 550,218 537,600 (12,618)
Total Transfers from Other Funds 1,050,000 1,050,000 550,218 537,600 (12,618)
Total Revenue 27,129,330 $ 26,953,930 $ 19,664,776 $ 19,877,904 213,128

101 08%

A Represents an amendment to Adopted Budget
E Represents an ecumbrance for current year from prior year



City of Franklin
General Fund

Comparative Statement of Expenditures
For the 6 months ended June 30, 2020

2020 2020 2020 2020 Var to Budget
Original Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Surplus
Expenditures Budget Budget Budget Actual (Deficiency)
General Government:
Mayor & Aldermen - Labor 65,891 ] 65,891 $ 32,945 $ 32,946 $ (0
Mayor & Aldermen - Non-Personnel 33,501 34,345 A 23,321 20,619 € 2,702
Municipal Court - Labor 193,490 193,490 96,745 93,182 3,563
Municipal Court - Non-Personnel 19,625 19,625 16,017 12,485 3,532
City Clerk Labor 353,001 353,001 176,500 155,810 20,690
City Clerk - Non-Personnel 27,200 27,200 14,233 11,865 2,368
Elections - Labor 70,404 70,404 35,202 22,004 13,198
Elections - Non-Personnel 16,500 16,500 9,633 14,114 (4,481)
information Services - Labor 131,451 236,451 A 118,226 64,500 53,726
Information Services - Non-Personnel 429,878 346,271 187,705 221348 & (33,643)
Administration - Labor 411,533 411,533 205,767 114,834 & 90,933
Administration - Non-Personnel 129,655 129,655 61,035 54,906 6,129
Finance - Labor 419,877 419,877 209,939 212,664 (2,725)
Finance - Non-Personnel 115,710 115,710 62,145 50,872 11,273
Independent Audit 30,050 30,050 26,770 24,950 1,820
Assessor - Non-Personnel 233,350 233,350 116,636 55,054 61,582
Legal Services 357,000 357,000 181,860 141,910 39,950
Municipal Buildings - Labor 114,001 154,001 77,001 50,079 26,922
Municipal Buildings - Non-Personnel 117,515 121,439 A 52,956 48,468 € 4,488
Property/liability insurance 95,850 95,850 133,624 142,231 (8,607)
Total General Government 3,365,482 3,431,643 1,838,260 1,544,841 293,419
Public Safety:
Police Department - Labor 9,167,605 9,217,605 A 4,608,803 4,362,413 246,390
Police Department - Non-Personnet 1,226,530 1,249,060 A 653,941 530,889 & 123,052
Pandemic Emergency - Labor - - - 132,369 (132,369)
Fire Department - Labor 6,286,453 6,286,453 3,143,227 2,968,044 175,183
Fire Department - Non-Personnel 566,500 566,831 A 290,108 269,830 20,278
Public Fire Protection 283,300 283,300 142,498 139,981 2,517
Building Inspection - Labor 768,655 846,955 423,478 370,766 52,712
Building Inspection - Non-Personnet 140,335 218,635 107,044 66,022 41,022
Weights and Measures 7,600 7,600 6,080 7,600 (1,520)
Total Public Safety 18,446,978 18,676,439 9,375,179 8,847,914 527,265
Public Works:
Engineering - Labor 590,261 590,261 295,130 232,301 62,829
Engineering - Non-Personnel 342,820 342,820 169,638 173,946 (4,308)
Highway - Labor 1,974,746 2,604,746 1,302,373 878,246 424,127
Highway - Non-Personnel 890,800 975,737 A 374,690 515431 € (140,741)
Street Lighting 346,000 386,120 A 153,278 145,803 € 7.475
Weed Controt 7,050 7,050 1,302 39 1,263
Total Public Works 4,151,677 $ 4,906,734 $ 2,296,411 $ 1,945,766 $ 350,645

A Represents an amendment to Adopted Budget
E Represents an ecumbrance for current year from prior year



City of Franklin
General Fund
Comparative Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance

For the 6 months ended June 30, 2020

2020 2020 2020 2020 Var to Budget
Original Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Surplus

Expenditures Budget Budget Budget Actual (Deficiency)
Health & Human Services:

Public Health - Labor $ 628,585 $ 628,585 $ 314,293 $ 275,233 $ 39,060

Public Health - Non-Personnel 65,250 65,250 12,842 9,102 3,740

Animal Control 43,800 43,800 23,310 17,489 5,821
Total Health & Human Services 737,635 737,635 350,445 301,824 48,621
Culture & Recreation:

Senior Travel & Activities 24,000 24,000 10,264 1,180 9,084

Parks - Labor 119,998 119,998 59,999 79,941 (19,942)

Parks - Non-Personnel 66,450 66,450 28,671 28,093 E 578
Total Culture & Recreation 210,448 210,448 98,934 109,214 (10,280)
Conservation & Development:

Planning - Labor 358,680 358,680 179,340 176,159 £ 3,181

Planning - Non-Personnel 74,950 133,844 47,703 67,616 E (19,913)

Economic Dev - Labor 126,770 126,770 63,385 61,101 2,284

Economic Dev - Non-Personnel 59,000 97,000 38,978 5373 E 33,605
Total Conservation & Development 619,400 716,294 329,406 310,249 19,157
Contingency & Unclassified:

Restricted - other 1,335,000 1,035,000 - - -

Unrestricted 125,000 253,370 135,262 37,775 £ 97,487

Unclassified 27,500 27,500 11,520 - 11,520
Total Contingency & Unclassified 1,487,500 1,315,870 146,782 37,775 109,007
Anticipated Underexpenditures {315,000) {315,000) {157,500) - (315,000)
Transfers to Other Funds:

Capital Improvement Fund 500,000 500,000 - - -

Other Funds 24,000 24,000 - - -
Total Transfers to Other Funds 524,000 524,000 - - -
Total Expenditures $ 29,228,120 $ 30,204,063 $ 14,277,917 $ 13,097,583 3 1,022,834

Less Encumbrances 339,531
Net Expenditures $ 12,758,052

% of YTD Budget

A Represents an amendment to Adopted Budget

E Represents an ecumbrance for current year from prior year

89 36%



City of Franklin
General Fund
Balance Sheet

ASSETS 6/30/2020
Cash & Investments $ 16,504,110
Accounts & Taxes & Interest Recetvable 2,977,934
Due from Other Funds & Advances 123,200
Due from Other Governments 2,822
Prepaid Expenditures & Inventories 11,562

Total Assets $ 19,619,628

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable $ 237,717
Accrued Liabilities 899,089
Due to Other Funds & Governments 121,092
Special Deposits 72,982
Unearned Revenue 2,535,142

Total Liabilities 3,866,022
FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable - Inventories, Prepaids, Advances, Assigned 134,762
Unassigned 15,618,844
Total Fund Balances 15,753,606

Total Liabilities & Fund Balances $ 19,619,628



City of Franklin
Debt Service Funds
Balance Sheet
June 30, 2020 and 2019

2020 2020 2019 2019

Special Debt 2020 Special Debt 2019

Assets Assessment Service Total Assessment Service Total
Cash and investments $ 787,485 $ 350,966 $ 1,138,451 $ 734270 $ 419,391 $ 1,153,661
Special assessment receivable 30,255 - 30,255 58,474 - 58,474
Total Assets $ 817,740 $ 350,966 $ 1,168,706 $ 792,744 $ 419,391 $ 1,212,135

Liabilities and Fund Balance

Unearned & unavailable revenue $ 30,255 $ - $ 30,255 $ 58,474 $ - $ 58474
Unassigned fund balance 787,485 350,966 1,138,451 734,270 419,391 1,153,661
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 817,740 $ 350,966 $ 1,168,706 $ 792,744 $ 419,391 $ 1,212,135

Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Six months ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

2020 2020 2020 2020 2019 2019 2019
Special Debt Year-to-Date Original Special Debt Year-to-Date
Revenue Assessment Service Actual Budget Assessment Service Actual
Property Taxes $ - $ 1,100,000 $ 1,100,000 $ 1,100,000 $ - $ 1,300,000 $ 1,300,000
Special Assessments 6,221 - 6,221 65,000 5,729 - 5,729
Investment Income 13,634 3,246 16,880 12,000 14,207 7,643 21,850
GO Debt issuance - - - - - - -
Total Revenue 19,855 1,103,246 1,123,101 1,177,000 19,936 1,307,643 1,327,579
Expenditures:
Debt Service
Principal - 1,425,000 1,425,000 1,387,500 - 1,405,000 1,405,000
Interest - 74,961 74,961 199,132 - 74,256 74,256
Bank Fees 1,200 1,200 1,140 800 800
Total expenditures - 1,501,161 1,501,161 1,687,772 - 1,480,056 1,480,056
Transfers in - 397,950 397,950 453,682 - 323,419 323419
Transfers out - - - (600,000) - - -
Net change In fund balances 19 855 35 19,890 (557,090) 19,936 151,006 170,942
Fund balance, beginning of year 767,630 350,931 1,118,561 1,118,561 714,334 268,385 982,719
Fund balance, end of period $ 787.485 $ 350,966 $ 1,138,451 $ 561,471 $ 734,270 $ 419,391 $ 1,153,661

7/13/2020 L 41803 VOL1 Finance\Qtrrpt-MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORTS\2020\Monthiy\Debt Service\June 2020
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City of Franklin
Tax Increment Financing District #3 - Northwestern Mutual
Balance Sheet
June 30, 2020 and 2019

Assets 2020 2019
Cash & investments $ 725,896 $ 3,645,511
Taxes recewvable - -

Total Assets $ 725,896 $ 3,645,511

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accounts payable $ - $ 833,343
Accrued ligbiities 865,136 865,135
Unearned revenue - -

Total Liabihties 865,136 1,698,478

Assigned fund balance {139,240) 1,947,033

Total Liabihities and Fund Balance $ 725,896 $ 3,645511
Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Six months ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

2020 2020 2020 2020 2019
Annual Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Year-to-Date
Budget Budget Budget Actual Actual

Revenue
General property tax levy $ 1,409,000 $ 1,409,000 $ 1,409,000 $ 1,401,748 $ 1,114,683
State exempt ard 507,500 507,500 13,750 33,870 6,293
Investment income 25,000 25,000 14,271 7,752 75,717
Bond proceeds - - - - 3,001,886

Total revenue 1,841,500 1,941,500 1,437,021 1,443,370 4,198,579

Expenditures
Debt service principal 665,000 665,000 665,000 665,000 -
Debt service interest & fees 80,265 80,265 42,000 45,075 16,201
Administrative expenses 7,250 7,250 3,625 3,690 95,878
Professional services 6,000 6,000 3,000 750 1,000
Capttal outlays - - - - 880,082
Development incentive & obligation payments 711,005 760,005 735,505 760,005 2,791,990

Total expenditures 1,469,520 1,518,520 1,449,130 1,474,520 2,905,069

Revenue over (under) expenditures 471,980 422 980 3 (12,109) (31,150) 1,293,510

Fund balance, beginning of year (127,252) (127,252) (108,090) 653,523

Fund balance, end of period $ 344,728 $ 295728 $ (139240) $§ 1,947,033

7/16/2020 L 1803 VOL1 Finance\Qtrrpt-MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORTS\2020\WonthI\CDA TIF 3June



City of Franklin
Tax Increment Financing District #4 - Ascension Hospital
Balance Sheet
June 30, 2020 and 2019

Assets 2020 2019
Cash & mvestments $ 3,201,668 $ 4249155
Total Assets $ 3,201,668 $ 4,249,155
Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accounts payable $ 519,032 $ 4,661
Total Liabilities 519,032 4,661
Assigned fund balance 2,682,636 4,244 494
Total Liabthties and Fund Balance $ 3,201,668 $ 4249155
Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Six months ended June 30, 2020 and 2019
2020 2020 2020 2020 2019
Annual Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Year-to-Date
Budget Budget Budget Actual Actual
Revenue
Gerteral property tax levy $ 1144700 $ 1,144,700 $ 1144700 $ 1,138,802 $§ 1,011,224
Payment in Lieu of Taxes 120,000 120,000 120,000 73,889 121,759
State exempt aid 48,900 48,900 16,150 37,145 4,827
Investment income 74,000 74,000 37,000 70,848 76,147
Bond proceeds 6,200,000 6,200,000 3,100,000 - -
Total revenue 7,587,600 7,587,600 4,417,850 1,320,684 1,213,857
Expenditures
Debt service interest & fees 75,000 75,000 37,500 - -
Administrative expenses 30,290 30,290 15,145 19,476 22,167
Professional services 1,000 127,675 773,337 717,695 137,149
Capital outlay 11,000,000 11,656,606 5,118,803 7,249,813 714,802
Encumbrances - - - (5,280,996) (813,196)
Total expenditures 11,106,290 11,889,571 5,944,785 2,705,988 60,922
Revenue over (under) expendrtures (3,518,690) (4,301,971 (1,526,935) (1,385,304) 1,153,035
Fund balance, beginning of year 4,229,419 4,067,940 4,067,940 3,091,459
Fund balance, end of period $ 710,729 §  (234,031) $ 2682636 $ 4244494

7/16/2020
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City of Franklin
Tax Increment Financing District #5 - Ballpark Commons
Balance Sheet
June 30, 2020 and 2019

Assets 2020 2019
Cash & investments $ 863,276 $ 4,339,140
Accounts receivable - -

Total Assets $ 863,276 $ 4,339,140

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accounts payable $ - 3 9,109
Due to other funds - R
Interfund advance from Development Fund - -

Total Liabilities - 9,109
Assigned fund balance 863,276 4,330,031
Total Liabilittes and Fund Balance $ 863,276 $ 4,339,140

Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Six months ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

2020 2020 2020 2020 2019
Annual Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Year-to-Date
Budget Budget Budget Actual Actual
Revenue
General property tax levy $ 756,000 $ 756,000 $ 378,000 $ 721,361 $ 30,951
Payment in lieu of taxes - - - 91,560 -
State exempt aid 12,900 12,900 6,450 12,883 123
Investment income 1,000 1,000 500 22,168 76,865
Bond proceeds - - - - 10,600,102
Total revenue 769,900 769,900 384,950 847,972 10,708,041
Expenditures
Debt service interest & fees 890,763 4,890,763 2,246,971 4,427 844 10,427,243
Administrative expenses 12,250 12,250 6,622 3,690 23,244
Professional services 16,050 48,188 10,095 35,035 100,627
Capital outlay - - - - 4,565,517
Development incentive & obligation payments - - - - -
Encumbrances - - - (27,160) (53,106)
Total expenditures 919,063 4,951,201 2,263,688 4 439,409 15,083,525
Revenue over (under) expenditures (149,163) (4,181,301) _$ (1,878,738) (3,591,437) (4,355,484)
Fund balance, beginning of year 376,133 376,133 4454713 8,685,515
Fund balance, end of period $ 226,970 $ (3,805,168) $ 863,276 $ 4,330,031

7/16/2020 L 41803 VOL1 Finance\Qtrrpt-MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORTS\2020Wonthly\CDA TIF 5June



City of Frankiin
Tax increment Financing District #6 - Loomis & Ryan
Balance Sheet

June 30, 2020 and 2019

Assets 2020 2019
Cash & investments $ 5,328,551 $ 6,537,042
Total Assets $ 5,328,551 $ 6,537,042
Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accounts payable $ 13,119 $ 670
Advances from other funds - 13,000
Total Liabilities 13,119 13,670
Assigned fund balance 5,315,432 6,523,372
Total Liabiities and Fund Balance $ 5,328,551 $ 6,537,042
Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Six months ended June 30, 2020 and 2019
2020 2020 2020 2020 2019
Annual Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Year-to-Date
Budget Budget Budget Actual Actual
Revenue
Investment income $ 32,500 $ 32,500 $ 16,250 $ 25,383 $ 12,995
Bond proceeds 3,250,000 3,250,000 1,625,000 - 6,638,320
Total revenue 3,282,500 3,282,500 1,641,250 25,383 6,651,315
Expenditures
Debt service interest & fees $ 326,940 $ 326,940 $ 155,225 $ 109,850 3 109,100
Administrative expenses 30,290 30,290 15,070 15,428 2,983
Professional services 8,750 9,906 4,953 28,123 3,672
Capital outlay 3,000,000 9,000,000 4,500,000 - -
Encumbrances - - - {1,600) (1,1586)
Total expenditures 3,365,980 9,367,136 4,675,248 151,801 114,599
Revenue over (under) expenditures (83,480) (6,084,636) _$ (3,033,998) (126,418) 6,536,716
Fund balance, beginning of year 626,563 626,563 5,441,850 (13,344)
Fund balance, end of period $ 543,083 $ (5,458,073) $ 5315432 $ 6,523,372

7/16/2020
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City of Franklin
Tax Increment Financing District #7 - Velo Village
Balance Sheet
June 30, 2020 and 2019

Assets 2020 2019
Cash & investments $ 394,687 $ (7,020)
Mortgage recelvable 4,500,000

Total Assets $ 4,894,687 $ (7,020)

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accounts payable $ - 3 861
Advances from other funds 1,745,000 -
Deferred inflow 4,500,000 -

Total Liabilities 6,245,000 861
Assigned fund balance (1,350,313) (7,881)
Total Liabiities and Fund Balance $ 4,894,687 3 (7,020)
Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Six months ended June 30, 2020 and 2019
2020 2020 2020 2019
Annual Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date
Budget Budget Actual Actual

Revenue '

Investment & misc income $ 270,000 $ 270,000 $ 14,118 3 -
Bond proceeds - - - -
Total revenue 270,000 270,000 14,118 -

Expenditures
Debt service interest, fees, bond i1ssuance $ 268,549 $ 268,549 $ 33,507 $ -
Admunistrative expenses 7,250 7,250 3,690 114
Professional services 6,750 30,850 9,479 16,867
Capital outlay - - 166,663 -
Development incentive & obligation payments - - 4,500,000 -
Encumbrances - - (5,900) (9,100)

Total expenditures 282,549 306,649 4,707,439 7,881

Revenue over (under) expenditures (12,549) (36,649) (4,693,321) (7,881)

Fund balance, beginning of year 2,970,100 2,970,100 3,343,008 -

Fund batance, end of period $ 2,957,551 $ 2,933,451 $ (1,350,313) $ (7,881)

711612020 L 41803 VOL1 Finance\Qtrrpt-MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORTS\2020\Monthiy\CDA TIF 7June



City of Franklin
Library Fund
Balance Sheet

June 30, 2020 and 2019

Operating Restricted
Assets 2020 2019 2020 2019
Cash and investments $ 1,297,580 $ 1,206,112 $ 138,513 $ 154 472
Total Assets $ 1,297,580 $ 1,206,112 $ 138,513 $ 154,472
Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accounts payable $ 14,284 $ 17,251 $ 2,989 $ 2,533
Accrued salaries & wages 29,330 26,067 - -
Assigned fund balance 1,253,966 1,162,794 135,524 151,939
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 1,297,580 $ 1,206,112 $ 138,513 $ 154472
Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance - Operating Fund
For the Six months ended June 30, 2020 and 2019
2020 2020 2020 2020 2019
Annual Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Year-to-Date
Revenue Budget Budget Budget Actual Actual
Property taxes $ 1,340,500 $ 1,340,500 $ 1,340,500 $ 1,340,500 $ 1,312,700
Reciprocal borrowing (restricted) 40,000 40,000 163 - 671
Landfill Siting 20,000 20,000 10,000 8,311 -
Investment income 15,000 15,000 7,500 12,287 18,037
Transfers In - - - - 8,100
Total Revenue 1,415,500 1,415,500 1,358,163 1,361,098 1,339,508
Expenditures:
Salaries and benefits 998,134 998,134 499,067 466,678 444 397
Contractual services 10,250 10,250 8,404 7.637 9,593
Supples 23,100 23,100 9,358 10,055 19,715
Services and charges 85,717 85,717 44,569 63,830 48,085
Contingency - - - - 6,240
Facilty charges 195,418 195,418 86,185 83,543 98,255
Capital outlay 154,000 154,000 48,010 38,816 46,338
Encumbrances - - - - (6,240)
Total Library Costs 1,466,619 1,466,619 695,593 670,559 666,383
Total expenditures 1,466,619 1,466,619 695,593 670,559 666,383
Revenue over (under) expenditures (561,119) (51,119) 662,570 690,539 673,125
Fund balance, beginning of year 452,085 563,427 563,427 489,669
Fund balance, end of period $ 400,966 $ 512,308 $ 1,253,966 $ 1,162,794

7/13/2020
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Assets
Cash and investments

Total Assets

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accounts payable
Assigned fund balance

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance

Revenue:
Room Taxes
Investment Income

Total revenue

Expenditures:
Personal Services
Supplies & Printing
Training & Memberships
Tourism Events
Marketing
Adverising
Encumbrances

Total expenditures
Revenue over (under) expenditures

Fund balance, begmning of year

City of Franklin

Tourism

Commission

Balance Sheet
June 30, 2020 and 2019

2020 2019
$ 469,319 $ 345,567
$ 469,319 $ 345,567
$ 331 $ 1,000
468,988 344,567
$ 469,319 $ 345,567
Comparative Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Six months ended June 30, 2020 and 2019
2020 2020 2020 2020 2019
Original Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Year-to-Date
Budget Budget Budget Actual Actual
$ 210,179 $ 210,179 $ 25,378 $ (%61) § 437
- - - 2,008 3,744
210,179 210,179 25,378 1,137 4,181
35,000 35,000 17,500 - -
15,000 15,000 5,000 25 -
10,000 10,000 7,069 1,000 439
10,000 10,000 413 - 154
60,000 61,371 14,983 2,446 37,938
309,000 309,000 154,500 - -
- - (1,371) (3,848)
439,000 440,371 199,465 2,100 34,683
(228,821) (230,192) (174,087) (963) (30,502)
234,658 469,951 469,951 376,069
$ 5,837 $ 239,759 $ 468,988 $ 345,567

Fund balance, end of period

7/13/2020
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City of Franklin

Solid Waste Collection Fund

Balance Sheet

June 30, 2020 and 2019

Assets 2020 2019
Cash and investments $ 1,452,726 $ 1,252,276
Accrued Receivables 356 242

Total Assets $ 1,453,082 $ 1,252 518

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accounts payable $ 162,466 $ 139,867
Accrued salaries & wages 460 458
Restricted fund balance 1,290,156 1,112,193

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 1,453,082 $ 1,252,518

Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Six months ended June 30, 2020 and 2019
2020 2020 2020 2019
Original YTD Year-to-Date Year-to-Date
Revenue Budget Budget Actual Actual

Grants $ 69,000 69,000 $ 68,834 $ 68,858
User Fees 1,634,349 1,633,034 1,535,055 1,214,694
Landfill Operations-tippage 365,000 140,068 149,355 143,091
Investment Income 20,000 11,346 15,081 19,621
Sale of Recyclables 1,500 750 1,168 -

Total Revenue 1,989,849 1,754,198 1,769,493 1,446,264

Expenditures:

Personal Services 17,638 8,819 7,766 6,573
Refuse Collection 722,300 348,512 357,680 355,552
Recycling Collection 697,149 336,295 356,408 197,078
Leaf & Brush Pickups 60,000 19,995 20,000 20,000
Tippage Fees 469,200 171,925 192,073 184,620
Miscellaneous 5,000 2,543 535 995

Total expenditures 1,971,287 888,089 934,462 764,818

Revenue over (under) expenditures 18,562 866,109 835,031 681,446

Fund balance, beginning of year 501,072 455 125 430,747

Fund balance, end of period $ 519,634 $ 1,290,156 $ 1,112,193

7/13/2020
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City of Franklin

Capital Outlay Fund

Balance Sheet

June 30, 2020 and 2019

Assets 2020 2019
Cash and investments $ 712,327 $ 695,007
Accrued Receivables 2,727 1,818

Total Assets $ 715,054 $ 696,825

Liabilities and Fund Balance

Accounts payable $ 44,569 $ 29,607
Assigned fund balance 670,485 667,218
Total Liabilithes and Fund Balance $ 715,054 $ 696,825
Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Six months ended June 30, 2020 and 2019
2020 2020 2020 2020 2019

Original Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Year-to-Date

Revenue Budget Budget Budget Actual Actual
Property Taxes $ 295700 $ 295,700 $ 295,700 $ 295,700 $ 452,800
Grants 6,000 29,800 14,900 16,128 1,606
Landfill Siting 483,900 475,000 287,931 199,262 199,550
Investment income 7,800 7,800 3,900 9,763 11,470
Miscellanous Revenue 25,000 43,125 18,919 22,707 4,839

Total Revenue 818,400 851,425 621,350 543,560 670,265

Expenditures:

General Government 232,050 232,050 40,474 109,792 64,776
Public Safety 447,600 557,766 409,482 374,464 382,589
Public Works 162,800 194,382 128,501 68,647 27,117
Health and Human Services 900 900 16 900 54
Culture and Recreation 76,000 76,000 36,627 - 2,866
Conservation and Development 10,000 10,000 5,404 1,467 503
Contingency 60,000 43,800 9,908 -
Encumbrances - - - (190,484) (49,815)

Total expenditures 989,350 1,114,898 630,412 364,786 428,090

Revenue over (under) expenditures (170,950) (263,473) (9,062) 178,774 242,175

Fund balance, beginning of year 239,473 491,711 491,711 425,043

Fund balance, end of period $ 68,523 $ 228238 $ 670,485 $ 667,218

A Portion of Municipal Building, Police, Highway & Parks appropnations are contingent upon Landfill Siting

revenue growth

7/13/2020
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City of Franklin
Equipment Replacement Fund
Balance Sheet
June 30, 2020 and 2019

Assets 2020 2019
Cash and investments $ 2,535,836 $ 3,089,451
Total Assets $ 2,535,836 $ 3,089,451
Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accounts payable $ 474 $ -
Assigned fund baiance 2,535,362 3,089,451
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 2535836 $ 3,089,451
Comparative Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Six months ended June 30, 2020 and 2019
2020 2020 2020 2020 2019
Original Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Year-to-Date
Revenue: Budget Budget Budget Actual Actual
Property Taxes $ - $ - 9 - $ - $ 175,000
Landfill 677,600 400,000 221,586 221,700 228,060
investment Income 37,400 37,400 18,700 57,108 60,400
Grants - - - 178,624 -
Property Sales 56,500 56,500 19,087 - 727
Total revenue 771,500 493,900 259,373 457 432 464,187
Expenditures:
Pubiic Safety 241,000 257,974 241,429 247,993 633,395
Public Works 609,000 799,000 399,524 798,334 20,431
Encumbrances - - - (596,195) (633,395)
Total expenditures 850,000 1,056,974 640,953 450,132 20,431
Revenue over (under) expenditures (78,500) (563,074) (381,580) 7,300 443,756
Fund balance, beginning of year 2,266,695 2,528,062 2,528,062 2,645,695
Fund balance, end of period $ 2,188,195 $ 1,964,988 $ 2535362 $ 3,089,451
7/13/2020 L \41803 VOL1 Finance\Qtrrpt-MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORTS\2020\Monthly\Equip Replacement  June 2020



City of Franklin
Street Improvement Fund
Balance Sheet
June 30, 2020 and 2019

Assets 2020 2019
Cash and investments $ 933,850 $ 774,520
Total Assets $ 933,850 $ 774,520

Liabilities and Fund Balance

Accounts payable $ 948 $ 13,068
Assigned fund balance 932,902 761,452
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 933,850 $ 774520
Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Six months ended June 30, 2020 and 2019
2020 2020 2020 2019
Original Amended Year-to-Date  Year-to-Date

Revenue: Budget Budget Totals Totals

Property Taxes $ - $ - $ - $ 18,200

Landfill Siting 368,500 350,000 149,216 85,530

Investment Income 4 800 4. 800 6,868 8,707

Local Road Improvement Aids 845,000 845,000 300,000 300,000
Total revenue 1,218,300 1,199,800 456,084 412 437
Expenditures:

Street Reconstruction Program - Current Year 1,300,000 1,487,936 753,088 954 503

Encumbrances - - (723,699) (904,130)
Total expenditures 1,300,000 1,487,936 29,389 50,373
Revenue over (under) expenditures (81,700) (288,136) 426,695 362,064
Fund balance, beginning of year 350,588 506,207 506,207 399,388
Fund balance, end of period $ 268,888 $ 218,071 $ 932902 $ 761452

7/13/2020 Findata Qtrrpt Street Improvement June 2020



City of Franklin
Capital Improvement Fund
Balance Sheet
June 30, 2020 and 2019

Assets 2020 2019
Cash and investments $ 1,364,660 $ 3,473,365
Accrued receivables 951,949 8,949

Total Assets $ 2,316,609 $ 3,482,314

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accounts payable $ 20,932 $ 37,411
Contracts Payable 380,470 -
Deferred Inflow 943,000 -
Assigned fund balance 972,207 3,444 903

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 2,316,609 $ 3,482,314

Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Six months ended June 30, 2020 and 2019
2020 2020 2020 2019
Original Amended Year-to-Date  Year-to-Date
Revenue: Budget Budget Totals Totals

Other Grants 500,000 $ 1,443,000 $ 173,365 $ -
Landfill Siting 722,000 180,000 85,490 350,192
Transfers from Other Funds 600,000 600,000 - -
Transfers from General Funds 500,000 500,000
Transfers from Impact Fees 621,500 692,300 49,079 -
Transfers from Connection Fees 1,120,000 1,120,000 - -
Investment Income 25,000 25,000 14,005 60,599

Total revenue 4,088,500 4,560,900 321,939 410,791

Expenditures:

General Government 500,000 551,505 109,270 174,537
Public Safety 225,000 1,506,601 1,202,398 81,725
Public Works 1,150,000 1,343,809 392,219 1,057,572
Culture and Recreation 1,300,000 1,467,704 225420 3,693
Sewer & Water 1,570,000 1,570,000 200,289 -
Contingency 175,000 171,070 27,170 10,183
Encumbrances - - (794,558) (1,038,450)

Total expenditures 4,920,000 6,610,689 1,362,208 289,260

Revenue over (under) expenditures (831,500) (2,049,789) (1,040,269) 121,531

Fund balance, beginning of year 1,012,833 2,012,476 2,012,476 3,323,372

Fund balance, end of period 181,333 $ (37,313) $ 972,207 $ 3,444,903

7/13/2020

Findata Qtrrpt Capital Improvement June 2020



7/13/2020

City of Franklin
Development Fund
Balance Sheet
June 30, 2020 and 2019

Assets 2020 2019
Cash and investments $ 7,180,731 $ 6,619,854
Impact fees receivable 232,640 -
Due From TID 7 1,745,000 -

Total Assets $ 9,158,371 $ 6,619,854

Liabilities and Fund Balance

Accounts payable $ 11,673 $ 877
Payable to Developers- Oversizing 221,759 103,934
Unearned Revenue - Other 232,640 -
Assigned fund balance 8,692,299 6,515,043
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance 9,158,371 6,619,854
Comparative Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Six months ended June 30, 2020 and 2019
2020 2020 2020 2019
Original Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date
Revenue: Budget Budget Actual Actual
Impact Fee Parks 804,000 $ 804,000 $ 143,284 $ 169,737
Southwest Sewer Service Area 48,000 48,000 60,435 16,230
Administration 15,000 15,000 2,200 3,740
Water 679,000 679,000 151,050 249,013
Transportation 22,000 22,000 5,299 18,656
Fire Protection 133,500 133,500 20,456 30,360
Law Enforcement 207,700 207,700 37,715 56,167
Library 224,000 224,000 40,358 47 511
Total Impact Fees 2,133,200 2,133,200 460,797 591,414
Investment Income 120,000 120,000 105,878 111,700
Interfund Interest Income - - 2,686 -
Total revenue 2,253,200 2,253,200 569,361 703,114

Expenditures:

Other Professional Services 25,000 33,552 29,184 15,253

Transfer to Debt Service

Law Enforcement 205,082 205,082 199,855 133,800
Fire 42,937 42,937 39,863 39,333
Transportation 71,923 71,923 64,249 18,000
Library 134,000 134,000 93,982 132,286

Total Transfers to Debt Service 453,942 453,942 397,949 323,419

Transfer to Capital Improvement Fund

Transfer(s) Out - 71,400 - -
Park 621,500 646,785 74,364 25,285

Total Transfers to Capital Improveme 621,500 718,185 74,364 25,285

Sewer Fees 250,000 250,000 - -

Water Fees 1,025,000 1,368,130 554,760 226,590

Encumbrances - - (345,736) (262,280)

Total expenditures 2,375,442 2,823,809 710,521 328,267

Revenue over (under) expenditures (122,242) (570,609) (141,160) 374,847

Fund balance, beginning of year 8,663,277 8,833,459 8,833,459 6,140,196

Fund balance, end of period 8,541,035 $ 8,262,850 $ 8,692,299 $ 6,515,043

L \41803 VOL1 Finance\Qtrrpt-MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORTS\2020\Monthly\Development Fund
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City of Franklin
Utility Development Fund
Balance Sheet
June 30, 2020 and 2019

Assets 2020 2019
Cash and investments - Water $ 1,010,543 3 766,959
Cash and investments - Sewer 1,280,460 1,124,775
Special Assessment - Water Current 60,216 101,293
Special Assessment - Water Deferred 136,365 251,036
Special Assessment - Sewer Current 143,426 191,587
Reserve for Uncollectible (16,776) (18,776)
Total Assets $ 2,614,234 $ 2,418,874
Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accounts payable $ - $ -
Unearned Revenue 323,231 527,140
Total Fund Balance 2,291,003 1,891,734
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 2,614,234 $ 2,418,874
Comparative Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Six months ended June 30, 2020 and 2019
2020 2020 2020 2019
Original Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Year-to-Date
Revenue: Budget Budget Actual Actual
Special Assessments
Water $ 50,000 $ 6,846 $ 48,906 3 63,551
Sewer 25,000 3,917 19,488 70,898
Connection Fees
Water - - - -
Sewer - - 16,402 23,700
Total Assessments &
Connection Fees 75,000 10,763 84,796 158,149
Special Assessment Interest - - 634 -
Investment Income 18,000 9,000 10,776 21,047
Total revenue 93,000 19,763 96,206 179,196
Transfer to Capital Improvement Fund
Water 620,000 - - -
Sewer 500,000 - - -
Total Transfers to Capital Improven 1,120,000 - - -
Revenue over (under) expenditures  (1,027,000) 19,763 96,206 179,196
Fund balance, beginning of year 2,030,838 2,194,797 2,194,797 1,712,538
Fund balance, end of penod $ 1,003,838 $ 2,214,560 $ 2,291,003 $ 1,891,734

7/13/2020 Findata Qtrrpt Utility Development June 2020



Statement of Revenue, Expenditures,
and Changes in Net Assets

City of Franklin
Sanitary Sewer Fund

For the Six months ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

Operating Revenue
Residential
Commercial
Industrial
Public Authonty
Penalties/Other
Mults Family
Miscellaneous Revenue
Total Operating Revenue

Operating Expenditures
Salanes and benefits
Contractual services
Supplies
Facility charges
Shared meter costs
Sewer service - MMSD
Other operating costs
Allocated expenses
Sewer improvements
Depreciation
Encumbrances

Total operating expenditures

Operating income (Loss)

Non-Operating Revenue (Expenditures)
Miscellaneous income
Property sale
Investment income
Interest expense
Capital expenditures
Encumbrances
Total non-operating revenue (expenditures)

Income (Loss) before Capital Contributions
Retained Earnmings- Beginning
Transfer (to) from Invested in Capital Assets
Retained Earnings- Ending
Capital Contributions
Depreciation - CIAC
Transfer (to) from Retained Earnings
Change in Net Investment in Capital Assets
Net investment in Capital Assets-Beginning

Net Investment in Capital Assets-Ending

Total net assets

7/14/2020

2020 2020 Current Prior
Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Year-to-Date
Budget Budget Totals Totals
$ 2,099,400 $ 1,048,576 $ 1,078,890 $ 1,031,577
588,000 281,048 289,344 281,992
429,000 215,655 235,409 212,253
172,000 83,430 81,492 82,992
37,000 11,346 5744 10,535
511,200 255,600 267,234 248,078
- - - 5,250
3,836,600 1,895,655 1,958,113 1,872,677
$ 713,362 $ 269,181 $ 283,693 $ 264,908
148,175 95,831 110,758 112,061
84,150 42075 23,837 26,726
63,100 32,790 23,845 21,897
7,000 3,500 - -
2,497,000 1,248,500 1,266,937 1,199,625
27,500 14,767 8,814 9,505
126,050 63,025 66,930 684,427
195,367 90,000 90,301 76,931
151,600 75,800 75,600 90,000
- - (3,684) (4,205)
4,013,304 1,935,469 1,947,031 1,861,873
(176,704) (39,914) 11,082 10,804
(3,500) (1,750) 795 1,080
2,500 - - -
425,800 212,900 224,028 251,316
(400,800) (200,400) (216,106) (231,428)
(87,424) (10,525) (49,238) (27,538)
- - 49,238 27,538
(63,424) 225 8,717 20,968
(240,128) (39,689) 19,799 31,772
1,725,771 1,725,771 1,725,771 1,578,345
116,900 58,450 60,962 (24,945)
1,602,543 1,744 532 1,806,532 1,585,172
1,000,000 500,000 - -
(2,039,000) (1,019,500) (1,019,520) (1,008,050)
(116,900) (58,450) (60,962) 24,945
(1,155,800} (677,950) (1,080,482) (984,105)
62,463,346 62,463,346 62,463,346 61,590,890
61,307,446 61,885,396 61,382,864 60,606,785
$ 62,809,989 $ 63,629,928 $ 63,189,396 $ 62,191,957

Findata Qtrrpt Sewer 2nd Quarter 2020



City of Franklin
Sanitary Sewer Fund
Statement of Cash Flows

For the Six months ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Operating income (loss)

Adjustments to reconclle operating income to
net cash provided by operating activities
Depreciation
allocated from water utility

(Increase) decrease in assets'
Accounts recelvable
Taxes receivable
Prepaid expenses

Increase (decrease) in abilities
Accounts payable

Total Adjustments

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Cash Flows From Capital & Related Financing Activities
Due from MMSD & Other Governments

Due to general fund
Notes payable
Acquisttion of capital assets
investment in deferred assets/liabilites
Net Cash Provided (Used) in Capital
and Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Interest and other income
Interest exepense

Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents, beginning of period

Cash and Cash Equivalents, end of period

7/14/2020

2020 2019
$ 11082 $ 10,804
75,600 90,000
(109,258) (97,401)
118,953 108,886

- 2,291
(24,357) 29,904
60,938 133,680
$ 72,000 § 144484
1,275,272 1,244,629
(1,275,272) (1,244,629)
(14,638) (114,945)
(14,638) (114,945)
224,823 252,396
(216,108) (231,428)
66,099 50,507
1,529,881 1,383,225
$ 15950980 § 1,433,732

Findata Qtrrpt Sewer 2nd Quarter 2020



City of Franklin
Sanitary Sewer Fund
Comparative Balance Sheet
June 30, 2020 and 2019

2020 2019
Assets
Current assets
Cash and investments $ 1,595,980 $ 1,433,732
Accounts receivable 1,088,638 1,047,180
Miscellaneous receivable 12,139 6,980
Total current assets 2,696,757 2,487,892
Non current assets
Due from MMSD 16,280,068 17,555,340
Sanitary Sewer plant in service
Land 725,594 725,594
Buildings and improvements 3,308,050 3,308,050
Improvements other than buildings 81,653,509 78,754,451
Machinery and equipment 1,223,803 1,204,359
Construction in progress 95,510 95,510
87,006,466 84,087,964
Less accumulated depreciation (25,623,602) (23,481,179)
Net samtary sewer plant in service 61,382,864 60,606,785
Deferred assets
Pension assets 373,360 89,558
Total Assets $ 80,733,049 $ 80,739,575
Liabilities and Net Assets
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 637,708 $ 650,480
Accrued liabilities 37,255 29,109
Due to General Fund - non-interest bearing 72,035 77,143
Total current habilities 746,993 756,732
Non current iabiities
Accrued compensated absences 75,900 75,360
Pension hability (GASB 68) 328,016 57,415
General Obligation Notes payable - CWF 16,280,069 17,555,341
Total liabllities 17,430,983 18,444,848
Deferred inflows
Pension liabilities 112,670 102,770
Net Assets
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 45,102,796 43,051,445
Restricted balances - LT receivable 16,280,068 17,555,340
Retained earnings 1,806,532 1,685,172
Total net assets 63,189,396 62,191,957
Total Liabilities and Net Assets $ 80,733,049 $ 80,739,575

7/14/2020
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Franklin Municipal Water Utility
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the six months ending June 30, 2020 and 2019

Water Connection Fee
Prior to May 31, 2002, the City collected a water connection fee on new construction and

connections to existing properties, to be used to fund water main construction projects.
The water connection fees on hand on June 30, 2020 total $ 1,010,544.

Water Impact Fee

Since May 31, 2002 a water impact fee on residential and commercial construction replaced
the water connection fee. Water Impact Fees collected in 2020 total $151,050.
Water Impact fees on hand at June 30, 2020 total $ 2,680,247.

7/16/2020 Findata H20 2nd Quarter 2020 xIsx Notes
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Franklin Municipal Water Utility
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures

and Changes in Net Assets
For the six months ending June 30, 2020 and 2019
Amended Year to Date Current Prior
Account Description Budget Budget Year to Date Year to Date
Operating Revenue

Metered Sales-Residential $ 3,064,300 1,388,428 $ 1,467,105 $ 1,331,953

Metered Sales-Commercial 704,900 322,568 300,875 309,748

Metered Sales-Industrial 491,900 240,982 226,847 221,716

Other Sales to Public Authority 263,600 127,664 121,234 130,450

Metered Sales-Multifamily 766,700 383,350 375,422 365,157

Metered Sales-lrrigation 150,500 75,250 33,595 25,991

Total Metered Sales 5,441,900 2,538,242 2,525,078 2,385,015
Unmetered Sales 7.500 1,529 25,131 4,794
Private Fire Protectiort 125,000 62,304 63,528 54,059
Public Fire Protection 541,000 273,987 273.817 271,830
Forfeited Discount 54,000 16,178 8,207 15,251
Total Operating Revenue 1 $ 6,169,400 $ 2,892,240 $ 2,895,761 $ 2,730,949
Operating Expenditures
Operation and maintenance expense
Source of Supply 3,044,120 1,513,801 1,516,237 1,353,026
Pumping 156,250 75,445 76,179 80,617
Water Treatment 18,300 8,114 2,881 5,290
Transmission & Distribution 443,200 192,424 139,681 132,272
Customer Accounts 52,400 25,275 30,921 28,547
Administrative and general 727,273 358,792 189,648 181,377

Total Operation and Maintenance

Expenditures 4,441,543 2,173,851 1,955,547 1,781,129

Depreciation 421,900 197,888 210,900 264,600

Taxes-Property Tax Equivalent 1,075,000 565,131 537,600 525,000

Amortization - - - 21,030

GASB Empioyee Benefit Costs 15,000 7,500 - -

Loss on Abandoned Property 100,000 - - -

Taxes-FICA 29,082 14,541 12,694 11,392
Total Operating Expenditures 2 6,082,525 2,958,911 2,716,741 2,603,151
Operating Income $ 86,875 $ (66,671) $ 179,020 $ 127,798
Non-Operating Revenue (Expenditures)

Interest Income 35,000 17,500 21,133 42,547

Misc Revenue 2,000 690 - -

Interest on LTD (31,088) (15,544) (15.544) (16,094)

Bond/Note Issuance Cost - - - -

Water Property Rent 55,000 28,442 33,482 24,993

Other Water Revenue 2,000 886 8,690 9,025

Interest on LTD - -

Interest-Debt to Municipality (3,080) (1,221) (1,540) (1,746)
Total non-operating revenue 59,832 30,753 46,221 58,725
Income before capital contributions $ 146,707 $ (35918) $§ 225241 § 186,523
Retained eamings - beginning 2,805,630 2,805,630 2,805,630 3,294,662
Transfer (to) from invested in capital assets 278,100 139,050 186.619 (445,840)
Retained earnings - ending $ 3,230,437 $ 2,908,762 $ 3,217,490 $ 3,035,345
Capital contributions 1,600,000 - - -
Depreciation - CIAC (849,000) (424,500) (424,500) (420,750)
Transfer (to) from retained eamnings (278,100) (139,050) (186,619) 445,840
Change in net investment 6,933,773 5,393,024 611,119) 25,090
Net investment in capital assets - beginning 47,409,195 47,409,195 47,409,195 42 367,393

Net investment in capitai assets - ending $ 54,342,968

$ 52,802,219 $46,798,076 $42,392,483

Total net assets $57,573,405

$ 55,710,981 $50,015,566 $45,427,828

Findata H20 2nd Quarter 2020 Income statement



Franklin Municipal Water Utility
Comparative Balance Sheet
June 30, 2020 & 2019

Assets
Current Assets:
Cash and investments
Accounts receivable
Total current assets

Utility plant in service:
Land
Buildings and improvements
Construction in Progress
improvements other than buildings
Machinery and equipment

Less accumulated depreciation
Net utility plant in service

Deferred Assets:
Pension Assets
Deferred Costs

Total deferred assets

Total Assets

Liabilities and Net Assets
Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Due to City of Franklin
Advance from municipality
Pension liability
Compensated absences reserve
Bond Payable

Deferred Liabilities:
Pension & OPEB Liabilities

Total liabilities

Net Assets

invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Retained earnings
Total net assets

Total Liabilities and Net Assets

7/15/2020

2020

$ 2,483,432
1,655,998

2019

4,139,430

162,885
3,394,166
1,066,083

60,725,142
4,623,438

$ 2,606,876
1,501,417

69,971,714
22,059,026

4,108,293

162,885
3,394,166
597,702
55,613,608
4,588,062

47,912,688

64,356,423
20,924,322

430,264

43,432,101

430,264
$ 52,482,382

102,915
21,029

$ 16,584
792,252

123,200
385,222

75,900
951,682

123,944
$ 47,664,338

2,344,840

121,976

$ 156,438
677,585

139

139,700
66,480
75,360
1,005,647

2,466,816

46,798,076
3,217,490

2,121,349

115,161

50,015,566

2,236,510

42,392,483
3,035,345

$ 52,482,382

45,427,828

$ 47,664,338

Findata H20 2nd Quarter 2020 Statements



Franklin Municipal Water Utility
Comparative Statement of Cash Flows
For the six months ending June 30, 2020 and 2019

2020 2019

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Operating income (loss) $ 179,020 $ 127,798

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to
net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation & Amortization 210,900 285,630
(Increase) decrease in assets:
Accounts receivable (260,537) (101,565)
Taxes receivable 161,985 173,499
Prepaid expenses - 2,291
Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable (926,794) (604,221)
Accrued expenses 780,000 665,700
Due to other funds - 139
Total Adjustments (34,446) 421,473
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 144,574 549,271

Cash Flows From Capital & Related Financing Activities

Acquisition of capital assets (79,786) (679,288)

Interest paid on long term debt (15,544) (16,094)

Principal on long term debt (55,000) (55,000)
Net Cash Provided (Used) in Capital
and Financing Activities (150,330) (750,382)
Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Interest, property rental & other income 63,305 76,565
Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents 57,549 (124,546)
Cash and Cash Equivalents, beginning of period 2,425,883 2,731,422
Cash and Cash Equivalents, end of period $ 2,483,432 $ 2,606,876

7/15/2020 Findata H20 2nd Quarter 2020 Statements



City of Franklin
Self Insurance Fund - Actives
Balance Sheet
June 30, 2020 and 2019

Assets 2020 2019
Cash and investments $ 3,295,754 $ 2,200,412
Accounts receivable 324 309

Total Assets $ 3,296,078 $ 2,200,721

Liabilities and Net Assets
Accounts payable $ 74907 3 14,384
Claims payable 175,000 290,700
Unrestricted net assets 3,046,171 1,895,637

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 3,296,078 $ 2,200,721

City of Franklin Self Insurance Fund - Actives
Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Six months ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

2020 2020 2020 2019

Original Year-to-Date Year-to-Date  Year-to-Date

Revenue Budget Budget Actual Actual
Medical Premiums-City $2648,046 $ 1,327835 $ 1,224028 $ 1,217,154
Medical Premiums-Employee 538,440 269,439 250,093 260,853
Other - Invest Income, Rebates 165,000 82,500 130,719 69,653
Medical Revenue 3,351,486 1,679,774 1,604,840 1,547,660
Dental Premiums-City 112,000 56,233 59,811 56,018
Dental Premiums-Retirees - - 1,944 1,854
Dental Premiums-Employee 60,000 30,097 29,135 28,518
Dental Revenue 172,000 86,330 90,890 86,390
Total Revenue 3,523,486 1,766,104 1,695,730 1,634,050

Expenditures:
Medical
Medical claims 2,414,478 1,089,122 453,362 842,389
Prescription drug claims - - 86,891 104,654
Refunds-Stop Loss Coverage - ~ (5,394) 22
Total Claims 2,414 478 1,089,122 534,859 947,065
Medical Clam Fees 105,677 55,454 76,849 91,863
Stop Loss Premiums 666,331 338,184 259,245 275,614
Other - Miscellaneous 112,477 35,548 11,681 4634
HSA Contributions 237,000 118,500 180,281 -
Vitality Rewards 500,000 250,000 - -
Transfer to Other Funds - - - 94,375
Total Medical Costs 4,035,963 1,886,808 1,062,915 1,413,551
Dental

Active Employees & COBRA 193,000 93,789 72,811 82,771
Retiree 4,900 2,907 2,354 2,259
Total Dental Costs 197,900 96,696 75,165 85,030
Claims contingency - -
Total Expenditures 4,233,863 1,983,504 1,138,080 1,498,581
Revenue over (under) expenditures (710,377) _$ (217,400) 557,650 135,469
Net assets, beginning of year 2,325,068 2,488,521 1,760,168
Net assets, end of penod _$ 1614691 $ 3,046,171 $ 1,895637

7/13/2020 Findata Qtrrpt Self Insurance June 2020
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City of Franklin
City of Franklin Post Employment Benefits Trust
Balance Sheet
June 30, 2020 and 2019

Assets 2020 2019
Cash and investments $ 152,524 $ 127,026
Investments held in trust - Fixed Inc 2,571,504 2,168,756
investments held in trust - Equities 3,674,373 3,866,724
Accounts receivable 23,907 32,442
Total Assets $ 6,422,308 $ 6,194,948
Liabilities and Net Assets
Accounts payable $ 15,277 $ 2,227
Claims payable 10,000 131,100
Net assets held in trust for post emp 6,397,031 6,061,621
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance ] 6,422,308 $ 6,194,948

City of Franklin Post Employment Benefits Trust
Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Six months ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

2020 2019
Year-to-Date Year-to-Date
Revenue Actual Actual
ARC Medical Charges - City $ 132,227 $ 139,764
Medical Charges - Retirees 102,448 115,116
Implicit Rate Subsidy - -
Medical Revenue 234 675 254,880
Expenditures:
Retirees-Medical
Medical claims 67,788 67,659
Prescription drug claims 51,626 60,911
Refunds-Stop 1L.oss Coverage - (1,393)
Total Claims-Retirees 119,414 127,177
Medical Claim Fees 11,249 31,471
Stop Loss Premiums 35,063 40,193
Miscellaneous Expense (195) 345
ACA Fees 127 172
Total Medical Costs-Retirees 165,658 199,358
Revenue over (under) expenditures 69,017 55,522
Annual Required Contribution-Net 65,161 80,346
Other - Investment Income, efc. (275,907) 696,349
Total Revenues (210,746) 776,695
Net Revenues (Expenditures) (141,729) 832,217
Net assets, beginning of year 6,538,760 5,229,404
Net assets, end of period $ 6,397,031 $ 6,061,621

Findata Qtrrpt Retiree Health Fund June 2020



City of Franklin
Park Commission
Statement of Revenue and Expenses
For the Six months ended June 30, 2020

2020 2020 Current 2019
Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Year-to-Date
Budget Budget Totals Totals
General Fund Operating Revenue:
Park & Field Reservation $ 18,000 $ 13,426 $ 5,329 $ 15,017
General Fund Operating Expenses:
Personal Services $ 119,998 $ 59,999 $ 79,941 $ 53,256
Park Maintenance 50,000 21,565 23,874 10,609
Uniforms 350 6 - -
Allocated insurance - - - 2,450
Mileage 1,500 394 74 234
Utiliies 14,600 6,707 4,145 3,784
Building maintenance - - - -
Total Operating Fund Expenses $ 186,448 $ 88,671 $ 108,034 $ 70,333
Capital Outlay Fund Expenses:
Landscaping-Park/Tree Maint $ - $ - $ - $ 2,866
Building Improvements 65,000 32,500 - -
Park Equipment & Supplies 11,000 4,127 - -
Total Capital Outlay Expenditures $ 76,000 $ 36,627 $ - $ 2,866
Development Fund Revenue:
Impact Fee-Parks & Recreation $ 804,000 $ 367,001 $ 143,284 $ 169,737
Development Fund Expenses:
Reimb to Developers & Others $ 25,285 $ 12,643 $ 25,285 $ -
Transfer to Capital Improvement Fund 621,500 64,826 49,079 -
Total Capital Improvement Expenditures 646,785 77,469 74,364 -
Capital Improvement Fund Expenses:
General Park Development $ 828,000 $ 414,000 $ 32,439 $ -
Kayla's Playground - Franklin Woods 250,000 125,000 - -
Improvements - Ken Windl Park 22618 11,309 12,666 -
Pleasant View Park - Pavilion 132,097 66,049 140,426 3,693
Pleasant View Park - Park Equipment 19,989 9,994 19,989 -
Pleasant View Park - Master Plan Update 150,000 75,000 19,900 -
Cascade Park Trail Extension 65,000 32,500 - -
Total Capital Improvement Expenditures 1,467,704 733,852 225,420 3,693
Less Impact Fees Transfer 621,500 64,826 49,079 -
Net Expenditures (after Impact Fee contritbution)  § 846,204 $ 669,026 $ 176,341 $ 3,603

7/14/2020 Qtrrpt PARKS 2nd Quarter 2020



COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS FOR CITY OF FRANKLIN
Period Ending 06/30/2020

LIBRARY TOURISM HEALTH CWIC

RESTRICTED COMMISSION FIRE DEPT ST MARTINS DEPT GRANT OTHER DONATIONS CELEBRATIONS
GL Number FUND FUND GRANT FUND FAIR FUND FUND GRANTS FUND FUND TOTAL
REVENUES
REAL ESTATE TAXES - - - - - - - - -
TAXES - (961) - - - - - - (961)
INTERGOVERNMENTAL - - - - 65 509 - - - 65,509
SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS - - - - - - - - -
CHARGES FOR SERVICES 2426 - - - - - - 2426
MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE 20,031 - - - 690 - 9 240 - 29 961
INVESTMENT EARNINGS 210 2,098 - - - - - - 3,008
Total Revenues 23 367 1,137 - - 66,199 9 240 - 99,942
EXPENDITURES
PERSONAL SERVICES - - - - 26,334 - - 26 334
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS - - - - 4,375 - - - 4,375
CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 5902 - - - 15,150 - - 3400 24,452
SUPPLIES 17 058 25 - - 13,336 - 3242 1512 35172
SERVICES & CHARGES 3,503 2076 - - 11733 - - 2,640 19,952
FACILITY CHARGES 416 - - - - - - - 416
CLAIMS CONTRIB AND AWARDS 401 - - - - - - 401
DEBT SERVICE - - - - - - - - -
INTEREST - - - - - - - - -
CONTINGENCY - - - - - - - - -
Total Expenditures 27 281 2,100 - - 70,928 - 3242 7 552 111103
Excess (deficiency) of
Revenues vs Expenditures (3 914) (963) - - (4,729) - 5998 (7 552) (11,160)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
FUND TRANSFERS - - - - - - - - -
OTHER FINANCING USES
CAPITAL OUTLAY 8,007 - - - - - 149 - 8 156
Net Change in Fund Balance (11,921) (963) - - (4 729) - 5849 (7,552) (19 3186)
Fund Balance - Beginning 147,445 469,951 21,621 3,636 171,625 5,315 161,342 77,316 1,058,251
Fund Balance - Ending 135,524 468,988 21,621 3,636 166,896 5315 167,191 69,764 1,038,935

14/2020
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APPROVAL COMMON COUNCIL MTG. DATE
P August 4, 2020
Reports & DEVELOPMENT OF A FRANKLIN POLICY TO ELIMINATE ITEM NO.
Recommendations PRIVATE PROPERTY INFLOW AND INFILTRATION (PPII) -
FROM THE SANITARY SEWER G‘c 9 0‘
BACKGROUND

Franklin annually accumulates $200,000 - $250,000 with Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage
District (MMSD) to spend on private property inflow and infiltration (PPII) issues. The current
balance is over $1.1 million. This fund has paid for 4 projects in the Rawson Homes area and a
current investigation project in the tributary area of St. Martins Lift Station.

ANALYSIS

Under previous employment, Staff developed a PPII policy for Greencastle, Indiana that was
highly effective, inexpensive to implement, and accommodating to residents. Recently, MMSD
has revised policies for use of this fund that could enable Franklin to implement a policy similar
to Greencastle.

Implementing a Greencastle-type policy would take special MMSD permission. Staff would like
to explain the Greencastle policy to Common Council and how it could be adapted to Franklin.
Common Council can provide comments that Staff can incorporate in a request to MMSD, if
negotiations with MMSD are to continue.

OPTIONS
Not applicable at this time.

FISCAL NOTE
Not applicable at this time.

RECOMMENDATION

Direct Staff to work with MMSD to develop a Franklin policy to eliminate Private Property Inflow
and Infiltration (PPII) from the sanitary sewer.

Engineering Department: GEM
























































































APPROVAL REQUEST FOR MEETING

e COUNCIL ACTION DATE
St August 4, 2020
REPORTS AND Tax Incremental District No. 8 Development Agreement ITEM NUMBER

RECOMMENDATIONS | Between the City of Franklin, JHB Properties, LLC and ZS
Enterprises, LLC, Industrial Spec Buildings Mixed Use , ‘
Development at the south side of West EIm Road in the G’ ‘ 3? / .

approximately South 3500 Street block area to the west, to
be bounded on the north by West Elm Road to be extended
to the west, and South Hickory Street on the east, and to
straddle South Birch Street and West Aspen Way, all to be
developed; and Development Agreement for JHB
Properties, LLC and ZS Enterprises, LLC, Industrial Spec
Buildings Mixed Use Development (Public Improvements).
The Common Council may enter closed session pursuant to
Wis. Stat. § 19.85(1)(e), for market competition and
bargaining reasons, to deliberate and consider terms relating
to a Tax Incremental District No. 8 Development
Agreement Between the City of Franklin, JHB Properties,
LLC and ZS Enterprises, LLC, Industrial Spec Buildings
Mixed Use Development and a Development Agreement
for JHB Properties, LLC and ZS Enterprises, LLC,
Industrial Spec Buildings Mixed Use Development (Public
Improvements), and the investing of public funds and
governmental actions in relation thereto and to effect such
development, including the terms and provisions of the
development agreements for the development of property
located on the south side of West Elm Road in the
approximately 3500 block area were West Elm Road to be
extended to the west, consisting of approximately 79.79
acres, and to reenter open session at the same place
thereafter to act on such matters discussed therein as it
deems appropriate

Annexed hereto are drafts of the above-entitled agreements. The Tax Incremental District No. 8 Development
Agreement redraft attached was provided by the developer’s Attorney on July 31, 2020. Same remain a work in
process and under negotiation among City staff and developer representatives at the time of this writing.

Department of City Development and Engineering, Finance and Legal Services departments staff will be present at
the meeting,

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

A motion to enter closed session pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 19.85(1)(e), for market competition and bargaining
reasons, to deliberate and consider terms relating to a Tax Incremental District No. 8 Development Agreement
Between the City of Franklin, JHB Properties, LLC and ZS Enterprises, LLC, Industrial Spec Buildings Mixed Use
Development and a Development Agreement for JHB Properties, LLC and ZS Enterprises, LLC, Industrial Spec
Buildings Mixed Use Development (Public Improvements), and the investing of public funds and governmental
actions in relation thereto and to effect such development, including the terms and provisions of the development
agreements for the development of property located on the south side of West EIm Road in the approximately 3500
block area were West Elm Road to be extended to the west, consisting of approximately 79.79 acres, and to reenter
open session at the same place thereafter to act on such matters discussed therein as it deems appropriate.

Engineering Dept.: GEM; Economic Development Dept.: CB; Finance Dept.: Paul; Legal Services Dept.: jw
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City and Developer acknowledge the following

A Developer ts the Owner of that certain real property legally described in Exhibit
A attached hereto (the "Property"), JHB Properties, LLC being the title owner of record and ZS
Enterprises, LLC being +t-atfikatedeveloper for project development

B The Property 1s located within the boundaries of Tax Incremental District No 8,
City of Franklin, Wisconsin (the "District") Pursuant to Wis Stat § 66 1105 (the "Tax
Increment Law"), the City adopted a plan for redevelopment within the District (the "Project
Plan")

C Developer plans on the development and construction by successor owners of at
least three industrial/light manufacturing spec and/or commercial use buildings on Lots 1, 2-ard,
3. or 4 as such lots are depicted and described on Exhibit A-1, providing for the constructing of
an approxmmately 150,000 square foot building on eachat least three of the Lots 1, 2-and, 3, or
4 on the Property, with an estimated development cost of $ nmllion (the "Project”,
and “Project” includes al! development within and upon the Property, n addition to the three
buildings aforesaid), and with a mimmum Wisconsin real estate property tax assessment value
of at least $7,500,000 00 for each building, creating a mimmum real estate property tax
assessment value of at least $22,500,000 00 for the Property Developer shall also provide for
the development and construction of improvements to serve the propertxProperty and the
Dustrict, which shall be dedicated to the City, including, but not limted to streets, and pubhc
water and sewer utility service facilities, with an estimated development cost in excess of
$4,000,000 00, such improvements including site condiiton preparation to development ready,
including, but not imited to grading, and the development of public water service, sanitary
sewer service, stormwater sewer service and utihities including street lights, n the amount of



$§3,232,766 95L not including any delay factor increased costs It 1s acknowledged that — {Commented [A1]: How was this amount determined?

]

development of the Project as described above will be consistent with the Project Plan

D The City desires to encourage economic development, elimmnate blight, expand
1ts tax base and create new jobs within the City, the District and upon the Property The City
finds that the development of the Project and the fulfillment of the terms and conditions of this
Agreement will further such goals, are mn the vital and best interests of the City and 1ts residents,
and will serve a public purpose 1n accordance with state and local law

E The development of the Project would not occur without the financial
participation of the City as set forth in this Agreement

F The City, pursuant to Common Council action dated 2020,
has approved this Agreement and authorized its execution by the proper City officials on the
City's behalf

G Developer has approved this Agreement and authorized 1ts execution by the
appropriate representatives on its behalf

AGREEMENTS

In consideration of the RECITALS and the terms and conditions set forth herein, the parties
agree and covenant as follows

ARTICLE I
DEVELOPER ACTIVITIES AND OBLIGATIONS

A Developer or the then owners of the Property. shall construct, or cause others to
construct, the Project 1n accordance with all applicable City zoming and building codes,
ordinances and regulations Developer warrants and represents to the City that the Project will
contain approximately ——————1450.000 square feet of developed building space and that
total development costs expended on the Project (inclusive of personal property) shall be not

less than $— —$22 500 000 00 mulhon Subject to delay due to Foree Majeure kvents, /&ormatted: Font color Auto, English (United States)

Developer shall substantially complete construction of the Project in accordance with final plans
and spectfications (including landscaping plans) approved by the City, including, but not imited

to the terms, provistons and conditions of [/1 Commented [A2]: Not sure what this 1s supposed to }
for the Project, and of which this Agreement and 1ts terms and conditions are a reference.
condition thereof (the "Plans and Specificattons"), on or before 20—
December 31, 2030 (the "Completion Date") Copies of the Plans and Specifications will be ,/{ Formatted- Not Highlight

retained af the offices of the City Economic Development Department. The Project shall be
deemed to be substantially complete on the date that the City Building Inspector 1ssues a
certificate of occupancy for the Project, which certificate may be subject to completion of
landscaping and similar scasonal 1tems and other non-material corrective actions The City
Building Inspector shall not 1ssue the certificate of occupancy if the Project does not conform to
the Plans and Specifications, subject to any changes to the Plans and Specifications that may
have been approved by the City



B To the extent any improvements that will be dedicated to the public are mcluded
within the scope of work for the Project (the "Public Improvements"), Developer will complete
the mstallation of the Public Improvements 1n accordance with City spectfications, including the
execution of a City standard form development agreement where applicable terms thereof are
not spectfically set forth in this Agreement, and will dedicate same to the City 1n accordance

w1th City mspec‘uon and acceptance procedurcs %reqa&ed—b\-—appheab}e—lﬂ%—geﬁ'ek&ﬁef

%ﬁ%f)%’e%&meﬂPﬁ,(i\\4%%‘:}}1))9{‘iﬁﬂﬂ%@g&%&%&ﬂ%{h&%bﬁﬂmﬁm@—ﬁé
Public Improvements shall at all tumes be subject to City inspection and approval and the City
or other public entity shall not be required to accept conveyance of the Public Improvements
unless the Public Improvements have been constructed i a good and workmanlike manner, i
accordance with the City-approved plans for the Public Improvements, and otherwise are in a
condttion reasonably acceptable to the City Following approval by the City of the completed
Public Improvements, the Public Improvements shall be conveyed to the City or other pubhic
enttty, fo the extent appropriate The Developer shall provide to the City or other public entity
from the Beveloper-and-all-contractors-and-consultantsprime contractor mvolved mn connection
with the construction and installation of the Public Improvements, a one-year warranty against
defects 1n constructton, materials and workmanship, 1 a form reasonably acceptable to the City
The Developer shall not be released of its obligations hereunder to construct the Public
Improvements without the prior written consent of the City Once the Public Improvements, or
any portion thereof applicable to a particular portion of the Project, are complete and the
conveyance dedication thereof has been accepted by the City and the tersr-ofthe-aforesard one-
year warranty has expivedbeen provided to the City, the City shall acknowledge satisfaction of
such Public Improvements m wniting and release Developer from the applicable Public
Improvement requirements of this Agreement with respect to said portion of the Project. In the
event that the City so determunes that all or any portion of the Public Improvements obligations
of Developer hereunder have been so met, the City shall execute a recordable release or partial
release, as applicable, of Developer from such obhigations

< t nless consented-to1n writtag by the City Developer shall notr-demeolish-the
ENISHRE-HAPIGVE PRGSOt {he?{epe&y «pHeH{»Jehc u'}}eaéa% www%ml%eem&eeﬂea—eﬂhv
Projeetcommences-and
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¢ Notwithstanding anything to the contrany_contamned in this Agreement. 1nno
event shall Devcloper s tadure to meet the L ompletion Date constitute a breach or Default by
Beveloper hercunder so fong as the Tax Increments wreated by the Project meets or exceed
$22.500.000 on_or betore the Completron Date

D The Developer shall arrange for funding for all costs of the Project in excess of
the funds provided by its constructton lender Developer will provide evidence to the
reasonable sattsfaction of the City that Developer has secured sufficient debt and equity
financing commitments to enable the Projec tPublic Improvements to proceed

E Developer shall enter into a separate City standard form development agreement
to provide for the 1nstallation of the “public road nght-of-way” Public Improvement as
described in Exhibit B-1 attached hereto Developer shall commence construction thereof as

Commented [A3}): Scott was told that public bidding
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set forth on Exhibit B-2 (the “Public Improvements Schedule™), and complete construction of
the public road right-of-way as set forth 1n the Public Improvements Schedule Developer shall
deliver to the City, as soon as available but in no event later than sixty (60) days after
substantial completion of the public road right-of-way Public Improvement, an accounting of all
1ts project costs, detailing the actual cost of the project

F Developer shall enter into a separate City standard form development agreement
to provide for the installation of the “public water service” Public Improvement as described in
Exhibit B-1 attached hereto Developer shall commence construction thereof as set forth in the
Public Improvements Schedule, and complete construction of the public water service as set
forth 1n the Public Improvements Schedule Developer shall deliver to the City, as soon as
available but 1n no event later than sixty (60) days after substantial completion of the public
water service Public Improvement, an accounting of all its project costs, detailing the actual cost
of the project

G Developer shall enter into a separate City standard form development agreement
to provide for the installation of the “public sanitary sewer service” Public Improvement as
described in Exhibit B-1 attached hereto Developer shall commence construction thereof as
set forth i the Public Improvements Schedule, and complete construction of the public sanitary
sewer service as set forth in the Public Improvements Schedule Developer shall deliver to the
City, as soon as available but in no event later than sixty (60) days after substantial completion
of the public sanitary sewer service Public Improvement, an accounting of all its project costs,
detailing the actual cost of the project

H Developer shall enter into a separate City standard form development agreement
to provide for the installation of the “public stormwater service” Public Improvement as
described 1in Exhibit B-1 attached hereto Developer shall commence construction thereof as
set forth 1n the Public Improvements Schedule, and complete construction of the public
stormwater service as set forth i the Public Improvements Schedule Developer shall dehiver to
the City, as soon as available but in no event later than sixty (60) days after substantial
completion of the public stormwater service Public Improvement, an accounting of all 1ts
project costs, detailing the actual cost of the project

I Developer shall enter into a separate City standard form development agreement
to provide for the installation of the “utilities including street lights” Public Improvement as
described in Exhibit B-1 attached hereto Developer shall commence construction thereof as
set forth 1n the Public Improvements Schedule, and complete construction of the utilities
including street lights as set forth in the Public Improvements Schedule Developer shall deliver
to the City, as soon as available but in no event later than sixty (60) days after substantial
completion of the utilitics including street lights Public Improvement, an accounting of all its
project costs, detailing the actual cost of the project

J The Developer may elect to consolidate all of the Public Improvement work
described 1n paragraphs E through I above into one City standard form development
agreement

ARTICLE 11



CITY ACTIVITIES AND OBLIGATIONS

A City shall cooperate with Developer throughout the development and
construction of the Project and the term of this Agreement and shall reasonably promptly review
and/or process all submissions and apphlications 1n accordance with apphicable City ordinances

B Upon Developer’s completion of the mstallation of the entirety of the Public /( Formatted Font color Auto

Improvements pursuant to the Public Improvements Schedule and the conveyance dedication
thereof has been accepted by the City, the City shall provide and deliver the payment to

Developer of a grant i the amount of $2,500,000 00 Developer shall pay for, and shall have | Formatted: Font color Auto

provided to the City evidence of pavment of. all of the costs mcurred 1n the construction and — 4 Formatted Font color Auto
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installation of the-and-sach-of-the Public Improvements, including as required by the applicable

City standard form development agreement(s) therefore, 1f upon the review and reasonable = {Formatted Font color Auto
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determtnation thereof by the City Engineer that the total costs of the Public Improvements 1s
less than $4,000,000 00, the grant amount shall be reduced by such percentage of reduction ot

the total costs of the Public Improvemenis, o /{ Formatted Font color Auto J
C Upon the development and construction of the first two gndustrial spec and/or o { Formatted Font color Auto j
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of all information reasonably required by the City Assessor to review and estimate the real \ \ Formatted: Font: Not Bold Font color- Auto ;
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estate property tax assessment value, and the reasonable determination by the City Assessor that
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property ta\ asses pient value exceeds $15.000,000 pending the actual determmation of the real //{Formatted Font color Auto
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estate property tax assessment value by the City or by the State of Wisconsin, as applicable to
the subject property use, pursuant to Wisconsin law, and upon such actual determination, any

percentage o +ch-$150-066-00reduction shall be provided and delivered to Developer 1n an { Formatted: Font color Auto

amount equivalent to any percentage mcrease in the assessment above the estimate
determtnation by the City Assessor, and up to the entirety of the $150,000-60-+f-such-actual

LU

determnatton-valuesequal-to-or-greater-than-$15-000-006-00-total $730 000, In the event such /{ Formatted: Font color Auto

actual real estate property tax assessment value determination 1s equal to or less than that
provided by the City Assessor detersnsiation,-no-amount-of-the-$150-000-00-shal -be-duc-orever
prerable-teDeveloparthe reduced amount shall not be paid unless and wntil, the total tax
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as provided 1 Exhibit B and the 1ssuance of an occupancy permut by the City, the City shall
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reduced by the amount that the payment under Section 11 € was greater than $750.000), Such — { Formatted: Font color Auto )
grant payment shall be subject to the provision by the Developer of all information reasonably

required by the City Assessor to review and estimate the real estate property tax assessment

value, and the reasonable determination by the City Assessor that the real estate property tax
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Throughout the life of the District, Developer or its successor awners to all or any \ \ [ bbb {
portion of the Property will pay (or cause to be paid) all ad valorem property taxes lawfully \\ Formatted: Font color Auto \‘
assessed against any portion of the Property owned by the Developer before or when due under \.\ Formatted: Font color Auto j
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of the Property

b
Formatted- Font color Red, English (United States) J

In the event that any portion of the Property becomes exempt from ad valorem taxes
during the statutory life of the Dlstrlct and for a pcnod of twenty (20) years thereafter (the
"PILOT Term"), then the Bx erownet, of such exempt portion /{ Formatted English (United States)
of the Property shali make (or cause to be madc) durmg thc PILOT Term annual payments 1n
lieu of taxes mn amounts equal to what the ad valorem property taxes would have been for such
portion of the Property (as determined by the City assessor) had 1t not been exempt Such
payment 1n lieu of taxes shall be due and payable at the same time and 1n the same manner as
the ad valorem taxes would have been due and payable for such year Beveloper-sThe then
awner of the exempt portion ot the Properts g obligations under this Article 111 upon any default /{ Formatted English (United States)
shall be collecttble as a debt upon an action at law, and shall also be otherwise collectible as are
delinquent real estate taxes and any such delinquent amount shall constitute a hien upon the
Property, as and tn the same method, manner, status and legal existence as levied taxes are a




lien against property pursuant to Wis Stat § 70 01, and shall also be otherwise collectible as are
delinquent special charges pursuant to Wis Stat § 66 0627, and in addition to the foregoing,
shall also be otherwise collectible by any other available legal and/or equitable remedy and as
otherwise provided by law If the Pevelopererans-suceesser Developerthen owner fails to
make a payment in lieu of taxes when due, the City may, 1n addition to all other remedies
available to 1t, levy a special assessment or special charge against the exempt portion of the
Property 1n the amount of the unpaid payments Any and all notice and hearing requirements
which may be required under the law for such special assessment or special charge are hereby
waived by Developer Notwithstanding and 1n addition to the levying of such special
assessment or special charge, the payment obligation under this Article shall be the personal

obligation of the person or entity that 1s the Developer-andferthen owner suecessors-and-assigns /{ Formatted

: English (United States)
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Ferm— The City 1s hereby expressly  declared to be a benefi iciary of such covenant and entitled
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NO PARTNERSHIP OR VENTURE

English (United States)

Developer, 1ts successors and/or assigns and/or owners of the Property, and their
contractors or subcontractors shall be solely responsible for the completion of the Project
Nothing contained in this Agreement shall create or effect any partnership, venture or
relationship between the City and Developer, 1ts successors and/or assigns and/or owners of the
Property, or any contractor or subcontractor employed by Developer, 1ts successors and/or
assigns and/or owners of the Property, i the construction of the Project.

ARTICLE V
CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No member, officer or employee of the City, durmg hus/her tenure or for one year
thereafter, will have or shall have had any interest, direct or indirect, 1n this Agreement or any
proceeds thereof, unless such member or officer abstained from any participation 1n the City
review and process of the Project and the Agreement from the point of time when a potential
conflict of interest arose and thereafter

ARTICLE VI
WRITTEN NOTICES

All notices required or permitted by this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be
deemed to have been given (1) upon delivery to an officer or designated representative of the
person entitled to such notice, 1f hand delivered, or (11) two business days following deposit
the United States mail, postage prepaid, or with a nationally recognized overnight commercial
carrier that will certify as to the date and time of delivery, airbill prepad, or (u11) upon
transmission 1f by facsimile, and each such communication or notice shall be addressed as



follows, unless and until any of such parties notifies the other 1n accordance with this Article of
a change of address

If to the City City of Franklin
9229 West Loomis Road
Franklin, W1 53132
Attention Aaron Hertzberg, Director of Economic Development
Facsimile No  414-427-7691

With a Copy to City of Franklin
9229 West Loomis Road
Franklin, WI 53132
Attention Sandra . Wesolowski, City Clerk
Facsimile No  414-425-6428

If to the Developer

28 Eaierprises
5158 S Marguette € {
~New Berlmn, W 33151

With a Copy to
Hurtado Zimmerman SC

101 N Mas faur Road_Surte 204
Wauwatosa. WI 53226

Attention Brian R Zimmermdan
Enestmie No—

ARTICLE VII
DEFAULT

A The occurrence of any one or more of the following events shall constitute a
default by Developer hereunder (“Default”)

1 Developer fails to pay any amounts when due under this Agreement and
further fails to pay such amounts on or before ten days following written notice of such failure,
or

2 Any materal representation or warranty made by Developer pursuant to
this Agreement proves to have been false in any material respect as of the time when made or
given, or

o ’[Formatted: English (United States)
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| Formatted English (United States)




3 Developer materially breaches or fails to perform timely or observe
timely any of its covenants or obligations under this Agreement (other than relating to the
payment of money), and such failure shall continue for thirty (30) days following notice thereof
from the City (or such longer period of tume as 1s otherwise expressly set forth herein or as 1s
reasonably necessary to cure the default as long as the Developer has commenced the cure of
the default within the thirty (30) day period, 1s diligently pursuing the cure of the default and as
long as the default 1s cured not later than one hundred twenty (120) days following the notice
thereof from the City or such longer period of tume as 15 reasonably agreed to by the City), or

4 Developer

(a) makes a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or to an
agent authorized to hiquidate any substantial amount of its/his assets, or

(b)  becomes the subject of an “order for relief” withun the meaning of
the United States Bankruptcy Code, or files a petition in bankruptcy, for reorganization or to
effect a plan or other arrangement with creditors, or

(©) has a petition or apphcation filed against it in bankruptcy or any
stmilar proceeding, or has such a proceeding commenced against 1t and such petition,
application or proceeding shall remain undismissed for a period of ninety (90) days or
Developer shall file an answer to such a petition or application, admitting the material
allegations thereof, or

(d) applies to a court for the appointment of a receiver or custodian
for any of its/his assets or properties, with or without consent, and such receiver shall not be
discharged within minety days after his appointment, or

(e) adopts a plan of complete liquidation of its/his assets, or
H shall cease to exist

B The City shall be deemed to be 1n default in the event 1t materially breaches or
fatls to perform tumely or observe timely any of 1ts covenants or obligations under this
Agreement, and such fatlure shall continue for thirty (30) days following notice thereof from
Developer (or such longer period of time as 1s otherwise expressly set forth herein or as 1s
reasonably necessary to cure the default as long as the City has commenced the cure of the
default within the thirty (30) day period, 1s diligently pursumg the cure of the default and as
long as the default 15 cured not later than one hundred twenty (120) days following the notice
thereof from Developer or such longer period of time as is reasonably agreed to by the
Developer)

Cc Upon the occurrence of any Default by either party, upon ten (10) days notice,
without further demand or action of any kind by the nondefaulting party and except as expressly
set forth below, the nondefaulting party may, at its option, pursue any or all rights and remedies
avatlable at law or in equity The City’s nghts shall include, but not be himited to temporary
suspenston of any payment of the City payments under this Agreement during the continuance
of any Default by Developer, or City performance of any Developer obhgation under this



Agreement Upon the cure of any such Default on the part of Developer, then, 1f and to the
extent the City suspended any payments of City payments, the City shall promptly distribute to
Developer any payments so suspended and promptly resume payments of amounts due with
respect to the City pavinents-due-underthis-Asreernent-and-contintie-such-payments-so-that-

subjeetie-avadable Taxtnerententthe-ewnulabive-amount patd upenfull-amerbizatien-ts-equal

tothet-ameunt-contemplted-under-this-Apreement-as provided 1 this Agreement,, - ‘1 Formatted English (United States)
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D No remedy shall be exclustve of any other remedy and each and every remedy + | Formatted: indent: First line- 05"

shall be cumulative and shatl be in addition to every other remedy given under this Agreement,

and/or now or hereafter existing at law or in equity No failure or delay on the part of any party
1n exercising any right or remedy shall operate as a waiver thereof nor shall any single or partial
exercise of any right preclude other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other right
or remedy

E. __ Notwithstanding the foregoing, the City shall not termmate this Agreement or
pursue, exercise or claim any rights or remedies arising out of a Default by Developer
hereunder, except mjunctive relief, specific performance or the temporary suspension of City
payments unless Developer, 1ts mortgage lender or theiwr designees have not commenced
commercially reasonable efforts to cure any such Default within 60 days after receipt of written
notice from the City to Developer and 1ts mortgage lender that 1f such efforts to cure such
Default are not so commenced, then the City tends to pursue its other rights and remedies
hereunder, including, without limitation, the right to termunate this Agreement

PBE  Inthe event of a Default by either party, all reasonable fees, costs and expenses
incurred by the nondefaulting party, including reasonable attorneys fees, 1n connection with the
enforcement of this Agreement shall be paid by the defaulting party, mcluding without
himitation the enforcement of the nondefaulting party’s rights 1n any bankrupicy, reorganization
or nsolvency proceeding

ARTICLE VIII
MISCELLANEOUS

A Developer shall have 1n effect at all times, all permuts, approvals and licenses as
may be required by any governmental authority or, to the extent reasonably prudent or
customary for similarly situated business operations, any non-governmental entity 1n connection
with the development, construction, management and operation of the Project

B Developer. or the then ownets of the Property shall maintain the following
msurance policies 1ssued by msurers licensed 1n the State of Wisconsin, with Best’s A ratings

ratings, and In the financial 31_ze cat gow as ma-a;ﬁstcaconab!\ Ic ~Lg>tui b\ the C ity (prowded — -1 Formatted English (United States)
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shall be decmcd vt; mum\ to the (m ) (the "Insurance Pollbieé " éovermg loss by pén]s,
hazards, habilities and other risks and casualties and 1n such amounts as may be reasonably
required by the City

(1) Following completion of construction of the PreeetPublic Improvements
and during the one vew warranty period, “all nisks” property insurance insuring against such

10
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risks as are insured against by Developers of similar projects, 1n amounts equal to 100%
replacement cost of all buildings, improvements, fixtures, equipment and other real and personal
property constituting the Project with an extended replacement cost endorsement, if avaslable,
and

() During the construction of the Project, builder's risk insurance in form

) - . I's
and amounts reaserabh-sansfictorv-tero wsure at 100% replacement cost the Criyvalue of the ~1 Formatted* English (United States)
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work then under construction, and

() Durning the term of this Agreement, commercial general hability
insurance covered under a comprehensive general habihity policy including coniractual hability
in amounts maintained by Developers of stnular projects, and wsuring against bodily mjury,
including personal myury, death and property damage—and

(Iv)  Sue

P

Each Insurance Policy shall require the insurer to provide at least thirty (30) days prior written
notice to the City of any matenial change or cancellation of such policy The City shall be
named as an additional msured/loss payee on all policies of insurance except worker's
compensation 1nsurance

C Subject to one or more Force Majeure Events as set forth m paragraph F of this
Article, if (1) the Developer does not substantially complete construction of the Project by the
L ompletion Date_ and (1) the Property does not have a property_tax assessment value of at least

$22.500.000 00, by the Completion Date, then the City may, i its sole discretion, termunate this __— { Formatted English (United States)

S

Agreement upon written notice to the Developer, provided, however, that if Developer
substantially completes constructton of the Project within thirty (30) days following receipt of
such written election to terminate (a “Developer Savings Action”™), this Agreement shall not
termunate but shall contihue 1n full force and effect. Upon an election to terminate that 1s not
followed by any Developer Savings Action, the City shall thereafter have no further obligations
under this Agreement and in addition thereto, the City may, mn its sole discretion, termunate Tax
Incremental District No __, City of Franklin, Wisconsin

D The prevailing party shall be entitled to collect all costs and expenses associated
with the enforcement of the its nights aganst the other under this Agreement, including without
lumitation the enforcement of such rights i any bankruptcy, reorgamzation or insolvency
proceeding 1nvolving Developer Any and all such fees, costs and expenses incurred by the
prevailing party which are to be paid by the other, shall be pard by on demand

E———Developer hereby indemnifies, defends, covenants not to sue and holds the City
harmless from and against all oss, hability, damage and expense, including attorneys' fees,
suffered or incurred by the City in any way in connection with the Project, including without
limitation (a) the failure of Developer or its contractors, subcontractors, agents, employees, or
mvitees (while under control of Developer) to comply with any environmental law, rule,
regulation or ordinance, or any order of any regulatory or admunistrative authority with respect
thereto, (b) any release by Developer or its contractors, subcontractors, agents, employees, or
invitees (while under control of Developer) of petroleum products or hazardous materials or

11



hazardous substances on, upon or mnto the Project, (c) any and all damage to natural resources or
real property or harm or mjury to persons resulting from any fatlure by the Developer and/or its
contractors, subcontractors and/or agents to comply with any law, rule, regulation or ordmance
or any release of petroleum products or hazardous matenals or hazardous substances as
described 1n clauses (a) and (b) above, (d) any violation by Developer at the Project of any
environmental law, rule, regulation or ordinance, (€) clauns artsing under the Americans With
Disabilities Act or similar laws, rules, regulations or ordinances, (f) the failure by Developer to
comply with any term or condition of this Agreement, and (g) during construction and to the
extent caused by the neghigent or willful adts of Developer, the injury to or death of any person
at the Project mjury w-any property- or caused by-or 4t the Project, and ¢hy-the-farfureof
Developer-to-mmntam-repairorreplace—as-needed-anv-porton-of the Projeet, except, In each
of the foregoing instances described n (a) through (h) above, to the extent negligently or
willfully and wrongfully caused by the City or its agents, employees, contractors or
representatives

E The terms "hazardous substances" means any flammable explosives, —-

radioactive matenals hazardous wastes, toxic substances, or related materals, mcluding
without imitation, any substances defined as or included m the definition of "hazardous
substances,” "“hazardous wastes," "hazardous materials,” "toxic substances” under any
applicable federal or state or local laws or regulations

Eneept as caused 1n whele or in-part. by neghgence-orwrongtul-act er-omission-ofthe
iy H-the persont-or-properiy-e-otherssustanrloss.-damage-er-mpurv-resulng-directh-or
et eeé%mwwmeﬂwh&eﬁte«wwhﬁm—mﬂw%&e%ep&m%m%
~gbeontractors-ormaterals
farlaretocomph-tthamy-of
méw%m&%%ﬁhe—%%—h&mﬂ%m 3 :
Front-cosis-and expenses-to-whieh-the-Gitv-mav- b%&mﬁkwmﬂm%s&ﬁmﬁ%

reason-thereai—provided—howeverthat-the Civ-shal-provide to Developer prompty—+a-wrting:
nmzeeﬂr the-atteocd lom—damage-or apury-

Developer, its successors and/or assigns and/or owners of the Property,

1ts successors and/or assigns and/or owners of the Property, or any contractor or
subcontractor retained by Developer, 1ts successors and/or assigns and/or owners of the
Property,

<haHshalf, 10 the exient caused by ther own conduct. mdemnify and save harmless the
City, 1ts officers, agents and employees, and shall defend the same, from and against any and all
liability, claims, loss, damages, mterest, actions, surts, judgments, costs, expenses, and
attorneys' fees, to whomsoever owed and by whomsoever and whenever brought or obtained,
which 1n any manner results from or arises 1n connection with- {exeept to the extent neghzenth
orwiifully and wionefully caunsed by the Cify or it agents, emiploy ees, contiactors or
representalives)

(1) The negligent or willfully wrongful performance of this Agreement by
Developer, 1ts successors and/or assigns and/or owners of the Property, or any contractor or
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subcontractor retained by Developer, its successors and/or assigns and/or owners of the
Property,

(1)  The neghigent or willfully wrongful construction of Beveloper

Imprevementsthe Project, by Developer, its successors and/or assigns and/or owners of the //[ Formatted. English (United States)

Property, or any contractor or subcontractor retained by Developer, tts successors and/or assigns
and/or owners of the Property,

(m)  The neghgent or willfully wrongful operation of Developer
Improvements by Developer, its successors and/or assigns and/or owners of the Property, or any
contractor or subcontractor retained by Developer, its successors and/or assigns and/or owners
of the Property, during Developer Construction Period,

(iv)  The violation by Developer, 1ts successors and/or assigns and/or owners
of the Property, or any contractor or subcontractor retained by Developer, tts successors and/or
assigns and/or owners of the Property, of any law, rule, regulation, order or ordinance, or

(v) The infringement by Developer, its successors and/or assigns and/or
owners of the Property, or any contractor or subcontractor retained by Developer, its successors
and/or assigns and/or owners of the Property, of any patent, trademark, trade name or copyright.

F Time 15 of the essence of each and every obligation or covenant contained in this
Agreement, provided, however, that if the Developer 1s delayed or prevented from timely
commencing or completing construction of the Project by reason of fire, earthquake, war, flood,
riot, strikes, labor disputes, governmental restrictions, judicial order, public emergency, or other
causes beyond the control of the Developer ("Force Majeure Event"), performance of such act
shall be excused for the pertod of such delay and the ttme for the performance of any such act
shall be extended for a period equivalent to such delay

G Nothing contamed in this Agreement 1s 1ntended to or has the effect of releasing
Developer, 1is successors and/or asstgns and/or owners of the Property, from compltance with
all applicable laws, rules, regulations and ordinances in addition to compliance with all terms,
conditions and covenants contatned in this Agreement

H All financial reports and information required to be provided by Developer to the
City under this Agreement shall be provided to the City's outside financial consultant for review
on behalf of the City The Developer warrants and represents the accuracy of all such financial
reports and information At the request of the Developer, ali financial reports and information
provided to the City or its financial consultant in connection with this Agreement shall be held
and treated as confidential and shall not be part of the public record associated with the Project,
if and as may be permitted under the Wisconsin Open Records Law  Duning the life of Tax
Incremental District No 8, City of Franklim, Wisconsin, the Developer shall provide annual
income and expense information for the Project as requested by the City Assessor as 1s
customary for the purposes of property valuation, which mformation shall be maintained 1n

confidence pursuant to laws and other rules /{ Formatted: English (United States)

I Prortosubsantial-complevon-ot the-Preet—thsThig Agreement may notbe ’//( Formatted: English (United States)
assigned n whole or i party by the Developer to (1) amy entits owned by orcontrolledbva //{ Formatted: Enghish (United States)
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P mpcm with the Cits s prior wutten, consent, whlch mcwmment shall not, Lga_&eé

ot unreasonably, withheld- 1p-the Gty s-sole diseretion-_conditioned or delayed _In the event of

am %xsmmu nt as d« enbed above De\e!upcr shall be re!emed from 1s ObllgleIlb hereunder
@ the

con
&w&&y—N@ﬂ%ﬁ&&aw&he—ﬁewW ln addmon the Developer may collaterally assign
this Agreement-fand-the-Bend] to the Developer's lender for the Project without the consent of
the City In the event that any such lender forecloses on its collateral and succeeds to
Bevelopersip-ownership of the Property, the City shall fulfill its obligations hereunder
provided that such lender, or the party purchasing the Property at a foreclosure sale, assumes n
writing all of the obligations of the Developer hereunder

F———-Developer ahakmaelyeem&uet—méﬂmﬁ#efe%?mﬁ%amaw
ebhéqﬂmwndu this-Asgreement—In-the-eventof fire damage eramy-othereasualtv-to-any part
of-the-Projest—Developer-agrees—atscost-and-expense—to-rebuld-reparrand replace-the

mwwmmh&mmmmmmmmm
M—%}H\Md%%& ect-¥ . > Fepi ;

Hé\‘i—%@é"t&—‘*{"imiv%—}th{, rec-of-arv-o
resttobmrv-fire—domage-oranv-other o : :

replacement of-the MG}“&AM@WH&%%MQ&M&G&%H%&WW
for-a-petiod expiring upon-thelaterof —(n- the-date-of-the exprration-and-cle~ure-of Tax
Incremental Dhstriet Ne-§- HB—G%-FGaRH-m—\WvGGH%HHHH-} the date whichas twenty (26)
vearsafterthe-daterr o 2 3 B

K If the State laws regarding ad valorem taxation are amended or modified during
the term of this Agreement such that the projected Tax Increments from the Property are
materially reduced, 1 ¢, seven percent (7%) or more, and there are no corresponding
amendments or modifications to the Tax Increment Law to compensate for such reduction, the
parties agree to work 1n good farth to consider amendments to this Agreement toward the end of
rendering the respective positions of the parties generally equivalent to the positions set forth
herein

L In the event that any term or provision of this Agreement 1s determined to be
invalid or unenforceable for any reason, then the other terms and provisions of this Agreement
shall not be affected thereby and said terms and provisions shall remain 1n full force and effect.

M A Memorandum of Agreement [shall be recorded 1n the office of the Register of

Deeds of Milwaukee County, Wisconsin, prior to the recording of the n mortgages securing any
construction loan, or any other mortgage on the Project, it being understood by the parties that
this Agreement will run with the land and will be binding upon the Project and any owner of all
or any portions of the Project and their successors and assigns in a form in substantial
conformance with the attached Exhibit F
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N This Agreement shall be construed pursuant to the laws of the State of
Wisconsin  Except as otherwise specifically and expressly set forth in this Agreement, the
venue for any disputes arising under this Agreement shall be the Circuit Court for Milwaukee
County The prevailing party shall be entitled to 1its costs, including 1ts reasonable attorneys’
fees, incurred 1n any hitigation

[Signature page(s) follow ]

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement 1s executed as of the date first above
written

DEVELOPER:

By

(Name and Title)

15



Date

STATE OF WISCONSIN )

)ss
COUNTY )
Personally appeared before me this day of , 202020142020, the
above-named , the of .

to me known to be the persons who executed the foregoing agreement on behalf of
the Caty and by 1ts authority

Notary Public State of Wisconsin
My commisston exptres

City of Franklin, Wisconsin

By
Stephen R Olson, Mayor
Date
By
Paul Rotzenberger, Director of Finance and
Treasurer
Date
Attest
Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk
Date
STATE OF WISCONSIN )
)ss
MILWAUKEE COUNTY )
Personally appeared before me this day of , 202020172020, the

above-named Stephen R Olson, Paul Rotzenberg and Sandra I. Wesolowski, Mayor, Director
of Finance and Treasurer, and City Clerk, respectively, of the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, to
me known to be the persons who executed the foregoing agreement on behalf of the City and by
its authority

Notary Public State of Wisconsin
My commisston exptres

16



Approved as to form

Jesse A Wesolowskt, City Attorney
Date

This tnstrument was drafted by
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EXHIBIT A

Property Legal Description



EXHIBIT ¢

Lots Depietionp:. —of Certified Survey Map-No.——



FXHIBITB

Form of Certification of Completion

FORM OF CERTIFICATE OF COMPLETION

2

City of Franklin
Attn

Re Certificate of Completion
Ladies & Gentleman,

This Certificate 1s being delivered pursuant to the Development Agreement dated as of
2020 between the undersigned and the City of Franklin, Wisconsin

The undersigned hereby certifies the Project has been completed in accordance with the
requirements of the terms and conditions of the Development Agreement and that an occupancy
certificate for the Project has been 1ssued, a copy of which 1s attached hereto

By

Title

20



EXHIBIT B-1
PUBLIC IMRPOVEMENTS
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EXHIBIT B-2
PUBLIC IMPROYEMENTS SCHEDULE



EXHIBIT C

INDUSTRIAL SPEC AND/OR COMMERCIAL USE BUILDINGS AND
DEVELOPMENT SCHEDULE



EXHIBIT F

Memeorandum of Development Agreement

MEMORANDUM OF
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

Document Number Document Title

THIS MEMORANDUM OF DEVELOPMENT
AGREEMENT ("Memorandum") 1s made effective as of the _
day of 2020, by and between [ s
a Wisconsimn and assigns] ("Developer"), and the
CITY OF FRANKLIN, a mumcipal corporation of Milwaukee
County, Wisconsin ("City")

Recording Area

Name and Return Address

WITNESSETH: - — ,//(Formatted: Font 10 pt

WHEREAS, Developer and the City entered nto that certain
Development  Agreement dated _ ., 2020
(“Development Agreement”) The full Development Agreement 1s PIN
available for mspection and copies can be obtained at the City of

Franklin City Hall, and

WHEREAS, tius Memorandum 1s being executed for the purpose of providing notice of the
Development Agreement and certain terms thereof in the Office of the Register of Deeds for Milwaukee
County, State of Wisconsin n order to place third parties on notice of the Development Agreement and
Developer’s and the City’s nights and obligations thereunder, some of which are hereinafter summanzed

NOW, THEREFORE, 1n consideration of the mutual covenants and promises contained 1n the
Development Agreement, Developer and the City hereby acknowledge as follows

1 PROPERTY. The "Property" 1s land located in the City of Franklin, Milwaukee< - Formatted Colorful List Accent 11 Indent: Left” 0
County, State of Wisconsin, legally described on Exhubit A attached hereto Fisthne 05

2 TERM. The Development Agreement shall run wath the land pursuant to 1its terms unless
terminated pursuant to 1ts terms



3 NO MODIFICATION; DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT CONTROLLING. This
Memorandum 1s only a summary of some of the terms and conditions contained in the Development
Agreement and this Memorandum 1s not intended 1n any way to amend, alter, modify, abrogate, substitute
or otherwise affect any of the terms or conditions contamed 1 the Development Agreement, all of which
are hereby mcorporated heremn n full by tlis reference It 1s hereby understood and agreed that,
notwithstanding this Memorandum, the terms and conditions contamned m the Development Agreement
shall in all events control the relationship between Developer and the City with respect to the subject
matter therem contained This Memorandum 1s solely for recording and notice purposes

4 COUNTERPART SIGNATURES. This Memorandum may be signed in two or more
counterparts, all of which, when taken together, shall constitute one and the same instrument

ISIGNATURES APPEAR ON FOLLOWING PAGE] "4‘—‘[ Formatted- Colorful List Accent 11




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Developer and the City have executed this Memorandum effective
as of the date first written above.

DEVELOPER CITY
CITY OF FRANKLIN
By By
Name Stephen R Olson, Mayor
Titler
By

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

STATE OF WISCONSIN )

)ss
COUNTY )
Personally appeared before me this day of 2020, the above-named
, the of , to me known to be the

persons who executed the foregomng agreement on behalf of the City and by 1ts authority

Notary Public State of Wisconsin
My commussion expires

STATE OF WISCONSIN )
)ss
MILWAUKEE COUNTY )

Personally appeared before me this ____ day of 2020, the above-named
Stephen R. Olson and Sandra L Wesolowski, Mayor and City Clerk, respectively, of the City of Frankh,
Wisconsin, to me known to be the persons who executed the foregoing agreement on behalf of the City
and by 1ts authority

Notary Public State of Wisconsin
My commuission expires

This Document was drafied by
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FOR
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DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
FOR
JHB PROPERTIES, LLC AND ZS ENTERPRISES, LLC
INDUSTRIAL SPEC BUILDINGS MIXED USE DEVELOPMENT

ARTICLES OF AGREEMENT (THIS “Agreement”) made and entered into this
day of 2020, by and between JHB Properties, LL.C, a Wisconsin limited
liability company, its successors and/or assigns, and ZS Enterprises, LLC, a Wisconsin limited
liability company, its successors and/or assigns , hereinafter, together and individually called the
"Developer" as party of the first part, and the City of Franklin, a municipal corporation of
Milwaukee County, Wisconsin, party of the second part, hereinafter called the "City".

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Developer desires to improve and develop certain lands located in the
City as described on attached Exhibit "A" (the "Development"), and for that purpose cause the
installation of certain public improvements, hereinafter described in this Agreement and the
exhibits hereto (the “Improvements™); and

WHEREAS, the Developer having applied to the City for approval of a Tax Incremental
District No. 8 Development Agreement for an Industrial Spec Buildings Mixed Use
Development, and the terms and provisions thereof providing that the Developer make and
install, or have made and have installed, any public improvements reasonably necessary, to wit:
public water service, sanitary sewer service, stormwater sewer service and utilities including
street lights; and

WHEREAS, the public works schedule and budget of the City does not now include the
Improvements for the Development and normally there would be a considerable delay in the
installation of the Improvements unless this Agreement is entered into by the parties; and

WHEREAS, the City believes that the orderly planned development of the Development
will best promote the health, safety and general welfare of the community, and hence is willing
to approve the Development provided the Developer proceed with the installation of the
Improvements in and as may be required for the Development, on the terms and conditions set
forth in this Agreement and the exhibits attached hereto.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the payment of One Dollar ($1.00) and other
good and valuable consideration to each in hand paid by the other, receipt of which is hereby
acknowledged and in consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained, the parties agree:

1. The legal description of the Development is set forth on attached Exhibit “A”.

2. The improvements aforementioned shall be as described in Exhibit “B” except as
noted in Exhibit “E”.



The Developer shall prepare plans and specifications for the aforesaid
Improvements, under direction of the City Engineer, and to be approved by the
City Engineer. After receiving the City’s approval thereof, the Developer shall
take bids, and award contracts (the “Improvements Contracts™) for and install all
of the improvements in accordance with standard engineering and public works
practices, and the applicable statutes of the State of Wisconsin.  The
Improvements shall be based on the construction specifications stated in attached
Exhibit “F”.

The full cost of the Improvements will include all labor, equipment, material,
engineering, surveying, inspection and overhead costs necessary or incidental to
completing the Improvements (collectively the "Improvements Costs"). Payment
for the Improvements Costs will be made by the Developer periodically as the
Improvements are completed as provided in the Improvements Contracts. The
total estimated cost of the Improvements is (IN WORDS)
and 00/100 Dollars as itemized in attached Exhibit "D".

To assure compliance with all of Developer’s obligations under this Agreement,
prior to the issuance of any building permits, the Developer shall file with the
City a Financial Guarantee (the "Financial Guarantee”, which may be either in the
form of a Letter of Credit or a Performance Bond and such form shall be the
choice of the Developer) in the initial amount of $ , representing
the estimated costs for the Improvements as shown in attached Exhibit “D”.
Upon the written approval of the City Engineer, the amount of the Financial
Guarantee shall may be reduced periodically as the Improvements are paid for and
approved by the City so that following each such reduction, the Financial
Guarantee equals the total amount remaining for Improvements Costs pertaining
to Improvements for which Developer has not paid as set forth in the
Improvements Contracts for the Improvements or which remain unapproved by
the City. The Financial Guarantee shall be issued by a bank or other financial
institution (the “Surety Guarantee Issuer”) reasonably satisfactory to the City, for
the City as "Beneficiary", in a form satisfactory to the City Attorney. Failure to
file the Financial Guarantee within ten (10) days after written demand by the City
to the Developer shall make and render this Agreement null and void, at the
election of the City. Upon acceptance by the City (as described below) of and
payment by Developer for all the completed Improvements, the Financial
Guarantee shall be released and surrendered by the City to the Developer, and
thereafter the Developer shall have no further obligation to provide the Financial
Guarantee to the City under this Paragraph 5., except as set forth under Paragraph
13. below.

In the event the Developer fails to pay the required amount for the Improvements
or services enumerated herein within thirty (30) days or per contract after being
billed for each improvement of each stage for any Improvements Costs at the time
and in the manner provided in this Agreement, and if amounts remain unpaid after
an additional thirty (30) days written notice to Developer, the City may notify the



Guarantee Issuer in writing to make the said payments under the terms of the
Financial Guarantee to the Contractor, within the later of the time frame stipulated
in the Financial Guarantee or five (5) days after receiving a written demand from
the City to make such payment. Demand shall be sent by registered letter with a
return receipt requested, addressed to the Surety Guarantee Issuer at the address
indicated on the Financial Guarantee, with a copy to the Developer, described in
Paragraph five (5) above. It is understood between the parties to this Agreement,
that billings for the Improvements Costs shall take place as the various segments
and sections of the Improvements are completed and certified by the City

Engineer as complying with the approved plans and applicable provisions of the
Franklin Municipal Code.

In addition, the City Engineer may demand that the Financial Guarantee be
extended from time to time to provide that the Financial Guarantee be in force
until such time that all improvements have been installed and accepted through
the one (1) year guarantee period as set forth under Paragraph 13. below,
including the fourteen (14) months following substantial completion of the
Improvements and 10% limitations also set forth thereunder. For the purposes of
this Agreement, “Substantial Completion” is defined as being the date that the
binder course of asphalt is placed on the public roadway of the Development.
Demand for said extension shall be sent by registered letter with a return receipt,
with a copy to the Developer. If said Financial Guarantee is not extended for a
minimum of a one (1) year period prior to expiration date of the Financial
Guarantee (subject to any then applicable of the aforementioned limitations), the
City may send written notice to the Surety Guarantee Issuer to make payment of
the remaining balance of the Financial Guarantee to the City to be placed as an
escrow deposit.

The following special provisions shall apply: [72.5 : (a) & (f) remam, balance are adds/deletions]

(a) Those special provisions as itemized on attached Exhibit "C" and attached
Exhibit "E" are hereby incorporated by reference in this Agreement and
made a part hereof as if fully set forth herein.

(b) The laterals mentioned in Exhibit "B" are to be installed before street
surfacing mentioned in Exhibit "B" is commenced.

(©) Gas Company is to install all necessary mains before the street surfacing
mentioned in Exhibit "B" is commenced. Also, any other underground
work by any other utilities is also to be completed before said street
surfacing is commenced.

(d) To the extent necessary to accommodate public utilities easements on the
Development, easements will be dedicated for the use of the Electric
Company, the Telephone Company and Cable Company to provide utility



10.

1.

services to the Development. All utilities shall be underground except for
any existing utility poles/lines.

(e) The curb face to curb face width of the roads in the Development shall be
as determined by the City Engineer.

(f) Fee title to all of the Improvements and binding easements upon lands on
which they are located, shall be dedicated and given by the Developer to
the City, in form and content as required by the City, without recourse,
and free and clear of all liens or encumbrances, with final inspection and
approval of the Improvements and accompanying title and easement
documents by the City constituting acceptance of such dedication. The
Improvements shall thereafter be under the jurisdiction of, the City and the
City shall maintain, at the City's expense, all of the Improvements after
completion and acceptance thereof by the City. Necessary permits shall
be obtained for all work described in this Agreement.

The Developer agrees that it shall be fully responsible for all the Improvements in
the Development and appurtenances thereto during the period the Improvements
are being constructed and continuing until the Improvements are accepted by the
City (the "Construction Period"). Damages that may occur to the Improvements
during the Construction Period shall be replaced or repaired by the Developer.
The Developer's obligations under this Paragraph 8., as to any improvement,
terminates upon acceptance of that improvement by the City.

The Developer shall take all reasonable precautions to protect persons and
property of others on or adjacent to the Development from injury or damage
during the Construction Period. This duty to protect shall include the duty to
provide, place and maintain at and about the Development, lights and barricades
during the Construction Period.

If the persons or property of others sustain loss, damage or injury resulting
directly or indirectly from the work of the Developer or its subcontractors or
materialmen in their performance of this Agreement or from its failure to comply
with any of the provisions of this Agreement or of law, the Developer shall
indemnify and hold the City harmless from any and all claims and judgments for
damages, and from costs and expenses to which the City may be subjected or
which it may suffer or incur by reason thereof, provided; however, that the City
shall provide to the Developer promptly, in writing, notice of the alleged loss,
damage or injury.

Except as otherwise provided in Paragraph 12. below, the Developer shall
indemnify and save harmless the City, its officers, agents and employees, and
shall defend the same, from and against any and all liability, claims, loss,
damages, interest, actions, suits, judgments, costs, expenses, and attorneys' fees,
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14.

to whomsoever owed and by whomsoever and whenever brought or obtained,
which in any manner results from or arises in connection with:

(a) the negligent or willfully wrongful performance of this Agreement by the
Developer or any subcontractor retained by the Developer;

(b) the negligent or willfully wrongful construction of the Improvements by
the Developer or by any of said subcontractors;

(©) the negligent or willfully wrongful operation of the Improvements by the
Developer during the Construction Period;

(d) the violation by the Developer or by any of said subcontractors of any
applicable law, rule, regulation, order or ordinance; or

(e) the infringement by the Developer or by any of said subcontractors of any
patent, trademark, trade name or copyright.

Anything in this Agreement to the contrary notwithstanding, the Developer shall
not be obligated to indemnify the City or the City's officers, agents or employees
(collectively the "Indemnified Parties") from any liability, claim, loss, damage,
interest, action, suit, judgment, cost, expenses or attorneys fees which arise from
or as a result of the negligence or willful misconduct of any of the Indemnified
Parties.

The Developer hereby guarantees that the Improvements will be free of defects in
material and/or workmanship for a period of one (1) year from the date of
acceptance of the Improvements by the City. To secure the Developer's
obligations under said guaranty upon acceptance of the Improvements by the City,
the Developer will provide to the City a Financial Guarantee equal to 10% of the
sub-total in Exhibit “D” of the total Improvements Costs, which Financial
Guarantee shall expire one (1) year after the Improvements have been accepted by
the City or continue the existing base Financial Guarantee maintaining a
minimum of 10% of the sub-total in Exhibit “D” of the total Improvements Costs
for one (1) year after the improvements have been accepted by the City. This
Financial Guarantee shall be a partial continuation of, and not in addition to, the
Financial Guarantee described in Paragraph 5. above.

(a) The Developer shall not commence work on the Improvements until it has
obtained all insurance coverage required under this Paragraph 14. and has filed
certificates thereof with the City:

(1) COMPREHENSIVE GENERAL LIABILITY AND PROPERTY
DAMAGE INSURANCE - Coverage shall protect the Developer and
all subcontractors retained by the Developer during the Construction
Period and all persons and property from claims for damages for
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16.

personal injury, including accidental death as well as claims for
property damages, which may arise from performing this Agreement,
whether such performance be by the Developer or by any
subcontractor retained by the Developer or by anyone directly or
indirectly employed by either the Developer or any such subcontractor.
The City shall be named as an additional insured on all such insurance
coverage under this Paragraph 14.(a)(1) and Paragraph 14.(a)(2). The
amounts of such insurance coverage shall be as follows:

Bodily Injury $1,000,000 Per Person
$1,000,000 Per Occurrence
$1,000,000 Aggregate

Property Damage $500,000 Per Occurrence
$500,000 Aggregate

(2) COMPREHENSIVE AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY AND PROPERTY
DAMAGE - Insurance coverage for the operation of owned, hired and
non-owned motor vehicles shall be in the following amounts:

Bodily Injury $1,000,000 Per Person
$1,000,000 Per Occurrence

Property Damage $500,000 Per Occurrence

(b) The Developer shall file a certificate of insurance containing a thirty (30) day
notice of cancellation to the City prior to any cancellation or change of said
insurance coverage which coverage amounts shall not be reduced by claims not
arising from this Agreement.

The Developer shall not be released or discharged of its obligations under this
Agreement until the City has completed its final inspection of all the
Improvements and the City has issued its written approval of all of the
Improvements, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed,
and Developer has paid all of the Improvements Costs, at which time the
Developer shall have no further obligations under this Agreement except for the
one (1) year guaranty under Paragraph 13.

The Developer and the City hereby agree that the cost and value of the
Improvements will become an integral part of the value of the Development and
that no future lot assessments or other types of special assessments of any kind
will be made against the Development by the Developer or by the City for the
benefit of the Developer, to recoup or obtain the reimbursement of any
Improvement Costs for the Developer.



17. Execution and performance of this Agreement shall be accepted by the City as
adequate provision for the Improvements required by

18. Penalties for Developer’s failure to perform any or all parts of this Agreement
shall be in accordance with Division 15-9.0500, Violations, Penalties, and
Remedies of the Unified Development Ordinance and §1-19. Penalty provisions
of the City of Franklin Municipal Code, as amended from time to time, in addition
to any other remedies provided by law or in equity so that the City may obtain
Developer’s compliance with the terms of this Agreement as necessary.

This Agreement shall be binding upon the parties hereto and their respective successors and
assigns, excepting that the parties hereto do not otherwise intend the terms or provisions of this
Agreement to be enforceable by or provide any benefit to any person or entity other than the
party of the first part and the party of the second part. Developer shall not convey or assign any
of its rights or obligations under this contract whatsoever without the written consent of the City,
which shall not be unreasonably withheld upon a showing that any successor or assignee is
ready, willing and able to fully perform the terms hereof and the Developer remains liable
hereunder. This Agreement shall run with the land.

[The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank. Signatures are on the following pages.]



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the said party of the first part has set its hand and seal and the
said party of the second part has caused these presents to be duly executed by Stephen R. Olson,
Mayor, and Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk, and its corporate seal to be hereunto affixed as of
the day and year first above written.

SEALED IN PRESENCE OF:
[Developer/Entity]
By:
Name:
Title:
Party of the First Part
STATE OF WISCONSIN )
)ss.
COUNTY )
Personally came before me this (day) of , 20 , the
above named of and
acknowledged that [she/he] executed the foregoing instrument as such officer as the deed of said
by its authority.
or
This instrument was acknowledged before me on (date)
by (name(s) of person(s)) as
(type of authority, e.g., officer, trustee, etc.) of
(name of party on behalf of whom instrument
was executed).
Notary Public, County, WI
My commission expires:
CITY OF FRANKLIN
By:

Name: Stephen R. Olson
Title: Mayor

COUNTERSIGNED:

By:
Name: Sandra L.. Wesolowski




Title: City Clerk

Party of the Second Part
STATE OF WISCONSIN )
)ss.
COUNTY )
Personally came before me this _____ day of , 20 the

above named Stephen R. Olson, Mayor, and Sandra L.. Wesolowski, City Clerk, of the above

named municipal corporation, City of Franklin, to me known to be such Mayor and City Clerk of

said municipal corporation, and acknowledged that they had executed the foregoing instrument

as such officers as the Deed of said municipal corporation by its authority and pursuant to

Resolution No. , adopted by its Common Council on the day of
, 20

Notary Public, Milwaukee County, W1
My commission expires:

This instrument was drafted by the City Engineer for the City of Franklin.

Form approved:

Jesse A. Wesolowski, City Attorney
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Exhibit A

Exhibit B

Exhibit C

Exhibit D

Exhibit E

Exhibit F

INDEX OF EXHIBITS
TO
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
FOR
[NAME OF DEVELOPMENT]

Legal Description of Development

General Description of Required Development Improvements
General Development Requirements

Estimated Improvement Costs

Additional Development Requirements

Construction Specifications
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EXHIBIT "A"
TO
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
FOR
[NAME OF DEVELOPMENT]

LEGAL DESCRIPTION
OF DEVELOPMENT
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EXHIBIT "B"

TO
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
FOR
[NAME OF DEVELOPMENT]

GENERAL DESCRIPTION
OF
REQUIRED DEVELOPMENT
IMPROVEMENTS

[n b: subject to adds/deletions per specific Development requnremems]
Description of improvements required to be installed to develop the [Name of ] Development.

*S Denotes contract for improvements to be awarded, financed and paid
for by the Developer in lieu of special assessments.

*C Denotes contract for improvements to be awarded by the City, but
financed and paid for by the Developer in accordance with this
agreement.

(N.A)) Denotes improvement is not required to be installed in the
Development.

(D Denotes that the City is to pay for a portion of the improvement, in
accordance with this agreement, as computed by the City Engineer.

General Description of Improvements
(refer to additional sheets for concise breakdown)

1. Grading of all lots and blocks within the Development in conformance *S
with the approved grading plan.

2. Grading of the streets within the Development in accordance with the *S
established street grades and the City approved street cross-section and
specifications.

3. Installation of concrete or asphalt permanent pavement with vertical face *S

concrete curb and gutter in accordance with present City specifications.

4. Sanitary sewer main and appurtenances in the streets and/or easement in  *S
the Development, to such size and extent as determined by the master
sewer plan and/or City Engineer, as necessary to provide adequate service
for the final Development and drainage area.
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

Laterals and appurtenances from sanitary sewer main to each lot line; one
for each lot as determined by the City.

Water main and fittings in the streets and/or easement in the
Development, to such size and extent as determined by the master water
plan and/or the City Engineer as necessary to provide adequate service for
the final Development and service area.

Laterals and appurtenances from water main to the street line; one for
each lot, as determined by the City Engineer together with curb stop as
specified by the City.

Hydrants and appurtenances provided and spaced to adequately service
the area and as the City shall require.

Paved streets with curb and gutter in the Development to the approved
grade and in accordance with the City specifications.

Concrete sidewalks in the Development to the approved grade and in
accordance with the City specifications.

Concrete, asphalt or chipped pedestrian walks in dedicated pedestrian
ways and easements in the Development as approved by the City.

Concrete driveways between the street line and curb and gutter for each
lot as specified and approved by the City.

Street trees.

Protective fencing adjacent to pedestrian ways, etc.

Engineering, planning and administration services as approved.

Drainage system as determined and/or approved by the City to adequately
drain the surface water from the Development and drainage basin area in

accordance with the master drainage plan and/or approved system plan.

Street lighting and appurtenances along the street right-of-way as
determined by the City.

Street signs identifying the Development street in such locations and such
size and design as determined by the City.

Title evidence on all conveyances.
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EXHIBIT "C"

TO
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
FOR
[NAME OF DEVELOPMENT]

GENERAL DEVELOPMENT REQUIREMENTS

[I’l b: subject to adds/deletions per specific Development reqmremems]

L

II.

jii8

GENERAL

A.

The Developer shall prepare a plat of the land, plans for improvements, as-built
drawings of the improvements and all other items in accordance with all
applicable state laws and City ordinances and regulations.

B. All improvements shall be installed in accordance with all City specifications and
ordinances.
C. The entire Development as proposed shall be recorded.
LOT SIZE AND UNIT SIZE
A. Lots
1. All lots shall be as shown on the final approved plat.
B. Units
1. The minimum area of any living unit built in the project shall be as
specified in the Franklin Municipal Code and Unified Development
Ordinance in effect at the time the permit is issued unless otherwise
specified in the agreement.
WATER SYSTEM
A. Availability
1. Each and every lot in the Development shall be served by a water main.
2. The Developer shall provide for the extension of the water system to

abutting properties by laying water pipe in public right-of-way or in water
casement to the exterior lot line of the Development as directed by the
City Engineer.
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B.

3. Laterals shall be laid to each and every lot. Size shall be approved by the
City Engineer.

4. Fire hydrants shall be available to the City's Fire and Public Works
Departments, and both City Departments shall have free and unlimited use
of the water.

Construction

1. All construction shall be in accordance with the specifications of the City.
2. Inspection of the work shall be at the Developer's expense.

3. Mains and appurtenances including all pipe, hydrants, gate valves, laterals

and curb stop boxes shall be installed.

IV.  SANITARY SEWER SYSTEM

A.

Components

Sanitary sewerage service through and within the Development shall be provided.
It shall consist of without limitation because of enumeration, sanitary sewer,
manholes, appurtenances, laterals, and other appurtenances.

Availability
1. Each and every building in the Development shall be served by a sanitary
sewer.
2. Laterals shall be laid to the lot line of each and every lot.
3. a) The Developer shall provide for the extension of the sanitary
sewer system to abutting properties by laying sewer pipe to the
exterior lot lines of the Development as directed by the City
Engineer, and in accordance with system plans as approved by
Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage District.
b) In the event that adjacent property owners request sewer service

prior to the time the sewer extensions are installed to the exterior
boundaries of the Development as described in Section IV. B. 3.(a)
above, the City is hereby granted the right to install said extensions
within the Development at the expense of the Developer. All costs
for installing sewer systems outside of the boundaries of the
Development shall be paid by the adjacent property owners upon
any special assessment proceedings had by the City or waiver
thereof by the adjacent property owners pursuant to Wis. Stat. §
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66.0701 Special assessments by local ordinance, and §207.15.
Special assessments, of the Municipal Code.

V. STORM DRAINAGE

A.

Components

Storm drainage through and within the Development shall be provided by means
of storm sewer, culverts and ditches installed within the road required as per
approved system plan. It shall consist of, without limitation because of
enumeration, sewers, culverts, pipes, manholes, catch basins, inlets, leads, open
swales, retention basins and absorption ponds as determined by the City Engineer.
The City, at the determination of the City Engineer, may have the storm drainage
system reviewed by a consultant engineer at the Developer’s cost.

Endwalls
1. Endwalls shall be approved by the City Engineer.

2. Endwalls shall be installed on each and every culvert and at all open ends
of storm sewers.

Outfalls and Retaining Walls

1. Outfalls and retaining walls shall be built where required by the City

Engineer.

2. The aesthetic design of said structures shall be approved by the
Architectural Board.

3. The structural design of said structures shall be done by an engineer or

architect registered in the State of Wisconsin.

D. Responsibility of Discharged Water

1.

The Developer shall be responsible for the storm drainage until it crosses the
exterior property line of the Development or until it reaches a point designated by
the City outside of and adjacent to the property from which the water crosses
over, under or through artificial or natural barriers. The water shall be brought to
said point by an open ditch or other means as directed by the City Engineer.

However, if the Developer of the Development will, in the opinion of the City
Engineer, cause water problems downstream from the Development which will
reasonably require special consideration, the Developer shall comply with such
terms as the City Engineer may require to prevent these problems. Said terms
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shall be made part of those documents under the section titled "Special
Provisions".

VI.  STREETS

A. Location

1.

B. Names

Streets shall be constructed in such a manner that the centerline of
roadway shall be centerline of right-of-way.

Streets shall be constructed in each and every road right-of-way platted
and shall be built to the exterior lot line of the Development whenever
possible except as noted in Exhibit “E”.

The names of all streets shall be approved by the City Engineer.

C. Construction

1.

All streets shall be built in accordance with the specifications on file in the
City Engineer's Office.

All streets shall be constructed with 8” of stonebase and 4” of A/C binder
course prior to Development certification. The 2” A/C surface course
shall be installed when 90% of the lots within the Development have been
built upon or at the discretion of the City Engineer.

Before the final lift of asphalt can be installed within a Development the
Developer must make arrangements to repair damaged or failed concrete
curb and gutter, concrete walk, asphalt base course or sub-grade. Also,
damaged or failed utility appurtenances must be repaired, rebuilt or
replaced by the Developer’s contractor prior to the installation of the final
lift of asphalt pavement.

All associated costs with this work will be the responsibility of the
Developer.

The construction shall be inspected by the City or its agent and all fees due
to such inspection shall be paid by Developer.

D. Snow Removal and Ice Control

The responsibility for snow removal and ice control on all streets within the
Development shall lie with the Developer until:
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VIL

VIIL

a) The plat is recorded; and

b) The streets have been provisionally approved by the City.

EASEMENTS
A. Drainage
1. All drainage easements dedicated to the public shall be improved as

follows:

a) Storm sewer or lined invert open channel, unless otherwise agreed
upon by the Developer and the City.

b) Side slopes no steeper than 4:1.
c) Landscaped in accordance with the applicable City regulations

and/or approvals conditions for the Development for landscaping
requirements or, in the case of storm sewer, as directed by the City

Engineer.
2. Pedestrian
a) The pedestrian walks shall be paved with chips as required by the
City Engineer and shall be five (5) feet wide.
b) The edge of the walk shall be at least one (1) foot from either side
of the easement.
PERMITS ISSUED
A. Building Permits
1. No building permits shall be issued until:

a) The sanitary and storm sewer and water mains have been installed,
tested and approved.

b) Drainage has been rough graded and approved.

c) Streets and lots have been rough graded and approved, and curb
and gutter installed and the base course of asphalt pavement
installed.

d) The plat has been recorded.

19



e) All Development monuments have been set.

2. Building permits may be granted for model homes prior to satisfying the
above conditions, provided an agreement relating thereto has been
approved by the Common Council of the City of Franklin.

Occupancy Permits

1. No temporary occupancy permits shall be issued until:

a) Streets have been paved except for the final lift of asphalt.

b) The gas, telephone and electrical services have been installed and
are in operation.

c) The water system is installed, tested and approved.
d) The site is stabilized and all drainage facilities have been re-
certified.

IX. DEED RESTRICTIONS

A.

A Financial Guarantee approved by the City Attorney in the full amount of all
non-assessable improvements not yet installed and approved as of the date of this
agreement shall be submitted to the City before any permits are issued.

The time of completion of improvements.

1. The Developer shall take all action necessary so as to have all the
improvements specified in this agreement installed and approved by the
City before two years from the date of this agreement.

2. Should the Developer fail to take said action by said date, it is agreed that
the City, at its option and at the expense of the Developer, may cause the
installation of or the correction of any deficiencies in said improvements.

X. CHARGES FOR SERVICES BY THE CITY OF FRANKLIN

A.

Fee for Checking and Review

At the time of submitting the plans and specifications for the construction of the
Development improvements, a fee equal to two-and-one-fourth percent (2% %) of
the cost of the improvements as estimated by the City Engineer at the time of
submission of improvement plans and specifications, to partially cover the cost to
the City of checking and reviewing such plans and specifications provided that
cost does not exceed $250,000.00; a fee equal to one-and-three-fourth percent (1%
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%) of such cost, if the cost is in excess of $250,000.00, but not in excess of
$500,000.00; and one-and-one-fourth percent (1% %) of said cost in excess of
$500,000.00. At the demand of the Developer or City Engineer, the fee may be
recomputed after the work is done in accordance with the actual cost of such
improvements and the difference, if any, shall be paid by or remitted to the
Developer. Evidence of cost shall be in such detail and form as required by the
City Engineer.

For the services of testing labs, consulting engineers and other personnel, the

Developer agrees to pay the City the actual charge plus five (5%) percent for
administration and overhead.
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EXHIBIT "D"
TO
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
FOR [NAME OF DEVELOPMENT]

ESTIMATED IMPROVEMENT COSTS

All improvement costs, including but not limited to preparation of plans, installation of facilities
and inspection shall be borne by the Developer in accordance with Paragraph (4) of this
Agreement.

Said costs for the project are estimated to be as follows:

[I’l b: subject to adds/deletions per specific Development requlrementﬂ

DESCRIPTION COSTS
Grading (including Erosion Control)

Sanitary System

Water System

Storm Sewer System

Paving (including sidewalk)
Street Trees ( x $400/lot)
Street Lights ( ) @ approximately $5,000/ca.

Street Signs

Underground Electric, Gas and Telephone

Retention Basin

SUBTOTAL

Engineering/Consulting Services

Municipal Services
(7% of Subtotal)

Contingency Fund
(20% of Subtotal)

TOTAL:

Total: /100 Dollars.

APPROVED BY: Date:
Glen E. Morrow, City Engineer
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EXHIBIT "E"

TO
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
FOR
[NAME OF DEVELOPMENT]

ADDITIONAL DEVELOPMENT
REQUIREMENTS

[n b subject to adds/deletions per specific Development rcqu1rements]

1.

The Developer agrees that it shall pay to the City of Franklin the street light installation
and underground wiring costs as determined by the WE Energies Company for ()
100-watt ornamental sodium vapor light(s).

The Developer shall make every effort to protect and retain all existing trees, shrubbery,
vines and grasses pursuant to the approved Natural Resource Protection Plan (the
“NRPP”). Trees shall be protected and preserved during construction in accordance with
sound conservation practices as outlined in §§15-8.0204A. through F. of the Unified
Development Ordinance.

The Developer shall cause all grading, excavations, open cuts, side slopes and other land
surface disturbances to be so mulched, seeded, sodded or otherwise protected that
erosion, siltation, sedimentation and washing are prevented in accordance with the plans
and specifications approved by the City Engineer as outlined in §§15-8.0203H.1. through
5. of the Unified Development Ordinance.

The Developer agrees to pay the City for street trees planted by the City on

at the rate of $400 per tree with a planting distance between trees of 85
feet on the average. The City shall determine the planting schedule and shall be
responsible for tree maintenance and replacement except for damage caused by the
Developer, the Developer’s sub-contractors, or the lot owners.

The requirements for the installation of concrete driveway approaches shall be omitted
from this agreement because the Developer will require that the owners of said lots install
concrete driveway approaches, as required by the Franklin Building Inspector.

The Developer shall be responsible for cleaning up the debris that has blown from
buildings under construction within the Development. The Developer shall clean up all
debris within forty-eight (48) hours after receiving a notice from the City Engineer.

The Developer shall be responsible for cleaning up the mud and dirt on the roadways
until such time as the final lift of asphalt has been installed. The Developer shall clean

the roadways within forty-eight (48) hours after receiving a notice from the City
Engineer.
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

Prior to commencing site grading, the Developer shall submit for approval by the City
Engineer an erosion and silt control plan. Said plan shall provide sufficient control of the
site to prevent siltation downstream from the site. The Developer shall maintain the
erosion and siltation control until such time that vegetation sufficient to equal pre-
existing conditions has been established.

The Developer shall preserve the environmental natural resource features as shown on the
Natural Resource Protection Plan and shall install an orange snow fence and silt fence
around the environmental natural resource features prior to land disturbing.

The Developer shall install a -inch diameter water main on
from the existing water main located at of the Development.
The City shall reimburse to the Developer the cost of the oversize portion of the
installation (over an 8” diameter as calculated by the City Engineer) in five equal annual
installments, without interest, beginning the February 15th following the completion of
the installation, its placement into operation and the final acceptance of same by the City
Engineer. The City also agrees to enter into an agreement with the Developer which may
reimburse to the Developer the cost of the non-oversize portion of the installation based
upon the collection of the pro-rated cost for such abutting property owners that connect to
the water main on installed by the Developer. The pro-ration
shall be upon a front foot basis. Such non-oversize cost reimbursement shall only be
made by the City to the Developer upon the City’s receipt of such pro-rated costs from an
abutting property owner within ten years from the final acceptance of the installation by
the City Engineer. Such non-oversize cost reimbursement shall not include interest, shall
not be made after the expiration of the aforesaid ten years and shall in no way be
guaranteed by or be an obligation of the City other than to pay to the Developer such pro-
rated costs if received as aforesaid.

Prior to commencing any land disturbance, the Developer shall employ a forestry expert
approved by the Environmental Commission to review the development and during the
development process make periodic inspections to monitor the activity relative to the
protection of the woodlands. Periodic reports shall be furnished to the Environmental
Commission, Planning Manager and City Engineer, the purpose of these requirements
being to ensure compliance with the Unified Development Ordinance.

The Developer shall inform the persons purchasing lots of their obligation to cut weeds to
conform to the City’s noxious weed ordinance.

The Developer shall construct storm water management facilities as required in the Storm
Water Management Plan in accordance with the plans and specifications approved by the
City Engineer. Maintenance of said storm water management facilities shall be the
responsibility of the Developer and/or owners association.

The Developer shall create a Homeowners Association for the care and maintenance of

all common lands, including all storm water management facilities, and other green areas.
Said Homeowners Association documents shall be reviewed and approved by the
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15.

16.

17.

Franklin Plan Commission or as may otherwise be provided by the UDO, prior to
recording of the Final Plat. The Developer is responsible to recertify the storm water
management facilities after the site is stabilized and prior to the conveyance to the
Homeowners Association.

Homeowners Association documents shall include a Declaration of Restrictions and
Covenants specifying the preservation of the existing detention basin and landscaping
and entryways. Said document shall be recorded after review and approval by the City
Attorney.

Construction Requirements:

a) Prior to any construction activity on the site, Developer shall prepare a gravel
surfaced parking area within the boundaries of the site.

b) During construction, all vehicles and equipment shall park on the site. Parking shall
not be permitted on any external public right-of-way.

c) Prior to issuance of any building permits other than in the case of the issuance of any
model structure permits, all necessary grading and improvements shall be completed

as directed by the City Engineer.

d) All traffic shall enter the site from

The Developer shall provide for the connection to the existing
and install any necessary curb and gutter and pavement.
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EXHIBIT "F"

TO
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
FOR
[NAME OF DEVELOPMENT]

CONSTRUCTION SPECIFICATIONS

[n b subject to adds/deletions per specific Development requnrements]
The following specifications shall be used for the construction of the various improvements.

ITEM

SPECIFICATION

Storm & Sanitary Sewer

STANDARD  SPECIFICATIONS FOR
SEWER AND WATER CONSTRUCTION
IN WISCONSIN, most current edition

CITY OF FRANKLIN

Water Mains

STANDARD  SPECIFICATIONS FOR
SEWER AND WATER CONSTRUCTION
IN WISCONSIN, most current edition

CITY OF FRANKLIN
Concrete Curb & Gutter CITY OF FRANKLIN
Streets:
Construction CITY OF FRANKLIN
Materials
Asphalt CITY OF FRANKLIN
Aggregate CITY OF FRANKLIN
Concrete CITY OF FRANKLIN
Cross Section CITY OF FRANKLIN
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APPROVAL REQUEST FOR MEETING DATE
. [;'( COUNCIL ACTION 8/4/20
LICENSES AND MISCELLANEOUS LICENSES ITEM NUMBER
PERMITS H.

See attached listing from meeting of August 4, 2020.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED




Franklin

WisSCONSIN
414-425-7500
License Committee
Agenda*
Aldermen’s Room
August 4, 2020 - 5:15 p.m.

Call to Order & Roll Call

| Time:

Applicant Interviews & Decisions

License Applications Reviewed

| Recommendations

Type/ Time

Applicant Information

Approve

Hold

Deny

Class B Combination,

Country Lanes Bowling, LLC

Bowling Alley, :
Entertainment & Dba Country Lanes Bowling Center
Amusement 7499 S North Cape Rd
5:35 p.m. Kevin Meier, Agent
Temporary Romey's Place
E";‘:::;::::: & Person in Charge: Nathan J Fabry
5:40 p.m. Location: Romey’s Place, 7508 S. North Cape Rd.

Date/Time of Event: Saturday September 5%, 2020
12:00p.m.-10:00p.m.

Entertainment &

Swiss Street Pub & Grill

A;f:;el;“;“t Person in Charge: John Trudeau
e Location: Swiss Street, 11430 W Swiss St.
Date/Time of Event: “Back Parking Lot, Music on the
Weekends.”
Temporary The Landmark
Entertainment & Person in Charge: Lori Knack-Helm
Amusement .
5:50 p.m. Location: 11401 W Swiss St
Date/Time of Event: September 5 & 6%, 12:00p.m.-
10:00p.m.
Temporary St. Paul’s Evangelical Lutheran Church
E“‘t\en:tj;:n“:::: & Person in Charge: Jame Petricek
Change of Date Event: 2020 Fundraiser: Silent/Live Auction
5:55 p.m. Location: 6881 S. 51t St

Event Date: Saturday, September 26, 2020

Temporary Class B
Beer and Wine
Change of Date

St. Paul’s Evangelical Lutheran Church
Person in Charge: Jaime Petricek

Event: 2020 Fundraiser: Silent/Live Auction
Location: 6881 S. 515t St

Event Date: Saturday, September 26, 2020

Operator Borger, Heather M
202:‘;&,021 511 Montana Ave
6:00 p.m. South Milwaukee, WI 53172
Hideaway Pub & Eatery
Operator Evans, Destanie
202:;3021 726 Marquette Ave #2
6:05 p.m. South Milwaukee, WI 53172
Insh Cottage
Operator Miller, Shannon P
2020-2024 W12458236 North Cape Rd
6:10 p.m. Muskego, WI 53150

Swiss Street Pub & Grill
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v noeI L URIREESELILL 4N ECIIUH
Alderman’s Room
August 4, 2020

Type/ Time Applicant Information Approve | Hold Deny
Operator Soltis, Joseph A
2020-2021 4155 S Lake Dr #22
6:15 p.m. St. Francis, WI 53235
Hideaway Pub & Eatery
Operator Cook, Amanda J
2020-2021 10324 W Bunzel Ave
Hales Corners, WI 53130
Tuckaway Country Club
Operator Dresdow, Ava R
2°2,3;3v°21 8113 W Dreyer P

West Allis, WI 53219
Romey'’s Place

Operator Ebert, John R
2020-2021 1137 27t St
New

Caledonia, WI 53108
Polish Center of Wisconsin

Operator Hasenstein, Dale G
2020-2021 3033 S 91t St

West Allis, WI 53227
Polish Center of Wisconsin

Operator Helm, Amber E

202:;,021 11401 Parkview Ln
Hales Corners, WI 53130
Landmark

Operator Howell, Jeanne E

2023;3\,021 $45W25670 Red Oak Ct
Waukesha, WI 53189
Tuckaway Country Club

Operator Lehman, John B

2023;3v°21 1301 S 76t St

West Allis, WI 53214
Polish Center of Wisconsin

Operator Planton, Allison M
202:;@021 14900 W Wilbur Dr., Unit 1204
New Berlin, WI 53151
The Rock Sports Complex
Operator Rodriquez, Daniel T
202'3;3v°21 8014 W Hilltop Ln
Franklin, WI 53132
Country Lanes
Operator Stanojevic, Ivana
2023;3\,021 613 Clark Avenue

South Milwaukee, WI 53172
Walgreens # 05884

Operator Thomason, Carly P
2020-2024 7007 W Coldspring Rd Apt 2
Greenfield, WI 53220
Iron Mike's
3. Adjournment

Time

*Notice 1s given that a majority of the Common Council may attend this meeting to gather information about an agenda item over which they have
decision-making responsibility  This may constitute a meeting of the Common Council per State ex rel Badke v Greendale Village Board, even
though the Common Council will not take formal action at this meeting
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APPROV»E\ REQUEST FOR MEETING DATE

N~ COUNCIL ACTION 8/04/2020
ITEM NUMBER
Bills Vouchers and Payroll Approval I

Attached are vouchers dated July 17, 2020 through August 1, 2020 Nos. 179163 through Nos 179319

in the amount of $ 3,355,591.45. Also included in this histing are EFT’s Nos. 4355 through Nos 4363,
Library vouchers totaling $ 29,606.99, Tourism vouchers totaling $ 207.86, Water Utility vouchers totaling
$ 9,998. Voided checks in the amount of $ (1,406.03) are separately listed.

Early release disbursements dated July 17, 2020 through July 31, 2020 in the amount of $ 507,255 80
are provided on a separate listing and are also included in the complete disbursement listing These
payments have been released as authorized under Resolution 2013-6920.

The net payroll dated July 31 2020 is $ 450,597.82 previously estimated at $ 416,000 00 Payroll
deductions dated July 31, 2020 are $ 441,089.81 previously estimated at $ 445,000.00.

The estimated payroll for August 14, 2020 is $ 395,000.00 with estimated deductions and matching
payments of $ 217,000.00.

There were no property tax distributions.

Approval to release transfer to American Deposit Management in the amount of $9,000,000 00 for
temporary tax investment.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion approving the following:
¢ City vouchers with an ending date of August 1, 2020 in the amount of $ 3,355,591 45 and

* Payroll dated July 31, 2020 in the amount of $ 450,597.82 and payments of the various payroll
deductions in the amount of $ 441,089.81 plus City matching payments and

e Estimated payroll dated August 1, 2020 in the amount of $ 395,000.00 and payments of the
various payroll deductions in the amount of $ 217,000.00, plus City matching payments and

¢ Approval to release tax transfer to American Deposit Management in the amount of
$9,000,000 00.

ROLL CALL VOTE NEEDED

Finance Dept — KM
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